AGENDA
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA
CITY COUNCIL MEETING
MONDAY, NOVEMBER 07, 2022
7:00 PM AT CITY HALL, 220 CLAY STREET

Call to Order by the Mayor

Roll Call

Pledge of Allegiance

Approval of Minutes

1

Regular meeting of October 17, 2022.

Agenda Revisions

Special Presentations

2.
3.

Proclamation recognizing November 11, 2022 as Veterans Day.

Proclamation recognizing November 2022 as Native American Heritage Month and November 25,
2022 as Native American Heritage Day.

Public Forum. (Speakers will have one opportunity to speak for up to 5 minutes on topics relevant to City

business.)

Staff Updates

Special Order of Business

4.

|

Public Hearing on the proposed plans, specifications and forms of contract & estimate of cost for the
Main Street Reconstruction Project.

a) Receive and file proof of publication of notice of hearing. (Notice published 10/28/2022)
b) Written communications filed with the City Clerk.

c¢) Staff comments.

d) Public comments.

e) Resolution approving and adopting the plans specifications form of contract & estimate of cost for
the Main Street Reconstruction Project.

Public hearing on the proposed plans, specifications, form of contract & estimate of cost for the
Cedar River Recreational Improvements Project.

a) Receive and file proof of publication of notice of hearing. (Notice published 10/28/2022)
b) Written communications filed with the City Clerk.
c¢) Staff comments.

d) Public comments.
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e) Resolution approving and adopting the plans specifications form of contract & estimate of cost for
the Cedar River Recreational Improvements Project.

Public hearing on a proposal to vacate portions of an existing sanitary sewer easement located at
3718 Apollo Lane.

a) Receive and file proof of publication of notice of hearing. (Notice published 10/28/2022)
b) Written communications filed with the City Clerk.

c¢) Staff comments.

d) Public comments.

e) Resolution vacating portions of an existing sanitary sewer easement located at 3718 Apollo Lane.

Public hearing on the City’'s FFY21 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report
(CAPER) for the Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) and HOME Programs.

a) Receive and file proof of publication of notice of hearing. (Notice published 10/28/2022)
b) Written communications filed with the City Clerk.
¢) Staff comments.

d) Public comments. (Continue hearing to November 21, 2022)

Old Business

8.

|©

Pass Ordinance #3018, amending Chapter 24, Utilities, of the Code of Ordinances relative to
establishing the 27th Street Sanitary Sewer Extension District, upon its third & final consideration.

Pass Ordinance #3019, amending Chapter 16, Offenses and Miscellaneous Provisions, of the Code
of Ordinances relative to use of consumer fireworks within the City limits, upon its second
consideration.

Pass an ordinance amending Section 18-23(5), Powers and duties of the Planning and Zoning
Commission, of the Code of Ordinances relative to removing 2/3 majority vote required by City
Council to approve amendments to the City's comprehensive plan that are disapproved by the
Planning and Zoning Commission, upon its first consideration.

Pass an ordinance amending Chapter 26, Zoning, of the Code of Ordinances relative to removing
the 2/3 majority vote required by City Council to approve zoning amendments that are disapproved
by the Planning and Zoning Commission, upon its first consideration.

Consent Calendar: (The following items will be acted upon by voice vote on a single motion without separate
discussion, unless someone from the Council or public requests that a specific item be considered separately.)

12.

Receive and file the City Council Standing Committee minutes of October 17, 2022 relative to the
following items:

a) Human Rights Commission Annual Report.

b) Council Meeting Procedures - Order of Agenda (Rule 3.1) and Miscellaneous Administrative
Corrections.

¢) UNI Dome Fundraising.

Receive and file the resignation of Katelyn Browne as a member of the Library Board of Trustees.

Approve the following recommendations of the Mayor relative to the appointment of members to
Boards and Commissions:
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a) Michael Graziano, Library Board of Trustees, term ending 06/30/2028.
b) Lindi Roelofse, Library Board of Trustees, term ending 06/30/2028.

Receive and file Departmental Monthly Reports of September 2022.
Receive and file the FY2022 Street Financial Report (SFR) for the City.
Receive and file the FY2022 Annual Comprehensive Financial Report.

Receive and file the Bi-Annual Report of Community Main Street relative to FY23 Self-Supported
Municipal Improvement District (SSMID) funds and an FY23 Economic Development Grant.

Approve the following applications for beer permits and liquor licenses:

a) Alist Nails, 6015 University Avenue, Special Class C liquor — renewal.

b) Peppers Grill & Sports Pub, 620 East 18th Street, Class C liquor - renewal.

¢) The Brown Bottle, 1111 Center Street, Class C liquor & outdoor service - renewal.

Resolution Calendar: (The following items will be acted upon by roll call vote on a single motion without
separate discussion, unless someone from the Council or public requests that a specific item be considered

separately.)

20.

N

NN
N

Resolution approving and adopting revised City Council Meeting Procedures.
Resolution approving the recommendation and appointment of Police Chief.

Resolution authorizing certification of eligible expenses for reimbursement from the College Hill,
Downtown, Pinnacle Prairie, South Cedar Falls, and Unified Tax Increment Financing Revenues.

Resolution approving and authorizing an inter-fund loan from the Tax Increment Financing (TIF)
Bond Fund to the Tax Increment Financing (TIF) Fund relative to funding for the parking lot overlay
project costs in the College Hill Urban Renewal Area.

Resolution approving and authorizing an inter-fund loan from the Stormwater Fund to the Tax
Increment Financing (TIF) Fund relative to funding for the Olive Street Box Culvert project costs in
the College Hill Urban Renewal Area.

Resolution approving and authorizing an inter-fund loan from the Tax Increment Financing (TIF)
Bond Fund to the Tax Increment Financing (TIF) Fund relative to funding for the Prairie Parkway &
Viking Road intersection improvements and Pinnacle Prairie round-a-bout intersection improvements
in the Pinnacle Prairie Urban Renewal Area.

Resolution approving and authorizing an inter-fund loan from the Tax Increment Financing (TIF)
Bond Fund to the Tax Increment Financing (TIF) Fund relative to funding for the Cyber Lane and
Hudson Road & Ridgeway Avenue intersection improvements in the South Cedar Falls Urban
Renewal Area.

Resolution approving and authorizing an inter-fund loan from the Economic Development Fund to
the Tax Increment Financing (TIF) Fund relative to funding for the purchase of land and related
expenses in the South Cedar Falls Urban Renewal Area.

Resolution approving and authorizing an inter-fund loan from the Tax Increment Financing (TIF)
Bond Fund to the Tax Increment Financing (TIF) Fund relative to funding for legal fees, construction
costs, design costs, brick costs, utility costs, reimbursement payments, landscaping costs, easement
costs and other project costs related to the Downtown Streetscape Project in the Downtown Urban
Renewal Area.

Resolution approving and authorizing an inter-fund loan from the Tax Increment Financing (TIF)
Bond Fund to the Tax Increment Financing (TIF) Fund relative to funding for the West Viking Road,
Industrial Park Street Expansion, and other administrative and legal fees in the Unified Urban
Renewal Area.
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Resolution approving and authorizing an inter-fund loan from the Economic Development Fund to
the Tax Increment Financing (TIF) Fund relative to funding for the purchase of land and related
expenses in the Unified Urban Renewal Area.

Resolution approving and authorizing submission of the City's FY2022 Annual Urban Renewal
Report.

Resolution levying a final assessment for costs incurred by the City to mow the property located at
1014 West 9th Street.

Resolution levying a final assessment for costs incurred by the City to mow the property located at
1210 West 19th Street.

Resolution levying a final assessment for costs incurred by the City to mow the property located at
3120 Homeway Drive.

Resolution levying a final assessment for costs incurred by the City to mow the property located at
8702 University Avenue.

Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a 28E Agreement for Tobacco, Alternative
Nicotine and Vapor Product Enforcement with the lowa Alcoholic Beverages Division.

Resolution approving and authorizing execution of an Offer to Buy Real Estate and Acceptance for
2.5 acres of real estate located at 2617 South Union Road relative to expansion of the West Viking
Road Industrial Park.

Resolution approving a College Hill Neighborhood (CHN) Overlay Zoning District site plan for facade
improvements at 817 West 23rd Street.

Resolution approving a College Hill Neighborhood (CHN) Overlay Zoning District site plan for
construction of a detached garage at 924 West 19th Street.

Resolution approving and authorizing execution of an Agreement for Asbestos Abatement with
Advanced Environmental Inc., in conjunction with the Northern Cedar Falls Flood Buyout Program.

Resolution approving and authorizing a First Amendment to the Subrecipient Agreement for
Federally Funded Project with the Northeast lowa Food Bank for Community Development Block
Grant (CDBG-CV?2) funding relative to the CARES Act.

Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Repair Contract with Daniels Home
Improvement & Construction Co. relative to a Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Rental
Rehabilitation Project at 1009 West 3rd Street.

Resolution approving the final plat of Terraces at West Glen Second Addition.

Resolution approving and accepting completion of public improvements in Terraces at West Glen
Second Addition.

Resolution approving the Certificate of Completion and accepting the work of Benton's Sand and
Gravel Inc. for the 2021 Permeable Alley Project.

Resolution approving and authorizing execution of Supplemental Agreement No. 2 to the
Professional Service Agreement with AECOM Technical Services, Inc. relative to the Olive Street
Box Culvert Replacement Project.

Resolution approving expenditure of funds for the purchase of a utility/cargo van for the Public Works
Department.

Resolution setting November 21, 2022 as the date of public hearing to consider entering into an
Agreement for Private Development and to consider conveyance of certain city-owned real estate to
CF Storage, L.L.C.
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Allow Bills and Claims

49.  Allow Bills and Claims for November 7, 2022.
Council Referrals
Council Updates and Announcements

Executive Session

50. Executive Session to discuss Information contained in records in the custody of a governmental body
that are confidential records pursuant to lowa Code Section 22.7(50).

Adjournment
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COMMUNITY CENTER
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, OCTOBER 17, 2022
REGULAR MEETING, CITY COUNCIL
MAYOR ROBERT M. GREEN PRESIDING

The City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, lowa, met in Regular Session,
pursuant to law, the rules of said Council and prior notice given each member
thereof, at 7:00 P.M. on the above date. Members present: Schultz (via video
conference), Kruse, Harding, Ganfield, Sires, Dunn. Absent: deBuhr. Altrusa
International Group Vice President Amy Jardon led the Pledge of Allegiance.

It was moved by Ganfield and seconded by Harding that the minutes of the
Regular Meeting of October 3, 2022, and the Special Meeting of September 26,
2022, be approved as presented and ordered of record. Motion carried
unanimously.

Mayor Green read the following proclamations:
Proclamation recognizing October 19, 2022 as Gentleman Day.

Proclamation recognizing October 22, 2022 as Altrusa Make A Difference Day.
Altrusa Group Vice President Amy Jardon accepted and commented.

Sheree Martinez, 1124 Main Street, commented on notices for temporary
easements for Main Street Reconstruction project, expressing concerns with the
language in the temporary easement agreement.

WayPoint Domestic Violence Victim Advocate Rachel expressed appreciation for
the Gentleman Day proclamation and commented on services WayPoint
provides.

City Administrator Gaines announced the return to Council Chambers in City Hall
for the November 7, 2022, City Council Meeting.

Mayor Green announced that in accordance with the public notice of October 7,
2022, this was the time and place for a public hearing on proposed amendments
to Section 18-23(5) and Section 26-4(c) of the Code of Ordinances relative to the
voting threshold required to override the Planning and Zoning Commission. It
was then moved by Ganfield and seconded by Harding that the proof of
publication of notice of hearing be received and placed on file. Motion carried
unanimously.

The Mayor then asked if there were any written communications filed to the
proposed amendments. Upon being advised that there were no written
communications on file, the Mayor then called for oral comments. Community
Development Director Sheetz provided a brief summary of the proposed
amendments. There being no one else present wishing to speak about the
proposed amendments, the Mayor declared the hearing closed and passed to
the next order of business.

It was moved by Sires and seconded by Kruse to pass an ordinance amending
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Section 18-23(5), Powers and duties of the Planning and Zoning Commission, of
the Code of Ordinances relative to removing 2/3 majority vote required by City
Council to approve amendments to the City's comprehensive plan that are
disapproved by the Planning and Zoning Commission, upon its first
consideration. It was then moved by Kruse and seconded by Harding to
postpone consideration until the November 7, 2022 City Council meeting.
Following comments by Councilmembers Kruse and Harding, the motion to
postpone carried unanimously.

It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Harding to pass an ordinance
amending Chapter 26, Zoning, of the Code of Ordinances relative to removing
the 2/3 majority vote required by City Council to approve zoning amendments
that are disapproved by the Planning and Zoning Commission, upon its first
consideration. It was then moved by Harding and seconded by Kruse to
postpone consideration until the November 7, 2022 City Council meeting. The
motion to postpone carried unanimously.

It was moved by Ganfield and seconded by Harding that Ordinance #3018,
amending Chapter 24, Utilities, of the Code of Ordinances relative to establishing
the 27th Street Sanitary Sewer Extension District, be passed upon its second
consideration. Following due consideration by the Council, the Mayor put the
guestion on the motion and upon call of the roll, the following named
Councilmembers voted. Aye: Kruse, Harding, Ganfield, Sires, Dunn, Schultz.
Nay: None. Motion carried.

It was moved by Ganfield and seconded by Harding that the following items on
the Consent Calendar be received, filed and approved:

Receive and file the City Council Standing Committee minutes of October 3,
2022 relative to the following items.
a) Review of Fireworks Ordinance.

Receive and file the resignation of LeaAnn Saul as a member of the Planning &
Zoning Commission.

Receive and file a communication from the Civil Service Commission relative to
the certified list for the position of Horticulturist in the Public Works Department.

Receive and file the FY2022 Annual Report of the Cedar Falls Human Rights
Commission.

Approve the application of Great Wall China, 2125 College Street, Suite D, for a
cigarette/tobacco/nicotine/vapor permit.

Approve the following applications for beer permits and liquor licenses:

a) Hilton Garden Inn, 7213 Nordic Drive, Class B liquor, Class B native wine &
outdoor service - renewal.

b) Fareway Store, 4500 South Main Street, Class E liquor — renewal.

c) Great Wall of China, 2125 College Street, Class C beer & Class B wine - new.

Motion carried unanimously.
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It was moved by Dunn and seconded by Harding to approve the following
recommendations of the Mayor relative to the appointment of members to Boards
and Commissions:

a) Brad Leeper, Planning & Zoning Commission, term ending 11/01/2027.

b) Oksana Grybovych Hafermann, Planning & Zoning Commission, term ending
11/01/2027.

Following comments by Councilmember Kruse, the motion carried 5-1, with
Kruse voting Nay.

It was moved by Harding and seconded by Kruse that the following resolutions
be introduced and adopted:

Resolution #22,933, approving and adopting amendments to certain Personnel
Policies for the City of Cedar Falls.

Resolution #22,934, approving and adopting the rate of $3.89 per $1,000 taxable
value for the Downtown Cedar Falls Self-Supported Municipal Improvement
District (SSMID) for FY24.

Resolution #22,935, approving a College Hill Neighborhood (CHN) Overlay
Zoning District site plan for relocation of a garage to 1214 West 20th Street.

Resolution #22,936, approving and accepting four Warranty Deeds, one Release
of Real Estate Mortgage, and four Flood Mitigation Deed Restrictions, in
conjunction with the Northern Cedar Falls Flood Buyout Program.

Resolution #22,937, approving and authorizing execution of a Demolition Project
Contract with Lehman Trucking & Excavating Inc., in conjunction with the
Northern Cedar Falls Flood Buyout Program.

Resolution #22,938, approving and authorizing execution of one Owner
Purchase Agreement; and approving and accepting one Temporary Construction
Easement, in conjunction with the Main Street Reconstruction (6th Street to
University) Project.

Resolution #22,939, receiving and filing, and setting November 7, 2022 as the
date of public hearing on the proposed plans, specifications, form of contract &
estimate of cost for the Main Street Reconstruction Project.

Resolution #22,940, receiving and filing, and setting November 7, 2022 as the
date of public hearing on the proposed plans, specifications, form of contract &
estimate of cost for the Cedar River Recreational Improvements Project.

Resolution #22,941, setting November 7, 2022 as the date of public hearing on a
proposal to vacate a portion of sanitary sewer easement located at 3718 Apollo
Lane.

Resolution #22,942, setting November 7, 2022 as the date of public hearing on
the City’s FFY21 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report
(CAPER) for the Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) and HOME
Programs.
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Following due consideration by the Council, the Mayor put the question on the
motion and upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted.
Aye: Kruse, Harding, Ganfield, Sires, Dunn, Schultz. Nay: None. Motion carried.
The Mayor then declared Resolutions #22,933 through #22,942 duly passed and
adopted.

It was moved by Harding and seconded by Ganfield that a resolution setting
November 7, 2022 as the date of public hearing on proposed amendments to
Chapter 26, Zoning, of the Code of Ordinances relative to eliminating the shared
parking requirement and increasing residential parking requirements in the
Downtown Character District (CD-DT) to one parking space per bedroom, be
adopted. It was then moved by Kruse and seconded by Sires to postpone
consideration of hearing until the 2/3 majority vote issue is resolved. Motion
carried unanimously.

It was moved by Ganfield and seconded by Harding that Ordinance #3019,
amending Chapter 16, Offenses and Miscellaneous Provisions, of the Code of
Ordinances relative to use of consumer fireworks within the City limits, be passed
upon its first consideration. It was then moved by Harding and seconded by
Kruse to amend the motion to change the date from “December 31” to “between
January 1 and March 1 each year to apply to the same calendar year”. Following
guestions and comments by Councilmembers Kruse, Ganfield and Harding, and
response by Public Safety Director Berte, the motion carried 5-1, with Ganfield
voting Nay. It was then moved by Ganfield and seconded by Kruse to change “an
additional day” to “any additional days”. Following comments by Councilmembers
Dunn, Kruse and Ganfield, and responses by City Attorney Rogers and Mayor
Green, the motion carried 5-1, with Dunn voting Nay. The Mayor then put the
guestion on the original motion, as amended, and upon call of the roll, the
following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Kruse, Harding, Ganfield, Sires,
Dunn, Schultz. Nay: None. Motion carried.

It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Harding that the bills and claims of
October 17, 2022 be allowed as presented, and that the Controller/City Treasurer
be authorized to issue City checks in the proper amounts and on the proper
funds in payment of the same. Upon call of the roll, the following named
Councilmembers voted. Aye: Kruse, Harding, Ganfield, Sires, Dunn, Schultz.
Nay: None. Motion carried.

It was moved by Dunn and seconded by Harding to refer to the Finance and
Business Operations Committee options for reimplementing a paid parking
system in the downtown area. Following comments by Councilmembers Harding,
Dunn and Kruse, the motion carried 5-1, with Sires voting Nay.

Councilmember Sires wished his granddaughter a Happy Birthday.

It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Ganfield that the meeting be adjourned
at 8:03 P.M. Motion carried unanimously.

Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk
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MAYOR ROBERT M. GREEN

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA
220 CLAY STREET

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613
319-273-8600

VETERANS DAY

NOVEMBER 11, 2022

WHEREAS, America's men and women in uniform have defeated tyrants, liberated
continents, and set a standard of courage, honor, and selfless service for the entire
world; and

WHEREAS, on Veterans Day, our Nation pays tribute to those who have proudly served
in our Armed Forces of the United States; and

WHEREAS, in answering history's call with honor and resolve, our veterans have shown
the power of liberty and earned the admiration of a grateful Nation; and

WHEREAS, as we recall the service of our Soldiers, Sailors, Airmen, Marines, Coast
Guardsmen, and Guardians, we are reminded that the defense of freedom comes with
great sacrifice, and we give thanks to those who have served freedom's cause; and

WHEREAS, in recognition of the contributions our service men and women have made
to the cause of peace and freedom around the world, the Congress has provided that
November 11 of each year shall be set aside as a public holiday to honor veterans; and

NOW, THEREFORE 1, Robert M. Green, Mayor of the City of Cedar Falls do hereby
proclaim November 11, 2022, as Veterans Day throughout the city, and do encourage
all citizens to recognize the valor and sacrifice of our veterans through ceremonies,
expressions, programs, and prayers.

Signed this 2rd day of November 2022.

Zmrénm/

Mayor Robert M. Green
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CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613

YHERITAGE MONTHX

NATIONAL NATIVE AMERICAN HERITAGE MONTH

and NATIVE AMERICAN HERITAGE DAY
November 2022 and November 25, 2022

WHEREAS, since its first national declaration by President George H. W. Bush in November
1990, Native American Heritage Month has been a time to celebrate the rich tapestry of
Indigenous peoples and to honor their sacrifices, which we recognize as inextricably woven
into the history of this country; and

WHEREAS, Native Americans are descendants of the original, indigenous inhabitants of what
is now the United States of America; and

WHEREAS, Native Americans have moving stories of tragedy, triumph, and perseverance that
need to be shared with future generations; and

WHEREAS, our country has benefited by the character and strength exemplified by the Native
Americans who have answered the call of service in our armed forces in greater numbers per
capita than any other group, and these soldiers, sailors, airmen, marines are worthy of honor
for their bravery and sacrifice; and

WHEREAS, the City of Cedar Falls is committed to protecting the tribal sovereignty and self-
determination of Native American peoples, and ensuring that local Native American challenges
and concerns are addressed through the Cedar Falls Human Rights Commission; and

WHEREAS, during the month of November, recognize Native Americans’ continued
contributions in strengthening the diversity of our society, and set aside the day after
Thanksgiving to honor Native American history and heritage;

NOW, THEREFORE, I, Robert M. Green, Mayor of Cedar Falls, do hereby proclaim November
2022 as Native American Heritage Month and November 25, 2022 as Native American
Heritage Day throughout the City and encourage all residents to honor native peoples in their
ancestral homes, and to endeavor to celebrate and preserve the unique culture and heritage of
native peoples, including the Sac and Fox tribes of eastern lowa.

Signed this 1st day of November, 2022.

Zoau-énm/

Mayor Robert M. Green




Item 4.

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS

City of Cedar Falls

220 Clay Street

Cedar Falls, lowa 50613
Phone: 319-268-5161

Fax: 319-268-5197
www.cedarfalls.com MEMORANDUM

Engineering Division

TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council
FROM: Luke Andreasen, PE
DATE: October 7, 2022

SUBJECT: Main Street Reconstruction
City Project Number: RC-000-3283
Public Hearing

Submitted within for City Council approval are the Plans, Specifications, and Estimate of
Costs and Quantities for the Main Street Reconstruction.

This project consists of full street reconstruction along Main Street from 6" Street to
almost University Avenue. The reconstruction will include changing from 4 to 3 lanes and
adding bicycle lanes in both directions. It will include three new roundabout intersections,
replacing the traffic signal at 6" Street, a decorative gateway feature near 7t Street, and
landscaping throughout the corridor. Sidewalk, sanitary sewer, water main, and storm
sewer will be replaced throughout the corridor.

The total estimated cost for the construction of this project is $21,813,291.00. The City
received a $2,900,000.00 Surface Transportation Block Grant (STBG) and $500,000.00
through the Traffic Safety Improvement Program (TSIP). The remaining funds will be
provided by General Obligation Bonds, Local Sales Tax, Street Construction Fund,
American Rescue Plan, Stormwater Fund, Tax increment Financing, and Cedar Falls
Utilities.

The Engineering Division of the Public Works Department recommends approving the
Plans, Specifications, and Estimate of Costs and Quantities for the Main Street
Reconstruction project.

XC: David Wicke, P.E., City Engineer
Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works
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Bid Date: November 15, 2022

OPINION OF PROBABLE CONSTRUCTION COSTS

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS
Main Street Reconstruction from Seerley Blvd to 6th Street
lowa DOT No. STBG-SWAP-1185(657)--SG-07

Final Plans (9/1/2022)

DIVISION 1: PARTICIPATING DIVISION 2: NON-PARTICIPATING DIVISION 3: LANDSCAPING TOTAL
ITEM NO. ITEM CODE ITEM DESCRIPTION UNIT UNIT PRICE
QUANTITY SUBTOTAL QUANTITY SUBTOTAL QUANTITY SUBTOTAL QUANTITY PRICE
01-0850002 CLEARING AND GRUBBING 4 1530 68,850. - - 1530 68,850.00
02-2710070 EXCAVATION. CLASS 10. ROADWAY AND BORROW 4031 28.217. - - 4031 28.217.00
02-2710080 EXCAVATION. CLASS 10. UNSUITABLE MATERIAL 1 2000 26.000. - - 2000 26.000.00
02-2710090 EXCAVATION. CLASS 10. WASTI 25089 150.53¢ - - 25089 150.534.00
05-8425005 TOPS FURNISH AND SPREAD 2 1742 48.77¢ - - 1742 48.776.00
05-8425015 TOPS RIP. SALVAGE AND SPREAD 3818 26.72 - - 3818 26.726.00
07-0425020 COMPACTING BACKFILL ADJACENT TO BRIDGES. CULVERTS OR STRUCTURES 21, 274 5.75 - - 274 5.754.00
-8225100 SPECIAL COMPACTION OF SUBGRADE 750. 93 69.750. - - 93 69.750.00
-0100000 MODIFIED SUBBASE. 12 IN 45. 24513 1.103.085. - - 24513 1.103.085.00
-7450020 SHOULDER FINISHING. EARTH 450. 184 82.800. - - 184 82.800.00
2213-7100400 |RELOCATION OF MAIL BOXES 500. 1 500. - - 1 00.00
2301-1033060 STANDARD OR SLIP FORM PCC PAVEMENT. CLASS C. CLASS 3 DURABILITY. 6 IN. 55. 1594 87.670. - - 1594 87.670.00
2301-1033085 STANDARD OR SLIP FORM PCC PAVEMENT. CLASS C. CLASS 3 DURABILITY. 8.5 IN. 56. 54407 3.046.792. - - 54407 3.046.792.00
2301-6911722 PORTLAND CEMENT CONCRETE PAVEMENT SAMPLES 4.000. 1 ,000. - - 1 X .00
2301-7000110 PAYMENT ADJUSTMENT INCENTIVE/DISINCENTIVE FOR PCC PAVEMENT THICKNESS (BY SCHEDULE) 1. 48967 48.967. - - 48967 48.967.00
2303-0002380 HOT MIX ASPHALT MIXTURE INTERLAYER BASE COURSE. 3/8 IN. MIX 565. 46 .530. - - 46 .530.00
2303-1033500 HOT MIX ASPHALT STANDARD TRAFFIC. SURFACE COURSE. 1/2 IN. MI X, NO SPECIAL FRICTION REQUIREMENT 50. 19 950. - - 19 950.00
2303-1258283 ASPHALT BINDER. PG 58-28S. STANDARD TRAFFIC 650. 4 2.600. - - 4 2.600.00
2304-0100000 DETOUR PAVEMENT 60. 11790 707.400. - - 11790 707.400.00
12-8260051 GRANULAR SURFACING ON ROAD. CLASS A CRUSHED STONE 26. 2886 75.036. - - 2886 75.036.00
16-0000110 PAYMENT ADJUSTMENT INCENTIVE/DISINCENTIVE FOR PCC PAVEMENT SMOOTHNESS (BY SCHEDULE) 1. 40806 10.806. - - 40806 40.806.00
REMOVAI CONCRETE FOOTINGS OF LIGHT POLES 800. 56 14.800. - - 56 44.800.00
23 REI Al F EXISTING STRUCTURES 50.000. 1 0.000. - - 1 50.000.00
24 REI AL LIGHT POLES 400.00 56 2.400. - - 56 22.400.00
25 REI AL OF SIGN 80.00 87 6.960. - - 87 6.960.00
26 REI ALS. AS PER PLAN 50.000.00 1 50.000. - - 1 50.000.00
27 GRANULAR BACKFILL 30. 2723 81.690. - - 2723 81.690.00
28 FLOODED BACKFILL 40. 174 6.960. - - 174 6.960.00
29 EXCAVATION. CLASS 20 20. 7505 150.100. - - 7505 150.100.00
30 EXCAVATION. CLASS 22 100. 149 14.900. - - 149 14.900.00
GRANULAR MATERIAL FOR BLANKET 70. 509 35.630. - - 509 35.630.00
STRUCTURAL CONCRETE (MISC) 1.400. 286 399.840. - - 286 399.840.00
STRUCTURAL CONCRETE (RCB) 700. 1448 1.013.460. - - 1448 1.013.460.00
REINFORCING STEE! 2. 274210 548.420. - - 274210 548.42
35 STEEL PIPE PEDESTRIAN HAND RAILING 200. 250 50.000. - - 250 50.00(
36 ORNAMENTAL METAL RAILING 300. 454 136.200. - - 454 136.:
37 CONCRETE BOX CULVERT. 8 FT. X4 FT. 1.265. 235 297.275. - - 235 297..
38 CONCRETE BOX CULVERT. STRAIGHT END SECTION. 8 FT. X 4 FT. 7.500.00 7.500. - - 1 7.
39 CONCRETE. 24 IN. DIA. 1.500.00 1.500. - - 1 1!
LOCK RETAINING WALL 50.00 148 7.400. - - 148 7.
ARY SEWER. SW-301. 48 IN. 000.00 27 162.000. - - 27 162,
SEWER. SW-401. 48 IN. 500.00 27.000. - - 27.
SEWER. SW-401. 60 IN. 000.00 18.000. - - 18,
. STOF SEWER. SW-402. 6 X 6 000.00 6.000. - - 6.
AKE. SW-502, 4! 000.00 4.000. - - 4. X
AKE. SW-502, 61 250.00 31.250. - - 31.250.00
AKE. SW-502, 72 500.00 7.500. - - 7.500.00
18 AKE. SW-502. 84 10.000.00 0.000. - - 10. .00
9 AKE. SW-505 000.00 30.000. - - 30.( .00
50 AKE. SW-505 MODIFIED TRIPLE 000.00 10.000. - - 40.( .00
51 AKE. SW-506 000.00 2,000. - - 12, .00
52 AKE. SW-506 MODIFIED TRIPLE 000.00 6.000. - - 16. .00
53 Al SW-50° 000.00 28 168.000. - - 2 168.000.00
54 Al SW-508 500.00 13.000. - - 13.000.00
55 AKE. SW-5( 500.00 A 312.000. - - 4 312.000.00
56 AKE. SW-509 MODIFIED. TOP ONLY 000.00 6.000. - - .000.00
57 Al SW-510 500.00 30.000. - - 30.000.00
58 Al SW-541 7.000.00 14.000. - - 14.000.00
59 NTAKE. SW-542 7.000.00 35.000. - - 35.000.00
60 ERNAL DROP CONNECTION. SW-308 200.00 1 .200. - - .200.00
61 IANHOLE ADJUSTMENT. MINOR 500.00 7 10.500. - - 10.500.00
62 IANHOLE ADJUSTMENT. MAJOR 500.00 1 2.500. - - .500.00
63 CONNECTION TO EXISTING INTAKE 500.00 5 7.500. - - .500.00
64 UBDRAIN. LONGITUDINAL. (SHOULDER) 6 IN. DIA. 17. 10698 181.866. - - 10698 181.866.00
65 BDRAIN OUTLET. DR-3 250. 142 35.500. - - 142 35.500.00
66 ORM SE! RAVITY MAI HYLI P H .15 51. 1301 66.351. - - 1301 66.351.00
67 Y MAI HYLI P H .18 55. 414 22.770. - - 414 22.770.00
68 Y MAI HYLI P H .24 59. 1135 66.965. - - 1135 66.965.00
69 Y MAI HYLI P H . 30 80. 802 64.160. - - 802 64.160.00
X Y MAI H P H . 36 100. 159 15.900. - - 159 15.900.00
7 Y MAI 60. 15 900. - - 15 900.00
e Y MAI 65. 2775 180.375. - - 2775 180.375.00
e Y MAI 70. 1146 80.220. - - 1146 80.220.00
7 Y MAI 90. 1303 117.270. - - 1303 117.270.00
7 Y MAI . 3 105. 450 47.250. - - 450 47.250.00
7 Y MAI . 36 120. 671 80.520. - - 671 80.520.00
T Y MAI Cl Cl . 42 150. 11 .650. - - 11 1.650.00
78 R PIPE LESS THAN OR EQUAL TO 36 IN. 24. 4579 109.896. - - 4579 109.896.00
79 -R PIPE GREATER THAN 36 IN. 44. 147 .468. - - 147 .468.00
80 ONMENT. FILL AND PLUG. LESS THAN OR EQUAL T O 36 IN. DIA. 68. 41 .788. - - 41 .788.00
81 Al Y MAIN, TRENCHED. RCP. 2000D (CLASS Ill). 27 IN. 400. 103 41.200. - - 103 41.200.00
82 Al Y MAIN. TREI . SS 80. 1563 125.040. - - 1563 125.040.00
83 Al Y MAIN. TREI IN.. TRUSS 85. 126 10.710. - - 126 .710.00
84 Al Y MAIN. TREI 5 IN.. TRUSS 95. 383 36.385. - - 383 .385.00
85 Al Y MAIN. TRENCHED. PVC. IN.. TRUSS 105. 5027 527.835. - - 5027 527.835.00
86 Al Y MAIN WITH CASING PIPE. TRENCHED. PVC. 8 IN.. TRUSS 290. 30 8.700. - - 30 8.700.00
87 | SANITAF ICE STUB. POLYVINYL CHLORIDE PIPE (PVC). 4 IN. 70. 4493 314.510. - - 4493 314.510.00
88 REMOVE SANITARY SEWER PIl LESS THAN OR EQUAL TO 36 IN. LI 25. 6846 171.150. - - 6846 171.150.00
89 STEEL BEAM GUARDRAIL LF 32. 128 4.096. - - 128 4.096.00
90 2507-3250005 ENGINEERING FABRIC 4. 1023 4.092. - - 1023 4.092.00
91 2507-4011100 |CONCRETE GROUT FOR REVETMENT OF GABION cY 250. 36 9.000. - - 36 9.000.00
92 2507-6800061 |REVETMENT. CLASS E TON 60. 1040 62.400. - - 1040 62.400.00
93 REI AL OF PAVEMENT SY. 9. 70195 631.755. - - 70195 631.755.00
94 REMOVAL OF INTAKE AND UTILITY ACCESS EACH 650. 115 74.750. - - 115 74.750.00
95 REI AL OF SIDEWALK Y 10. 8291 82.910. - - 8291 82.910.00
96 SIDE! LK. PCC. 4 IN. Y 45. 9624 433.080. - - 9624 433.080.00
97 SIDEWALK. PCC. 6 IN. Y 50. 1392 69.600. - - 1392 69.600.00
98 |DETECTABLE WARNING F 49. 2100 102.900. - - 2100 102.900.00
99 |CURB AND GUTTER. P.C. CONCRETE. 2.0 FT. LF 29. 288 8.352. - - 288 8.352.00
0 CURB. SPECIAL. AS PER PLAN LF 70. 447 31.290. - - 447 31.290.00
0: DRIVEWAY. PCC. 6 IN. Y 65. 4226 274.690. - - 4226 274.690.00
0: REMOVAL OF PAVED DRIVEWAY Y 12, 5261 63.132. - - 5261 63.132.00
0 COMBINED CONCRETE SIDEWALK AND RETAINING WALL cY 825. 316 260.700. - - 316 260.700.00
04 REMOVAL AND REINSTALLATION OF FENCE. WOOD LF 65. 47 3.055. - - 47 3.055.00
0 FIELD OFFICE EACH 25.000. 1 25.000. - - 1 25.000.00
Of LIGHTING POLES EACH 3.000.00 84 252.000. - - 84 252.000.00
07 2523-0000200 ELECTRICAL CIRCUITS LF 20. 14170 283,400. - - 14170 283,400.00
08 2523-0000310 _ |HANDHOLE AND JUNCTION BOX EACH 600. 9 ,400. - - 9 ,400.00
9 REMOVE Al REINSTALL SIGN AS PER PLAN EACH 300. 13 ,900. - - 13 ,900.00
PERFORATI E STEEL TUBE POSTS LF 12, 1320 ,840. - - 1320 ,840.00
2524-9276021 PERFORATI E STEEL TUBE POST ANCHOR, BREAK-AWAY SOIL IN STALLATION EACH 200. 109 ,800. - - 109 .800.00
2524-9276024 PERFORATI E STEEL TUBE POST ANCHOR, BREAK-AWAY CONCRET E INSTALLATION EACH 450. 24 ,800. - - 24 ,800.00
2524-9325001 TYPE A SIGI ALUMINUM F 24. 1176 8,224, - - 1176 28,224.00
25250000100 FIC SIGNALIZATION 250,000 1 250,000 - - 1 250,000.00
2525-0000120 IOVAL OF TRAFFIC SIGNALIZATION 35,000.00 1 35,000. - - 1 35,000.00
2526-8285000 STRUCTION SURVEY' 195,000.00 1 195,000 - - 1 105,000.00
2527-9263109 ITED PAVEMENT MARKING, WATERBORNE OR SOLVENT-BASED 7 620.3 43,421, - - 620 43,421.00
2527-9263131 T RETROREFLECTIVE REMOVABLE TAPE MARKINGS 1 180.6 22,575. - - 181 22,575.00
2527-9263137 AINTED SYMBOLS AND LEGENDS, WATERBORNE OR SOLVENT-BASED 1 180 20,700. - - 180 20,700.00
2527-9263180 AVEMENT MARKINGS REMOVED 239 7.635.2 - - 239 7,635.20
25282518000 | SAFETY CLOSURES 15 56 8.400. - - 56 8,400.00
2528-5160000 |0 EXCUSE ROAD OPENING BONUS, SITE ID 01, 11/15/2023 215,000. 1 215,000.00 - 215,000.00
2528-5160000 NO EXCUSE ROAD OPENING BONUS, SITE ID 02, 11/15/2024 215,000.00 1 215,000.00 - 215,000.00
2528-8400048 TEMPORARY BARRIER RAIL, CONCRETE 20.00 12750 255,000. - - 12750 255,000.00
2528-8400256 TEMPORARY TRAFFIC SIGNALS 20,000.00 160,000. - - 160,000.00
2528-8445110 TRAFFIC CONTROL 390,000.00 390.000. - - 390,000.00
2528-9290050 | PORTABLE DYNAMIC MESSAGE SIGN (PDMS) 150.00 112 16.800. - - 112 16,800.00
2533-4980005__|MOBILIZATION 975,000.00 975,000 - - 975,000.00
2552-0000300 | TRENCH COMPACTION TESTING 6.000.00 6.000. - - ,000.00
2554-0112004 ATER MAIN, TRENCHED, DIP, CLASS 52, 75. - 246 8,450. - 246 18,450.00
2554-0112006 ATER MAIN, TRENCHED, DIP, CLASS 52, 80. - 133 0,640. - 133 10,640.00
2554-0112008 ATER MAIN, TRENCHED, DIP, CLASS 52, 5 85. - 1368 116,280. - 1368 116,280.00
2554-0112012 ATER MAIN, TRENCHED, DIP, CLASS 52, IN. 100. - 7768 776,800. - 7768 776,800.00
34 2554-0203000 ITTINGS B EIGHT, DUCTILE IRON 15. - 13177 197,655. - 13177 197,655.00
2554-0205107 A SERVICE STUB, COPPER, 3/4 IN. 35. - 2875 100,625. - 2875 100,625.00
2554-0205110 A SERVICE STUB, COPPER, 1 IN. 37. - 548 20,276. - 548 20,276.00
2554-0205115 A SERVICE STUB, COPPER, 1 1/2 IN. 39. - 317 12,363. - 317 12,363.00
2554-0205600 ATER SERVICE CURB STOP AND BOX 750. - 114 85500 - 114 85,500.00
2554-0207004 /ALVE, GATE, DIP, 4 IN. ,250. - 6,250. - 5 6,250.00
2554-0207008 'ALVE, GATE, DIP, 8 IN. ,500.00 - 47,500. - 19 47,500.00
4 2554-0207012 |VALVE, GATE, DIP, 12 IN. ,000.00 - 78,000. - 26 78,000.00
4 2554-0210201 FIRE HYDRANT ASSEMBLY, WM-201 ,000.00 - 156,000. - 26 156,000.00
4 2554-0210205 FIRE HYDRANT ASSEMBLY REMOVAL 850. - 11,900. - 14 11,900.00
44 2554-0212050 VALVE BOX REMOVAL 300. - 12,600. - 42 12,600.00
4 2555-0000010 DELIVER AND STOCKPILE SALVAGED MATERIALS 500. - 1 500. - 1 500.00
4 2599-0999003 EPS, CAST-IN-PLACE 800. 62 29,600.00 - - 62 49,600.00
4 2599-9999003 _ PLANTING SOI 35 - - 74 2.500.00 74 2,500.00
4 2599-9999005 . WATER MAIN, 12 235. - 59 13865 - 59 13,865.00
4 2599-9999005 . WATER MAIN, 4 190. - 570. - 3 570.00
15( 2599-9999005 WATER MAIN, 205. - 205. - 1 05.00
151 2599-9999005 OK, WATER MAIN, 220 - 22 4,840 - 22 4,840.00
152 2599-9999005 ATER MAIN. 12 | 90 - 9 6.210 - 69 6.210.00
153 2599-0999005 | ATER MAIN. 41 60 - 480. - 8 480.00
154 2599-0999005 SASKET, NITRILE. WATER MAIN. 81 80 - 58 2,640. - 58 4,640.00
155 2599-9999005 ANDSCAPING, BENCHES 3,000 - - 12,000, 4 12,000.00
156 2599-0999005 ANDSCAPING, BUS SHELTERS 15.000.00 - - 60,000 1 60,000.00
157 2599-9999005 ANDSCAPING, PLANTS! 35.00 - - 213 7,455 213 7,455.00
158 2599-9999005 ANDSCAPING, TRASH RECEPTACLES 2.200.00 - - 8,800, 4 ,800.00
159 25990999005 |LANDSCAPING, TREE GRATES 650.00 - - 4,550, 550.00
60 2599-9999005 IGHTING POLES 14, INSTALL ONLY 2.000.00 - 7 14.000.00 - 14,000.00
61 2599-9999005 IGHTING POLES 336", INSTALL ONLY 3.000.00 - 5 15,000.00 - 15,000.00
62 2599-9999005 ODIFY STORM SEWER STRUCTURE TOP 750.00 3 2.250.00 - - 250,00
63 25990999005 | SUBDRAIN, CLEANOUTS. 6" PVC, TYPE A-L 500.00 54 27.000.00 - - 54 27,000.00
64 2599-9999005___| TEMPORARY STORM SEWER CONNECTION 1,000.00 6 6.000.00 - - 6 6.000.00
65 2599-9999009 | REMOVAL OF WATER MAIN 12.00 - 600 7.200.00 - 600 7,200.00
66 2599-9999009 WATER MAIN DIP INSULATION LF 115.00 - 180 20,700.00 - 180 20,700.00
67 2599-99990. CONCRETE WASH 10.000.00 1 10.000.00 - - 10,000.00
68 2599-99990: EMERGENCY VEHICLE WARNING BEACON SYSTEM 20,000.00 1 20.000.00 - - 20, 00
169 2599-99990; ANDSCAPING, 12TH STREET ROUNDABOUT MASONRY COLUMNS 80,000.00 - - 180,000. 80,000.00 |
7 2599-99990: ANDSCAPING, 18TH STREET ROUNDABOUT MASONRY COLUMN 00,000.00 - - 00,000. 00,000.00 |
2599-99990: ANDSCAI G, ARCHING GATEWAY FEATURE 42,400.00 - - 342,400. 42,400.00
2599-99990. ANDSCAPING, CAST STONE SIGN WALLS 74,000.00 - - 74,000. 74,000.00
2599-9999010 _ |LANDSCAI G, SEERLEY BLVD ROUNDABOUT MASONRY COLUMN 1,350.00 - - 61,350. 261,350.00
2599-9999010  |RECTANGULAR RAPID FLASHING BEACON ASSEMBLY. 7.000.00 ,000. - - 7, 00
2599-99990: TORM SEWER MANHOLE, S-96, 11 FT. X 11 FT. 000.00 ,000. - - 00
2599-99990: TORM SEWER MANHOLE, S-97, 11 FT. X 11 FT. 000.00 ,000. - - 00
2599-99990; TORM SEWER MANHOLE, 5-98, 11 FT. X 11 FT. 000.00 .,000. - - 00
2599-99990: 'OODEN STEPS AND PORCH REPAIRS, PARCEL 198 LS 000.00 ,000. - - A 00
2599-9999014___|LANDSCAPING. PAVERS SF 2035 - - 22373 45520055 | 22373 455.290.55
18( 2599-99990: BRICK PAVER, REMOVE AND REINSTALL Y 350. 17 5,950.00 - - 17 5,950.00
181 2599-9999020 GRANULAR BEDDING TON 30. 252 7.560.00 - - 252 7,560.00
182 2599-9999020 __|LANDSCAPING, MULCH TON 100. - - 36 3.600.00 36 ,600.00
183 2601-2634150 MULCHING, WOOD CELLULOSE FIBER ACRE 2,000. 4.1 8,200. - - 4 ,200.00
184 2601-2636044 SEEDING AND FERTILIZING (URBAN) ACRE 2,500.00 4.1 0,250. - - 4 250.00
185 2601-2638352___| SLOPE PROTECTION, WOOD EXCELSIOR MAT SQ 30.00 336 ,080. - - 336 080.00
186 26012639010 __|SODDING SQ 80.00 1417 113,384, - - 1417 113,384.00
187 2601-2642120 STABILIZING CROP - SEEDING AND FERTILIZING (URBAN) ACRE 1,500.00 9.7 ,535. - - 10 535.00
188 2602-0000309 ERIMETER AND SLOPE SEDIMENT CONTROL DEVICE, 9 IN. DIA. LF 50 18607 46,517.50 - - 18607 46,517.50
189 2602-0000351 REMOVAL OF PERIMETER AND SLOPE SEDIMENT CONTROL DEVICE LF 50 18607 ,303.50 - - 18607 ,303.50
190 2602-0000500 OPEN-THROAT CURB INTAKE SEDIMENT FILTER, EC-602 LF 12.50 560 ,000.00 - - 560 ,000.00
191 2602-0000510 MAINTENANCE OF OPEN-THROAT CURB INTAKE SEDIMENT FILTER \CH 12.50 89 ,112.50 - - 89 112.50
192 2602-0000520 REMOVAL OF OPEN-THROAT CURB INTAKE SEDIMENT FILTER ACH 12.5 89 ,112.5 - - 89 112.50
193 2602-0000530 GRATE INTAKE SEDIMENT FILTER BAG ACH 160. 3 ,880. - - 880.00
194 2602-0000540 MAINTENANCE OF GRATE INTAKE SEDIMENT FILTER BAG ACH 37. 3 ,591. - - 591.00
195 2602-0000550 REMOVAL OF GRATE INTAKE SEDIMENT FILTER BAG ACH 55. 3 ,365. - - ,365.00
196 2602-0010010 MOBILIZATIONS, EROSION CONTROL ACH 500. 0 10.000. - - 10,000.00
107 26100000110 __|SHRUBS ACH 45 - - 45 2.025.00 025,00
198 2610-0000120 TREES ACH 525. - - 279 146,475.00 279 146.475.00
199 2610-0000400 WATERING FOR PLANTS IGAL 300. - - 60 18,000.00 60 18,000.00

[SUBTOTAL CONSTRUCTION

$ 17,437,995.20

[$ 2169,049.00

$ 1,778,535.55

$ 21,385,579.75

CONTINGENCIES (2%) $ 427,712
 TOTAL CONSTRUCTION $ 21,813,291
RIGHT-OF-WAY ACOQUISITION COSTS $ 1,025,505
[ TOTAL CONSTRUCTION + ROW ACQUISITION $ 22,838,796
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DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS

City of Cedar Falls

220 Clay Street

Cedar Falls, lowa 50613
Phone: 319-268-5161
Fax: 319-268-5197

Item 5.

www.cedarfalls.com MEMORANDUM

TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council
FROM:  Matthew Tolan, El, Civil Engineer I
DATE: October 31, 2022

SUBJECT: Recreational River Area and Riverbank Improvements Project
City Project Number: MC-038-3290
Public Hearing

Submitted within for City Council approval are the Plans, Specifications, and Estimate of
Costs and Quantities for the Recreational River Area and Riverbank Improvements
Project.

This project involves the construction of eight in stream water features and upland
improvements within, and on the banks, of the Cedar River in Cedar Falls, lowa.

The total estimated cost for the construction of this project is $5,867,187.00. The City will
use General Obligation Bonds, Blackhawk Gaming Grant, Economic Development
Administration Grant, Emergency Reserves, Tourism Cash Reserves and Private
Donations for the design and construction of this project.

The Engineering Division of the Public Works Department recommends approving the
Plans, Specifications, and Estimate of Costs and Quantities for the Recreational River
Area and Riverbank Improvements Project.

xc:  Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works

Engineering Division
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Cedar River Recreational Improvements Project
Cedar River, Cedar Falls, lowa

Bid Tabulation - September 29, 2022

Instream
SUDAS .
Item Iltem Description Estlma_ted Unit Unit Price Item Total Price
Number Quantity
Number
1 11,020-A |Mobilization 1 Lump Sum [ $ 721,500( $ 721,500
2 2010-B [Clearing and Grubbing 2 ACRE $ 3,500| $ 7,000
3 9010-A Conve_nuonal Seeding, Seeding, Fertilizing, and 58 ACRE $ 3.900| $ 10,920
Mulching
4 9040-A-2 |SWPPP Management 1 Lump Sum | $ 14,000( $ 14,000
5 9040-F-1 |Straw Waddle, 9", 25 ft. Length 300 Lin. Ft. $ 41 $ 1,200
6 9040-N-1 [Silt Fencing 1500 Lin. Ft. $ 35| % 5,250
7 9040-0-1 |Stabilized Construction Entrance 1157 SY $ 8| $ 9,256
8 9060-A Ch‘:aun_ Link Fence, Galvanized 11.5 Gauge Type, 1500 Lin. Ft. $ sl s 12,000
72" Size
9 9060-F |Temporary Fencing, Orange Plastic 10MIL 300 Lin. Ft. $ 8| % 2,400
10 Cofferdam Installation and Removal 1 Lump Sum [ $ 955500( $ 955,500
11 11,010-A |Construction Survey 1 Lump Sum | $ 20,000( $ 20,000
12 As-Built Construction Survey 1 Lump Sum | $ 5,400 $ 5,400
13 7030-C tThrlillL Replacement, Shared Use Path, PCC, 6 3.422 = $ 33| s 112,926
14 11,050-A [Concrete Washout 2 Each $ 2,000 $ 4,000
15 River Right Access Road 1 Lump Sum 65,000 65,000
Structure #2- Put-in River Right
Boulder Fill: Includes excavation/fill, placement,
16 grouting (Paid Separately), and backfill. 166 Tons $ 240113 39,857
Boulder Fill Grouting: Includes preparation, Cubic Yards
17 grouting of voids, and cleaning. Grout fill assumed 77 Concrete $ 536.3| $ 41,295
to be 50% of Boulder Fill voids.
18 Concrete - low flow 35 CubicYards | ¢ 5353 ¢ 18,771
Concrete

Riverwise Engineering, LLC

PO Box 706
Durango, CO 81302

Iltem 5.

page 1 of 5
10/7/2022

15




19

Subgrade - Clean angular 3-8" cobble

498

Tons

72.0

35,856

Riverwise Engineering, LLC

PO Box 706
Durango, CO 81302

Iltem 5.

page 2 of 5
10/7/2022
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Structure #3

Boulder Fill: Includes excavation/fill, placement,

20 grouting (Paid Separately), and backfill. 249 Tons 240.1 59,785
Boulqler Fill G'routlng: Includgs prepara’qon, Cubic Yards
21 grouting of voids, and cleaning. Grout fill assumed 115 Concrete 536.3 61,675
to be 50% of Boulder Fill voids.
22 Concrete- low flow 22 Cubic Yards 536.3 11,799
Concrete
23 Subgrade - Clean angular 3-8" cobble 371 Tons 72.0 26,712
Structure #4
Boulder Fill: Includes excavation/fill, placement,
24 grouting (Paid Separately), and backfill. 98 Tons 240.1 23,530
Bould_er Fill G_routlng: Includ_es preparat_|on, Cubic Yards
25 grouting of voids, and cleaning. Grout fill assumed 45 Concrete 536.3 24,134
to be 50% of Boulder Fill voids.
26 Concrete- low flow 35 Cubic Yards 536.3 18,771
Concrete
27 Subgrade - Clean angular 3-8" cobble 98 Tons 72.0 7,056
Structure #5
Boulder Fill: Includes excavation/fill, placement,
28 grouting (Paid Separately), and backfill. 200 Tons 240.1 48,020
Boulder Fill G_routlng: Includ_es prepara'qon, Cubic Yards
29 grouting of voids, and cleaning. Grout fill assumed 93 Concrete 536.3 49,876
to be 50% of Boulder Fill voids.
30 Concrete- low flow 28 Cubic Yards 536.3 15,016
Concrete
31 Subgrade - Clean angular 3-8" cobble 948 Tons 72.0 68,256

Riverwise Engineering, LLC

PO Box 706

Durango, CO 81302

Iltem 5.

page 3 of 5
10/7/2022
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Structure #6- Take-out River Right

Boulder Fill: Includes excavation/fill, placement,

32 grouting (Paid Separately), and backfill. 312 Tons $ 24011 % 74,911
Boulder Fill Grouting: Includes preparation, Cubic Yards

33 grouting of voids, and cleaning. Grout fill assumed 145 Concrete $ 536.3| $ 77,764
to be 50% of Boulder Fill voids.

34 Subgrade - Clean angular 3-8" cobble 648 Tons $ 720 $ 46,656

Structure #7- Clay Hole Safety and Recreational Improvements

Boulder Fill: Includes excavation/fill, placement,

35 grouting (Paid Separately), and backfill. 243 Tons $ 24011 % 58,344
Boulder Fill Grouting: Includes preparation, Cubic Yards

36 grouting of voids, and cleaning. Grout fill assumed 108 Concrete $ 536.3| $ 57,920
to be 50% of Boulder Fill voids.

37 Concrete- low flow 1150 | Cublevards g 5360 61,640

Concrete
38 Concrete Demolition and Shaping 1 Lump Sum [ $ 87,750.0( $ 87,750
39 Subgrade - Clean angular 3-8" cobble 1140 Tons $ 72.0| $ 82,080
Structure #8- Take-out River Left

Boulder Fill: Includes excavation/fill, placement,

40 grouting (Paid Separately), and backfill. 68 Tons $ 24011 % 16,327
Boulder Fill Grouting: Includes preparation, Cubic Yards

41 grouting of voids, and cleaning. Grout fill assumed 31 Concrete $ 536.3| $ 16,625
to be 50% of Boulder Fill voids.

42 Concrete- low flow 28 Cuble Yards | ¢ 5360 3 15,008

Concrete
43 Subgrade - Clean angular 3-8" cobble 203 Tons $ 72.0( $ 14,616
Miscellaneous

44 Large Random Boulders, 7' Diameter 23 Each $ 1,150 $ 26,450

45 Miscellaneous Equipment Hours 200 hours $ 535( $ 107,000

46 Item Deleted from Bid Tabulation

Total Instream $ 3,239,850

Riverwise Engineering, LLC

PO Box

706

Durango, CO 81302

Iltem 5.

page 4 of 5
10/7/2022
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Upland
47 2010-A Clearing and Grubbing Concrete/Rebar River o5 Cubic Yards | $ 200! $ 5,000
Clean Up
48 2010-E |Excavation, Class 13 River Left additional fill 220 Cubic Yards | $ 50( $ 11,000
49 2010-E |Excavation, Class 13 River Right additional fill 175 Cubic Yards | $ 50| $ 8,750
50 7030-C [Shared Use Path (6’ wide 6” depth) 927 SY $ 180| $ 166,860
51 Special Concrete-Stained and Stamped 83 SY $ 450 $ 37,350
52 Lower Terrace Concrete - Special (Turtle) 114 SY $ 450( $ 51,300
53 Concrete Expansion Joints and Dowels 20 Each $ 500| $ 10,000
54 Stone Bank Reinforcements 1,218 Tons $ 685| $ 834,330
55 Specialty Stone @ Upper Plaza 200 Tons $ 685| $ 137,000
56 8020-B [Parking lot Painting, Signs, and Bollards 2 Each $ 2,800| $ 5,600
57 Signage, 4 Large and 5 Small 12 Each $ 5850| $ 70,200
58 9030-C |Planting Trees, Shrubs, Lawns 1 Lump Sum | $ 93,000( $ 93,000
59 Upland Contingency Estimate $ 80,000
Total Upland $ 1,510,390
Instream and Upland Improvements Total $ 4,750,240
Alternates
Alt. No. 1 Remove Riprap and Replace with Boulder Fill 1507 Tons $ 280 $ 421,960
Boulder Fill Grouting: Includes preparation,
grouting of voids, and cleaning. Grout fill assumed Cubic Yards
Alt. No. 2 to be 50% of Boulder Fill voids. Item shall be used 42 Concrete $ 536| 3 397,712
in conjunction with Alt. No 1
Alt. No. 3 Lighting at Trees and Main Street Bridge 1 Lump Sum | $ 99,000| $ 99,000
Alt. No. 4 Lighting at 1st Street Bridge 1 LumpSum | $ 130,000( $ 130,000
Alt. No. 5 Shower 1 Lump Sum | $ 18,000( $ 18,000
Alt. No. 6 Irrigation 1 Lump Sum | $ 20,000( $ 20,000
Alt. No. 7 Concrete Mowbands 231 Lin. Ft. $ 25| $ 5,775
Alt. No. 8 Benches 2 Each $ 12,250 $ 24,500
Alternates Total $ 1,116,947
Base Instream and Upland Total plus all Alternates $ 5,867,187

Riverwise Engineering, LLC

PO Box 706
Durango, CO 81302

Iltem 5.

page 5 of 5
10/7/2022
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City of Cedar Falls

220 Clay Street

Cedar Falls, lowa 50613

Phone: 319-273-8600

Fax: 319-273-8610

www.cedarfalls.com MEMORANDUM

Planning & Community Services Division

TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council
FROM:  Jaydevsinh Atodaria (JD), City Planner |
DATE: October 31, 2022
SUBJECT: Easement Vacation 3718 Apollo Street

REQUEST: Vacate portion of Sanitary Sewer Easement (Case # VAC22-001)
PETITIONER: Ryan N. Borgwart; Owner

LOCATION: 3718 Apollo St. (Lot 11 and part of Lot 10 Pheasant Hollow 7" Addition)

PROPOSAL

The request is to vacate portion of [ Easement area o be vacated. |
existing 60-foot sanitary sewer easement st
on southern area of the property at 3718
Apollo Street. The petitioner wants to
utilize the lot for development to its best
potential. The area highlighted in red is 8 3
the portion of the easement requested to % “§i* S
be vacated on the subject property. ‘ ¢ N

BACKGROUND

The subject property is Lot 11 and portion
of Lot 10 of Pheasant Hollow 7t Addition,
which was platted in June 2020, which is
addressed 3718 Apollo Street. Mr.
Borgwart, owner of the property, is
requesting to reduce the size of the
sanitary sewer easement on his property
from 60 feet to 40 feet wide by vacating a 10-foot portion of the existing 60-foot sanitary sewer
easement on the north and south sides of the existing easement. The owner would like to reduce
the encumbrance on his lot so he can more easily develop the property.

ANALYSIS
The request is to vacate the portion of existing 60-foot sanitary sewer easement on property
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located at 3718 Apollo Street. As per the Pheasant Hollow 7" Addition final plat approved in June
2020, there are two platted easements that extend over the southern area of the property that
create unnecessary redundancy as both share the same center line. One is an existing 60-foot
sanitary sewer easement and the other is 40-foot sanitary sewer and utility easement. The request
here is to vacate Area 1 and Area 2 (highlighted in red hashed area) in the sketch below (also see
attached vacation plat). Area 1 is an approximately 10 feet wide strip that runs 206 feet in length
and area 2 is an approximately 10 feet wide strip that runs 211 feet in length. Staff notes that
areas 1 and area 2 are the only portions of the existing 60-foot-wide sanitary sewer easement
that are being vacated. All other easements as platted on this lot are retained, including the 20-

foot public utility easement along the frontage of the lots and the 30-foot drainage and utility
easement along the western lot line.

30 DRAINAGE AND
UTILITY EASEMENT WM//
5 //////////// Zon 1
SW CORNER L NB5°26'34°E
NW CORNER |r) 10 e
POINT DF BEGINNING POINT OF COMMENCEMENT _____———— Sy
AREA 1 e )
— NB5°26834°E :
r 200.86 //
i /
POINT|OF BEGINNING : MW /
AREA2 O - 3
§85°2634'W  / 58 m%
/ SL 25
L7 10 ‘\ ':;::_—: E%’;
AREA 2 EASEMENT VACATION — o2 =g
e =] fé ‘r”: =
23
\ =
NORTH LINE OF THE — \

SOUTH 55.25' OF LOT 10

As indicated by the developer’s engineer, it was their intention to vacate the previously platted 60-

foot sanitary sewer easement with the Pheasant Hollow, 7" Addition final plat. It was an oversight
that it was not addressed.

The City Engineer’s office confirmed that they would be in favor of the proposed vacation request,
as the remaining platted 40-foot sanitary sewer and utility easement running though the lot at
3718 Apollo Street is adequate for maintaining and operating the services. Engineering staff also
notes that the profile section (included in the packet) provided by the CGA consultants working

on behalf of the owner indicates that the 40-foot-wide sanitary sewer and utility easement would
be adequate, considering the line depth of the services.

TECHNICAL COMMENTS

City technical staff has reviewed the vacation request and has no concerns. Legal papers for the

easement vacation must note that all other easements of record shall be retained. In response,
the easement vacation plat has been updated with the required note.
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STAFF RECOMMENDATION

The Planning and Zoning Commission recommends approval of the submitted request to vacate
portion of existing 60-foot sanitary sewer easement on property at 3718 Apollo Street. City staff
also recommends approval of the submitted easement vacation request for property at 3718
Apollo Street, subject to the following conditions:

1. Any comments or direction specified by the Planning and Zoning Commission
2. Conformance with all City staff recommendations and technical requirements

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION

Discussion/Action Acting Chair Hartley introduced the item and Mr. Atodaria provided

09/28/2022 background information. It is proposed to vacate a portion of sanitary sewer
easement at that address in the Pheasant Hollow 7" Addition. Engineering
confirms that there would still be sufficient sanitary and utility easement to
maintain and operate the services at that location. Staff notes that all other
easements as platted are retained. Staff notes that the legal papers for the
vacation must note that all other easements of record shall be retained. It is
recommended to approve the vacation with any comments or direction from
the Commission.

Travis Stewart, 2317 Richard Road, engineer from CGA, stated that the
developer requested that the easement be minimized to make that area
more useful.

Steve Bridges, 3816 Trent Lane, Waterloo, is the property owner to the
south. He stated that he has no problem with what they’re doing but has an
issue with the way it has been described. He noted that he believes that the
lots mentioned were incorrect. Staff updated that the corrections will be done
as needed.

Ms. Lynch made a motion to approve the item. Mr. Larson seconded the
motion. The motion was approved unanimously with 8 ayes (Crisman,
Grybovych, Hartley, Holst, Larson, Lynch, Moser and Saul), and 0 nays.
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Cedar Falls Planning and Zoning Commission

September 28, 2022
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RESOLUTION NO.

RESOLUTION VACATING PORTIONS OF AN EXISTING SANITARY SEWER
EASEMENT LOCATED ON LOTS 10 AND 11, PHEASANT HOLLOW SEVENTH
ADDITION, CEDAR FALLS, BLACK HAWK COUNTY, IOWA

WHEREAS, the owner of property locally known as 3718 Apollo Street requested
vacation of a portion of a sanitary sewer easement on their property (VAC22-001) in order to
have more usable yard area; and

WHEREAS, the City Engineer determined the subject sanitary sewer easement was
wider than was necessary to maintain and service the sanitary sewer line and recommended that
it be reduced in width from 60 feet to 40 feet by vacating 10 feet on each side of the existing
easement; and

WHEREAS, the Planning & Zoning Commission recommends approval of the subject
request to vacate two portions (Area 1 and Area 2, legally described below and illustrated on the
Easement Vacation Exhibit, attached hereto) of the existing 60-foot-wide sanitary sewer
easement located on Lots 10 and 11 of Pheasant Hollow Seventh Addition, City of Cedar Falls,
Black Hawk County, lowa; and

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, lowa, deems it in the best
interests of the City of Cedar Falls, lowa to vacate a portion of said easement as legally described
below.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, that “Area 1” and “Area 2,” as legally described below and
illustrated on the Easement Vacation Exhibit, attached hereto, of the existing 60-foot-wide
sanitary sewer easement on Lots 10 and 11 Pheasant Hollow Seventh Addition, is hereby
vacated:

Area 1: A 10.00 FOOT WIDE EASEMENT VACATION LOCATED WITHIN THE
EXISTING 60 FOOT WIDE SANITARY SEWER EASEMENT AS SHOWN IN THE FINAL
PLAT OF PHEASANT HOLLOW SEVENTH ADDITION, AS RECORDED IN FILE
NO.2021-00000733, IN THE OFFICE OF THE RECORDER, BLACK HAWK COUNTY,
IOWA. MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: COMMENCING AT THE
SOUTHWEST CORNER OF LOT 11, PHEASANT HOLLOW SEVENTH ADDITION,

Item 6.
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THENCE N0°03°14”W, 21.04 FEET ALONG THE WEST LINE OF SAID LOT 11 TO THE
POINT OF BEGINNING, ALSO BEING THE NORTH LINE OF THE 40 FOOT SANITARY
SEWER AND UTILITY EASEMENT; THENCE N85°26°34”E, 206.71 FEET ALONG THE
NORTH LINE OF SAID 40 FOOT EASEMENT; THENCE N4°33°26”W, 10.00 FEET TO THE
NORTH LINE OF THE 60 FOOT SANITARY SEWER EASEMENT; THENCE S85°26°34”W,
205.92 FEET ALONG THE NORTH LINE OF SAID 60 FOOT EASEMENT TO THE WEST
LINE OF SAID LOT 11; THENCE S0°3°14”E, 10.03 FEET ALONG THE WEST LINE OF
SAID LOT 11 TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING, CONTAINING 0.05 ACRES OR 2,063
SQUARE FEET. ALL OTHER EASEMENTS OF RECORD WILL BE RETAINED.

AND

Area 2: A 10.00 FOOT WIDE EASEMENT VACATION LOCATED WITHIN THE
EXISTING 60 FOOT WIDE SANITARY SEWER EASEMENT AS SHOWN IN THE FINAL
PLAT OF PHEASANT HOLLOW SEVENTH ADDITION, AS RECORDED IN FILE
NO.2021-00000733, IN THE OFFICE OF THE RECORDER, BLACK HAWK COUNTY,
IOWA. MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: COMMENCING AT THE
NORTHWEST CORNER OF LOT 10, PHEASANT HOLLOW SEVENTH ADDITION,
THENCE S0°03°14”E, 19.08 FEET ALONG THE WEST LINE OF SAID LOT 10 THE POINT
OF BEGINNING, ALSO BEING THE SOUTH LINE OF THE 40 FOOT SANITARY AND
UTILITY EASEMENT; THENCE N85°26°34”E, 209.86 FEET ALONG THE SOUTH LINE
OF SAID 40 FOOT EASEMENT; THENCE S4°33°26”E, 10.00 FEET TO THE SOUTH LINE
OF THE 60 FOOT SANITARY SEWER EASEMENT; THENCE S85°26°34”W, 210.65 FEET
ALONG THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID 60 FOOT EASEMENT TO THE WEST LINE OF SAID
LOT 10; THENCE N0°03°14”W, 10.03 FEET ALONG THE WEST LINE OF SAID LOT 10
TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING, CONTAINING 0.05 ACRES OR 2,106 SQUARE FEET.
ALL OTHER EASEMENTS OF RECORD WILL BE RETAINED.

See Easement Vacation Exhibit attached.

INTRODUCED AND ADOPTED this day of , 2022.

Item 6.

Robert M. Green, Mayor

ATTEST:
Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk
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EASEMENT VACATION
EXHIBIT

INDEX LEGEND
LOCATION: 3718 APOLLO STREET, CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613
PROPRIETOR: RYAN N. BORGWARDT
REQUESTED BY: | RYAN N. BORGWARDT

PREPARED BY: | CLAPSADDLE-GARBER ASSOCIATES, INC,
RETURN TO: 5106 NORDIC DRIVE

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613

PHONE 319-266-0258
CGA@CGACONSULTANTS.COM

Item 6.

30 DRAINAGE AND $85°2634'W
UTILITY EASEMENT 205.92

|
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AREA 1 EASEMENT VACATION
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|
J I

206.71'
— SW CORNER LOT 11 NB5°264°E LoT 11 / —J\
/ NW CORNER LOT 10
POINT DF BEGINNING o POINT OF COMMENCEMENT
AREA 1 -
| N85°2634'E S A - oA
~ 209.86 5 ,’ o
iE 2 T AL
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AREA2  n 210.65' . 2 3
= $85°264W &8 o2 3
[ <24 =1
LOT 10 ! 2223 S
AREA 2 EASEMENT VACATION \ o2 3 B ol
K8 &
/ B A
NORTH LINE OF THE \
| SOUTH55.25'OF LOT 10 .
LEGAL DESCRIPTION: LINE DATA
AREA 1:

A 10.00 FOOT WIDE EASEMENT VACATION LOCATED WITHIN THE EXISTING 60 FOOT WIDE
SANITARY SEWER EASEMENT AS SHOWN IN THE FINAL PLAT OF PHEASANT HOLLOW SEVENTH
ADDITION, AS RECORDED IN FILE NO.2021-00000733, IN THE OFFICE OF THE RECORDER, BLACK
HAWK COUNTY, IOWA. MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: COMMENCING AT THE
SOUTHWEST CORNER OF LOT 11, PHEASANT HOLLOW SEVENTH ADDITION, THENCE N0°03’'14"W,
21.04 FEET ALONG THE WEST LINE OF SAID LOT 11 TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING, ALSO BEING THE
NORTH LINE OF THE 40 FOOT SANITARY SEWER AND UTILITY EASEMENT; THENCE N85°26'34"E,
206.71 FEET ALONG THE NORTH LINE OF SAID 40 FOOT EASEMENT; THENCE N4°33'26"W, 10.00
FEET TO THE NORTH LINE OF THE 60 FOOT SANITARY SEWER EASEMENT; THENCE S85°26'34"W,
205.92 FEET ALONG THE NORTH LINE OF SAID 60 FOOT EASEMENT TO THE WEST LINE OF SAID
LOT 11; THENCE S0°03'14"E, 10.03 FEET ALONG THE WEST LINE OF SAID LOT 11 TO THE POINT OF

BEGINNING, CONTAINING 0.05 ACRES OR 2,063 SQUARE FEET. ALL OTHER EASEMENTS OF
RECORD WILL BE RETAINED.

AREA 2:

A 10.00 FOOT WIDE EASEMENT VACATION LOCATED WITHIN THE EXISTING 60 FOOT WIDE
SANITARY SEWER EASEMENT AS SHOWN IN THE FINAL PLAT OF PHEASANT HOLLOW SEVENTH
ADDITION, AS RECORDED IN FILE NO.2021-00000733, IN THE OFFICE OF THE RECORDER, BLACK
HAWK COUNTY, IOWA. MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: COMMENCING AT THE
NORTHWEST CORNER OF LOT 10, PHEASANT HOLLOW SEVENTH ADDITION, THENCE S0°03'14"E,
19.08 FEET ALONG THE WEST LINE OF SAID LOT 10 THE POINT OF BEGINNING, ALSO BEING THE
SOUTH LINE OF THE 40 FOOT SANITARY AND UTILITY EASEMENT; THENCE N85°26°34"E, 209.86
FEET ALONG THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID 40 FOOT EASEMENT; THENCE S4°33'26”E, 10.00 FEET TO
THE SOUTH LINE OF THE 60 FOOT SANITARY SEWER EASEMENT; THENCE S85°26'34"W, 210.65
FEET ALONG THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID 60 FOOT EASEMENT TO THE WEST LINE OF SAID LOT 10;
THENCE NO0°03'14"W, 10.03 FEET ALONG THE WEST LINE OF SAID LOT 10 TO THE POINT OF

BEGINNING, CONTAINING 0.05 ACRES OR 2,106 SQUARE FEET. ALL OTHER EASEMENTS OF
RECORD WILL BE RETAINED.

LINE NUMBER | BEARING | DISTANCE

L1

NO°03'14"'W 21.04'

L2 S0°03'14°E 10.03'
L3 N4°33'26"W 10.00'
L4 S0°0314E 19.08'
L5 NO°03'14'W 10.03'

L6

S4°33'26'E 10.00'

PHEASANT HOLLOW 7TH ADDITION EASEMENT VACATION in CEDAR FALLS, IOWA

N | hereby certify that this land surveying document was prepared
and the related survey work was performed by me or under
my direct personal supervision and that | am a duly Licensed
Professional Land Surveyor under the laws of the State of lowa.
% \o lo5/ 2022
Travis R. Stewart, PLS date
lowa License Number 17162 PROJECTNO. 5748
. My License Renewal Date is December 31, 2023 DATE: 08/03/2022
SCALE 1°=200 Pages or sheets covered by this seal:____ THIS SHEET DRAWN BY: LSK
0 200° FIELD CREW:
L SHEET NO. 26
JA5748\dwgs\Survey\Easement Vacation\5748 Easement Vacation Exhibit.dwg - Plat LEGL - 10-05-22 - 12:38pm - trs246
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DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT

City of Cedar Falls

220 Clay Street

Cedar Falls, lowa 50613
Phone: 319-273-8600
Fax: 319-268-5126
www.cedarfalls.com

MEMORANDUM
Planning & Community Services Division

TO: Honorable Mayor Robert Green and City Council
FROM:  Michelle Pezley, Planner IlI
DATE: October 28, 2022

SUBJECT: Review the FFY21 Community Development Block Grant and HOME
Programs Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report
(CAPER)

As a requirement from HUD, the Community Development Department submits for
review and approval of the FFY21 Community Development Block Grant and HOME
Program Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report (CAPER). The
report contains the progress made on Community Development Block Grant funded
activities from July 1, 2021 through June 30, 2022 (Federal Fiscal Year 2021).

The CAPER was reviewed by the Housing Commission at their October 19, 2022
meeting and recommended for approval, subject to the required 15-day public comment
period and City Council public hearing. Notice was published in both English and
Spanish in the Waterloo-Cedar Falls Courier on October 28, 2022 inviting public
comment.

The notice was not published in time to meet the 15-day public comment period for the
hearing to be held on November 7, 2022. Therefore, Staff recommends opening the
public hearing and continuing it to November 21, 2022, to provide the required 15-
day public comment period.

If you have any questions, please contact the Community Development Department.

Xc: Stephanie Houk Sheetz, AICP, Community Development Director
Karen Howard, AICP, Planning & Community Services Manager
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PRELIMINARY DRAFT FOR REVIEW (October 20, 2022)

City of Cedar Falls, lowa

CDBG Entitlement/HOME Programs

Federal Fiscal Year 2021/City Fiscal Year 2022

Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report (CAPER)

COMMENT PERIOD PUBLICATION (15-day public comment period, per Citizen Participation Plan):

October 28, 2022, through November 21, 2022 (Published in English and Spanish)
Publication: Waterloo-Cedar Falls Courier; October 28, 2022

HOUSING COMMISSION (PUBLIC) MEETING ON:
October 19, 2022: Recommendation to Council for approval

ADOPTED BY CITY COUNCIL ON:

November 21, 2022 (After a properly noticed public hearing was set on October 17, 2022
Public Hearing Publication: Waterloo-Cedar Falls Courier; October 28, 2022

(Published in English and Spanish)

CAPER

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 06/30/2018)

Iltem 7.
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Citizen Participation
Citizen Participation Plan 91.105(d); 91.115(d)

Comment Period: October 28, 2022, through November 21, 2022 (Affidavit of Publication). Notices
published in English and Spanish, both of which include reasonable accommodation language as well.

Describe the efforts to provide citizens with reasonable notice and an opportunity to comment on
performance reports.

In addition to a formal 15-day comment period on performance reports and a City Council Public
Hearing, the Cedar Falls Housing Commission reviews CDBG projects at its monthly meetings and
recommends their approval or revision to staff. Status reports pertaining to all major projects are given
to the Housing Commission on a monthly basis. The Housing Commission and City Council also review
the Annual Action Plan, Consolidated Plan, and CAPER each year. Notice of all meetings are posted
publicly at City Hall, placed on the city's website, and notices are provided to local media in accordance
with the lowa Open Meetings Law and City’s Citizen Participation Plan. Additionally, program-related
reports are made available for examination, published for public comment if necessary, and posted on
the city's website. The City maintains a list of contacts that provide translation services to persons with
limited English proficiency.

Summary of Comments

There were no public comments made during the advertised citizen participation period.

CR-05 - Goals and Outcomes

Progress the jurisdiction has made in carrying out its strategic plan and its action plan. 91.520(a)
This could be an overview that includes major initiatives and highlights that were proposed and
executed throughout the program year.

As in prior years, the City of Cedar Falls was able to provide assistance and services to low-income
residents in accordance with the Annual Action Plan through designated projects, all of which were
consistent with the City’s Consolidated Plan. These projects and services include housing rehabilitation,
repair, infrastructure, and public services, between release of funds and the end of the fiscal year (June
30%™, 2022) covered by this CAPER. In addition, funding was provided to five service agencies that were
contracted to provide assistance to low-and-moderate income households on behalf of the City.
Services included homelessness sheltering, access to food, rent and mortgage assistance, personal
finance counseling, and substance abuse treatment. Consistent with the Consolidated Plan, the City
obtained permission to expend FFY 2021 funds on a sanitary sewer lining program and sidewalk infill
project in low-and-moderate income census tracts. Per CDBG requirements, Tier 1 and 2 Environmental
Reviews (ERR) and Releases of Funds were completed prior to commencement of the projects.
Procurement was conducted according to federal standards and related federal requirements were
adhered to, specifically, Davis-Bacon, Section 3, and DBE standards. Finally, the City continues to
contract with the lowa Northland Regional Council of Governments, specifically for providing assistance

CAPER 2

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 06/30/2018)

Iltem 7.
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with implementing the Entitlement Program, as well as for maintaining the Cedar Falls elements of its
Consolidated Plan (FFY 2019-2023) and Annual Action Plans.

Overall, these programs were designated to improve the housing stock, prevent homelessness and
improve areas that meet CDBG national objectives in the community. By focusing on the Strategic Plan
priorities outlined in the 2019-2023 Cedar Falls Consolidated Plan, the City attempted to make decent
housing available by preserving the affordable housing stock, providing a suitable living environment,
and expanding service opportunities. In the end, the City of Cedar Falls strives to make progress and
complete all activities, utilize funding in an efficient manner, and serve those with the greatest need
under their CDBG Entitlement Program.

CAPER

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 06/30/2018)
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Comparison of the proposed versus actual outcomes for each outcome measure submitted with the consolidated plan and explain, if
applicable, why progress was not made toward meeting goals and objectives. 91.520(g)
Categories, priority levels, funding sources and amounts, outcomes/objectives, goal outcome indicators, units of measure, targets, actual
outcomes/outputs, and percentage completed for each of the grantee’s program year goals.

Iltem 7.

Federal Fiscal Year 2021 Entitlement Annual Program

Goal Category Source: Indicator Unit of Expected | Actual - | Percent Expected | Actual — | Percent
Amount Measure - Strategic | Complete | — Program | Complete
Con Plan Strategic | Plan Program | Year
Plan Year
CDBG:
CDBG Planning | Non-Housing $54 160.00
and Community S Other Other 0 0 20.00% 0 0 0.00%
Administration | Development
. Non-Housing
Demolition ] CDBG: o ) o
Community Buildings Demolished Buildings 2 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00%
and Clearance $0.00
Development
Maintain
Existing
Affordable . Household
. Affordable CDBG: Homeowner Housing .
Housing: ) . . Housing 13 13 100.00% |1 1 100.00%
Housing $36,785.00 | Units Rehabilitated )
Owner Unit
Occupied
Rehab
CAPER 4

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 06/30/2018)
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Maintain
Existing
Affordable ) Household
. Affordable CDBG: Rental Units .
Housing: ) . Housing 8 0 0.00% 2 0 0.00%
Housing $25,000.00 | Rehabilitated )
Renter Unit
Occupied
Rehab
Non-Housing Public Facility or
Neighborhood | Community Infrastructure Activities
L CDBG: Persons
Accessibility Development other than . 35 35 100.00% | 30 30 100.00%
i $58,602.00 Assisted
Improvements | Sidewalk Low/Moderate Income
Infill Housing Benefit
) Public Facility or
] Non-Housing .
Neighborhood . Infrastructure Activities
Community CDBG: Persons
Infrastructure other than ] 220 200 90.00% 40 40 100.00%
Development | $250,000.00 Assisted
Improvements o Low/Moderate Income
Sewer Lining . ]
Housing Benefit
Neighborhood | Non-Housing
] . CDBG: Persons
Recreational Community Other ) 1,000 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00%
o $0.00 Assisted
Amenities Development
Preserve
Existing Housing Cod
ousing Code
Affordable Affordable CDBG: & Persons
) ) Enforcement/Foreclosed ] 300 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00%
Housing Housing $0.00 Assisted
Property Care
through Code
Enforcement
CAPER 5

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 06/30/2018)
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Prevent . . L
Affordable CDBG: Public service activities
Homelessness )
Housing $9,500.00 other than Persons
Through ] 19,525 16,934 86.73% 4,020 3,787 94.20%
NE IA Food Low/Moderate Income Assisted
Agency and ) ]
o Bank Housing Benefit
Organizational
Prevent . . L
Affordable Public service activities
Homelessness .
Housing CDBG: other than Persons
Through ) . 200 75 37.50% 40 38 75.00%
Salvation $9,500.00 Low/Moderate Income Assisted
Agency and ) ]
o Army Housing Benefit
Organizational
Prevent . . L
Affordable Public service activities
Homelessness .
Housing CDBG: other than Persons
Through . 100 47 47.00% 20 14 70.00%
Pathways $9,500.00 Low/Moderate Income Assisted
Agency and ) ) )
o Behavioral Housing Benefit
Organizational
Affordable
Prevent . . . L
Housing Public service activities
Homelessness .
Family CDBG: other than Persons
Through . 10 0 0.00% 10 0 0.00%
Management | $2,620.00 Low/Moderate Income Assisted
Agency and ) i ) ]
L Financial Housing Benefit
Organizational .
Solutions
Prevent Affordable . . o
. Public service activities
Homelessness | Housing
) CDBG: other than Persons
Through Exceptional . 50 15 30.00% 10 1 10.00%
$9,500.00 Low/Moderate Income Assisted
Agency and Persons . .
o Housing Benefit
Organizational | Incorporated
. ) Public service activities
Provide Access | Non-Housing
. CDBG: other than Persons
to Community . 415 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00%
. $0.00 Low/Moderate Income Assisted
Transportation | Development . .
Housing Benefit
CAPER 6

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 06/30/2018)
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Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security (CARES)/COVID CV-2 Funding State of lowa (IEDA) Allocation

Prevent . . L
Affordable Public service activities
Homelessness .
Housing CDBG: other than Persons
Through ) ] 10 12 120.00% | 10 12 120.00%
Exceptional $10,000.00 | Low/Moderate Income Assisted
Agency and ) ]
o Persons Inc. Housing Benefit
Organizational
Prevent . . o
Affordable Public service activities
Homelessness .
Housing CDBG: other than Persons
Through ] 10 0 0.00% 10 0 0.00%
Jesse Cosby $10,000.00 | Low/Moderate Income Assisted
Agency and i .
o Center Housing Benefit
Organizational
Prevent . . o
Public service activities
Homelessness | Affordable
. CDBG: other than Persons
Through Housing . 14 0 0.00% 14 0 0.00%
$40,000.00 | Low/Moderate Income Assisted
Agency and EMBARC ) ]
oo Housing Benefit
Organizational
Prevent Affordable ) ) o
) Public service activities
Homelessness | Housing
) CDBG: other than Persons
Through East Side ) 5 0 0.00% 5 0 0.00%
. i $15,000.00 | Low/Moderate Income Assisted
Agency and Ministerial . .
o ) Housing Benefit
Organizational | Alliance
Prevent . . L
Affordable Public service activities
Homelessness )
Housing CDBG: other than Persons
Through ] 16,080 3,270 20.33% 16,080 3,270 20.33%
NE IA Food $40,000.00 | Low/Moderate Income Assisted
Agency and ) ]
oo Bank Housing Benefit
Organizational
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Prevent Affordable ) ) o
) Public service activities
Homelessness | Housing
. CDBG: other than Persons
Through City of Cedar . 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00%
$75,430.00 | Low/Moderate Income | Assisted
Agency and Falls- . .
o ] Housing Benefit
Organizational | Equipment
Affordable
Prevent . . . L
Housing Public service activities
Homelessness
Cedar Falls CDBG: other than Persons
Through . ] 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00%
Community $82,984.14 | Low/Moderate Income Assisted
Agency and ) )
oo Schools- Housing Benefit
Organizational ]
Equipment
Affordable
Prevent . . . o
Housing Public service activities
Homelessness
Valley CDBG: other than Persons
Through ] 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00%
Lutheran $16,187.75 | Low/Moderate Income Assisted
Agency and ) ]
S Schools- Housing Benefit
Organizational ]
Equipment
Prevent Affordable ) ) o
) Public service activities
Homelessness | Housing
- CDBG: other than Persons
Through St. Patrick’s . 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00%
$11,980.11 | Low/Moderate Income | Assisted
Agency and School- ) ]
o ] Housing Benefit
Organizational | Equipment
Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security (CARES)/COVID CV-3 Funding HUD Formula Allocation
Prevent
Affordable Public service activities
Homelessness )
Housing CDBG: other than Households
Through ) i 30 32 106.00% | 30 32 106.00%
Operation $135,000.00 | Low/Moderate Income Assisted
Agency and . .
o Threshold Housing Benefit
Organizational
Table 1 - Accomplishments — Program Year & Strategic Plan to Date
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Assess how the jurisdiction’s use of funds, particularly CDBG, addresses the priorities and specific
objectives identified in the plan, giving special attention to the highest priority activities identified.

1. Provide decent affordable and sustainable housing by preserving the housing stock.

The City of Cedar Falls utilizes several activities to support this priority. These activities include Owner
and Renter Occupied Housing Rehabilitation and Repair Programs and administration, as well as support
of the nonprofit agency services. As noted above, the City completed one rehabilitation/repair project
under the FFY 2021 regular or annual entitlement.

2. Provide suitable safe living environment integrating low-mod residents.

During this past year, the City of Cedar Falls managed to provide funding for owner occupied and renter
occupied housing rehabilitation and for supporting community service agencies residents. It should be
noted that no renter rehab projects were completed this year, and that three of five service agencies
expended their CDBG budgets, regarding the Entitlement Funding awards. Said services were intended
to prevent homelessness (Salvation Army), food assistance (Northeast lowa Food Bank), and substance
abuse (Pathways Behavioral) in the community. Conversely two agencies did not, which is due primarily
to the impact of the pandemic and their staff capacity to provide their services.

3. Expand economic opportunities through self-supporting wages, home ownership, and empowering
low-mod income persons to achieve self-sufficiency.

The City of Cedar Falls funded five service agencies aimed at meeting the objective of providing and
maintaining support services that help City residents remain independent, while expanding economic
opportunities and empowering low-and-moderate income households and individuals. All funded
agencies are Limited Clientele or low-to-moderate income providers. These agencies provided an array
of services, including drug and alcohol dependency treatment, food distribution, rent and mortgage
assistance, and emergency shelter to the homeless among many other services. Each of the selected
service agencies were expected to serve a particular number of Cedar Falls residents with their allocated
CDBG funds. During this past year, none of five agencies achieved their expected service goals regarding
the number of Cedar Falls residents or households served. Again, these agencies also continued to be
affected by the Coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic, staffing only limited offerings because of capacity
problems (worker shortages), limiting client contact, and/or continuing to only provide select services.
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CR-10 - Racial and Ethnic composition of families assisted

Describe the families assisted (including the racial and ethnic status of families assisted). 91.520(a)

CDBG Households Persons

White 1,488 2,976
Black or African American 170 426
Asian 37 107
American Indian or American Native 1 6
Native Hawaiian or Other Pacific Islander 8 2
Multi-Racial 127 323
Total 1,831 3,840

Table 2 — Table of assistance to racial and ethnic populations by source of funds

Narrative

Fiscal Year 2021 was somewhat affected by the Coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic, when compared to

FFY 2020. Interaction with clients and service recipients was curtailed, staff interaction was limited, and

meetings were continuing to be held electronically.

Of the households that received assistance and services in FFY 2021, 1,488, or 81 percent, were White

and 170, or 9 percent, were Black or African American. Households with Asian descent represented 37,

or roughly two percent. It should be noted that these statistics do not include persons and households

that were served with Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security (CARES) formula funds provided to

the City by the US Department of Housing and Urban Development (CV-1 and CV-3) or those provided
by the State of lowa Economic Development Authority (CV-2). Cedar Falls does not have

racially/ethnically concentrated areas.
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CR-15 - Resources and Investments 91.520(a)

Identify the resources made available

Iltem 7.

Source of Funds

Source

Resources Made
Available

Amount Expended
During Program Year

CDBG-Entitlement

CDBG-CARES (CV2-3)

Public-Federal

Public-Federal

$645,109.00

$499,383.00

$512,856.48

$241,556.32

Total $1,144,492.00 $754,412.80
HOME Public-Federal S0 S0
HOPWA Public-Federal S0 S0
ESG Public-Federal S0 S0
Other Other S0 S0
Table 3 - Resources Made Available
Narrative

The two primary federal funding resources used by the City of Cedar Falls under this program are the
Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) and the HOME Investment Partnership (HOME) Programs,
through a consortium with the City of Waterloo. The primary objective of the CDBG Program is to

provide decent housing, and a suitable living environment and economic opportunities for low-and-
moderate income households. The HOME funds are primarily used for the development and
rehabilitation of affordable ownership housing for low-and-moderate income households. During
Program Year 2021, the City of Cedar Falls had approximately $645,109 in CDBG funds and $499,383 in
CDBG CARES funds available for rehabilitation and repair, infrastructure, as well as agency projects. Of
this total, $754,412 was spent serving the residents of the City.

Identify the geographic distribution and location of investments

Target Area Planned Percentage of | Actual Percentage of Narrative Description
Allocation Allocation
City of Cedar Falls 100% 100.00% See Text Above
LMI Area Benefit 66% 57.22% See Text Below

Table 4 - Identify the geographic distribution and location of investments

Narrative

Target Area: Cedar Falls (Serving Cedar Falls residents)

Planned Percentage of Allocation: 100%
Actual Percentage of Allocation: 100%
Low Moderate Income Area Benefit: $431,677/5754,412=52.77% (lining and sidewalk projects)

CAPER
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The CDBG funds were used in the City of Cedar Falls as planned and designated. In addition to agency
awards and infrastructure, the City expended funds for owner occupied and renter occupied housing
rehabilitation and repair programs. Currently, the City continues to manage client lists for the owner
occupied funds and is working to implement projects throughout the community.
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Leveraging

Explain how federal funds leveraged additional resources (private, state and local funds), including a
description of how matching requirements were satisfied, as well as how any publicly owned land or
property located within the jurisdiction that were used to address the needs identified in the plan.

The City of Cedar Falls encourages applicants and sub-recipients to obtain other public and private
resources that address needs identified in the Consolidated Plan. In program year 2021, the City
expended $754,412 in total CDBG funds under the FFY 2021 regular or annual entitlement program,
along with funding from supplemental CDBG CARES awards. All of these rehab/repair programs served
low-to-moderate income households, as do the agency services that were funded.

After reviewing reports provided by these agencies for only the Entitlement Program only, it has been
determined that one has incurred expenses exceeding their awards in order to offer the services
proposed for Cedar Falls residents. In comparison to prior years, this number of over-
contributing/matching agencies is less due primarily to the availability of CDBG CARES funding.

Iltem 7.

FFY 2021 Entitlement Funding Only Agency Award | Total Expended | Leveraged/Match
/Difference

Cedar Valley Food Bank/Pantry $9,500 $9,500.00 $0.00
Pathways Behavioral $9,500 $9,500.00 $9,130.91
Salvation Army $9,500 $9,500.00 $0.00
Exceptional Persons, Incorporated $9,500 $72.83 $0.00
Family Management Financial Services $2,620 $0.00 $0.00
Total $40,620 $28,572.83 $9,130.91

One footnote, the Family Management Financial Services did not conduct training for the City under this
agreement, and EPI only served part of one household during FFY 2021.

Publicly owned land or property was not used to address community needs during this past year.

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 06/30/2018)
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CR-20 - Affordable Housing 91.520(b)

Evaluation of the jurisdiction's progress in providing affordable housing, including the number and
types of families served, the number of extremely low-income, low-income, moderate-income, and
middle-income persons served.

Iltem 7.

One-Year Goal Actual

Number of Homeless households to be

provided affordable housing units 40 32
Number of Non-Homeless households to be

provided affordable housing units 0 0
Number of Special-Needs households to be

provided affordable housing units 0 0
Total 40 32

Table 5 — Number of Households

One-Year Goal Actual

Number of households supported through

Rental Assistance 0 0
Number of households supported through

The Production of New Units 0 0
Number of households supported through

Rehab of Existing Units 1 1
Number of households supported through

Acquisition of Existing Units 0

Total 1 1

Table 6 — Number of Households Supported

Discuss the difference between goals and outcomes and problems encountered in meeting these
goals.

In terms of addressing homelessness, or reducing the threat of homelessness, the City of Cedar Falls
funded five agencies, as stated previously. However, none of the agencies provided services statistically
beyond the goals set by the City during FFY 2021. Financially, at least one agency provided services
beyond their CDBG budgets. Again, this is due in part to staffing capacity shortages within the agencies
themselves, the limiting of client contact, and other challenges related to the COVID-19 pandemic. The
homeless households that are documented in the table were Salvation Army clients assisted under the
City’s Entitlement Program.

With regard to household services, the City focused on Housing Rehabilitation and Repair Programs
supported by Entitlement funding. During the past year, the City ended up meeting its goal for assisting
homeowners under this program.
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Discuss how these outcomes will impact future annual action plans.

At this point, the City is striving to continue providing access to services under their CDBG and HOME
programs following the Coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic. While having to slow programs caused some
frustration, everyone involved did their best to allocate annual Entitlement CDBG, HOME, and complete
allocating the additional CARES Act funds, manage projects, and address unmet needs.

As indicated in prior years, one of the ongoing barriers to affordable housing for low-income residents in
Cedar Falls continues to be the price of housing. Simply stated, Cedar Falls property has a higher value
than surrounding cities, and as a result, low-income residents are less able to find affordable housing
within the community. During upcoming annual action plans, we will continue to work to utilize other
funding sources, such as HOME, as well as work with agencies, including Habitat for Humanity to assist
in their efforts to supply affordable homes to low-income Cedar Falls residents through the use of
existing fund sources. Incidentally, the City made a concerted effort to utilize HOME funding this past
year, but the program requirements made it very difficult to do so in Cedar Falls.

Further, the City has identified several barriers to affordable housing in its updated Consolidated Plan
and Analysis of Fair Housing Impediments, both of which were adopted in 2019.

Include the number of extremely low-income, low-income, and moderate-income persons served by
each activity where information on income by family size is required to determine the eligibility of the
activity.

Number of Persons Served CDBG Actual | HOME Actual
Extremely Low Income (30% or less AMI) 1,749 0
Low Income (31-50% AMI) 1,144 0
Moderate Income (51-80% AMI) 947 0
Total 3,840 0
Above Income Persons Served 0 0
Homeless Persons Served (Salvation Army) 38 0

AMI-Area Median Income

As the Number of Persons table shows, all the Cedar Falls residents that were benefitted by the program
during FFY 2021 were classified as low-and-moderate income. Specifically, 46 percent (1,749 persons)
were considered extremely low income, 30 percent (1,144 persons) were considered low income, and
24 percent (947 persons) were of moderate income. Further, the vast majority of the persons that were
positively affected by the program were in the Agency Awards sub-program.
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Number of Households Served CDBG Actual HOME Actual
Extremely Low Income (30% or less AMI) 840 0
Low Income (31-50% AMI) 542 0
Moderate Income (51-80% AMI) 449 0
Total 1,831 0
Above Income Persons Served 0 0
Homeless Households Served (Salvation Army) 32 0

AMI-Area Median Income
Table 7 — Number of Households Served

Analyzing the number of households served, 840 were considered extremely low income, 542 were
considered low income, and 449 were moderate income. Again, the vast majority of the households
that were positively affected by the program were those with extremely low incomes being helped
through the City’s Agency Awards sub-program.

Narrative Information

In addition to funding and monitoring service agencies (All persons served by the agencies are
considered Limited Income Clientele and thus presumed to be classified as Low-and-Moderate Income
Households), the City completed one owner occupied rehabilitation/repair project under the FFY 2021
regular or annual entitlement program. In addition, during the past year, the City of Cedar Falls worked
on a sidewalk infill projects and a sanitary sewer lining project, within LMI census tracts. As previously
stated, the City and INRCOG are working to expend the current year’s funding, along with unspent prior
years’ funding, over the course of the next few fiscal years.

Fostering Affordable Housing (91.520(a))

Since completion of its 2019-2023 Consolidated Plan public participation process, generally, affordable
housing is still a concern for residents and agencies, as the cost of housing is a challenge for low-and-
moderate income households. To that end, the City intends to maintain the relationships and working
partnerships with the various agencies in an attempt to serve its residents as well as keep the agencies
informed.

The City continued supporting rehabilitation and repairs of existing owner occupied housing stock using
the CDBG and HOME programs, and it introduced a renter occupied rehabilitation/repair program in the
community. To that end, lead-based paint will continue to be addressed in assisted low-and-moderate
income housing in the community, as part of inspection and abatement efforts under these two
programs. As for any structural or organizational issues, the City is committed to addressing and
resolving any impediments associated with either funding program, including those that may arise with
public partnering entities.
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Worst Case Needs

In addressing the “worst case” needs, the City of Cedar Falls attempts to assist those persons in several
ways. First, the CDBG program is used to rehabilitate and repair single-family owner-occupied and
renter-occupied units in the community, as well as provide awards to agencies for assisting qualifying
households (i.e. homeless, involuntarily displaced, and those that are in danger of becoming homeless),
or tries to use CDBG funding to offset infrastructure costs that may be assessed to property owners.

Second, the City manages a Housing Choice Vouchers (Section 8) Program that offers rent assistance to
low-income households to ensure they do not have to pay more than 30 percent of their income on rent
in situations where rent far exceeds their ability to pay.
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CR-25 - Homeless and Other Special Needs 91.220(d, e); 91.320(d, e); 91.520(c)

Evaluate the jurisdiction’s progress in meeting its specific objectives for reducing and ending
homelessness through:

Reaching out to homeless persons (especially unsheltered persons) and assessing their individual
needs

Needs of the homeless are identified through staff participation in the Black Hawk County Local
Homeless Coordinating Board. This advocacy group shares information regarding homeless needs and
services. The Board serves as a large partnership for service providers, policy makers, and
administrators for addressing housing and homeless services in the area. In addition, the agencies that
the city chooses to fund with CDBG dollars provide services directly to persons that may be homeless or
in danger of being homeless, on behalf of the City. Finally, the City of Cedar Falls is open to developing
new partnerships and strategies designed to address homelessness.

Addressing the emergency shelter and transitional housing needs of homeless persons

The City of Cedar Falls used CDBG funds to address homelessness through funding to the Salvation Army
Woman's Shelter, as well as four other agencies that indirectly prevent homelessness. The Shelter used
the funds provided during this past year to finance minor improvements to the shelter itself. The shelter
also provides services to assist the women in finding employment and permanent housing. During the
program year the Salvation Army Woman's Shelter assisted 30 persons from the Cedar Falls.

Helping low-income individuals and families avoid becoming homeless, especially extremely low-
income individuals and families and those who are: likely to become homeless after being discharged
from publicly funded institutions and systems of care (such as health care facilities, mental health
facilities, foster care and other youth facilities, and corrections programs and institutions); and,
receiving assistance from public or private agencies that address housing, health, social services,
employment, education, or youth needs

As was accomplished this year, the City intends to continue coordinating with agencies that can help the
community prevent homelessness, specifically for persons being discharged from public institutions,
health care facilities, corrections programs, mental health facilities, foster care, or youth programs.

To that end, as well as to address other systems of care, the City of Cedar Falls provided awards to five
agencies that offer these services to residents. The City also made awards to an agency under their
CARES supplemental allocations (CV-2 and CV-3) specifically for preventing or addressing rent evictions
and mortgage foreclosures. In addition, through funding provided by the State of lowa (lowa Economic
Development Authority), five agencies, three schools, and the City of Cedar Falls all received funding for
mitigating the effects of the Coronavirus pandemic, primarily through equipment and safety
improvement purchases. Furthermore, these paid services assist those households that may spend 50
percent or more of their budget on housing expenses, which may threaten the housing status or the
immediate and/or basic needs of the assisted household.
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Services provided through the annual or entitlement funding included food, substance abuse treatment,
homeless shelter facility assistance, rent assistance and personal financial counseling. Conversely, the
funding provided either through formula CARES/CV programs or through the state’s CARES/CV programs
include rent and mortgage assistance, interpretation and language barrier assistance, and food
provision.

Helping homeless persons (especially chronically homeless individuals and families, families with
children, veterans and their families, and unaccompanied youth) make the transition to permanent
housing and independent living, including shortening the period of time that individuals and families
experience homelessness, facilitating access for homeless individuals and families to affordable
housing units, and preventing individuals and families who were recently homeless from becoming
homeless again

As previously stated, the City funded the Salvation Army Women’s Shelter, which offers shelter for
persons in need, most notably those persons that may be homeless. Specifically, CDBG funds are used
for Salvation Army shelter facility upkeep, which also provides case management and supportive
services to assist homeless persons make the transition to permanent, stable housing.
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CR-30 - Public Housing 91.220(h); 91.320(j)

Actions taken to address the needs of public housing

The City of Cedar Falls does not have a public housing program, nor does it operate or manage public
housing property. The Low Rent Housing Agency of Cedar Falls, administered by the City of Cedar Falls
Community Development Department, manages the Housing Choice Vouchers (Section 8) Program. The
City reviews, with HUD, the number of vouchers and the amount of subsidy provided on a quarterly
basis to ensure the federal funds are fully utilized to serve as many clients as possible with the funding
provided. While the maximum number of vouchers the City is allowed to issue is based on the available
funding from HUD. With the current funding level and the amount of subsidy needed to ensure that
clients are not paying more than 30 percent of their income toward rent, the current lease-up goal is
220 vouchers. This number fluctuates based upon the households being served and level of income.
Currently, 191 vouchers are being utilized. The City strives to maximize the number of households
served with the available funding, so it maintains a waiting list and issues new vouchers whenever
possible. The Low-Rent Housing Agency of Cedar Falls has been rated as a high performer, according to
Section 8 Management Association Program (SEMAP).

Actions taken to encourage public housing residents to become more involved in management and
participate in homeownership

This is not applicable, as the City does not have a public housing program or manage public housing
properties.

Actions taken to provide assistance to troubled PHAs

This is not applicable, as the City does not have a public housing program or manage public housing
properties.
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CR-35 - Other Actions 91.220(j)-(k); 91.320(i)-(j)

Actions taken to remove or ameliorate the negative effects of public policies that serve as barriers to
affordable housing such as land use controls, tax policies affecting land, zoning ordinances, building
codes, fees and charges, growth limitations, and policies affecting the return on residential
investment. 91.220 (j); 91.320 (i)

Currently, the need for quality, affordable housing continues to outpace the existence of such units in
Cedar Falls. Between demand on the units by full-time residents, and that which comes with being a
university community and its student housing needs, the City has unmet need for affordable housing.

With that said, there are several different kinds of barriers to the development or creation of affordable
housing in Cedar Falls, some of which are outside of the City’s ability to control. First, the housing
market, for low-income residents in Cedar Falls, is expensive, with home valuation and rent costs being
relatively high. Second, construction costs for both single-family and multiple-family developments, in
both materials and infrastructure cost, have risen sharply since the beginning of the COVID Pandemic.
Third, market demand has driven the price of land upward in the community as available land and lots
diminishes.

By being willing to look at these areas of concern, the City of Cedar Falls is taking action to address
potential negative effects of public policy on affordable housing by making it an important discussion
element during both public input processes and while drafting and developing the various policies,
plans, and ordinances. Also, the City may wish to explore public-private-nonprofit partnerships in the
development of affordable housing. Nonprofit developers can build mixed income housing and attract
additional resources/financing that private developers cannot, when it comes to creating new affordable
housing. Nevertheless, the City does recognize the effect that their housing market is having on the
price of housing, which may affect whether or not people can afford to live in the community.

Regarding taxes, property tax assessment is based upon valuation, as determined by the Black Hawk
County Assessor and certified by the County Auditor. In the case of the City portion of the total property
tax, the City Council considers adjustment as part of their annual budgeting process, which is scheduled
to be concluded in March every year. Said levy rates are set by classification (property use), and the
percentage of which that is collected by the City is determined by the State of lowa. In reviewing the
City of Cedar Falls’ tax rates, which are measured per $1,000 of taxable value, over the course of the
past ten fiscal years, the City has maintained a very consistent, stable property tax rate. The highest rate
during this time-period, which was certified in City Fiscal Year 2012, was $12.86/$1,000 in taxable
valuation, and the lowest rate, $10.95/51,000, was certified in CFY 2020.

The City recognizes the higher cost of housing in their community, which may be attributed to market
demand, land value, and development costs (primarily infrastructure, labor and material costs). As a
result, the City’s participation in the Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Entitlement Program
becomes that much more important. The CDBG Entitlement has offered not only physical housing
assistance in the way of rehabilitation and repair programs, the City offers assistance to residents for
homelessness prevention services, thus preventing served persons from having to weigh paying for
housing-related expenses versus the other services they may need. Further, the City has chosen to
expend part of its CDBG allocation to provide upgraded or updated infrastructure in low-and-moderate
income census tracts.
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Actions taken to address obstacles to meeting underserved needs. 91.220(k); 91.320(j)

The City of Cedar Falls is proactive in attending meetings and networking with service agencies to
identify needs in the community. They also monitor each of the agencies they fund with CDBG funding
to ensure the funds are addressing community needs. The City staff has relayed the addresses of
properties that have code violations to the program, so the housing staff may offer services to the
homeowner, if applicable.

Information regarding the CDBG program and Rehabilitation assistance has also been marketed in a
newspaper articles (Waterloo-Cedar Falls Courier) and City’s newsletter, "Currents". The local newsletter
is distributed to Cedar Falls residents and to agencies that serve Cedar Falls residents. The City is also
using its website to advertise basic program information, application, and the administrative plan
associated with the rehabilitation projects. Finally, the City is utilizing its website to showcase its long-
range and short-range plans for the CDBG and HOME programs within the community.

Together, the outreach the community has conducted is helping the City develop strategies for
addressing obstacles, barrier, and unmet needs for persons in the community. The City in their
Consolidated Plan is attempting to implement several new strategies that are intended to help persons
overcome service, care, and housing barriers.

Actions taken to reduce lead-based paint hazards. 91.220(k); 91.320(j)

The lowa Northland Regional Council of Governments (INRCOG) directly, or through its procured
subcontractor, provides lead risk assessment and completes lead- based paint clearance testing on the
housing rehabilitation projects in Cedar Falls. If abatement work is completed, the entire
property/project is also cleaned. At least one hour after the final cleaning a certified inspector does a
visual examination to ensure there are no paint chips, dust, debris, or bare soil. The inspector then takes
a dust sample from the window troughs, windowsills, and floors. The sampling is then tested in
accordance with the HUD guidelines. In addition, per unit rehab budgets also include funds for
relocation of families whose homes may be impacted by lead, as well as for addressing lead hazards
such that units can be considered safe.

The City will continue to include lead-based hazard prevention measures in its program, including
identification, testing, relocation, and remediation actions. Applicants, as a means of education, are also
provided the lead paint brochure "Protect Your Family from Lead Paint in Your Home". This brochure
explains the dangers of lead in the home.

Households receiving assistance through the Housing Choice Voucher program are also advised of lead
hazards, and occupied units built prior to 1978 are assessed for lead hazards.

Actions taken to reduce the number of poverty-level families. 91.220(k); 91.320(j)

As indicated in the current and updated Consolidated and Annual Action Plans, the City of Cedar Falls
has worked to eliminate poverty through making housing more affordable, preserving the condition and
availability of existing housing stock, and helping citizens build human, social, financial, physical, and
natural assets. This work is completed with the idea that it will address several of the social and
economic causes of poverty. Also, the work the contracted services agencies performs on behalf of the
City helps increase educational and awareness opportunities for community residents, many of whom
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are at or below poverty levels.
Actions taken to develop institutional structure. 91.220(k); 91.320(j)

As indicated in the Consolidated Plan, the close working relationship between the Cedar Falls City
Council, Housing Commission and the Community Development staff helps to overcome any potential
gaps in institutional structure. Through this program, the City has had the opportunity to build
relationships with numerous agencies, organizations, and entities, all of which help the community build
a network, and in some cases a safety net, of services for its residents. Furthermore, City of Cedar Falls
staff work closely with the neighboring City of Waterloo on projects affecting the metropolitan area.
Finally, the City continues building a relationship with the lowa Northland Regional Council of
Governments and their staff with regard to implementing both CDBG and HOME programs in the
community.

Actions taken to enhance coordination between public and private housing and social service
agencies. 91.220(k); 91.320(j)

The City of Cedar Falls Housing Commission was significantly involved in implementation of the CDBG
Entitlement and HOME programs during this past year. Membership of this committee included persons
from a wide cross-section of the community. The composition of the Commission included a banker,
realtor, a community credit union official, a Section 8 landlord, and a television and radio

executive. This unique composition allows for collaboration and communication of potential ideas that
address fair housing issues, raise awareness of concern, and create working relationships that will help
address housing issues. As has been documented, the City worked closely with service agencies to
ensure coordination, fill gaps where services are needed, and exchange feedback regarding underserved
needs.

During this past year, the City continued to enhance relationships with several agencies, organizations,
and service providers, through offering additional CDBG funding associated with the CARES Program.
While the prior Consolidated Planning process used input forums, surveys, and interviews, the City staff
and Housing Commission have begun making the joint meeting process a regular occurrence, so as to
allow for a forum of community needs as well as provide an opportunity to strategize how the impact of
the CDBG may have maximum impact in the city.

Identify actions taken to overcome the effects of any impediments identified in the jurisdiction’s
analysis of impediments to fair housing choice. 91.520(a)

The City of Cedar Falls, together with the City of Waterloo, completed an Analysis of Impediments to
Fair Housing (AFH) in 2014, and updated it in 2019 as part of development of their Consolidated
Plan. Said updated analysis identified impediments to fair housing in Cedar Falls and the actions
suggested to address them, as follows:
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Public Sector Impediments: Market Based Need Areas
Suggested AFH Actions:

1. Limited English-Speaking Population. Conduct a four-factor analysis to determine which current
systems for interpretation and translation are adequately serving the community. Ending with a
Language Access Plan.

2. Focus CDBG funding on the provision of affordable rental units.

3. Consider a renter-focused CDBG-funded affordable housing project.

4. Planning departments in Consortium work together to arrange for a workshop for developers
and landlords to broaden awareness of the concepts of universal design.

5. Provide incentives for employment training and apprenticeships aimed at residents of racially-
impacted neighborhoods.

6. Target homeownership counseling to residents of impacted neighborhoods.

AFH Actions Accomplished:

During 2019, the City focused program funding on assisting low-and-moderate income households and
families. A change that was identified during the Consolidated Plan update suggested directing
assistance to affordable rental units (Suggested AFH Action #2), and as such, the City has programmed
funding during the life of the new plan toward this endeavor and a new program was developed.
Likewise, the recent Consolidated Planning process discussed targeting funding on renter-occupied
affordable housing projects (Suggested AFH Action #3). Finally, the City purchased a new software
module that allows rental property owners to register their units as well as to “advertise” the availability
of HCV units to prospective voucher holders. We have seen an increase in participation with this, as well
as because of the pandemic.

Public Sector Impediments: Policy Based Need Areas
Suggested AFH Actions:

1. Cedar Falls Human Rights Commission outreach project. Determine viability of using CDBG
funds to support an outreach project. Empower the Commission to enforce fair housing laws
rather than referring residents to the lowa Civil Rights Commission

2. Consortium should continue to engage in regional planning efforts to most efficiently match bus
lines and stops with jobs, housing, and amenities.

AFH Actions Accomplished:

In regard to public policy needs, the City has had prior discussions during the past five years regarding
the use of CDBG funds to support outreach and strengthening the position of their local Human Rights
Commission (Suggested AFH Action #1). Further, during the recent Consolidated Planning process, both
cities in the consortium (Waterloo and Cedar Falls) had several opportunities to work on enhancing and
improving transit services, most notably addressing route restructuring that could be oriented around
land use and employment changes, as well as purchasing bus passes for CDBG clients. The City of Cedar
Falls has included allocation of CDBG funding in the new plan toward improving transportation services
that better serve housing areas, employment centers, community education and service providers for
residents that may not have access to transit services (Suggested AFH Action #2).
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Private Sector Impediments: Market Based Need Areas
Suggested AFH Actions:

1. Consortium should consider testing for mortgage discrimination by a qualified entity in order to
more effectively target education, outreach, referral, and enforcement activities.

2. Apply for a grant for another round of testing, with particular emphasis on race and disability,
should be considered by the Consortium.

3. Legal review of nuisance and rental inspection ordinances to ensure whether enforcement is
consistent with applicable fair housing laws.

AFH Actions Accomplished:

As a result of a challenging rental market in Cedar Falls, as well as recent lowa law changes to specific
regulatory definitions (how a “family” may be defined in local ordinances), all while attempting to
balance land use in a college community, the City has spent, and will continue to spend, significant staff
time addressing the interaction of local rental and nuisance ordinances and their impact on the
community and applicable federal and state laws. This includes assessing the consistency of local laws
and applicable fair housing regulations (Suggested AFH Action #3). The most recent example of this was
when the City reviewed and amended local land use regulations in order to comply with changes in lowa
law with regard to how families may be defined and the corresponding impact on housing density and
rental regulations.

CR-40 - Monitoring 91.220 and 91.230

Describe the standards and procedures used to monitor activities carried out in furtherance of the
plan and used to ensure long-term compliance with requirements of the programs involved, including
minority business outreach and the comprehensive planning requirements

The City of Cedar Falls used numerous methods of ensuring the projects funded under the CDBG
Entitlement program comply with federal standards and requirements, including the National Objectives
for the CDBG Program. Further, said monitoring will utilize the Consolidated Plan, Annual Action Plan
and the Analysis of Fair Housing as the foundations and impetus for actions taken and implemented
using CDBG funding in the community.

Overall, expenditure of CDBG funds has been consistent with the goals outlined in all three planning
documents.

All direct housing rehabilitation and repair projects, have been conducted according to prescribed HUD
requirements this past year, including written applications, income verifications, procurement,
contracting, inspections, lead-based paint protections, and closeout procedures. The City included
minority-owned contracting businesses in the project bidding outreach processes. Only low-to-
moderate income households were assisted under this program.

Agencies receiving funding were required to compete for funds, develop eligible proposals, provide
quarterly reports, and be monitored for compliance and effectiveness. Monitoring, which consisted of
in-person visits to four of the five agencies by staff, were completed as well. Staff confirmed the use of

CAPER 25

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 06/30/2018)

Iltem 7.

53




funds matched the agency proposal and contract with the City; verified agency expenses; pulled copies
of client files and applications; verified client demographics; and reviewed quarterly reports and
expenditures with key agency employees. Staff also collected copies of client applications. The City of
Cedar Falls continued working with public service agencies and nonprofit organizations to ensure they
are reaching the goal of assisting residents with the greatest need, as well as to help reduce
homelessness in the community. In addition, the City continued working with code enforcement and
other departments to identify potential at-risk properties and residents.

During the past two years, three additional infusions of CDBG funds occurred through the Coronavirus
Aid, Relief, and Economic Security (CARES) Act, as a result of the COVID-19 pandemic. Two of the
additional awards were provided through formula allocations from HUD, and the third was through an
allocation from the State of lowa (lowa Economic Development Authority). The challenge for the City
has been to prove that the funds are being used by persons, households, agencies, or organizations
impacted by COVID-19 and to ensure the funds do not create a duplication of benefits situation for the
recipients of the dollars. Low-and-moderate income households and persons, limited clientele
populations, and areas have been, and will continue to be assisted with these CARES funds.

Also, during this time, HUD notified the City that it would be monitoring their Environmental Review
process, which is completed prior to expenditure of any funding. They anticipate completing this
monitoring and correcting any deficiencies that may be found.

Finally, the Housing Commission and City Council reviewed and approved this Consolidated Annual
Performance and Evaluation Report (CAPER), which summarizes the accomplishments and efforts made
under the CDBG Entitlement Program, all after conducting the required, appropriate public input
processes outlined in the City’s Public Participation Plan.

All CDBG funds expended are subject to the US Department of Housing and Urban Development and the
City’s auditing and monitoring processes. In addition, planning and administrative work performed by
INRCOG are subject to its independent auditing and records maintenance processes as well.

Citizen Participation Plan 91.105(d); 91.115(d)
Describe the efforts to provide citizens with reasonable notice and an opportunity to comment on

performance reports.

Three public meeting opportunities were provided regarding this specific CAPER Report, which is
consistent with the City’s updated Citizen Participation Plan: the regular October 19%, 2022, Housing
Commission Meeting and the October 17%, 2022, and November 21%, 2022, City Council Meetings.
Legal notice for this CAPER and the October 21, 2022 City Council Public Hearing was advertised
consistently with the City’s Citizen Participation Plan, including a combined published 15-day comment
period and legal public hearing notice. Specifically, the notice was published in the English and Spanish
languages, and both notices offered reasonable accommodation for persons having a disability.

There were no public comments made during the advertised citizen participation period.
CR-45 - CDBG 91.520(c)

Specify the nature of, and reasons for, any changes in the jurisdiction’s program objectives and
indications of how the jurisdiction would change its programs as a result of its experiences.
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The City chose to focus its CDBG funding and efforts on agency awards, sanitary sewer and sidewalk infill
projects, and owner occupied and renter occupied housing rehabilitation/repair during FFY 2021, per
the 2019-2023 Consolidated Plan. With the additional CARES funds, the City funded pandemic-related
projects and programs for its residents through existing agencies, organizations, and schools. In future
years, the City may consider additional funding for LMI Area benefit programs that complete
infrastructure and sidewalks improvements, which are intended to positively impact larger numbers of
people and geographic areas of the community.

Does the grantee have an existing Section 108 guarantee?

The City does not have a Section 108 guaranteed loan.

Does this Jurisdiction have any open Brownfields Economic Development Initiative (BEDI) grants?
The City does not have an open BEDI grant.

[BEDI grantees] Describe accomplishments and program outcomes during the last year.

The City is not a BEDI grantee, and therefore, this query does not apply.
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CR-58 — Section 3

Identify the number of individuals assisted and the types of assistance provided

Total Labor Hours CDBG | HOME | ESG HOPWA | HTF
Total Number of Activities 0 0 0 0 0
Total Labor Hours 1,873 0 0 0 0
Total Section 3 Worker Hours 0 0 0 0 0
Total Targeted Section 3 Worker Hours 0 0 0 0 0

Table 8 — Total Labor Hours

Qualitative Efforts - Number of Activities by Program CDBG | HOME | ESG | HOPWA | HTF

Outreach efforts to generate job applicants who are Public Housing

Targeted Workers 0 0 0 0 0
Outreach efforts to generate job applicants who are Other Funding
0 0 0 0 0
Targeted Workers.
Direct, on-the job training (including apprenticeships). 0 0 0 0 0
Indirect training such as arranging for, contracting for, or paying tuition
. e 0 0 0 0 0
for, off-site training.
Technical assistance to help Section 3 workers compete for jobs (e.g., 0 0 0 0 0
resume assistance, coaching).
Outreach efforts to identify and secure bids from Section 3 business 4 4 0 0 0
concerns.
Technical assistance to help Section 3 business concerns understand
. 0 0 0 0 0
and bid on contracts.
Division of contracts into smaller jobs to facilitate participation by
. ) 0 0 0 0 0
Section 3 business concerns.
Provided or connected residents with assistance in seeking employment
including: drafting resumes, preparing for interviews, finding job 0 0 0 0 0
opportunities, connecting residents to job placement services.
Held one or more job fairs. 0 0 0 0 0
Provided or connected residents with supportive services that can 0 0 0 0 0

provide direct services or referrals.

Provided or connected residents with supportive services that provide
one or more of the following: work readiness health screenings, 0 0 0 0 0
interview clothing, uniforms, test fees, transportation.

Assisted residents with finding childcare. 0 0 0 0 0
Assisted residents to apply for,or attend community college or a four 0 0 0 0 0
year educational institution.
Assisted residents to apply for or attend vocational/technical training. 0 0 0 0 0
Assisted residents to obtain financial literacy training and/or coaching. 0 0 0 0 0
Bonding assistance, guaranties, or other efforts to support viable bids

) . 0 0 0 0 0
from Section 3 business concerns.
Provided or connected residents with training on computer use or online 0 0 0 0 0
technologies.
Promoting the use of a business registry designed to create

e . ; 0 0 0 0 0
opportunities for disadvantaged and small businesses.
Outreach, engagement, or referrals with the state one-stop system, as
designed in Section 121(e)(2) of the Workforce Innovation and 0 0 0 0 0
Opportunity Act.
Other. 0 0 0 0 0

Table 9 — Qualitative Efforts - Number of Activities by Program
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Narrative

During this past year, the City has completed training for implementing the updated Section 3
requirements, including development of a specific plan. Said plan is not yet complete. However, the

City is beginning to collect the necessary project information such that it can accurately report statistics

request in the preceding table.
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Item 8.

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS

City of Cedar Falls

220 Clay Street

Cedar Falls, lowa 50613

Phone: 319-268-5161

Fax: 319-268-5197

www.cedarfalls.com MEMORANDUM

Engineering Division

TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council
FROM: Luke Andreasen, PE
DATE: September 23, 2022

SUBJECT: 27" Street Sanitary Sewer Extension District Ordinance
Division 6 added to City Code Chapter 24, Article Il

With construction now completed for the 27" Street Sanitary Sewer extension, it is now
necessary to update City Code in order to establish a new sanitary sewer district and
tapping fee for this extension. The service area for this proposed district is shown in
Exhibit 1.

The Engineering Division of the Public Works Department is proposing that a Division 6:
27t Street Sanitary Sewer Extension, be added to Chapter 24, Article 1l of the Code of
Ordinances. Please see attached for this proposed addition.

If you have any questions or concerns, please feel free to ask.

xc:  Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works
David Wicke, PE, City Engineer
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Prepared by: Kevin Rogers, City Attorney, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA 50613, (319)273-8600

ORDINANCE NO. 3018

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING ARTICLE Il, SEWERS AND SEWAGE DISPOSAL, OF
CHAPTER 24, UTILITIES, OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, BY ADDING A NEW DIVISION 6, 271" STREET SANITARY
SEWER EXTENSION DISTRICT, WHICH ESTABLISHES A NEW SEWER DISTRICT
IN THE CITY AND PROVIDES FOR FEES FOR SEWER CONNECTION.

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA:

Section 1. Article Il, Sewers and Sewage Disposal, of Chapter 24, Utilities, of the Code
of Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, lowa, is hereby amended by enacting a new
Division 6, 27t Street Sanitary Sewer Extension District, containing New Section 24-223,
Establishment of District; New Section 24-224, Description of Benefited Properties; New
Section 24-225, Imposition of Sewer Connection Charge; Application, and New Section 24-
226, Timing of Payment of Sewer Connection Charge, as follows:

DIVISION 6. - 27th STREET SANITARY SEWER EXTENSION
Sec. 24-223. Establishment of district.

There is hereby established the 27" Street Sanitary Sewer Extension District, which
may be referred to in this division as the district. The district consists of all property served
and benefited by the 27" Street Sanitary Sewer Extension, which is legally described in
section 24-224.

Sec. 24-224. Description of benefited properties.

The property served and benefited by the district consists of approximately 145.0
acres of property legally described as follows:

PART OF THE SOUTH HALF OF SECTION 15, TOWNSHIP 89 NORTH, RANGE 14 WEST OF THE 5™
PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN IN THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, BLACK HAWK COUNTY, IOWA, AND PART OF
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THE NORTH HALF OF SECTION 22, TOWNSHIP 89 NORTH, RANGE 14 WEST OF THE 5™ PRINCIPAL
MERIDIAN IN THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, BLACK HAWK COUNTY, IOWA, DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:

(1) THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER (1/4) OF THE NORTHEAST QUARTER (1/4) OF THE SOUTHWEST
QUARTER (1/4) OF SECTION 15, TOWNSHIP 89 NORTH, RANGE 14 WEST OF THE 5™
PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN IN THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, BLACK HAWK COUNTY, IOWA.

(2) THAT PART OF THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER (1/4) OF THE NORTHEAST QUARTER (1/4) OF THE
SOUTHWEST QUARTER (1/4) LYING SOUTHWESTERLY OF THE LINE FROM THE NORTHWEST
CORNER TO THE SOUTHEAST CORNER THEREOF, IN SECTION 15, TOWNSHIP 89 NORTH,
RANGE 14 WEST OF THE 5™ PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN IN THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, BLACK
HAWK COUNTY, IOWA.

(3) THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER (1/4) OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER (1/4) OF SECTION 15,
TOWNSHIP 89 NORTH, RANGE 14 WEST OF THE 5™ PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN IN THE CITY OF
CEDAR FALLS, BLACK HAWK COUNTY, IOWA.

(4) THE WEST HALF OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER (1/4) OF THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER (1/4) OF
SECTION 15, TOWNSHIP 89 NORTH, RANGE 14 WEST OF THE 5™ PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN IN
THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, BLACK HAWK COUNTY, IOWA.

(5) THAT PART OF THE NORTHEAST QUARTER (1/4) OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER (1/4) OF THE
SOUTHEAST QUARTER (1/4) LYING SOUTHWESTERLY OF THE LINE FROM THE NORTHWEST
CORNER TO THE SOUTHEAST CORNER THEREOF, IN SECTION 15, TOWNSHIP 89 NORTH,
RANGE 14 WEST OF THE 5™ PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN IN THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, BLACK
HAWK COUNTY, IOWA.

(6) THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER (1/4) OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER (1/4) OF THE SOUTHEAST
QUARTER (1/4) OF SECTION 15, TOWNSHIP 89 NORTH, RANGE 14 WEST OF THE 5™
PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN IN THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, BLACK HAWK COUNTY, IOWA.

(7) THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER (1/4) OF THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER (1/4) OF THE SOUTHEAST
QUARTER (1/4) OF SECTION 15, TOWNSHIP 89 NORTH, RANGE 14 WEST OF THE 5™
PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN IN THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, BLACK HAWK COUNTY, IOWA.

(8) THE NORTHWEST QUARTER (1/4) OF THE NORTHEAST QUARTER (1/4) OF SECTION 22,
TOWNSHIP 89 NORTH, RANGE 14 WEST OF THE 5™ PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN IN THE CITY OF
CEDAR FALLS, BLACK HAWK COUNTY, IOWA, EXCEPT THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER (1/4) OF
THE NORTHWEST QUARTER (1/4) OF THE NORTHEAST QUARTER (1/4) THEREOF.

(9) THAT PART OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER (1/4) OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER (1/4) OF
THE NORTHEAST QUARTER (1/4) LYING NORTHEASTERLY OF THE LINE FROM THE
NORTHWEST CORNER TO THE SOUTHEAST CORNER THEREOF, IN SECTION 22, TOWNSHIP 89
NORTH, RANGE 14 WEST OF THE 5™ PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN IN THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS,
BLACK HAWK COUNTY, IOWA.

(10) THE NORTH 190 FEET OF THE NORTHEAST QUARTER (1/4) OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER
(1/4) OF THE NORTHEAST QUARTER (1/4) OF SECTION 22, TOWNSHIP 89 NORTH, RANGE 14
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WEST OF THE 5™ PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN IN THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, BLACK HAWK COUNTY,
IOWA.

(11) THAT PART OF THE NORTHEAST QUARTER (1/4) OF THE NORTHEAST QUARTER (1/4) OF THE
NORTHWEST QUARTER (1/4) LYING NORTHEASTERLY OF THE LINE FROM THE NORTHWEST
CORNER TO THE SOUTHEAST CORNER THEREOF, IN SECTION 22, TOWNSHIP 89 NORTH,
RANGE 14 WEST OF THE 5™ PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN IN THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, BLACK
HAWK COUNTY, IOWA.

Sec. 24-225. Imposition of sewer connection charge; application.

There is hereby imposed on each property located within the district a connection
charge for connecting to the 27" Street Sanitary Sewer Extension as follows:

The owner of any property that lies within the district who wishes to connect to the
27" Street Sanitary Sewer Extension shall first make application to the city for connection.
No connection shall be made until such application has been approved by the city engineer
and until the required connection fee has been paid. This connection charge shall be in
addition to all other fees and charges imposed by the city.

(&) The sewer connection charge established in this division shall be in proportion
to the area of the benefitted property at a rate of $2,697.65 per acre, payable in
cash.

(b) The owner shall be solely responsible for the cost of connection, including but
not limited to the cost of connecting structures.

(c) No connection shall be made by any person except direct connection to serve
property within the district.

(d) In the event that any property within the district is subdivided and additional
structures are permitted thereon, the owner of each such property shall be
required to separately comply with the requirements of this section prior to
connection.

(e) If connection is made within the district to the 27t Street Sanitary Sewer
Extension without application having been made therefore or without approval
having been received, or without the required connection charge having been
paid, then the city shall be entitled to disconnect at the property owner’s cost
until such time as application, approval and payment as required in this division
is completed.
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Sec. 24-226. Timing of payment of sewer connection charge.

Each owner or developer of property which lies within the district and who wishes to
file a minor plat or final plat shall apply for connection and upon approval pay a sewer
connection charge to the city prior to or at the time of minor plat or final plat approval by the
city. This subsection shall be applicable to all minor plat and final plat applications related
to any property located within the district filed after the effective date of this ordinance.

Sec. 24-227—24-253. Reserved

INTRODUCED: October 3, 2022
PASSED 1t CONSIDERATION: October 3, 2022
PASSED 2" CONSIDERATION: October 17, 2022
PASSED 3 CONSIDERATION:

ADOPTED:

Robert M. Green, Mayor
ATTEST:

Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk
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ORDINANCE NO.

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 16-24, FIREWORKS, OF ARTICLE I, IN
GENERAL, OF CHAPTER 16, OFFENSES AND MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS,
OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA,
CHANGING THE DATES AND TIMES OF ALLOWED USE OF CONSUMER
FIREWORKS AND CHANGING THE PENALTY FOR VIOLATION TO A SIMPLE
MISDEMEANOR.

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA:

Subsection 16-24(b), Prohibitions and Use, of Section 16-24, Fireworks, of Article 1, In

General, of Chapter 16, Offenses and Miscellaneous Provisions, of the Code of Ordinances of
the City of Cedar Falls, lowa, is hereby repealed in its entirety and a new Subsection 16-24(b),
Prohibitions and Use, is enacted in lieu thereof, as follows:

(b)

(c)

(d)

Prohibitions and use.

(1)

(2)

(3)

(4)

(5)

It shall be unlawful for any person to use or explode any consumer fireworks within the corporate
limits of the City of Cedar Falls except on July 3 and July; 4;and-5 of each year between the hours of
12:00 noon and 10:3033:00 p.m.-onduly - ;
3andduly-5. Any additional days ofallowed use may be designated by resolutlon of counC|I |f adopted
between the dates of January 1 and March 1 of nelaterthanthe last day-of December-each year to
apply to the same fellewing-calendar year. This section shall not apply to novelties.

The use of consumer fireworks that mimic display fireworks or rise to 150 decibels or to 210 feet
elevation is banned from use at all times within the corporate limits of the City of Cedar Falls unless the
user has obtained a permit as provided in subsection 16-24(e).

Consistent with the Code of lowa, use of fireworks within the corporate limits of the City of Cedar Falls;
when-sueh-eceurs-onduly-3,4-and-5; shall only occur on the user's owned real property or on real
property where the owner has given consent prior to use. Use of fireworks, unless a permit has been
obtained, is not aIIowed on city-owned property, public sidewalks, rlghts of-way, streets, parks, or
parking lots.-4 aHow J y atrea :
: | . . _

It is prohibited to direct the use of consumer fireworks in any direction other than onto the user's
owned real property or the real property where the owner has given prior consent.

All consumer firework debris shall be removed from the user's real property or wherever such use has
resulted in its debris being located.

Exceptions. This section shall not apply to the use of blank cartridges for a show or the theater, or for signal
purposes in athletic sports or by railroads or trucks, for signal purposes, or by a recognized military
organization. This section shall not apply to any substance or composition prepared and sold for medicinal or
fumigation purposes. This section shall not apply to a person using or exploding fireworks under a valid
permit as provided in subsection 16-24(e).

Enforcement.

(1)

Citations for violation of this section 16-24 shall be directed to the person observed/found to have
violated this section or the owner of real property on which the evidence exists of violation of this
section. Furthermore, where evidence of violation of noise or nuisance ordinances exists, such citations
may also be written.
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(f)

(8)

(2) The vendors of fireworks shall be monitored during sales periods as to type of consumer fireworks sold
and for compliance with subsection 16-24(f).

Display fireworks. The council may, upon application in writing, grant a permit for the use and explosion of
display fireworks within the city limits by municipalities, fair associations, amusement parks, and other
organizations or groups of individuals when the use and explosion of such display fireworks will be handled
by a competent operator, and proof of liability insurance is shown. (See also section 9-20.)

Sales. A seller of consumer fireworks must possess a license from the state fire marshal. Any retailer or
community group selling consumer fireworks must prominently display, at the entrance and exit sites, signs
informing customers that the use of consumer fireworks is prohibited within the corporate limits of the City
of Cedar Falls except on the dates and times authorized by this section.

Violation; Appeal. A person who violates this section commits a simple misdemeanor punishable by a fine of

not less than two hundred fifty dollars. ¥+ela%+ea—e#th45+eeﬁen—e#m%e#e#eﬂee—w+t#eﬂie¥eeme%eﬁa+w—ei

(Code 2017, § 19-24; Ord. No. 2555, § 12, 10-24-2005; Ord. No. 3011, § 1, 6-6-2022)

INTRODUCED:

PASSED 15T CONSIDERATION:

PASSED 2"° CONSIDERATION:

PASSED 3R° CONSIDERATIONI:

ADOPTED:

Robert M. Green, Mayor

ATTEST:

Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk
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ORDINANCE NO. 3019

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 16-24, FIREWORKS, OF ARTICLE I, IN
GENERAL, OF CHAPTER 16, OFFENSES AND MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS,
OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA,
CHANGING THE DATES AND TIMES OF ALLOWED USE OF CONSUMER
FIREWORKS AND CHANGING THE PENALTY FOR VIOLATION TO A SIMPLE
MISDEMEANOR.

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA:

Subsection 16-24(b), Prohibitions and Use, of Section 16-24, Fireworks, of Article |, In

General, of Chapter 16, Offenses and Miscellaneous Provisions, of the Code of Ordinances of
the City of Cedar Falls, lowa, is hereby repealed in its entirety and a new Subsection 16-24(b),
Prohibitions and Use, is enacted in lieu thereof, as follows:

(b)

(d)

Prohibitions and use.

(1)

(3)

(4)

(5)

It shall be unlawful for any person to use or explode any consumer fireworks within the
corporate limits of the City of Cedar Falls except on July 3 and July 4 of each year between the
hours of 12:00 noon and 10:30 p.m. Any additional days of allowed use may be designated by
resolution of council if adopted between the dates of January 1 and March 1 of each year to
apply to the same calendar year. This section shall not apply to novelties.

The use of consumer fireworks that mimic display fireworks or rise to 150 decibels or to 210
feet elevation is banned from use at all times within the corporate limits of the City of Cedar
Falls unless the user has obtained a permit as provided in subsection 16-24(e).

Consistent with the Code of lowa, use of fireworks within the corporate limits of the City of
Cedar Falls shall only occur on the user's owned real property or on real property where the
owner has given consent prior to use. Use of fireworks, unless a permit has been obtained, is
not allowed on city-owned property, public sidewalks, rights-of-way, streets, parks, or parking
lots.

It is prohibited to direct the use of consumer fireworks in any direction other than onto the
user's owned real property or the real property where the owner has given prior consent.

All consumer firework debris shall be removed from the user's real property or wherever such
use has resulted in its debris being located.

Exceptions. This section shall not apply to the use of blank cartridges for a show or the theater, or
for signal purposes in athletic sports or by railroads or trucks, for signal purposes, or by a
recognized military organization. This section shall not apply to any substance or composition
prepared and sold for medicinal or fumigation purposes. This section shall not apply to a person
using or exploding fireworks under a valid permit as provided in subsection 16-24(e).

Enforcement.

(1)

Citations for violation of this section 16-24 shall be directed to the person observed/found to
have violated this section or the owner of real property on which the evidence exists of
violation of this section. Furthermore, where evidence of violation of noise or nuisance
ordinances exists, such citations may also be written.
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(e)

(f)

(8)

Item 9.

(2) The vendors of fireworks shall be monitored during sales periods as to type of consumer
fireworks sold and for compliance with subsection 16-24(f).

Display fireworks. The council may, upon application in writing, grant a permit for the use and
explosion of display fireworks within the city limits by municipalities, fair associations, amusement
parks, and other organizations or groups of individuals when the use and explosion of such display
fireworks will be handled by a competent operator, and proof of liability insurance is shown. (See
also section 9-20.)

Sales. A seller of consumer fireworks must possess a license from the state fire marshal. Any
retailer or community group selling consumer fireworks must prominently display, at the entrance
and exit sites, signs informing customers that the use of consumer fireworks is prohibited within
the corporate limits of the City of Cedar Falls except on the dates and times authorized by this
section.

Violation; Appeal. A person who violates this section commits a simple misdemeanor punishable by
a fine of not less than two hundred fifty dollars.

INTRODUCED: October 17, 2022
PASSED 1% CONSIDERATION: October 17, 2022
PASSED 2" CONSIDERATION:

PASSED 3" CONSIDERATION:

ADOPTED:

Robert M. Green, Mayor

ATTEST:

Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk
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8 DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT

City of Cedar Falls

220 Clay Street

Cedar Falls, lowa 50613

Phone: 319-273-8606

Fax: 319-273-8610

www.cedarfalls.com MEMORANDUM

Administration

TO: Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council
FROM:  Stephanie Houk Sheetz, AICP, Director of Community Development
DATE: October 10, 2022

SUBJECT: Public Hearing for proposed amendments to Section 18-23(5) and Section 26-
4(c) of the Municipal Code of Ordinances

The City Council directed staff to prepare amendments to Section 18-23(5) and Section 26-
4(c) of the Municipal Code of Ordinances. Both sections pertain to a voting threshold by the
City Council should the Planning & Zoning Commission recommend denial of said
amendment.

The City Council set the public hearing for October 17, 2022 at their October 3™ meeting.

Background

Chapter 18 of the Municipal Code of Ordinances is related to Planning. Article Il addresses
the Planning and Zoning Commission. Section 18-23 details their powers and duties. In
Section 18-23(5) it states that a comprehensive plan amendment must have a 2/3 majority
vote by Council in the event the Planning & Zoning Commission recommends denial.

Chapter 26 of the Municipal Code of Ordinances is the Zoning Ordinance. Article | covers
several general terms, with Section 26-4 addressing amendments to Chapter 26. In Section
26-4(c) it states that amendments require a favorable vote of at least 2/3 of the City Council in
the event the Planning & Zoning Commission recommends denial. Zoning amendments
include both text amendments and map amendments of the zoning ordinance. A text
amendment is a change to a regulation, such as a change to building height or setback
requirements. A map amendment is a change to the zoning map and is typically referred to as
a rezoning. An example would be a property owner asking to rezone their property from A-1 to
R-1, to potentially subdivide the property for future homes and public infrastructure. If
approved, the zoning map is amended to reflect the new zoning designation of R-1.

In the Community Development Committee meeting on September 19, 2022, staff noted a
history of local discussion on this topic of the Council’s voting threshold in the event the
Planning & Zoning Commission (P&Z) recommends denial. It was first discussed by P&Z in
late 1998. At that time, P&Z felt the requirements were appropriate and no recommendation
for change advanced to City Council. It was discussed again in 2002-2003. The Planning &
Zoning Commission recommended amending the comprehensive plan super majority to a 3/4
vote to match the requirement on the zoning chapter of a 3/4 majority vote. The City Council
discussed and then passed an ordinance changing both sections to a simple majority vote by
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Council in the event P&Z recommended denial. The Mayor vetoed these ordinances. The City
Council failed to override this veto and then unanimously passed an ordinance amending the
zoning chapter to a 2/3 majority vote. This is the ordinance in place today. Both the zoning
chapter and the planning chapter of our Municipal Code of Ordinances are consistent requiring
a 2/3 majority vote in the event the Planning & Zoning Commission recommends denial.

Following is recent research staff conducted on several lowa communities regarding the voting
threshold for Council when the Planning & Zoning Commission recommends denial of a zoning
amendment.

Type of Zoning
Amendment Supermajority

City (Text or Map) Vote 2/3 3/4
Ames Any No
Cedar Falls Any Yes v
Cedar
Rapids Any No
Des Moines Text No

Map Yes v
Dubuque Any Yes v
Mason City Any No
lowa City Any No Joint meeting required
Waterloo Any Yes | v
Evaluation

In the previous staff report dated September 23, 2002, it was noted that when the zoning
ordinance was adopted in 1970 our local mandatory voting requirements were suspected to
have matched an lowa Code requirement. Council requested additional investigation on this
topic. Our City Attorney reviewed several versions of lowa Code not finding a change on this
item since 1970. Staff submitted a request to the Legislative Services Agency for further
research. Legislative Services researched 60-100 years of code finding no such provision in
previous editions of the lowa Code regarding a City Council voting threshold when the
Planning & Zoning Commission recommends denial.

In 2003, Cedar Falls amended the zoning chapter to reduce the majority vote from 3/4 to 2/3.
In reviewing additional materials from that amendment, the Mayor’s 2003 veto memo
explained that the majority of municipalities surveyed used a super majority requirement for
zoning issues (attached).

Following is an updated listing on points of consideration staff identified related to the current
proposal to amend to a simple majority vote on both comprehensive plan (818-23(5)) and
zoning amendments (826-4(c)).

e City Council’s vote is totally independent of P&Z in every situation (regardless of a
recommendation for approval or denial).

e Change aligns with State Code.

e Change appears to align with some other lowa communities.
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e P&Z's role is devalued from its current status. (Often P&Z methodically reviews
proposals over several meetings that typically include unlimited citizen comment periods
and a thoughtful discussion among Commissioners and citizens.)

e Changing at this time may be tied to a specific issue, not a documented trend over time.

e Comprehensive Plans and Zoning Ordinances are intended to provide stability in the
market due to the predictability their regulation can provide. Sometimes changes can
be contentious and a simple majority Council vote could lend to regulations more easily
flipping back and forth with changes in Council. Another scenario could be on-going
discord on a matter, as a simple majority vote can be vetoed by the Mayor.

A situation that continues to be in our Zoning Ordinance and mandated by lowa Code applies
to a protest petition by nearby residents. Cedar Falls code states in Section 26-4(c): “.... In
case a written protest against a proposed amendment, supplement or change is filed with the
city clerk duly signed by the owners of 20 percent or more of the area of the lots included in
such proposed change, or by the owners of 20 percent or more of the property which is
located within 200 feet of the exterior boundaries of the property for which the amendment,
supplement or change is proposed, such amendment shall not become effective except by
the favorable vote of at least three-fourths of all the members of the city council....”

At the September 19, 2022 Committee meeting, concern was expressed that P&Z may not be
engaged in the referral process or fully considering the referrals. Following is a review of the
referrals made related to the Downtown Character District in 2022 and P&Z’s consideration of
them:

e Eliminate Shared Parking — On January 18, 2022, Council specifically referred
eliminating shared parking requirements in the CD-DT. The Planning & Zoning
Commission discussed the matter at their January 26, 2022 meeting and held a public
hearing on February 9, 2022, recommending against eliminating it. On March 7, 2022,
the City Council vote did not meet the 2/3 super majority to override P&Z’s
recommendation of denial, therefore it did not advance.

e Increase private parking requirements for residential uses — On January 18, 2022,
Council made a general referral to review the residential parking requirement, with
consensus to have P&Z consider 1 parking space per bedroom and at least one space
per unit. P&Z discussed this, recommending a compromise to increase it from .5/BR to
.75/BR but not less than 1 space per unit. Council passed this ordinance change in

April 2022.

e Missing Middle Housing — Council discussed in March 2022, with no further referral on
the topic.

e Accessory Dwelling Units — Council discussed in March 2022, with no further referral on
the topic.

¢ Site Plan Review— On February 7, 2022, Council made a general referral to P&Z to
further consider the appropriate cases for P&Z/Council site plan review vs.
administrative (staff level) site plan review. P&Z discussed this and the initial goals from
the visioning process at a March meeting, directing staff to prepare an amendment for
consideration. On June 6, 2022, after considering five different options, P&Z
recommended to add P&Z/Council review of new buildings in the UG, UG2 and
Storefront frontages. P&Z also asked staff for monthly reports on all other projects to
monitor the types of cases and consider if any future changes may be needed. At the
July 18, 2022 Council meeting, this ordinance failed. A motion was then made and
passed to petition P&Z to add review of any site plan expanding the floor plan or where

71




Item 10.

residential is being added. After initial discussion on August 10, 2022 and a public
hearing on August 24", P&Z recommended against making these additional changes to
the review process. Council postponed setting a public hearing date for the revised
ordinance until after considering whether to amend the voting threshold for Council
when P&Z recommends denial.

e Shared Parking — On February 21, 2022, Council referred to P&Z a discussion on the
criteria of shared parking to restrict shared parking to on-site only. On March 7, 2022,
Council voted to modify this referral by including discussion of the location of allowable
shared parking. June 6, 2022, Council added to that referral relative to shared parking
downtown and to move discussion up on the committee schedule. The Community
Relations & Planning Committee discussed it July 18, 2022, with consensus that shared
parking should be referred to P&Z with consideration including but not limited to the
location and time of day rules for shared parking. On August 1, 2022 it was referred
back to Committee in order to clarify and be more specific about what Council was
requesting P&Z to consider. At the subsequent committee meeting on August 15", a
motion was passed to request that the Planning and Zoning Commission again consider
eliminating requirements for shared parking and to increase the parking requirement for
multi-unit residential to 1 space per bedroom. The Planning & Zoning Commission held
a public hearing on September 28, 2022, recommending against both amendments.

e Vinyl siding — On March 21, 2022, Council referred to P&Z the following for consideration:
1) Add an allowance for vinyl siding on any new SF dwelling, 2) Add an allowance for
vinyl siding on any new residential building with less than 7 units. (duplexes, townhomes,
small apartment buildings). Due to the priority of other referrals and workload, these
items have not been discussed by P&Z yet. Upon completion of the above items, this will
be the next topic for P&Z discussion.

Due to the length of time and complexity of the discussions/referrals, this listing may
inadvertently omit an item or action. Descriptions of the discussion, actions or consensus
utilize minutes from each of these meetings.

Moving Forward

Enclosed are proposed amendments to Section 18-23(5) and Section 26-4(c) of the Municipal
Code of Ordinances. If Council decides to proceed with a change, staff asks for consideration
of several additional changes to Section 18-23(5). The first is to align the public notice period
with those found in the zoning chapter, to be not less than 7 days and not more than 14 days
notice before the hearing. The second is, that upon removal of a Council super-majority, it
does not seem necessary to dictate a super-majority Planning & Zoning Commission vote on a
comprehensive plan amendment. Currently this section states a 2/3 majority vote by P&Z is
required. There is no lowa Code requirement on a voting threshold for the Planning & Zoning
Commission.

The City Attorney has advised that to change the ordinances in question, a simple majority
vote is all that is required.

Attachments:
e Redline version of proposed changes
Draft ordinances amending City Code Section 18-23(5) and Section 26-4(c)
2003 Staff Report on amendments
Planning & Zoning Commission recommendation to City Council (December 19, 2022)
June 11, 2003 Mayor veto memo
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Chapter 18 PLANNING

ARTICLE Il. PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION

Sec. 18-23. Powers and duties.

The city planning and zoning commission shall have and possess the following powers and duties and such
other powers as may be incidental to the successful carrying out of the powers vested in it in this section or such
as may be expressly conferred upon it by law:

(1)

()

(3)

(4)

(5)

The commission shall make or cause to be made such surveys, studies, maps, plans or charts of the
whole or any portion of the city and of any land outside thereof which, in the opinion of the
commission, bears relation to a comprehensive plan, and shall submit such plans to the council with its
studies and recommendations, and it may publish the plans.

The commission shall prepare a comprehensive plan regarding the height, number of stories and size of
buildings and structures, the percentage of ground that may be occupied, the size of yards, courts and
other open spaces, the density of population, and the location and use of buildings, structures and land
for trade, industry, residence or other purposes, and shall prepare preliminary reports and hold public
meetings and hearings and submit final reports thereon and recommendations to the council, and
shall, further, recommend to the council from time to time, as conditions may require, amendments,
supplements, changes or modifications in any comprehensive plan prepared by the commission.

All plans, plats or replats of subdivisions or resubdivisions of land in the city or adjacent thereto, laid
out in lots or plats with the streets, alleys or other portions of the subdivision or resubdivision intended
to be dedicated to the public in the city, and all proposals for the vacation of a street or partial vacation
of a street, alley or public ground, shall first be submitted to the commission, and its recommendations
obtained before approval by the city council.

No plan for any street, park, parkway, boulevard, trafficway, riverfront or other public improvement
affecting the city plan shall be finally approved by the city, or the character or location thereof
determined, unless such proposal shall first have been submitted to the commission and the
commission shall have had 60 days within which to file its recommendations thereon.

For the purpose of making a comprehensive plan for the physical development of the city, the
commission shall make careful and comprehensive studies of the present conditions and future growth
of the city, with due regard to its relation to neighboring territory. The plan shall be made with the
general purpose of guiding and accomplishing a coordinated, adjusted and harmonious development
of the city and its environs which will, in accordance with present and future needs, best promote
health, safety, order, convenience, prosperity and general welfare, as well as efficiency and economy in
the process of development. Before adopting a comprehensive plan or any part of it, or any substantial
amendment thereof, the commission shall hold at least one public hearing thereon, notice of the time
of which shall be given by one publication in a newspaper of general circulation in the city, not less
than ten-seven and not more than 20-14 days before the hearing. The adopting of the plan or part or

amendment thereof shall be by resolution of the commission carried by the affirmative vote of netless
than-twe-thirdsa majority vote of all of the members of the commission. When such comprehensive
plan has been adopted as provided for in this subsection, no substantial amendment or modification
thereof shall be made without such proposed change being first referred to the commission for its
recommendation. Amendments or modifications to the comprehensive plan shall not become effective
except by the favorable vote of a majority of all the members of the city council. may-be-approvedbya
majority-voteof allofthe membersofthe council Passage of anordinanceamendmentorresolution
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(6) The commission may employ such technical assistance as it deems necessary, subject to budgetary
limitations. Such assistance may be in the form of secretarial, consultant or legal service. The
commission should, as a matter of policy, invite such assistants, the zoning administrator and the city
engineer, or their representatives, to regularly attend meetings of the commission and to offer
information or make suggestions regarding items under consideration.

(7)  The city council may annually appropriate a sum of money from the general funds for the payment of
the expense of the commission. The commission shall have full, complete and exclusive authority to
expend for and on behalf of the city all sums of money so appropriated.

(8) The commission, each year, shall make a report to the mayor and city council of its proceedings, with a
full statement of its receipts and disbursements and the progress of its work for the preceding fiscal
year.

(9) The commission shall adopt such rules and regulations governing its organization and procedure as
may be deemed necessary.

(10) The commission shall have all other powers and duties providing for planning and zoning commissions
in lowa Code ch. 414.

(Code 2017, § 21-30)
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Prepared by: Stephanie Sheetz, Director of Community Development, City of Cedar Falls, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, lowa

(319) 273-8600

ORDINANCE NO.

AN ORDINANCE TO REMOVE A 2/3 MAJORITY VOTE BY THE
CITY COUNCIL IN THE EVENT THE PLANNING AND ZONING
COMMISSION RECOMMENDS DENIAL OF A COMPREHENSIVE
PLAN ADOPTION OR SUBSTANTIAL AMENDMENT BY
AMENDING SECTION 18-23, POWERS AND DUTIES, UNDER
ARTICLE II, PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION, ALL WITHIN
CHAPTER 18, PLANNING, OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF
THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA

WHEREAS, the City Council discussed changes to the Planning Chapter of the
Municipal Code of Ordinances at the September 19, 2022 Community Development
Committee meeting;

WHEREAS, a public hearing was held October 17, 2022 by the City Council; and

WHEREAS, the City Council approved an amendment to Section 18-23 of the Code
of Ordinances after public hearing.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY
OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, THAT:

Subsection 5 of Section 18-23 Powers and Duties, within Article II, Planning and Zoning
Commission, of Chapter 18, Planning, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Cedar
Falls, lowa, is hereby deleted and the following substituted in lieu thereof:

(5) For the purpose of making a comprehensive plan for the physical development of
the city, the commission shall make careful and comprehensive studies of the
present conditions and future growth of the city, with due regard to its relation to
neighboring territory. The plan shall be made with the general purpose of guiding
and accomplishing a coordinated, adjusted and harmonious development of the
city and its environs which will, in accordance with present and future needs, best
promote health, safety, order, convenience, prosperity and general welfare, as
well as efficiency and economy in the process of development. Before adopting a
comprehensive plan or any part of it, or any substantial amendment thereof, the
commission shall hold at least one public hearing thereon, notice of the time of
which shall be given by one publication in a newspaper of general circulation in
the city, not less than seven and not more than 14 days before the hearing. The
adopting of the plan or part or amendment thereof shall be by resolution of the
commission carried by the affirmative vote of a majority vote of all of the
members of the commission. When such comprehensive plan has been adopted

75




as provided for in this subsection, no substantial amendment or modification
thereof shall be made without such proposed change being first referred to the
commission for its recommendation. Amendments or modifications to the
comprehensive plan shall not become effective except by the favorable vote of a

majority of all the members of the city council.

INTRODUCED:

PASSED 15T CONSIDERATION:

PASSED 2"° CONSIDERATION:

PASSED 3R° CONSIDERATION:

ADOPTED:

ATTEST:

Item 10.

Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk

Robert M. Green, Mayor
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REQUEST:

PETITIONER:

PROPOSAL:

BACKGROUND:

Item 10.

Request to approve a Zoning Ordinance Amendment,
Section 29-4, relative to mandatory voting requirements for
Zoning Ordinance Amendments.

City of Cedar Falls Department of Developmental Services.

It is proposed to change the voting requirements for the City
Council outlined in Section 29-4 of the Zoning Ordinance in
the event of a recommendation of denial by the Planning
and Zoning (P&Z) Commission relating to a Zoning
Ordinance amendment. Currently the voting requirement to
override a P&Z Commission recommendation of denial is a
3/4 vote (super-majority) by the Council (or six out of seven
Council members). A similar mandatory voting requirement
relating to Schematic Land Use Map Amendments (Section
21-30) requires a 2/3 City Council vote (5 out of 7 Council
members) in the event of a P&Z recommendation of denial
of a Land Use Map Amendment. These two separate voting
requirements (2/3 vs. 3/4) can occur on the same Zoning
Ordinance amendment (i.e. rezoning of property), which
can create a confusing voting scenario.

The Zoning Ordinance outlines procedures for amending
the Zoning Ordinance, including description of public notice
requirements and also description of various mandatory
voting requirement scenarios. Some of these requirements
are mandated by State Code (section 414.5). Minimum -
State Code requirements cannot be altered. However, there
are certain components of the City Zoning Ordinance that
can be amended in order to reduce any potential voting
confusion in the event of certain Zoning Ordinance
amendments.

Zoning Ordinance amendments take two separate forms. In
one case, an Ordinance Amendment can involve a simple
revision to the Zoning Ordinance text, such as changing the
rules for parking regulations or sign regulations or building
setback regulations in a certain Zoning District. These are '
“text changes,” but are also “Zoning Ordinance
Amendments.” Another typical Ordinance Amendment is
when land within the City is rezoned from one zoning
district classification to another (i.e. A-1 to R-1, or MU to
PC-2). These types of amendments are also controlled by
rules outlined in Section 29-4. In both cases the City is
required to publish a public notice in the local newspaper at
least seven days but no more than fourteen days before the

78

15




date of the public hearing by the Commission. There is no
requirement in the Code to notify property owners or
provide any other type of public notice; however, City staff

will typically make efforts to notify nearby property owners

- in the case of a rezoning request and may post a sign near
the property in question as another form of “public notice.”
However, these measures are not required by Code.

The Code explains in detail the voting requirements for the
City Council where the ordinance amendment (i.e.
. .-rezoning) is opposed by the owners of 20% or more of the
property which is located within 200 feet of the boundary of
the property under consideration. This particular provision
(20% of property owners within 200 feet) is found in the
State Code (section 414.5) and cannot be amended. In this
event (objections from 20% of property owners within 200
feet) State Code mandates a 3/4 vote by the City Council in
order to approve said amendment. In this case even if the
Planning and Zoning Commission recommends approval of
the proposed amendment but the 20%/200 ft. objection
~ standard is satisfied the 3/4 vote requirement by the City
Council is still mandated.

This particular Zoning Code requirement (Section 29-4)'
also mandates a 3/4 vote by the City Council (six out of

seven Council members) in the event that the Planning and -

~ Zoning Commission recommends denial of the amendment.
This provision is not mandated by State Code. It is
suspected that when Section 29-4 was adopted in 1970
along with the rest of the Zoning Ordinance the mandatory
voting requirement relative to P&Z recommendation was
established to “match” the State Code requirement relative
to adjacent property owner objections (i.e. 20%/200 ft.). In
other words, the Planning and Zoning Commission
recommendation on zoning matters, particularly rezoning of

property, imposes a heavy burden upon the City Council to .

override.

In addition to this particular voting standard found in the
Zoning Ordinance, there is another section of the City
Code, Section 21, which outlines the duties and
- responsibilities of the Planning and Zoning Commission.
This section also outlines mandatory voting requirements
~ relative to adoption or amendment of the City
~ Comprehensive Plan, or parts thereof. Section 21-30-5
describes  public notice requirements and voting

16
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requirements for amendments to the Comprehensive Plan.
Typically, an amendment to the Comprehensive Plan
involves amendments to the City Schematic Land Use Map
in some rezoning applications. In this case . if the
Commission recommends denial of said proposed
amendment the City Council can override the
recommendation only with a 2/3 vote (five out of seven
Council members).

There are a number of scenarios that can occur in any
given property rezoning request. The majority of such
requests (i.e. rezoning to expand the industrial park area)
are non-controversial to abutting property owners and the
requested change agrees with the City Plan (i.e. Land Use
Map). In those cases the Commission will typically
recommend approval and the City Council will be able to
approve the request with a simple majority of the Council
(four out of seven).

In other cases a rezoning request may agree with the Land
Use Map but nearby property owners may object. This has
occurred with rather routine R-1, Residential rezoning
requests in areas where residential development is logically
expected to occur and is shown accordingly on the City
Land Use Map. In this case the Planning and Zoning
Commission would not need to vote on the Land Use Map
issue since the rezoning agrees with the City Plan and the
Commission may logically agree to recommend approval of
the rezoning. However, if abutting property owners file an
objection, and if that objection meets the 20%/200 foot rule

outlined in the City Code and in State Code, a 3/4 City -

Council vote would be mandated in order to approve the
- rezoning request. '

In other cases the Planning and Zoning Commission might
" not have an issue with the Land Use Map (thus no vote
required) but the rezoning request may violate some other
standard, such as lack of sanitary sewer service, or
perhaps due to unusual public opposition, however,
objections may not satisfy the 20%/200 foot rule. If the
Commission recommends denial the City Council would be
forced into a 3/4 vote scenario.

The most unusual scenario is a very controversial rezoning

issue that involves public opposition, a Land Use Map

Amendment, abutting property owner objections that satisfy

17
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the 20%/200 ft. rule, and the Commission recommends
denial. in this case the City Council would be forced into a

2/3 vote to approve the Land Use Map (five out of seven)

and a 3/4 vote to approve the rezoning (six out of seven). A
majority of Council members may support the rezoning
(perhaps considering the larger benefit to the entire
community). There may be sufficient votes to approve the
Land Use Map amendment (five) but not enough to
overturn the recommendation of denial on the rezoning
request (six votes required). In this scenario if five Council
votes approve the Land Use Map amendment, but six votes
cannot be secured to approve the rezoning, the City could
find itself in a legal quandary relating to justification for
denial of the rezoning. A rezoning decision must be based
upon a rather narrow range of legal standards:
conformance with the City Plan (i.e. City Land Use Map) or
conformance with sanitary sewer policies. If in the above
scenario sewer service availability is not at issue, but rather
a Land Use Map issue is the sole legal foundation for
approval or denial the City Council may find it difficult to
legally justify approval of the Land Use Map amendment
but not the rezoning request.

It is obvious in the latter voting scenario that the 2/3 voting
requirement (five out of seven) is out of balance with the 3/4
voting requirement (six out of seven). It is proposed to
“balance” these two requirements by reducing the current
3/4 vote requirement in the event of P&Z Commission
recommendation of denial on the rezoning issue from 3/4 to
2/3. The 3/4 vote standard will still remain in place for the
State Code mandated scenario where 20% of abutting
. property owners within 200 ft. of the rezoning boundary
submit a written objection. However, if there are no abutting
property owner objections the Planning and Zoning
Commission recommendation of denial will force only a 2/3
vote by the City Council rather than 3/4 vote.

This particular proposal relating to 3/4 voting requirements
was discussed by the Planning and Zoning Commission in
1998. At that time some members of the Commission
raised the issue of “undue influence” the Commission might
carry in rezoning decisions. This issue was debated at
length. The Commission decided to take no action on any
change to the Ordinance voting requirements at that time.
However, the voting “imbalance” issue was not identified
nor discussed at that time since that particular voting
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scenario (2/3 vs. 3/4) had not occurred. It is now obvious

from a recent potential voting scenario that it is possible
that the Council could approve a Land Us Map Amendment

(five votes) but be unable to approve the rezoning request

(six votes), which undermines the legal basis for denial of
the rezoning request. The potential for this rather unusual

- voting scenario illustrates the need to revise the voting
requirements accordingly in order to minimize potential
legal action against the City.

In addition to the legal implications of this voting imbalance,
City staff continues to agree with assertions made by
Commission members in 1998 that the Commission may
indeed wield too much influence in zoning decisions.
Rezoning requests often carry City-wide implications in
terms of economic development impacts. While nearby
residents may oppose certain requests, the proposed
rezoning may indeed be the best path for the City to take.
The best resolution for these types of decisions is to allow
the City Council, to that extent possible, take action that
represents the best interest of the entire City. The current
3/4 voting scenario imposes a severe limitation on the City
Council’s ability to act on behalf of the entire City.

STAFF The Department of Developmental Services recommends

RECOMMENDATION: approval of the Zoning Ordinance amendment relative to
Section 29-4, reducing the voting requirement of the City
Council to 2/3 vote in order to override a recommendation
of denial by the Planning and Zoning Commission. This
vote revision will match the existing 2/3 vote requirement for
amending the City Plan (Sec. 21-30). The current 3/4 vote
requirement pertaining to abutting property owner
objections (20% within 200 feet) will remain intact.
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: PLANNING AND ZONING COMMlSSION‘ . B

' €ITY OF CEDAR FALLS IOWA
' 217WASHINGTON ST © . ..~ .
- CEDAREALLS, IOWA 50613 ‘
T -319-273:8606 .
. FAX 319-273-8610

R

" Horiorable Mayor Jon T Crews and Clty Councﬂ

. Gity of CedarFalls
- :2200tayStreet o
. ;.Cedar Falls Iowa 50613

- RE Zonmg Ordlnance Amendment Mandatory Votlng, Sectlon 29-4

: Dear Mayor and Crty Councrl

The Cedar Falls Plannlng and Zonrng Commlssmn met in, regular sessron on ’

. -Wednesday,. December 18, 2002_at 7:00 p.m. in.the City. Hall: Council Chambers e
220 Clay Street ‘At that -time 'the CommlsSIon considered’ a request from the Cltyi, LT
',;.;Department of Developmental Serwces to. amend. Sectron 29-4-c-of the Zonmg PR
_.Ordinance, ‘which outlines- mandatory votmg requnrements for the City Councrl inthe ..

" . event that a-Zoning -Ordinance amendment ns recommended for demal by the Plannmg- .

- wand Zonmg Commrssnon (r e. 3/4 vote)

-' 'j_,,'.Chalr Montz mtroduced the matter and noted that there is a Commjttee report on the' L

request. Ms. Hays made-a motion to receive and file the' Commrttee report Ms Anglum R |

;;_seconded the motron The motlon was approved unanlmously

| :'Mr Montz atso noted that a pubho heanng is requrred on the proposed ordlnance' '

"g_._,‘amendment He noted proof of publication of public. notice. Mr. Eck made ‘a motion, to;f o
- .. receive and file proof of public notice. Ms: Hays seconded the motion. The motlon was.

* -approved uhanimously. Mr. Montz- proceeded to explam the rules of the publlc hearrng;r_ L

-' _"—and deolared the hearlng open

V'Clty PIanner Martln Ryan prowded background mformatlon He descrlbed the 3/4 voting": oo

. 'scenario imposed upon the. City Council in the event of a recommendatlon ‘of denial by -

the Planmng and Zoning Commission. He noted that many lowa crt|es have this votlng'

reqmrement which was. originally based. upon a State law; which is'no Ionger in effect; -

- Cedar Rapids, for example, has no extraardinary. votlng requirements in. their: ordlnance o
. based ‘upon P&Z recommendatlon of demal Mr. Ryan also noted there is another

13
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EE sectlon of the Clty Code Sectron 21-30 5 ‘which specrt" es.a 2/3 votlng requrrement
i relatrve to amendments to the Comprehensrve Plan (i.e. City Schematic Land Use.

:‘_Map) ‘In that case' if .the Commission recommends denial of a land use map ;"
“-amendment the Council is" requrred to have a 2/3 vote to -overturn the negatlve a

“recommendatron ‘Mr. Ryan noted that the 2/3 - 3/4 voting requrrements can occur on

the same. rezoning issue: (i.e. recent Wal-Mart rezoning) which can _create a votrng

“imbalance” on the City. Council. He recommended that these two votlng standards be

: .gbalanced with a 2/3 vote in each case.

»No persons were present to speak erther in. favor or in opposrtron to the proposal |

- f;Mr Montz declared the pubhc hearing. closed:

o Commlssron members had a- number df comments on the proposal It was generally.;'_'- .

. ‘agreed that the two voting standards should. be-balanced. However;’ Mr. Kressig was. -
- concerned that a 2/3 voting standard would minimize the impact that the Commission .- -

* recommendation - has on the City - Councrl Ms.: Anglum stated ‘that the Commission

I spemalrzes in zoning and planning i$sues and is in a’good posrtlon to make informed - -
- decisions. that reflect the desires of the community. She felt that.a 2/3 voting standard -

-~ 'may not fully reflect the Commission’s efforts in this regard ‘Ms. Hays agreed, noting the

time and energy. put into preparation of the Comprehensive Plan. Mr. Eck voiced his
support.for retaining the 3/4 vote in.the Zoning' Ordinance and mcreasmg the 2/3 vote -~

~ . on land use map issues-to 3/4: Mr. Wieland notéd that the Commission is not'a polrtrcal -

body but is a research and recommendmg body The Commlssron should be given . -

broad authorrty in zoning matters

_ . FoIIowrng all dlscussron Mr Eck made a motron to retam the current 3/4 voting standard. ,
- in Sectlon 29-4 and -to " recommend changmg the  2/3 . votrng requrrement rn', .

- Section 21 -30-5 from 2/3 to 3/4. Mr. Kressig seconded the motion. The motion was -
-approved unanimously with 7 ayes (Andersen Anglum Darrah Eck, Hays Kressrg, '

»_ Wleland) 0. n: 's o
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CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA
220 CLAY STREET

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613
319-268-5119

FAX 319-268-5126

CEDA R OFFICE OF THE MAYOR

-

Tor#

MEMORANDUM

TO: City Council

FROM: Mayor Jon Crews L'/

DATE: June 11, 2003

RE: Passage of recent ordinances at June 9 City Council meeting

This communication is an official notice to City Council that, as Mayor of Cedar Falls, I am
hereby issuing a written veto of Ordinance No. 2436, passed by the City Council on a simple
majority vote on June 9, 2003,

I believe that, for the purpose of balance of governmental authority, the system we have had in
place in Cedar Falls for the last 33 years has worked well for the benefit of all residents. The
Planning & Zoning Commission spends a great deal of time reviewing and analyzing planning
and zoning issues. A negative vote by that Commission, I believe, should require a slightly
higher margin than a simple majority.

I am recommending that the City Council adopt a change to the Zoning Ordinance that would
reduce the requirement from three-fourths to two-thirds to match the current Schematic Land
Use requirement of two-thirds. That would require a vote of three council members to stop the
overturning of a negative recommendation from Planning & Zoning Commission on both
Schematic Land Use issues and on the Zoning issues. If the ordinances are passed and adopted
as a simple majority, whoever is in the Mayor’s position still could veto any City Council over-
ride of planning and zoning negative votes on zoning or schematic land use and require a two-
thirds vote of the Council. This provision of State law underscores the need for a consistent two-
thirds vote.

On the Zoning issue, the City Attorney has recommended that it would take a three-fourths vote
of the City Council to approve a simple majority ordinance. The majority of the Council (by
simple majority) has elected to act contrary to that advice. I believe we should follow the City

"QUR CITIZENS ARE OUR BUSINESS”
e ——————————————————————— =
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Attorney’s advice that is supported by the City Clerk, the City Planner, and the Department
Directors who oversee those divisions. They all feel that the safest approach to avoid future
litigation on the legality of the ordinance is to approve the ordinance with a three-fourths vote -
instead of a simple majority vote.

It is clear that our current system has worked well. The maj orlty of municipalities surveyed use a
super majority requirement for zoning issues. The State requires a three-fourths vote if enough

nearby residents object. Therefore, I think it is consistent to hold a higher standard than a simple
majority for overturning recommendations by the Cedar Falls Planmng and Zoning Commission.

Given these reasons for this veto, I hope the councit and citizens will support this decision.

Item 10.
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8 DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT

City of Cedar Falls

220 Clay Street

Cedar Falls, lowa 50613

Phone: 319-273-8606

Fax: 319-273-8610

www.cedarfalls.com MEMORANDUM

Administration

TO: Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council
FROM:  Stephanie Houk Sheetz, AICP, Director of Community Development
DATE: October 10, 2022

SUBJECT: Public Hearing for proposed amendments to Section 18-23(5) and Section 26-
4(c) of the Municipal Code of Ordinances

The City Council directed staff to prepare amendments to Section 18-23(5) and Section 26-
4(c) of the Municipal Code of Ordinances. Both sections pertain to a voting threshold by the
City Council should the Planning & Zoning Commission recommend denial of said
amendment.

The City Council set the public hearing for October 17, 2022 at their October 3™ meeting.

Background

Chapter 18 of the Municipal Code of Ordinances is related to Planning. Article Il addresses
the Planning and Zoning Commission. Section 18-23 details their powers and duties. In
Section 18-23(5) it states that a comprehensive plan amendment must have a 2/3 majority
vote by Council in the event the Planning & Zoning Commission recommends denial.

Chapter 26 of the Municipal Code of Ordinances is the Zoning Ordinance. Article | covers
several general terms, with Section 26-4 addressing amendments to Chapter 26. In Section
26-4(c) it states that amendments require a favorable vote of at least 2/3 of the City Council in
the event the Planning & Zoning Commission recommends denial. Zoning amendments
include both text amendments and map amendments of the zoning ordinance. A text
amendment is a change to a regulation, such as a change to building height or setback
requirements. A map amendment is a change to the zoning map and is typically referred to as
a rezoning. An example would be a property owner asking to rezone their property from A-1 to
R-1, to potentially subdivide the property for future homes and public infrastructure. If
approved, the zoning map is amended to reflect the new zoning designation of R-1.

In the Community Development Committee meeting on September 19, 2022, staff noted a
history of local discussion on this topic of the Council’s voting threshold in the event the
Planning & Zoning Commission (P&Z) recommends denial. It was first discussed by P&Z in
late 1998. At that time, P&Z felt the requirements were appropriate and no recommendation
for change advanced to City Council. It was discussed again in 2002-2003. The Planning &
Zoning Commission recommended amending the comprehensive plan super majority to a 3/4
vote to match the requirement on the zoning chapter of a 3/4 majority vote. The City Council
discussed and then passed an ordinance changing both sections to a simple majority vote by
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Council in the event P&Z recommended denial. The Mayor vetoed these ordinances. The City
Council failed to override this veto and then unanimously passed an ordinance amending the
zoning chapter to a 2/3 majority vote. This is the ordinance in place today. Both the zoning
chapter and the planning chapter of our Municipal Code of Ordinances are consistent requiring
a 2/3 majority vote in the event the Planning & Zoning Commission recommends denial.

Following is recent research staff conducted on several lowa communities regarding the voting
threshold for Council when the Planning & Zoning Commission recommends denial of a zoning
amendment.

Type of Zoning
Amendment Supermajority

City (Text or Map) Vote 2/3 3/4
Ames Any No
Cedar Falls Any Yes v
Cedar
Rapids Any No
Des Moines Text No

Map Yes v
Dubuque Any Yes v
Mason City Any No
lowa City Any No Joint meeting required
Waterloo Any Yes | v
Evaluation

In the previous staff report dated September 23, 2002, it was noted that when the zoning
ordinance was adopted in 1970 our local mandatory voting requirements were suspected to
have matched an lowa Code requirement. Council requested additional investigation on this
topic. Our City Attorney reviewed several versions of lowa Code not finding a change on this
item since 1970. Staff submitted a request to the Legislative Services Agency for further
research. Legislative Services researched 60-100 years of code finding no such provision in
previous editions of the lowa Code regarding a City Council voting threshold when the
Planning & Zoning Commission recommends denial.

In 2003, Cedar Falls amended the zoning chapter to reduce the majority vote from 3/4 to 2/3.
In reviewing additional materials from that amendment, the Mayor’s 2003 veto memo
explained that the majority of municipalities surveyed used a super majority requirement for
zoning issues (attached).

Following is an updated listing on points of consideration staff identified related to the current
proposal to amend to a simple majority vote on both comprehensive plan (818-23(5)) and
zoning amendments (826-4(c)).

e City Council’s vote is totally independent of P&Z in every situation (regardless of a
recommendation for approval or denial).

e Change aligns with State Code.

e Change appears to align with some other lowa communities.
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e P&Z's role is devalued from its current status. (Often P&Z methodically reviews
proposals over several meetings that typically include unlimited citizen comment periods
and a thoughtful discussion among Commissioners and citizens.)

e Changing at this time may be tied to a specific issue, not a documented trend over time.

e Comprehensive Plans and Zoning Ordinances are intended to provide stability in the
market due to the predictability their regulation can provide. Sometimes changes can
be contentious and a simple majority Council vote could lend to regulations more easily
flipping back and forth with changes in Council. Another scenario could be on-going
discord on a matter, as a simple majority vote can be vetoed by the Mayor.

A situation that continues to be in our Zoning Ordinance and mandated by lowa Code applies
to a protest petition by nearby residents. Cedar Falls code states in Section 26-4(c): “.... In
case a written protest against a proposed amendment, supplement or change is filed with the
city clerk duly signed by the owners of 20 percent or more of the area of the lots included in
such proposed change, or by the owners of 20 percent or more of the property which is
located within 200 feet of the exterior boundaries of the property for which the amendment,
supplement or change is proposed, such amendment shall not become effective except by
the favorable vote of at least three-fourths of all the members of the city council....”

At the September 19, 2022 Committee meeting, concern was expressed that P&Z may not be
engaged in the referral process or fully considering the referrals. Following is a review of the
referrals made related to the Downtown Character District in 2022 and P&Z’s consideration of
them:

e Eliminate Shared Parking — On January 18, 2022, Council specifically referred
eliminating shared parking requirements in the CD-DT. The Planning & Zoning
Commission discussed the matter at their January 26, 2022 meeting and held a public
hearing on February 9, 2022, recommending against eliminating it. On March 7, 2022,
the City Council vote did not meet the 2/3 super majority to override P&Z’s
recommendation of denial, therefore it did not advance.

e Increase private parking requirements for residential uses — On January 18, 2022,
Council made a general referral to review the residential parking requirement, with
consensus to have P&Z consider 1 parking space per bedroom and at least one space
per unit. P&Z discussed this, recommending a compromise to increase it from .5/BR to
.75/BR but not less than 1 space per unit. Council passed this ordinance change in

April 2022.

e Missing Middle Housing — Council discussed in March 2022, with no further referral on
the topic.

e Accessory Dwelling Units — Council discussed in March 2022, with no further referral on
the topic.

¢ Site Plan Review— On February 7, 2022, Council made a general referral to P&Z to
further consider the appropriate cases for P&Z/Council site plan review vs.
administrative (staff level) site plan review. P&Z discussed this and the initial goals from
the visioning process at a March meeting, directing staff to prepare an amendment for
consideration. On June 6, 2022, after considering five different options, P&Z
recommended to add P&Z/Council review of new buildings in the UG, UG2 and
Storefront frontages. P&Z also asked staff for monthly reports on all other projects to
monitor the types of cases and consider if any future changes may be needed. At the
July 18, 2022 Council meeting, this ordinance failed. A motion was then made and
passed to petition P&Z to add review of any site plan expanding the floor plan or where
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residential is being added. After initial discussion on August 10, 2022 and a public
hearing on August 24", P&Z recommended against making these additional changes to
the review process. Council postponed setting a public hearing date for the revised
ordinance until after considering whether to amend the voting threshold for Council
when P&Z recommends denial.

e Shared Parking — On February 21, 2022, Council referred to P&Z a discussion on the
criteria of shared parking to restrict shared parking to on-site only. On March 7, 2022,
Council voted to modify this referral by including discussion of the location of allowable
shared parking. June 6, 2022, Council added to that referral relative to shared parking
downtown and to move discussion up on the committee schedule. The Community
Relations & Planning Committee discussed it July 18, 2022, with consensus that shared
parking should be referred to P&Z with consideration including but not limited to the
location and time of day rules for shared parking. On August 1, 2022 it was referred
back to Committee in order to clarify and be more specific about what Council was
requesting P&Z to consider. At the subsequent committee meeting on August 15", a
motion was passed to request that the Planning and Zoning Commission again consider
eliminating requirements for shared parking and to increase the parking requirement for
multi-unit residential to 1 space per bedroom. The Planning & Zoning Commission held
a public hearing on September 28, 2022, recommending against both amendments.

e Vinyl siding — On March 21, 2022, Council referred to P&Z the following for consideration:
1) Add an allowance for vinyl siding on any new SF dwelling, 2) Add an allowance for
vinyl siding on any new residential building with less than 7 units. (duplexes, townhomes,
small apartment buildings). Due to the priority of other referrals and workload, these
items have not been discussed by P&Z yet. Upon completion of the above items, this will
be the next topic for P&Z discussion.

Due to the length of time and complexity of the discussions/referrals, this listing may
inadvertently omit an item or action. Descriptions of the discussion, actions or consensus
utilize minutes from each of these meetings.

Moving Forward

Enclosed are proposed amendments to Section 18-23(5) and Section 26-4(c) of the Municipal
Code of Ordinances. If Council decides to proceed with a change, staff asks for consideration
of several additional changes to Section 18-23(5). The first is to align the public notice period
with those found in the zoning chapter, to be not less than 7 days and not more than 14 days
notice before the hearing. The second is, that upon removal of a Council super-majority, it
does not seem necessary to dictate a super-majority Planning & Zoning Commission vote on a
comprehensive plan amendment. Currently this section states a 2/3 majority vote by P&Z is
required. There is no lowa Code requirement on a voting threshold for the Planning & Zoning
Commission.

The City Attorney has advised that to change the ordinances in question, a simple majority
vote is all that is required.

Attachments:
e Redline version of proposed changes
Draft ordinances amending City Code Section 18-23(5) and Section 26-4(c)
2003 Staff Report on amendments
Planning & Zoning Commission recommendation to City Council (December 19, 2022)
June 11, 2003 Mayor veto memo
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Chapter 26 - ZONING

ARTICLE I. - IN GENERAL

Sec. 26-4. Amendments to chapter.

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

The city council may, from time to time, on its own action or on petition, after public notice and hearings as
provided by law, and after reports by the city planning and zoning commission, amend, supplement or
change the boundaries or regulations established in this chapter or subsequently established. Such
amendment shall not become effective except by the favorable vote of a majority of all the members of the
city council.

Prior to and in addition to the requirements of subsection (a) of this section, whenever any person desires
that any amendment or change be made in this chapter as to any property in the city, there shall be
presented to the city planning and zoning commission a petition requesting such change or amendment
signed by the owners of at least 50 percent of the area of all the real estate included within the boundaries
of the tract as described in the petition. The petition shall contain a legal description of the real estate for
which rezoning is requested, the existing zoning classification and the requested zoning classification. The
petition shall also have attached to it a plat which identifies the real estate for which rezoning is requested
and which also shows all public streets and highways within a distance of 300 feet; the platted addition, if
any, or the government section number and quarters in which the real estate is located; the existing zoning
classification; and the requested zoning classification. Such plats shall be of a scale of not less than 300 feet
to one inch. Within 30 days after the filing of such petition, the city planning and zoning commission, acting
as a commission or acting through its chairperson, vice-chairperson or other authorized agent, shall fix a
time, date and place of hearing on the petition, which date shall be no more than 60 days after the filing of
such petition. The petitioner for such change or amendment shall thereafter cause a notice of hearing to be
published once in a newspaper of general circulation published within the city, at least seven but not more
than 14 days before the date fixed for such hearing. Such notice shall contain the time, date and place of the
hearing, the existing zoning classification, the requested zoning classification and a reproduction of the plat
attached to the petition, and shall be signed by the petitioners. The city planning and zoning commission
may, upon the unanimous approval of the members present at a meeting, act upon a petition for rezoning or
initiate a zoning change or amendment without the necessity of such a plat, notice or hearing.

vote-ofatleasttwo-thirds-efall-the membersof thecitycounceil-In case a written protest against a proposed
amendment, supplement or change is filed with the city clerk duly signed by the owners of 20 percent or
more of the area of the lots included in such proposed change, or by the owners of 20 percent or more of the
property which is located within 200 feet of the exterior boundaries of the property for which the
amendment, supplement or change is proposed, such amendment shall not become effective except by the
favorable vote of at least three-fourths of all the members of the city council. Whenever any petition for an
amendment, supplement or change of the zoning or regulations contained in this chapter or subsequently
established shall have been denied by the city council, then no new petition covering the same property or
the same property and additional property shall be filed with or considered by the city council until six
months shall have elapsed from the date of the filing of the first petition.

Unless any lot, tract or parcel of land hereafter zoned to a less restrictive classification than as provided in
this chapter has been used or developed for such less restrictive classification within two years from such
rezoning, or unless there exists an unexpired building permit for the development thereof at the end of such
two years, the city planning and zoning commission may, prior to the bona fide commencement of the use or
development of the land in its less restrictive classification, after seven days' notice, in writing, to the then
record owner of the land providing a reasonable opportunity to be heard, initiate and recommend to the city
council that the land be rezoned to its zoning classification as established at the date of the passage of the
ordinance from which this chapter is derived.

Item 11.
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(e) Before any action has been taken as provided in this section, the party proposing or recommending a change
in district regulations or district boundaries shall deposit with the city clerk such sum as established by the
council from time to time to cover the costs of this procedure. The fee will be nonrefundable.

(Ord. No. 2922, § 1(29-4), 5-7-2018)
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Prepared by: Stephanie Sheetz, Director of Community Development, City of Cedar Falls, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, lowa
(319) 273-8600

ORDINANCE NO.

AN ORDINANCE TO REMOVE A 2/3 MAJORITY VOTE BY THE
CITY COUNCIL IN THE EVENT THE PLANNING AND ZONING
COMMISSION RECOMMENDS DENIAL OF AN AMENDMENT,
SUPPLEMENT OR CHANGE BY AMENDING SECTION 26-4,
AMENDMENTS TO CHAPTER, UNDER ARTICLE I, IN GENERAL;
ALL WITHIN CHAPTER 26, ZONING, OF THE CODE OF
ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA

WHEREAS, the City Council discussed changes to the Zoning Chapter of the
Municipal Code of Ordinances at the September 19, 2022 Community Development
Committee meeting; and

WHEREAS, a public hearing was held October 17, 2022 by the City Council; and

WHEREAS, the City Council approved an amendment to Section 26-4 of the Code
of Ordinances after public hearing.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY
OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, THAT:

Subsection (c) of Section 26-4 Amendments to Chapter within Atrticle I, In General, of
Chapter 26, Zoning, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, lowa, is
hereby deleted and the following substituted in lieu thereof:

(c) In case a written protest against a proposed amendment, supplement or change
is filed with the city clerk duly signed by the owners of 20 percent or more of the
area of the lots included in such proposed change, or by the owners of 20
percent or more of the property which is located within 200 feet of the exterior
boundaries of the property for which the amendment, supplement or change is
proposed, such amendment shall not become effective except by the favorable
vote of at least three-fourths of all the members of the city council. Whenever any
petition for an amendment, supplement or change of the zoning or regulations
contained in this chapter or subsequently established shall have been denied by
the city council, then no new petition covering the same property or the same
property and additional property shall be filed with or considered by the city
council until six months shall have elapsed from the date of the filing of the first
petition.

INTRODUCED:
PASSED 15T CONSIDERATION:
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PASSED 2"° CONSIDERATION:

PASSED 3R° CONSIDERATION:

ADOPTED:

ATTEST:

Item 11.

Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk

Robert M. Green, Mayor
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- Zoning Ordinance Amendment, Section 29-4, Voting
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REQUEST:

PETITIONER:

PROPOSAL:

BACKGROUND:

Item 11.

Request to approve a Zoning Ordinance Amendment,
Section 29-4, relative to mandatory voting requirements for
Zoning Ordinance Amendments.

City of Cedar Falls Department of Developmental Services.

It is proposed to change the voting requirements for the City
Council outlined in Section 29-4 of the Zoning Ordinance in
the event of a recommendation of denial by the Planning
and Zoning (P&Z) Commission relating to a Zoning
Ordinance amendment. Currently the voting requirement to
override a P&Z Commission recommendation of denial is a
3/4 vote (super-majority) by the Council (or six out of seven
Council members). A similar mandatory voting requirement
relating to Schematic Land Use Map Amendments (Section
21-30) requires a 2/3 City Council vote (5 out of 7 Council
members) in the event of a P&Z recommendation of denial
of a Land Use Map Amendment. These two separate voting
requirements (2/3 vs. 3/4) can occur on the same Zoning
Ordinance amendment (i.e. rezoning of property), which
can create a confusing voting scenario.

The Zoning Ordinance outlines procedures for amending
the Zoning Ordinance, including description of public notice
requirements and also description of various mandatory
voting requirement scenarios. Some of these requirements
are mandated by State Code (section 414.5). Minimum -
State Code requirements cannot be altered. However, there
are certain components of the City Zoning Ordinance that
can be amended in order to reduce any potential voting
confusion in the event of certain Zoning Ordinance
amendments.

Zoning Ordinance amendments take two separate forms. In
one case, an Ordinance Amendment can involve a simple
revision to the Zoning Ordinance text, such as changing the
rules for parking regulations or sign regulations or building
setback regulations in a certain Zoning District. These are '
“text changes,” but are also “Zoning Ordinance
Amendments.” Another typical Ordinance Amendment is
when land within the City is rezoned from one zoning
district classification to another (i.e. A-1 to R-1, or MU to
PC-2). These types of amendments are also controlled by
rules outlined in Section 29-4. In both cases the City is
required to publish a public notice in the local newspaper at
least seven days but no more than fourteen days before the
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date of the public hearing by the Commission. There is no
requirement in the Code to notify property owners or
provide any other type of public notice; however, City staff

will typically make efforts to notify nearby property owners

- in the case of a rezoning request and may post a sign near
the property in question as another form of “public notice.”
However, these measures are not required by Code.

The Code explains in detail the voting requirements for the
City Council where the ordinance amendment (i.e.
. .-rezoning) is opposed by the owners of 20% or more of the
property which is located within 200 feet of the boundary of
the property under consideration. This particular provision
(20% of property owners within 200 feet) is found in the
State Code (section 414.5) and cannot be amended. In this
event (objections from 20% of property owners within 200
feet) State Code mandates a 3/4 vote by the City Council in
order to approve said amendment. In this case even if the
Planning and Zoning Commission recommends approval of
the proposed amendment but the 20%/200 ft. objection
~ standard is satisfied the 3/4 vote requirement by the City
Council is still mandated.

This particular Zoning Code requirement (Section 29-4)'
also mandates a 3/4 vote by the City Council (six out of

seven Council members) in the event that the Planning and -

~ Zoning Commission recommends denial of the amendment.
This provision is not mandated by State Code. It is
suspected that when Section 29-4 was adopted in 1970
along with the rest of the Zoning Ordinance the mandatory
voting requirement relative to P&Z recommendation was
established to “match” the State Code requirement relative
to adjacent property owner objections (i.e. 20%/200 ft.). In
other words, the Planning and Zoning Commission
recommendation on zoning matters, particularly rezoning of

property, imposes a heavy burden upon the City Council to .

override.

In addition to this particular voting standard found in the
Zoning Ordinance, there is another section of the City
Code, Section 21, which outlines the duties and
- responsibilities of the Planning and Zoning Commission.
This section also outlines mandatory voting requirements
~ relative to adoption or amendment of the City
~ Comprehensive Plan, or parts thereof. Section 21-30-5
describes  public notice requirements and voting
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requirements for amendments to the Comprehensive Plan.
Typically, an amendment to the Comprehensive Plan
involves amendments to the City Schematic Land Use Map
in some rezoning applications. In this case . if the
Commission recommends denial of said proposed
amendment the City Council can override the
recommendation only with a 2/3 vote (five out of seven
Council members).

There are a number of scenarios that can occur in any
given property rezoning request. The majority of such
requests (i.e. rezoning to expand the industrial park area)
are non-controversial to abutting property owners and the
requested change agrees with the City Plan (i.e. Land Use
Map). In those cases the Commission will typically
recommend approval and the City Council will be able to
approve the request with a simple majority of the Council
(four out of seven).

In other cases a rezoning request may agree with the Land
Use Map but nearby property owners may object. This has
occurred with rather routine R-1, Residential rezoning
requests in areas where residential development is logically
expected to occur and is shown accordingly on the City
Land Use Map. In this case the Planning and Zoning
Commission would not need to vote on the Land Use Map
issue since the rezoning agrees with the City Plan and the
Commission may logically agree to recommend approval of
the rezoning. However, if abutting property owners file an
objection, and if that objection meets the 20%/200 foot rule

outlined in the City Code and in State Code, a 3/4 City -

Council vote would be mandated in order to approve the
- rezoning request. '

In other cases the Planning and Zoning Commission might
" not have an issue with the Land Use Map (thus no vote
required) but the rezoning request may violate some other
standard, such as lack of sanitary sewer service, or
perhaps due to unusual public opposition, however,
objections may not satisfy the 20%/200 foot rule. If the
Commission recommends denial the City Council would be
forced into a 3/4 vote scenario.

The most unusual scenario is a very controversial rezoning

issue that involves public opposition, a Land Use Map

Amendment, abutting property owner objections that satisfy
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the 20%/200 ft. rule, and the Commission recommends
denial. in this case the City Council would be forced into a

2/3 vote to approve the Land Use Map (five out of seven)

and a 3/4 vote to approve the rezoning (six out of seven). A
majority of Council members may support the rezoning
(perhaps considering the larger benefit to the entire
community). There may be sufficient votes to approve the
Land Use Map amendment (five) but not enough to
overturn the recommendation of denial on the rezoning
request (six votes required). In this scenario if five Council
votes approve the Land Use Map amendment, but six votes
cannot be secured to approve the rezoning, the City could
find itself in a legal quandary relating to justification for
denial of the rezoning. A rezoning decision must be based
upon a rather narrow range of legal standards:
conformance with the City Plan (i.e. City Land Use Map) or
conformance with sanitary sewer policies. If in the above
scenario sewer service availability is not at issue, but rather
a Land Use Map issue is the sole legal foundation for
approval or denial the City Council may find it difficult to
legally justify approval of the Land Use Map amendment
but not the rezoning request.

It is obvious in the latter voting scenario that the 2/3 voting
requirement (five out of seven) is out of balance with the 3/4
voting requirement (six out of seven). It is proposed to
“balance” these two requirements by reducing the current
3/4 vote requirement in the event of P&Z Commission
recommendation of denial on the rezoning issue from 3/4 to
2/3. The 3/4 vote standard will still remain in place for the
State Code mandated scenario where 20% of abutting
. property owners within 200 ft. of the rezoning boundary
submit a written objection. However, if there are no abutting
property owner objections the Planning and Zoning
Commission recommendation of denial will force only a 2/3
vote by the City Council rather than 3/4 vote.

This particular proposal relating to 3/4 voting requirements
was discussed by the Planning and Zoning Commission in
1998. At that time some members of the Commission
raised the issue of “undue influence” the Commission might
carry in rezoning decisions. This issue was debated at
length. The Commission decided to take no action on any
change to the Ordinance voting requirements at that time.
However, the voting “imbalance” issue was not identified
nor discussed at that time since that particular voting
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scenario (2/3 vs. 3/4) had not occurred. It is now obvious

from a recent potential voting scenario that it is possible
that the Council could approve a Land Us Map Amendment

(five votes) but be unable to approve the rezoning request

(six votes), which undermines the legal basis for denial of
the rezoning request. The potential for this rather unusual

- voting scenario illustrates the need to revise the voting
requirements accordingly in order to minimize potential
legal action against the City.

In addition to the legal implications of this voting imbalance,
City staff continues to agree with assertions made by
Commission members in 1998 that the Commission may
indeed wield too much influence in zoning decisions.
Rezoning requests often carry City-wide implications in
terms of economic development impacts. While nearby
residents may oppose certain requests, the proposed
rezoning may indeed be the best path for the City to take.
The best resolution for these types of decisions is to allow
the City Council, to that extent possible, take action that
represents the best interest of the entire City. The current
3/4 voting scenario imposes a severe limitation on the City
Council’s ability to act on behalf of the entire City.

STAFF The Department of Developmental Services recommends

RECOMMENDATION: approval of the Zoning Ordinance amendment relative to
Section 29-4, reducing the voting requirement of the City
Council to 2/3 vote in order to override a recommendation
of denial by the Planning and Zoning Commission. This
vote revision will match the existing 2/3 vote requirement for
amending the City Plan (Sec. 21-30). The current 3/4 vote
requirement pertaining to abutting property owner
objections (20% within 200 feet) will remain intact.
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: PLANNING AND ZONING COMMlSSION‘ . B

' €ITY OF CEDAR FALLS IOWA
' 217WASHINGTON ST © . ..~ .
- CEDAREALLS, IOWA 50613 ‘
T -319-273:8606 .
. FAX 319-273-8610

R

" Horiorable Mayor Jon T Crews and Clty Councﬂ

. Gity of CedarFalls
- :2200tayStreet o
. ;.Cedar Falls Iowa 50613

- RE Zonmg Ordlnance Amendment Mandatory Votlng, Sectlon 29-4

: Dear Mayor and Crty Councrl

The Cedar Falls Plannlng and Zonrng Commlssmn met in, regular sessron on ’

. -Wednesday,. December 18, 2002_at 7:00 p.m. in.the City. Hall: Council Chambers e
220 Clay Street ‘At that -time 'the CommlsSIon considered’ a request from the Cltyi, LT
',;.;Department of Developmental Serwces to. amend. Sectron 29-4-c-of the Zonmg PR
_.Ordinance, ‘which outlines- mandatory votmg requnrements for the City Councrl inthe ..

" . event that a-Zoning -Ordinance amendment ns recommended for demal by the Plannmg- .

- wand Zonmg Commrssnon (r e. 3/4 vote)

-' 'j_,,'.Chalr Montz mtroduced the matter and noted that there is a Commjttee report on the' L

request. Ms. Hays made-a motion to receive and file the' Commrttee report Ms Anglum R |

;;_seconded the motron The motlon was approved unanlmously

| :'Mr Montz atso noted that a pubho heanng is requrred on the proposed ordlnance' '

"g_._,‘amendment He noted proof of publication of public. notice. Mr. Eck made ‘a motion, to;f o
- .. receive and file proof of public notice. Ms: Hays seconded the motion. The motlon was.

* -approved uhanimously. Mr. Montz- proceeded to explam the rules of the publlc hearrng;r_ L

-' _"—and deolared the hearlng open

V'Clty PIanner Martln Ryan prowded background mformatlon He descrlbed the 3/4 voting": oo

. 'scenario imposed upon the. City Council in the event of a recommendatlon ‘of denial by -

the Planmng and Zoning Commission. He noted that many lowa crt|es have this votlng'

reqmrement which was. originally based. upon a State law; which is'no Ionger in effect; -

- Cedar Rapids, for example, has no extraardinary. votlng requirements in. their: ordlnance o
. based ‘upon P&Z recommendatlon of demal Mr. Ryan also noted there is another
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EE sectlon of the Clty Code Sectron 21-30 5 ‘which specrt" es.a 2/3 votlng requrrement
i relatrve to amendments to the Comprehensrve Plan (i.e. City Schematic Land Use.

:‘_Map) ‘In that case' if .the Commission recommends denial of a land use map ;"
“-amendment the Council is" requrred to have a 2/3 vote to -overturn the negatlve a

“recommendatron ‘Mr. Ryan noted that the 2/3 - 3/4 voting requrrements can occur on

the same. rezoning issue: (i.e. recent Wal-Mart rezoning) which can _create a votrng

“imbalance” on the City. Council. He recommended that these two votlng standards be

: .gbalanced with a 2/3 vote in each case.

»No persons were present to speak erther in. favor or in opposrtron to the proposal |

- f;Mr Montz declared the pubhc hearing. closed:

o Commlssron members had a- number df comments on the proposal It was generally.;'_'- .

. ‘agreed that the two voting standards should. be-balanced. However;’ Mr. Kressig was. -
- concerned that a 2/3 voting standard would minimize the impact that the Commission .- -

* recommendation - has on the City - Councrl Ms.: Anglum stated ‘that the Commission

I spemalrzes in zoning and planning i$sues and is in a’good posrtlon to make informed - -
- decisions. that reflect the desires of the community. She felt that.a 2/3 voting standard -

-~ 'may not fully reflect the Commission’s efforts in this regard ‘Ms. Hays agreed, noting the

time and energy. put into preparation of the Comprehensive Plan. Mr. Eck voiced his
support.for retaining the 3/4 vote in.the Zoning' Ordinance and mcreasmg the 2/3 vote -~

~ . on land use map issues-to 3/4: Mr. Wieland notéd that the Commission is not'a polrtrcal -

body but is a research and recommendmg body The Commlssron should be given . -

broad authorrty in zoning matters

_ . FoIIowrng all dlscussron Mr Eck made a motron to retam the current 3/4 voting standard. ,
- in Sectlon 29-4 and -to " recommend changmg the  2/3 . votrng requrrement rn', .

- Section 21 -30-5 from 2/3 to 3/4. Mr. Kressig seconded the motion. The motion was -
-approved unanimously with 7 ayes (Andersen Anglum Darrah Eck, Hays Kressrg, '

»_ Wleland) 0. n: 's o
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CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA
220 CLAY STREET

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613
319-268-5119

FAX 319-268-5126

CEDA R OFFICE OF THE MAYOR

-

Tor#

MEMORANDUM

TO: City Council

FROM: Mayor Jon Crews L'/

DATE: June 11, 2003

RE: Passage of recent ordinances at June 9 City Council meeting

This communication is an official notice to City Council that, as Mayor of Cedar Falls, I am
hereby issuing a written veto of Ordinance No. 2436, passed by the City Council on a simple
majority vote on June 9, 2003,

I believe that, for the purpose of balance of governmental authority, the system we have had in
place in Cedar Falls for the last 33 years has worked well for the benefit of all residents. The
Planning & Zoning Commission spends a great deal of time reviewing and analyzing planning
and zoning issues. A negative vote by that Commission, I believe, should require a slightly
higher margin than a simple majority.

I am recommending that the City Council adopt a change to the Zoning Ordinance that would
reduce the requirement from three-fourths to two-thirds to match the current Schematic Land
Use requirement of two-thirds. That would require a vote of three council members to stop the
overturning of a negative recommendation from Planning & Zoning Commission on both
Schematic Land Use issues and on the Zoning issues. If the ordinances are passed and adopted
as a simple majority, whoever is in the Mayor’s position still could veto any City Council over-
ride of planning and zoning negative votes on zoning or schematic land use and require a two-
thirds vote of the Council. This provision of State law underscores the need for a consistent two-
thirds vote.

On the Zoning issue, the City Attorney has recommended that it would take a three-fourths vote
of the City Council to approve a simple majority ordinance. The majority of the Council (by
simple majority) has elected to act contrary to that advice. I believe we should follow the City

"QUR CITIZENS ARE OUR BUSINESS”
e ——————————————————————— =
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Attorney’s advice that is supported by the City Clerk, the City Planner, and the Department
Directors who oversee those divisions. They all feel that the safest approach to avoid future
litigation on the legality of the ordinance is to approve the ordinance with a three-fourths vote -
instead of a simple majority vote.

It is clear that our current system has worked well. The maj orlty of municipalities surveyed use a
super majority requirement for zoning issues. The State requires a three-fourths vote if enough

nearby residents object. Therefore, I think it is consistent to hold a higher standard than a simple
majority for overturning recommendations by the Cedar Falls Planmng and Zoning Commission.

Given these reasons for this veto, I hope the councit and citizens will support this decision.

Item 11.
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MEETING OF STANDING COMMITTEES Item 12.

Community Center
October 17, 2022

The meeting of Standing Committee met at the Community Center at 5:55 p.m. on October 17, 2022,
with the following Committee persons in attendance: Councilmembers Kelly Dunn, Daryl Kruse, Simon
Harding, Dustin Ganfield, Gil Schultz via videoconference, and Dave Sires; absent: Susan deBuhr. Staff
members from all City Departments and members of the community attended in person.

Finance & Business Operations Committee:

Chair Dunn called the meeting to order and introduced the first item on the Finance & Business
Operations Committee Agenda, Human Rights Commission (HRC) Annual Report and introduced HRC
Chair Eashaan Vajpeyi. Mr. Vajpeyi provided a brief background of the Commission, the focus of the past
year and goals for the current year. Mr. Vajpeyi asked for questions. Councilmember Harding asked
what support is needed by Council and is the Commission on a strong trajectory; Mr. Vajpeyi responded
the Commission feels well supported and is on a good path.

Chair Dunn introduced the second item on the Finance and Business Operations Committee Agenda,
Council Meeting Procedures — Order of Agenda (Rule 3.1) and Miscellaneous Administrative Corrections.
Chair Dunn introduced Councilmember Kruse. Councilmember Kruse addressed changing the order of
the agenda regarding referrals; City Attorney Rogers stated that since City Council changed the
ordinance, amending the Council Meeting Procedures policy is all that needs to be changed. Mayor
Green stated there is duplication of text and other unintentional errors in Administrative Policy requiring
change. Councilmember Harding motioned to direct staff to make changes as directed by Council,
seconded by Councilmember Kruse. Chair Dunn called for a vote on the motion: Aye — Councilmembers
Dunn, Kruse, Harding, Ganfield, Schultz, and Sires; Nay — none. Motion passed.

Committee of the Whole:

Chair Harding introduced the only item on the Committee of the Whole Agenda, UNI Dome Fundraising
and introduced UNI President Mark Nook. Mr. Nook spoke on UNI's Capital campaign goal to raise $50
million for the UNI Dome; he gave an overview of the Dome’s notoriety, various hosted events, and the
economic impact of visitors. Mr. Nook introduced Jamar Thompson, Associate Director for External
Affairs. Mr. Thompson provided the history of the original Dome project and stated this funding campaign
will extend until 2026. He stated current events bring in $17 million in community economic impact with
over 500,000 visitors annually. Mr. Thompson introduced David Harris, Director of Athletics. Mr. Harris
provided background of UNI's 2018 strategic plan “Panthers Rising” and a feasibility study from 2019.
He outlined the project’s goals and highlights and provided visual renderings. He stated the project goal
is $50 million and will have three phases; he outlined anticipated future opportunities. Mr. Harris stated
the campaign is requesting the City to contribute $3-5 million. Chair Harding opened for questions from
Council. Councilmembers asked about alternatives to a donation, longevity of the Dome without
immediate repair/updating, the ability to host NCAA events, how less seating will affect revenue,
projected effect on community revenue, and comparison of the Dome to similarly sized facilities. Mr.
Nook, Mr. Thompson, and Mr. Harris responded UNI would be open to discussion of donation
alternatives, that the Dome requires a new roof and updates to continue to be viable moving forward, that
requirements for NCAA events vary by sport, that there will be fewer seats but they will be better quality,
there are currently no projected numbers regarding community revenue, and have made comparisons
with similarly sized facilities that all host football but not all are domes. Chair Harding asked if Council
needed more from the presentation; City Administrator Ron Gaines stated Council can discuss at Goal
Setting and staff can look at different funding opportunities to bring to Council. Chair Harding requested
a motion to review at goal setting; Councilmember Dunn moved to discuss funding sources and support
the Dome project at Goal Setting; Councilmember Kruse seconded. Chair Harding called for a vote on
the motion: Aye — Councilmembers Dunn, Kruse, Harding, Ganfield, Schultz, and Sires; Nay — none.
Motion passed.

Meeting adjourned at 6:45 p.m.

Minutes by Katie Terhune, Administrative Assistant
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Moving / resigning from CFPL board

Item 13.

Katelyn Browne <katelyn.browne@uni.edu>
Mon 10/31/2022 4:09 PM

To: Director <director@cedarfallslibrary.org>;Rob Green <Rob.Green@cedarfalls.com>

CAUTION: This email originated outside the City of Cedar Falls email system.
Do not click links or open attachments unless you recognize the sender and know the content is safe.

Hi Kelly and Rob,

| have accepted a new library job and will be moving out of Cedar Falls in mid-November, so | will need to resign
my seat on the Cedar Falls Public Library Board of Trustees, effective 11/18 (also my last day at UNI).

Please let me know if you need more information or if there's anything specific | need to submit.
Thank you! | have appreciated the opportunity to serve the city and the library in this way.

--Katelyn.

Katelyn Browne (she/they)
Youth Services Librarian
Rod Library 349

University of Northern lowa
1227 W. 27th St.

Cedar Falls, IA 50614-3675

319-273-6167
katelyn.browne@uni.edu

To book an appointment: https://uni.libcal.com/appointment/42165
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MAYOR ROBERT M. GREEN

Item 14.

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA
220 CLAY STREET

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613
PHONE 319-273-8600

FAX 319-268-5126
W www.cedarfalls.com

FROM: Mayor Robert M. Green
TO: City Council
DATE: November 1, 2022
SUBJECT: Appointments to the Library Board of Trustees
REF: (a) Code of Ordinances, City of Cedar Falls §2-407

1. In accordance with the candidacy and qualification requirements of reference (a), | hereby
nominate the following citizens for appointment to the Library Board of Trustees for a six-
year term:

e Mr. Michael Graziano, term ending 6/30/2028 (New Appointment)
e Mr. Lindi Roelofse, term ending 6/30/2028 (New Appointment)

2. | am also scheduling interviews with the Finance and Business Operations Committee prior
to this appointment being considered by the City Council as is customary.

Xc: City Administrator
Director, Finance and Business Operations
Library Director

HHH
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Item 14.

GENERAL APPLICATION FOR APPOINTMENT TO CITY BOARDS & COMMISSIONS

Thank you for your interest in volunteer civic service. Complete all sections of this application; please contact City Hall
at (319) 273-8600 with questions. The City of Cedar Falls is committed to providing equal opportunity for citizen involvement.

Name:..l.\{[..ish.?.ef! ................................... Graz1ano Gender: ............ Date:...... 7/5/2022 .....
First mi Last

HOME AQAI@SS: ... vv i it eee et eee it e eee e e e e eeaaeeesses snnnnesnaeeeeeeeee e nnne ... HOME PhONED oL

WOPrK ADAreSS: .oooeiiiiiiie et e e e ee veesiavasssse s mnnasssnn sue eeenens eneene WWOTK PRON@I L iiiniiiiis o snimunins san ses svasis san

E-mail ADAress: .......cvoveive i e it e et it rr e e e e CeITPRONEY

Employer: UNI Position/Occupation: Professor

If Cedar Falls resident, length of residency: 3years cirerniin e e City Ward: 3 Q | have a LinkedIn Profile

DESIRED NOMINATIONS: Check or fill in boxes for all that apply; view detailed descriptions at https://bit.ly/cf-boards

0 Art and Culture Board 0 Board of Rental Housing Appeals Q Human Rights Commission

0 Board of Adjustment Q Civil Service Commission @ Library Board of Trustees

O Board of Appeals Q Community Center & Senior Services Board Q Parks & Recreation Commission
Q Board of Electric Examiners & Appeals Q Health Trust Fund Board Q Planning & Zoning Commission
0 Board of Mechanical Examiners & Appeals O Historic Preservation Commission Q Utilities Board of Trustees

Q Board of Plumbing Examiners & Appeals Q) Housing Commission Q Visitors & Tourism Board

COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT: Please describe past and present involvement in the community, including voluntary, social, city,
religious, school, business and professional (include dates and offices held, if applicable).

QUALIFICATIONS: Please list any special qualifications for board service, including skills, training and certifications.

At UNI, I research and teach on the relationship between religion and public education. I also direct the
Institute for Religion & Education, which works to develop religious literacy.

MOTIVATION: Why do you desire to serve on city boards and commissions, and what contributions do you believe you can make?

My family moved to Cedar Falls in 2019. During the pandemic, the CF Library became one of my family's
favorite spots to take our toddler. We are very grateful for the services they provide, and I'd like to give back.
I am also a strong advocate for literacy education, a goal that I believe the CF Library shares.

POTENTIAL CONFLICTS OF INTEREST: Please list organizations and relationships which could pose a potential conflict of

interest during your service on a city board or commission. Civic leaders are expected to have many ties to community organizations

and people; this listing does not preclude appointment but is intended to provide transparency and accountability for board service.
Other than my institutional relationship to UNI, I can't think of any relationships that could be a potential
conflict of interest.

Please e-mail completed this application to boards@cedarfalls.com 108
or Mail to Mayor, City of Cedar Falls, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, I1A 50613

You will be contacted to submit a Candidate Questionnaire when a board vacancy occurs.



Item 14.

LIBRARY BOARD OF TRUSTEES CANDIDATE QUESTIONNAIRE

Name: Michael Graziano Date: July 7, 2022

Can you attend board meetings on the 1% Wednesday of the month at 4pm at the Cedar Falls Library? O Yes U No

1. Why are you interested in serving on the Library Board of Trustees?

I am interested in serving for three reasons. First, I’'m simply a big fan of public libraries. Much like the long-standing
U.S. commitment to public education, our country’s commitment to public libraries is part of its foundational though
imperfect commitment to equality. | think a public library can and should be a core part of the community it serves.

Second, | greatly value public institutions. | attended public schools, and | earned my PhD at a public university. | work
at a public institution (UNI), and my teaching and research there includes a focus on public education. | am interested
in doing what | can to support public institutions like the library in my own community, since these institutions are by
their very nature intended to be accessible and open to all of our neighbors.

Finally, since my family moved to Cedar Falls three years ago, the CF Library has become one of our favorite places in

town (especially now that we have a toddler). We’ve been consistently impressed by the library’s creative and helpful
offerings in addition to its great book selection. Simply put, if there’s a need for volunteers on the Board of Trustees,

I'd like to help and give back.

2. What is the role of the Public Library in supporting the community as a whole?

The role of the public library is to serve the community by expanding and protecting access to knowledge, respecting
intellectual freedom, and identifying other opportunities to serve citizens that advance these goals beyond access to
books (e.g., skill-building workshops, community events, tool rentals, etc.).

3. Because the Cedar Falls Public Library is owned by the City of Cedar Falls, what is the appropriate role
of the Trustees in keeping the City informed and involved in library operations?

The Trustees serve as a valuable connection between library operations and the citizens served by those
operations. In my view, when any local government effort is working at its best, it is both responsive to the needs
of its citizens while being proactive in anticipating how to best develop policy and use limited resources. Trustees
should be knowledgeable about the CF Library’s budget and policies so that the City (and the people it serves)
can best understand how their investment in the library benefits their community.

4. The Trustees provide operational and fiduciary oversight for the Library; what is your experience in
personnel management, financial operations, litigation, business operation, and risk management?

While | do not have formal training in these areas, in addition to my teaching and research duties at
UNI, | have managed the budget for various grants and workshops. 109




Item 14.

5. Should the Cedar Falls Public Library be completely free of charge, or should fees be charged for select
programs and services that extend beyond basic library offerings?

in general, | think the CF Library’s services and programs should be free of charge so that these offerings are not
unintentionally difficult for low-income community members to enjoy. Based on my time in the library as a patron, | also
suspect that different community members understand “basic library offerings” quite differently—which is a testament to
the wide range of valuable activities available in the library

At the same time, | recognize that difficult budgeting decisions may have to be made, and | can imagine clear rationales
for certain charges. For example, the library makes printing services available (thus saving patrons the cost of
purchasing their own printer), but charges a set fee per page to offset the cost of paper and ink which helps to continue
providing that service in the first place.

6. If Library materials selection or self-censorship violates a Trustee’s personal beliefs, how might that Trustee
best respond?

| work in the academic study of religion at a public university, so dealing with challenging questions about professional
judgment, bias, and personal belief are familiar to me. In my view, if library materials conflicted with the Trustee’s
personal beliefs, that is (a) perfectly legitimate for that person to observe and feel, but (b) is not itself a sufficient reason
to make those materials unavailable to the rest of the community.

The role of the concerned Trustee, in this situation, would be to make a case about why this particular item would not
serve the interests of the community as a whole. For example, if the library were to inadvertently acquire a book with
antisemitic messaging, | hope that the Trustee would demonstrate how this book is not simply personally offensive but
also damaging to our community as a whole. This also underscores the need for Trustees from diverse backgrounds
and life experiences.

| see the role of the individual Trustee as one voice working towards consensus with their colleagues, and | trust that if a
challenging decision had to be made, the Trustees would work in good faith with both each other and community
stakeholders to come to the best decision.

Please send this completed Candidate Questionnaire by the published deadline to:
City of Cedar Falls, Boards & Commissions, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA 50613, fax to (319) 268-5126,
or e-mail to boards@cedarfalls.com. You will be notified shortly if selected as a Finalist for the appointment
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Item 14.

GENERAL APPLICATION FOR APPOINTMENT TO CITY BOARDS & COMMISSIONS

Thank you for your interest in volunteer civic service. Complete all sections of this application; please contact City Hall
at (319) 273-8600 with questions. The City of Cedar Falls is committed to providing equal opportunity for citizen involvement.

Name: Lmdl ....................................... Roelofse Gender: F Date: ..... 6/30/2022
First mi Last

Home Address: ..........coeeeenne o .. e et e e . o mmodOme Phoner Lo

WOTK AQOArESS: .o oon ittt e e e i T e eee e e e e e e set st e e e aie e e eeee oo WWOTK PRONE: L

E-mail AQAress: .....oove oot e e e v ieeim e e CeITPRONED L

employer: UMiversity of Northern Iowa o gitign/occupation: P2Y1S Chair in Entreprencurship

If Cedar Falls resident, length of residency: 3Years+ City Ward: H M | have a Linkedin Profile

DESIRED NOMINATIONS: Check or fill in boxes for all that apply; view detailed descriptions at https://bit.ly/cf-boards

B Art and Culture Board 1 Board of Rental Housing Appeals @ Human Rights Commission

Q Board of Adjustment @ Civil Service Commission W Library Board of Trustees

O Board of Appeals O Community Center & Senior Services Board B Parks & Recreation Commission
Q Board of Electric Examiners & Appeals W Health Trust Fund Board @ Planning & Zoning Commission
Q Board of Mechanical Examiners & Appeals B Historic Preservation Commission W Utilities Board of Trustees

Q Board of Plumbing Examiners & Appeals B Housing Commission B Visitors & Tourism Board

COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT: Please describe past and present involvement in the community, including voluntary, social, city,
religious, school, business and professional (include dates and offices held, if applicable),
As an economic devepment executive I served on 20+ local community boards and commissions in Iowa
during the previous receesion supporting our community (2007-2012). Then I moved to England to pursue my
Ph.D. and took on strategic leadership roles on 5+ emergent innovation inniatives (2012-2017). Now I am back
in Iowa and as a parent I have mostly committed to underestimated and underserved innovators voices.

QUALIFICATIONS: Piease list any special qualifications for board service, including skills, training and certifications.

Ph.D in Strategy and Innovation (Management Studies), Newcastle University
MBA in Strategy and Marketing, University of Iowa

BA in Psychology, University of Iowa

Housing Development Financing Professional (HDFP)

MOTIVATION: Why do you desire to serve on city boards and commissions, and what contributions do you believe you can make?

Many qualified individuals can make terrific contributions to our community, but who do I know? As we are
heading into a recession I implore you to consider the place of underserved and underestimated innovators in
your hierargy and their needs when you make policies. I would be honored to serve as a link building
community betterment for members with the energy and passion without the power to tackle problems.

POTENTIAL CONFLICTS OF INTEREST: Please list organizations and relationships which could pose a potential conflict of
interest during your service on a city board or commission. Civic leaders are expected to have many ties to community organizations
and people; this listing does not preclude appointment but is intended to provide transparency and accountability for board service.

My action research centers on underserved and underestimated entrepreneurs and innovators. Creating
win-win-win opportunities and policies to take healthy steps forward in Business-to-Government,

Business-to-Business, and Business-to-Consumer revenue and diversification of approved vendor lists is
something in my line of sight. This is at a systems level without chances of personal benefit.

Please e-mail completed this application to boards@cedarfalls.com 111
or Mail to Mayor, City of Cedar Falls, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA 50613

You will be contacted to submit a Candidate Questionnaire when a board vacancy occurs.
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Item 14.

LIBRARY BOARD OF TRUSTEES CANDIDATE QUESTIONNAIRE

Name: Lindi Roelofse Date: July 9, 2022

Can you attend board meetings on the 1% Wednesday of the month at 4pm at the Cedar Falls Library? X Yes 1 No

Why are you interested in serving on the Library Board of Trustees?

i) Important. | believe the modern library is important. Companies like Google and SBDC realize that to reach
innovators a library is often a first point of community contact, even before entrepreneurial centers in the
innovation ecosystem. In terms of underserved and underestimated innovators (where | specialize) the
importance of libraries as a safe and trustworthy space to access trustworthy cultural knowledge is even
higher.

i) Interesting. | believe the modern library is interesting and exciting. In my professional capacity we have won
awards in partnership with Rod Library team members for recognizing the importance of libraries and
entrepreneurial centers collaborating and training up lean startup methodologies.

iii) Integrative problem-solving. | love knowledge, learning, archiving data and | am curious about how the
modern library will continue to evolve. | am open to learning more. And as | learn more, | am open to exploring
and making introductions for integrated solutions to complex societal challenges.

What is the role of the Public Library in supporting the community as a whole?

| believe Public Library will mean different things to different people in different life paths, at different life
stages, yet it brings it all together into a constant. A constant that will welcome you when you are down on your
luck, a constant that gives you a fresh point of view when you need to explore a new path, a constant when a
pandemic hits and your home internet access is not reliable.

Because the Cedar Falls Public Library is owned by the City of Cedar Falls, what is the appropriate
role of the Trustees in keeping the City informed and involved in library operations?

As the “owner” there are a couple of liability hoops. Being good stewards with budgeting and allocating the
resources is a given. Minimizing unnecessary risk is another. It is also a symbol, so representing the values
of the government serving all residents regardless of who they voted for in the last election is another.

On the other hand, there is a separation. A commitment to specifically discourse on a variety of topics and
representing multiple sides of an issue. In a politically polarized world | hope that the Library offers the
symbolic separation between opposing forces and a safe space where conflicting ideas can coexist to be
understood better.

The Trustees provide operational and fiduciary oversight for the Library; what is your experience in
personnel management, financial operations, litigation, business operation, and risk management?

As the T. Wayne Davis Chair in Entrepreneurship at the University of Northern lowa | train student and adult

changemakers who are interested in building something bigger than themselves in building these skill sets
and framing the policies and values that would allow them to make healthy decisions and ensure the
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Before returning to academia to pursue a Ph.D. | had experience as an executive director of a 28E
governmental partnership for economic development (2007-2012). That means | was responsible for
day-to-day personnel management, financial operations, litigation, business operation and risk
management. My 30 board directors did oversight. Prior to that | was also the executive director of an Arts
and Culture organization with the same responsibilities and my board of 12 directors provided oversight.

Should the Cedar Falls Public Library be completely free of charge, or should fees be charged for select
programs and services that extend beyond basic library offerings?

On the one hand there is something to be said for removing the barriers to access so everyone feels welcome
regardless of their socio-economic status at a specific point in time. In fact, one could argue that creating more
inclusive opportunities for community members to connect across socio-economic lines may be a part of the
solution to apathy, distrust and a whole host of societal challenges.

The question then becomes, at what threshold does the no-fee policy change? Would it create psychological
discomfort when there is ambiguity if something is not explicitly labeled as free, or someone’s trust needs to be
repaired if they have to turn around and walk away because the price was a surprise? There are ways to fix this
with clear signage and cultural normative expectations but it could get murky and in some cases may even be
illegal as well as erode the brand.

My first stab at a recommendation would be to lean on partnerships and/or parallel venture identities like ‘Friends
of the Library Foundation’ when services and programming could/should be charged. Image wise, let the other
players at the table take an explicit or symbolic lead on the special initiatives. When and if appropriate, the
income portion that would be fair market earned income can then be paid back to the library by the partner
organization.

If Library materials selection or self-censorship violates a Trustee’s personal beliefs, how might that
Trustee best respond?

On paper, libraries should encourage civil discourse and dissent as part of civic engagement in forums designated
for that purpose and not ignore or avoid controversial topics out of fear of causing offense or provoking
controversy. To that end they should collect, maintain, and provide access to as wide a selection of materials and
events, reflecting as wide a diversity of views on a topic as possible, within their budgetary constraints and local
community needs. A balanced collection should include the variety of views that surround any given issue.

That being said, | am also aware that | personally have a value system that shapes my priorities. If controversial
topic X threatens to harm or trigger vulnerable individuals and they are not in a position to advocate for
themselves (yet) | will see it as my duty to have their back when they are not in the room and move towards
solutions that factor their stakeholder needs when possible.

For example, | am the mother of a three-year-old boy and seven-year-old girl, so this vantage point might include
measures to protect or shelter children as they go through various stages of cognitive, emotional, and social
development. | am a naturalized US citizen so this vantage point may include paying a lot of attention to the needs
of immigrant and refugee residents with non-typical lived experiences. | was a single mom living below the
breadline while working my way through college and that may include looking out for Library members in a lower
socio-economic class. | often also look out for stakeholders who are neurodiverse, have mobility constraints,
anyone working through societal, ancestral, or personal trauma. We may not be able to solve problems for all
these stakeholders who are less likely to be in the room when decisions are made, but | do stand for progress
when possible.

Please send this completed Candidate Questionnaire by the published deadline to: 113




OFFICE OF CITY ADMINISTRATOR ltem 15.

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA
220 CLAY STREET

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613
PHONE 319-273-8600

FAX 319-268-5126

; .cedarfalls.
ﬁ?“/’ www_cedarfalis.com

TO: Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council Members
FROM: Ron Gaines, City Administrator
DATE: October 31, 2022
SUBJECT: Departmental Monthly Reports Submission — September 2022

Please contact Administrator Gaines with any questions about the accomplishments of city staff
contained in this monthly report.

Encl: (1) City of Cedar Falls Departmental Monthly Reports.
HitH
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SEPTEMBER 2022 MONTHLY REPORTS
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FINANCE & BUSINESS OPERATIONS
FINANCIAL SERVICES
SEPTEMBER 2022

Treasury

The Finance Division is responsible for maintaining accounting and cashflow as it relates
to the city treasury, monitoring securities held by the City and investing idle cash to
provide safe investments while maximizing interest earnings. Currently, the City has
$107,586,370 invested in CD's and $800,000 in a liquid money market.

Investments Transactions Amount

CD's Matured 1 $3,254,370.00

CD's Purchased 2 $6,508,740.00

PFMM Deposit 0 $0.00

PFMM Withdrawal 1 $2,500,000.00

CD/Investment Interest $57,561.48
FY22 Audit

The auditors were here the week of September 26" to complete most of the audit field
work. The process for financial statement reporting was started in June and was
completed in September prior to the auditors arriving. As part of the financial statements,
the City’s share of net pension liabilities for IPERS and MFPRSI were included as part
of the new GASB 68 requirements. In addition, the OPEB liability was also recorded as
part of the new GASB 75 requirements.

The Annual Comprehensive Financial Report will be completed in October and will be
submitted to the Government Finance Officer Association (GFOA) under the Excellence
in Financial Reporting program. The state required Annual Financial Report will also be
filed in October with the State Auditor’s Office.

Capital Improvements Plan

All departments were asked to submit their FY2023-2028 Capital Improvement Plan
(CIP) requests. The preliminary CIP schedule will be compiled in October.

Miscellaneous Financial Activities

For September, 30 payroll checks and 679 direct deposits were processed. Accounts
receivable were processed and 219 invoices were mailed out to customers. 1,783
transactions for accounts payable were processed and approved by the City Council for
payment and 661 checks were mailed out to vendors.
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FINANCE & BUSINESS OPERATIONS

HUMAN RESOURCES
September 2022

SUMMARY OF PROJECTS. TRAINING & STAFF ACTIVITIES

Risk Management Committee meeting held September 7" and 21!

Reviewed four contracts/agreements for required insurance

Review and follow-up of seven public event permits

One HR staff member attended a half-day Inclusion Summit hosted by ADP
Reviewed and modified evaluation forms

Preparations for management training to be held in October/November

Research for and suggestions provided to consultant for Human Capital Management
program

Reviewed multiple personnel policies with revisions to be reviewed at October 17"
council meeting

Monitored and assisted with the employee climate survey which closed on September
16" with a final report expected from consultant by the week of October 17"
Reviewed a newly proposed job classification and sent to consultant for evaluation
Recruitment/Employment tasks related to:

o FT positions: Ass't Director of Public Safety/Police Chief, Building Inspector
(Residential), Community Services Coordinator, Cultural Programs Supervisor,
Diversity, Equity & Inclusion Specialist, Engineering Technician |, Horticulturist,
Information Systems Technician |, Land Surveyor, Reference Librarian,
Maintenance Worker, Principal Engineer, and Public Safety Officer

o PT positions: Administrative Assistant, Community Service Officer, Financial
Clerk, Laborer, Librarian (Teen), Library Assistants (Circulation, Reference &
Teen), Library Intern, Maintenance Worker, and Office Assistant (V&T)

o Seasonal/Special Purpose/Misc. positions for Community Development and
Public Works departments (Community Center Facility Assistant, Hearst Front
Desk and Lab Technician, Recreation Front Desk and Programming, Seasonal
Laborers, and contracted Custodians)

o Information was gathered related to the 2023 renewal of an H-1B visa and green
card processing

BENEFITS & COMPENSATION

The annually required 509A renewal, certificate of compliance, and financial report was
completed and filed with the lowa Division of Insurance for FY22 health fund information

CIVIL SERVICE COMMISSION

Preparations for and follow up to the September 14 and 21 meetings were completed
Horticulturist candidates were approved to test, and the testing instrument was
forwarded to complete and return for scoring

The testing process, candidate selection rubric, questionnaire, and rating forms for
Engineering Technician | were forwarded to Carlson Dettmann for review and final
versions were approved by the Civil Service Commission

Testing and interviews were completed, and certified list was approved for Ass’t Public
Safety Director/Police Chief

Revisions to the Cedar Falls Local Rules & Regulations were discussed with the
Commission and a final draft was approved by commissioners

HUMAN RIGHTS COMMISSION

FY22 Annual Report preparations were discussed and drafted for review and expected
approval at the October 10 commission n;eeting
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Preparations were completed for the recommendation and September 19th Council
appointment of the three final new HRC members

Communications provided to newly appointed members regarding procedures, rules and
guidelines for conducting business

Created new member binders with relevant information and training materials

Item 15.

119




Item 15.

Finance and Business Operations
Information Systems Division
Monthly Report September 2022

Summary of projects, training and staff activities
e New staff member, Stephanie Harschnek, started on September 15 her main support focus is on the
library.
e  Firehouse migration into ESO
e Data was extracted from the Firehouse database in order to be imported into the
ESO web-based system.
e ESO employees were assisted with getting our Firehouse data, from SQL, in order to migrate
this into our new web-based system.
e (0365 Migration
*  Migration started for SharePoint and OneDrive
e Ran PowerShell commands to export file shares on network with Travis
e Created city email for new board members who were waiting on the 0365 migration
e Attended a Microsoft Teams training meeting
e  (ity Hall Remodel
e Relocated workstations from upper level to lower level
e Ran cable for fax line on lower level
e Door Lock systém migration began.
e The Engineering switch was installed in the newly constructed downstairs level of
City Hall. It was then patched into the server room, on the top floor, for data access.
e Fax line rewiring was completed
e Patched in all workstations, copiers, printers and all network equipment in the lower level.
e Ordered new laptop docking stations for the Planner of the Day office
e Ordered all new tvs & computers needed for new conference rooms

Software Purchase/Installation/Upgrade Activities
e 26 software installations for 9 different departments
¢ Installed 8 new software for 3 departments
Equipment Purchase/Installation/Upgrade Activities/Repairs
e 21 new pieces of equipment purchased for 5 different departments and inventory.
e 13 new equipment installations for 4 different departments.
Problem Resolution Activities & Assistance Activities
= 76 problem resolution or assistant activities took place for 12 different departments

Grapic Design Activities
e  Hearst Center: Event materials: postcards, vinyl, posters; Annual mailer
e Tourism: ad updates, map modification
e Other: website updates, social media maintenance/graphics/series, business cards, Cable TV
graphics, promotional/communications graphics, laminating, Currents, coin sleeves, City Hall
mural, name plates Halloween change promo materials
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Channel 15 Programming Activities

Cable TV Summary of projects

e This month we produced 8 public meetings and produced 12 Cedar Falls High School and 1 Panther
Sports Network sports productions. We produced 1 promo for the Pink Ribbon Run 2022

e We met with the Business & Industry committee to plan 2023 award ceremony.

e Continued planning for improvements in re-wiring of city council chambers and Channel 15 studio.

Regular productions included:

e Aired 4 new Panther Sports Talk show.

e Aired 4 new show for The Heartland (University of lowa show)

e Produced 3 new City News show

e Completed the Public Safety recruitment video.

e Continued weekly encoding and programming of church services for Public Access.

e  Programmed CFU and Mediacom cable providers for Channel 15 and Public Access.

e Updated & added Community Calendar events to the Channel 15 Announcements

Facility Upgrades
Installed new conduit from City Hall to Overman Park to rewire Overman Park with fiber and audio.

Drone Shoots

e Technology Parkway Expansion construction

e Cedar Falls High School Construction

e Rich Engel Cross Country meet

e  Madness on Main Street: UNI Basketball and Cedar Falls Downtown District
e  Cedar Falls Hotels for stock video

Geographical Information Systems (GIS) Activities

GIS Summary of projects

e Created a new web app for Halloween house decorations

e Met with county staff to clarify remaining boundary questions for dispatch
e Finalized updating pavement layer for entire city

e Reviewed and updated fence permit process in lama

e Reviewed rental grid fields in lama

e Reviewed parking counts from July with admin & planning staff

e Began updating requested changes to trail snow removal map

e Converted and updated to all applications Spring 2022 aerial photography
e Began updates to multiple layers with new imagery

e Met with planning to coordinate maps for conference rooms

Completed 4 web and database projects 3 for different departments
Completed 7 different data requests for 6 different entities.

Provided 10 maps for 3 different departments.

Created 66 new addresses.
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FINANCE & BUSINESS OPERATIONS
LEGAL SERVICES
September 2022

REPORT FROM SWISHER & COHRT — SAM ANDERSON:

Traffic Court:
City Cases Filed: 171  (this number includes both City and State tickets)
Cases Set: 3 (Traffic) 0 (Code Enforcement)

Trials Held: 1 (Traffic) 0 (Code Enforcement)

REPORT FROM KEVIN ROGERS, CITY ATTORNEY

e Review, revise, drafting and advice on 6 agreements
e Flood buyout work; closings

e Research and advise on Council voting requirements
e Sanitary sewer fee district ordinance work
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Item 15.

FINANCE & BUSINESS OPERATIONS
PUBLIC RECORDS
SEPTEMBER 2022

Public Records Activity

Staff prepared agendas, minutes, and electronic packets for two Regular City
Council meetings and one Special City Council meeting, two Standing Council
Committee meetings, two Planning & Zoning Commission meetings and two
Technical Review meetings. Meeting follow-up communications, minutes and legal
documents were drafted, processed, recorded, and filed.

Responded to four (4) requests for public records.

Licenses / Permits Processed & Issued

w

COONNONOD

Pet licenses

Paw Park permits

Poultry licenses

Public Event permits

Mobile Merchant permits

Tree Trimmer License

Cemetery Interment Rights

Liquor licenses and beer/wine permits

—_—

Submitted items for capital improvement program (CIP) in advance of City Council
goal setting and budget preparations.

The unemployment rates for the month of August 2022 were 2.9% for the Waterloo-
Cedar Falls Metropolitan Area, 2.6% in lowa, and 3.8% in the U.S.

Parking Activity

Enforcement
1,149 Parking citations issued.
$11,067.00 Citations paid.

Collection Efforts
$ 2,855.00 Collections from delinquent parking accounts.
$ 900.00 Vehicle immobilizations (18 vehicles).

Permits
$ 3,626.00 Parking permits issued (61).

Meter Collections
$ 2,090.97 Paid parking.
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FINANCE & BUSINESS OPERATIONS
LIBRARY & COMMUNITY CENTER

Item 15.

SEPTEMBER 2022
Library Activity
Usage Statistics July 2022 August 2022 August 2021
Customer Count 15,499 14,604 11,344
Circulation 39,820 38,288 35,577
Event 3,727 92 98
Attendance

Special events in September included the following:

e JustUs documentary showing with IJAN (lowa Justice Action Network)

e Screening and discussion of They Were Champions All: The Incomplete Story of the
Algona Brownies

e Tomato Tasting and Seed-Saving Workshop

e Hobbit Day celebration for families

Community Center Activity

Programs at the Community Center included a folk-duo concert, line dancing, cards, billiards,
senior fitness classes, Tai Chi, and ceramics. Rentals in September included a stamp club and a
band. City meetings were held at the Community Center during the City Hall remodeling

project.
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City of Cedar Falls
Community Development
Inspection Services Division

Total for Month
Total for Fiscal Year
Total Same Month - LAST YEAR
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$4,583,436.00
$13,969,799.00
$2,933,572.00

Monthly Report for: Sep-22 Total for Fiscal Year - LAST YEAR $14,697,853.00
. Monthly Summary Yearly Summary
Construction Type
Issued Dwelling Units Valuations Fees Issued Dwelling Units Valuations Fees
Single Family New
) 11 0] mm.ﬁm\mhw.oo_ $17,581.45 20 0 $4,585,273.00 $34,214.90
Construction |
e SRS S AL TR — a8 P
Multi-Family New _ _ H
Construction | i _
Res Additions and _ |
) 115} 0 $1,494,211.00 $25,313.00 338 0 $5,316,622.00 $80,948.60
Alterations I |
s e = — " e
Res Garages p___ 0 $45,476.00 mmm“_.oo.* 14 0 m“_.u\_:ouu.oo_ $2,816.00
S — T —— e — = . S S .
Commercial/Industrial New | | | 1
© i _ _ 2 0 $1,500,000.00 $9,632.00
_noam:‘cﬂ_o: | | "
_-I| — T —_— —_ |“ . _——— e — — I..“.. - - — — |m| _— e — — —_ — e —~ -
|Commercial/Industrial | H _ _
» ) 10 0 $567,200.00. $6,157.00! 26 0 $2,130,087.00/ $18,530.50
Additions and Alterations | i [ |
Commercial/Industrial ! _ _ _ _
| ) | 2 0! $67,500,00| $1,003.00
|Garages | ! | {
m e — I e - —_ i
Churches _ 2 0| me.m.S.ccm $1,959 75
Institutional, Schools,
Public, and Utility
Agricultural/Vacant
Plan Review 8 0 $0.00 53,324.00 22 0 $0.00 $18,240.00
Total 148 o $4,583,436.00 $53,226.45 426 0 $13,969,799.00 $167,334.75
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City of Cedar Falls
Community Development
Inspection Services Division
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Monthly Report for: Sep-22
. Monthly Summary Yearly Summary
Construction Type
Issued Dwelling Units Valuations Fees Issued Dwelling Units Valuations Fees
Electrical 0 $0.00 $3,282.90 156 0 $0.00 $10,880.40
Mechanical o} $0.00 $10,911.00 246 0 $0.00 $24,169.00
|
Plumbing 83 0 mo.oo. $4,716.50 218 0 $0.00 $14,255.00
_ |
Refrigeration
Total 210 $18,910.40 620 $49,304.40
Constractor Monthly Summary Yearly Summary o
Registrations Issued Dwelling Units Valuations Fees Issued Dwelling Units Valuations Fees
|Electrical 1 ol $0.00 $150.00| 2 0 $0.00} $300.00
S — _ | m
- i T | * = | l N o !
Mechanical 2! 0l mo.oo_ $300.00 2l 0 S0.00 5300.00|
| i ; !
—t — — — m ——— |||_||||||||| I||_.I|I| _— — " - - — S— ..M
Plumbing 11 ol $0.00 $150,00! 1 0 $0.00 $150.00
e | ) I | T ~ R S I R S S
Refrigeration _ _ { _
_ | . |
Total | 4 $600.00 5 $750.00
|
Building Totals 148 0 $4,583,436.00 $53,226.45 426 0 $13,969,799.00 $167,334.75
Grand Total 362 0 $4,583,436.00 $72,736.85 1051 0 $13,969,799.00 $217,389.15




Item 15.

PLANNING & COMMUNITY SERVICES DIVISION

MONTHLY REPORT
September 2022

MONTHLY MEETINGS:

Planning & Zoning Commission — Meetings were held on September 14 and September 28.

September 14, 2022,

Meeting

Applicant

Project

Recommendation

Action Taken

Lucas Moore,

Rezoning — P&Z review of a

Introduction and

Scheduled public

Oak District, LLC request to amend a Zoning | Discussion hearing for
Agreement for Midway September 28"
Business Park (RZ22-003)
City Council petition | Zoning Text Amendment— | |ntroduction and | Scheduled public
Amend Parking requirements | Discussion hearing for
in the Downtown Character September 28t
District
September 28, 2022, Meeting
Applicant Project Recommendation | Action Taken
Lucas Moore, Rezoning —P&Z review of a | Make Recommend
Oak District, LLC request to amend a Zoning | recommendation | Approval

Agreement for Midway
Business Park (RZ22-003)

to City Council

City Council petition | Zoning Text Amendment— | Make Recommend Denial
Amend Parking requirements | recommendation | on deleting shared
in the Downtown Character | to City Council parking
District — Delete shared Recommend Denial
parking requirements; on increasing
increase residential parking residential parking
requirement to 1 space per :
bedroom for multi-unit and requirements
mixed use buildings

Ryan N Borgwart Part|a| Easement Vacation at Make Recommend
3718 Apollo Street (VAC 22- | recommendation | Approval
001) to City Council

Aaron Carolan CHN Overlay Zoning District | Make Recommend
Design review for a new recommendation | Approval

garage at 1214 W. 20
Street (DR22-002)

to City Council

11
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Group Rental Committee — A meeting was held on September 6, 2022 and September

Item 15.

20,2022
Requested
Address Unit Owner Occupancy Approved for GRC BRHA
Recommends
linUnit1l linUnitl lin Unitl
2 in Unit 2 2 in Unit 2 2 in Unit 2
3inUnit3 2 in Unit 3 2inUnit3
4in Unit4 4in Unit4 4in Unit4
2222 Walnut 5 Cody Hamann 1in Unit5 1in Unit5 1in Unit5
Recommends
4 per unit
Wegmann Real with To review at
718 E. Seerley Blvd. 1 Estate Company, LLC | 4 per unit 4 per unit conditions 10/10/22
Recommends
4 per unit
with
conditions (as
per previous
BORHA
approval in
1431 Starbeck Circle 1 Dan and Christine Juhl 4 per unit 4 per unit 2015)
4 per unit 4 per unit Recommends
4 per unit
Southgate properties 1lI with To review at
2500 Walnut Street 1 LC conditions 10/10/22
Board of Rental Housing Appeals — No meeting was held
Board of Adjustment — No meeting was held.
Other Commissions, Board Meetings & Staff Liaison Responsibilities:
Date Notes/Actions
Bicycle and Pedestrian 9/6/22 Committee discussed the Main Street

Advisory Committee

reconstruction design and schedule moving

forward. The committee decided to

reschedule their October 4" meeting in favor
of members attending the public meeting for
the Main Street project. The Bicycle Friendly
Community Application (due in February)
appears more onerous than expected and the
committee reassessed their commitment to
submitting it. All were still in favor of moving
forward. The committee reviewed the snow
removal plan and discussed areas of concern,
such as areas closer to schools or incomplete

12
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College Hill Partnership

Historic Preservation
Commission

Housing Commission

Community Main Street
Design Committee

9/12/22

09/13/22

September 21
2022

09/16/22 and
9/20/22

13

routes/loops. The committee discussed an
issue of sediment that settles on the trail
between Pfeiffer Springs Park and Waterloo
Road (under HWY 58) after rainstorms. Also,
the committee voted to approve the drafting of
a letter of support to accompany the RCE
grant application.

First in-person meeting since the pandemic.
Board discussed the need to conduct a
strategic planning process to identify goals
and objectives for moving the organization
forward. They discussed uncertainty as to
what the proposed vacant storefronts were
going to be used for and suggested that the
business owners on the board reach out for
information.

Information about ongoing projects and
commission’s role of Waterloo’s HPC was
shared by the public attendee. City staff
shared the compliments received after the
success of the “Lawn City Neighborhood”
walking tour. Staff will be working with the
commission to make the information about
the tour available to public as a resource.
Commission updated city staff about their
intent to apply for CLG grant (next cycle) for
conducting a recon survey of Overman Park
Neighborhood.

The Housing Commission reviewed the
service agencies applications, made
recommendation to City Council on increasing
the payment standards for Section 8 Housing
Choice Voucher Program and heard and
update regarding the Housing Needs
Assessment

Committee was updated about updates and
referrals ongoing with the Downtown code by
City staff.

Committee later hosted market study and
Strategies meeting wherein the Main Street
lowa consultants provided a platform to
brainstorm potential strategies for all the
stakeholders, which can be used to enhance
the downtown district.
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LAND USE INQUIRIES AND PERMITTING

288 general inquiries, including walk-ins, and staff responses with information/assistance.
99 land use permits were issued.

OTHER PROJECTS FOR SEPTEMBER INCLUDED:

The Bicycle and Pedestrian Advisory Committee has requested to become an official board
or commission. Staff has prepared information for Council for discussion at goal-setting.
Continued working on updating the design and project bids for the Cedar River Recreation
Project.

Staff drafting application for a railroad crossing elimination grant through the Federal Rail
Administration partnering with the lowa Northern Railroad. 24 crossings in downtown Cedar
Falls would be eliminated and streets and properties restored to achieve multiple benefits for
the community as the rail spur is no longer being utilized by CFU.

Ongoing effort to address enforcement of rental paving ordinance.

Various enforcement actions related to zoning and rental code violations.

Partnering with Cedar Falis Economic Development Corporation for a Housing Needs
Assessment.

Continuing work on Council referrals related to new downtown zoning.

Attended the North Cedar Neighborhood Association meeting.

4 property purchases completed as part of the flood buyout through the State Hazard
Mitigation program. Asbestos testing of the properties took place.

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT:

Continued coordination with consultant on design work for the expansion of the West Viking
Road Industrial Park.

Met with an existing Cedar Falls business regarding expansion plans in the Cedar Falls
Industrial Park.

Attended monthly Cedar Falls Economic Development Corporation board of directors
meeting.

Began drafting necessary legal documents as it pertains to a new project in the Cedar Falls
Industrial Park.

Continued working with Grow Cedar Valley on a new Livability Magazine annual publication
for Cedar Falls and the Cedar Valley.

Provided industrial park site information for an out of state company looking to potentially
locate in lowa.

Attended Business and Industry meeting to discuss potential 2023 award winners.
Reviewed and updated economic development projects that are listed in the city’s Capital
Improvements Program.

Attended quarterly Good Morning Cedar Valley program at Hilton Garden Inn in Cedar Falls.
Presented to the Northeast lowa Commercial Realtor Group economic development projects
happening in Cedar Falls.

CDBG

Work with INRCOG on administering the funds for projects and services agencies based on

the last Annual Action Plan.
Continue to monitor sub-recipients of CARES ACT funds through the CDBG program.

Review Service Agencies applications from the request for proposals.
Started working on CAPER

14
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HOUSING CHOICE VOUCHER PROGRAM

Waiting List 617 Rent Subsidies (HAP payments) $92,848
New Applications Taken 48 Utility Payments $ 1,088
Units under Contract 191 Admin Fees $ 15,247
Initial Vouchers Issued 1

Current Open Vouchers 7 Lease Up Goal 220

New Admissions 3

Ongoing

e All active files have been scanned. Continuing to scan in terminated files.

e Added new landlords
e Continuing to issue new vouchers/pulling from waitlist

ADD A DOLLAR REPORT
There were 11 applications received for utility assistance in September totaling $4,934.33.

There was a balance of $43,720.96 as of September 30, 2022

15
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RECREATION & COMMUNITY PROGRAMS
Monthly Report for September

Administrative:
e Fall programs were in full swing.
e Began registration for winter programs.
e The Park and Rec Commission had its monthly meeting tabled until next month.
e Started a renovation at the Rec moving the current Activity Room to an open
racquetball court with plans to move the Cycling Class to the Activity Room.
Staff assisted the renovation with cleaning and painting.
e Staff also worked on future CIP items to take to present to City Council.
e A new Front Desk employee started this month.

Aquatics:
e End of season shut down continues at The Falls. Cleaning, organizing and

winterization are taking place.

e The fence project at The Falls was completed. The southwest fence was moved
in tighter, in front of the berm, condensing the large grass area where many
problems occurred last year.

e New LED lights are being installed in all our large light poles around the 3 pools.

New LED security lights are also being replaced. Funding was set aside in the
CIP to cover the cost.

e Hupp Electric out of Cedar Rapids removed all the motors from the Falls and
took them to their location to store and test throughout the winter.

Participation Indoors

Swim Passes Sold 18 21
Open Recreational Swimming/Lap Swimming 529 536
Aquatic Program Usage 1,54 829

(swim lessons, lifeguarding, staff training)
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Item 15.

Recreation Programs:

e Fall programs were busy.
e We had 249 hours of Ballfield usage.
e |Implemented (CDC) Concussion Training for Youth Program Employees

2022 Participation 2021Partici
Youth Volleyball 4t — 6th 92 48
Youth Flag Football 15t & 2nd 197 106
Youth Flag Football 3 & 4t 209 226
Youth Flag Football 51" & 6t 157 131
Adult Bags League 8 32
Adult Kickball 24 60

Fithess/Wellness:

e Our outdoor fitness classes have been a huge success. Now looking to keep the
momentum as we transition back into gym as the weather starts to turn.

e Ourindoor classes are still showing strong numbers.

Fitness/ Wellness 2022 Participation 2021 Partici
Classes Offered 200 170
Fitness Class Attendance 1,753 1,529
Personal Training Sessions 64 98
Massages: 57 44
Child Care 56 -
Facility Rentals 5 24
Shelter Rentals 72 -
Beach House Rentals 8 -
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MEETINGS/CONVENTIONS/SPORTS

CEDAR FALLS TOURISM & VISITORS BUREAU . .=iTn
Monthly Report - September 2022 TEE S,
CEDAR FALLS
E]

Trsre

Cedar Falls hosted the Northeast lowa Steel Guitar Show, lowa Association for Justice, a
motorcoach group and three other larger events for an estimated economic impact of over
$145,000 for September events that had bureau engagement.

Staff secured five new events for 2022-2023.

Staff hosted one site visit, sent four proposals for events in 2022-2023 and generated two new
leads.

LEISURE

Submitted lowa Tourism grant application.

Attended UNI Visit Days.

Guest of the podcast On First (Council Bluffs) discussing the GART and Cedar Falls biking culture.
Released Episode 2 of Cedar Falls Tourism Talk with Hansen’s Dairy Farm.

Registered one trail event, notifying all jurisdictions.

Updated website with Fall Activities and Halloween events.

Restock travel information at Visitor Center and Behrens-Rapp Station.

Working with Experience Waterloo on 2023 Visitor Guide.

COLLABORATION

Attended Upper Midwest CVB Conference.

Attended final meeting of the Eastern lowa Tourism Association.
Attended lowa Travel Industry Partners board meeting.

Attended Water Trails Designation Ribbon Cutting.

Attended UNI Volunteer Fair.

Published Hospitality Highlights newsletter x4, Weekender newsletter x1.
Attended CV Trails Partnership board meeting.

Attended Cedar Valley Sports Commission board huddle.

September 2022 | August 2022
Visitor Center Traffic 524 614
Website Traffic 7,874 6,341
CedarValley365.com Users 1,563 1,377
Facebook . 9,718 9,608
Instagram 2,363 2,289
Linkedin 464 452
Visitor Guide Distribution 1,193 2,063
Volunteer Hours 26 27
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Item 15.

CEDAR FALLS CULTURAL PROGRAMS 4
Monthly Report | September 2022 I 3 I hearst ~.

e The Hearst welcomed its new Cultural Programs Supervisor Cory Hurless on September 27.
e City's annual ARTapalooza saw 85 participants create take-away artwork & other activities
organized by the Hearst.
e September 8th outdoor concert in the Hearst Sculpture Garden featuring Brad and Kate broke the
attendance record for a music performance event with over 225 people in attendance!
e Programs for September also included:
o Midday Melodies with Matt Andreini + UNI Music Faculty
o HYBRID! Seth Thill, Hartman Reserve Visiting Artist Book Release + Open Mic
o Final Thursday Readers Series with Jim O'Loughlin
e The Hearst Education Staff hosted the following in September:
o Open Studio Painting, Session | & Il
o Surface Design: Slip, Texture & Decals
o North Star Community Services art workshop
o Wheel Throwing, Summer Session |, Il & il
o Witchy Lanterns Workshop
o Stacked Ceramic Garden Sculpture Workshop

Images: Top - ARTapalooza downtown Cedar Falls
Bottom — Brad & Kate performing at the Hearst, Seth Thill at book release event, New Cultural Programs Supervisor Cory Hurless
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Previous Month This Month
Hearst Center Usage Statistics Aug FY23 Sept FY23
In-Person and Virtual Attendance* 1486 1259
Public Programs Offered** 5 4
Exhibition walk-in Viewers 263 196
Classes/Workshops Offered** 11 11
Rentals/Birthday Parties 2/0 11
Volunteers/# of Hours 2/5 0/0
Facebook Views 72264 71212
Facebook Followers 2880 2916
Instagram Followers 1054 1058
Ads, videos, press releases, articles 1 1
Friends Members/new or renewed 303/3 317/22

*includes door counter, estimated garden attendance, and virtual program attendance. Does NOT include views of recorded
material; **includes on-site and virtual programs

Cory Hurless (she/her), Cultural Programs Supervisor
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ENGINEERING DIVISION
COMMERCIAL CONSTRUCTION MONTHLY REPORT - SEPTEMBER 2022

Item 15.

Detention By

Project Description SWPPP Status Calcs | Developer/ Engineer 1950

Status

Status
918 Viking Road 918 Viking Road Approved e Dahlstrom Active
Community United Child Care Nordic Drive Approved Approved cucce Active
D&D Midwest Investments 5630 Westminster Drive To Be Submitted Approved VJ Active
Creekside Condos Cedar Heights/Valley High To Be Submitted Approved Larson/Fehr Graham Under Review

Greenhill Village Car Wash 1125 Fountains Way Approved | @ —eeee Owner/Robinson Eng Active
Greenhill Village Estates 4705 Algonquin Drive Approved Approved Peters/Axiom Final Out
High School W 27th Street Approved Approved City of Cedar Falls/AECOM Active
McWing Storage Units 3015/3035 Capital Way Approved Approved Owner Pending
Mercy Health OBGYN Blusbell Rd Approved Approved Mercy/CGA Active
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SUBDIVISION MONTHLY REPORT - SEPTEMBER 2022

ENGINEERING DIVISION

Item 15.

. Contractor/
Project No. Project Title Description Status Budget Developer
SU-442-3165 Autumn Ridge 10th Addition New Subdivision Construction Underway =~ | = ==eeeee BNKD Inc./CGA
SU-413-3199 TemeesigIesHEn e New Subdivision Final Qut Remains | - — | New Aldea/Fenhr Graham
Aldea West Campus
SU-454-3257 Wild Horse 5th Addition New Subdivision Final Out Remains — CGA
5U-330-3151 Arbors Fourth Addition New Subdivision Maintenance Bond - Skogman/CGA
. . . ] BNKD Inc
SU-442-3121 Autumn Ridge 8th Addition New Subdivision Maintenance Bond | - R
Shoff Engineering
SU-282-1904 Gateway Business Park New Subdivision Maintenance Bond | ———- Shive Hattery‘
Baker Construction
SU-445-3021 Greenhill Village Estates New Subdivision Maintenance Bond | e B o oIl
Development
. . ! Brian Wingert
SU-345-3186 Park Ridge Estates New Subdivision Maintenance Bond | - CGA
SU-379-3207 Pheasant Hollow 7th Addition New Subdivision Maintenance Bond sorece CGA
SU-197-3134 Prairie Winds 4th Addition New Subdivision Maintenance Bond e Brla%\él:gerl
SU-168-3187 Prairie Winds 5th Addition New Subdivision Maintenance Bond e Bnar;:\(/;V:gert
SU-173-3138 Sands Addition New Subdivision Maintenance Bond | - Jim Sands/VJ
SU-217-3193 Western Homes 9th Addition New Subdivision Maintenance Bond ——-—— | Claassen/Western Homes
SU-445-3020 Wild Horse 4th Addition New Subdivision Maintenance Bond Skogman/CGA
SU-440-3239 Autumn Ridge 9th Addition New Subdivision Preliminary Plat s CGA
SU-184-3160 Greenhill Village New Subdivision Preliminary Plat =~ | =eeeee Panther Farms/CGA
Townhomes Il
TBD West Fork Crossings New Subdivision Preliminary Plat Approved ISG
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ENGINEERING DIVISION

Iltem 15.
PROJECT MONTHLY REPORT - SEPTEMBER 2022
Contractor/
Type Project No. Project Description Status Budget Developer
Bridge BR-000-3259 2022 Bridge Inspections Inspections Final Out Remains $40,000 Foth
Bridge BR-106-3215 Olive Street Box Culvert Box Culvert Contracts $1,160,000 AECOM
Flood FL-033-3088 Cedar River Safety & Recreation Recreation Design $50,000 Engineering Division
Parking TBD College Hill Parking Resurfacing Final Out Remains $150,000 Engineering Division
Sanitary SA-002-3182 Oak Park Sanitary Sewer Sanitary Sewer Re-design $800,000 Water Reclamation/ Snyder
Santiary RC-000-3240 27th Street Improvements {Sanitary) Reconstruction Final Out Remains $270,000 AECOM/Pirc Tobin
Santiary SA-000-3297 2022 CDBG Santiary Sewer Rehab Sanitary Sewer Construction Underway $250,000 Engineering/Water Rec
Sidewalk SW-000-3266 2021 Sidewalk Repair and Infill Sidewalks & Trails Construction Underway $157,876 Cobalt/Engineering Division
Sidewalk SW-000-3293 2022 Sidewalk Assessment Sidewalks & Trails Contracts 78D Engineering Division
Sidewalk RT-000-3217 2021 CDBG INFILLS Sidewalks & Trails Final Out Remains $181,492 OEL/Engineering Division
Sidewalk SW-000-3217 Union Road Trail Sidewalks & Trails Punch List Remains $510,299 Engineering
Division/Snyder
Storm Water |  ST-000-3252 2021 Permeable Alley Storm Water Final Out Remains $107,500 E”g'”giz:TgngV's'O”
Storm Water ST-077-3146 Clay Street Park Storm Water Final Out Remains $273,000 Snydelr/Folh/
Benton's S&G
Storm Water ST-115-3147 University Ave Biocell Storm Water Construction Underway $108,647 Benton's Sand and Grave!
Streets RC-000-3242 POy Street-Scape : Reconstruction Active $2,450,000 Sny.der
Reconstruction Phase Il K. Cunningham
Streets RC-000-3230 2022 Street Construction Street Repair Actlive $3,266,000.00 |Engineering Division ~ PClI
Streets RC-173-3228 G Boad R ULY Reconstruction Active $3,400,000 Shive Hattery
Intersection Improvements
Boulder
Streets RS-000-3275 2021 CFU Street Patching Project | Street and Sidewalk Repair Final Out Remains $161,198 Contracting/Engineering
Division/CFU
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Department of Public Works

Item 15.

Operations and Maintenance Division
Monthly Report for September 2022

Streets Section:
e Various asphalt and concrete repairs were performed throughout the month

Street sweeping operations were conducted utilizing two sweepers

e Permanent repairs were conducted on 15 utility pavement cuts

e Replaced pavement panels on Green Creek Rd.

e Performed several sanitary and storm sewer related repairs.
Traffic Operations:

e 109 traffic control signs and labels were repaired or replaced

e Installed vehicle detection radar at 18" & Hudson Rd.

e Outdoor emergency sirens were replaced at Lincoln School and Holmes Jr High

e Installed a battery back up system for the signal at Green Hill Rd & Prairie Parkway.

Fleet Maintenance:
e 1,046 transactions were recorded through the City’s fuel dispensing sites
e Used 14,039 gallons of fuel (6,177 ethanol, 7,862 diesel)
e 127 work orders were processed through the fleet section for the month
e Maintained all city fleet as normal for the month

Public Buildings:
¢ Completed various HVAC and mechanical repairs and maintenance throughout public buildings.
e Upgraded outdoor lighting at the Aquatic Center to high efficiency LED lighting
e Continued work at City Hall in preparation of moving some staff back to their offices
e Removed unneeded chemicals from the Hearst Center and disposed of them during the
environmental collection event

e Replaced light bulbs at Birdsall ball fields

e Replaced mulch on play surfaces in several parks

e Stump grinding has wrapped up on city ROW and is now being conducted at Pheasant Ridge GC
course

e Applied sealant to the Freedom Rock

e Repaired outlet drain at Prairie Lakes Park

e Applied sealant preservative to the Freedom Rock

Cemetery:
o Performed Ten (10) interments — One (1) Saturday services
e Four (4) space sold in Greenwood Cemetery, Six (6) in Fairview Cemetery, Four (4) in Hillside
Cemetery

Refuse:
e 695 tons of residential solid waste was collected. Total of 683 three-yard container dumps were

recorded. Crews responded to 119 residential bulk item collections

e Crews collected 99 tons of yard waste from curbside cart collection

e The Transfer Station hauled 76 loads of solid wasted to the Black Hawk County Landfill totaling
1,071 tons.

e A total of 83 tons of household recyclable material was collected for the month

e 69 tons of e-waste, scrap metal, tires and aQEIiances were diverted from the waste stream and
recycled.
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Item 15.

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS
WATER RECLAMATION / SEWER DIVISION
MONTHLY REPORT — SEPTEMBER 2022

PLANT OPERATIONS

Plant performance was very good for the month of September. All permit requirements
were met.

PROJECTS

Staff has been working with HUPP Electric on the rebuilding one of the four pumps at
the 17t Street lift station. This lift station pumps approximately 60% of the plant total
flow and is crucial to moving water to the plant. All four pumps at this lift station are
scheduled for major rebuilding in the next few years.

The IDNR lab inspection was conducted in September. The University of lowa Hygienic
Lab has staff that conducts the on-site portion of the inspection. No deficiencies were
found. The lab was recertified for another two years.

Staff conducted a tour for UNI microbiology students on the 28™". A handful of
professors and high school teachers bring classes here for tours on a regular basis.

BIOSOLIDS

We were able to process 488,000 gallons of material, 392,000 of which was hauled out
in liquid form and the remainder treated through our belt filter presses.

A total of 3.88 tons of sand and grit were hauled out of the plant to the landfill in
September.

SEWER CALLS AND SERVICE

We received 472 sewer locate requests from the lowa One Call system, 76 of which
were pertinent and required markings by our field staff.

There were no sanitary sewer calls for back-ups received in September and just one
after-hours lift station call in September. The call at the lift station was a minor issue and

resolved quickly.

We were able to hydro-clean a total of 28,900 feet (5.5 miles) of sanitary sewer lines
this month. Our annual total is at 24 miles of the goal of at least 40 miles cleaned.

Closed circuit television inspections of sanitary and storm sewer lines were conducted
totaling 3,500 feet (0.66 miles).
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CEDAR FALLS POLICE

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY
MONTHLY REPORT

SEPTEMBER 2022

Item 15.

600
Police Statistics First Shift Second Shift Third Shift  Total
Calls for Service 388 479 256 1123 400 -
Traffic Stops 37 157 286 480
Arrests 24 19 35 78 200 - -
Accidents 37 42 5 84
0 1| 1
Police Calls for Service
CEDAR FALLS FIRE
Fire Statistics Blue Shift Green Shift Red Shift Total
Fire 3
Rescue/Medical 91
Service Call 5
Good Intent 13
False Alarm/Call 17
Hazardous Condition 7
Calls for Service 53 37 46 136
Fire Calls for Service
POLICE CALLS FOR SERVICE
: Jan | Feb |Mar | Apr |[May | Jun | Jul Aug | Sep | Oct | Nov | Dec
Type of Incident (Monthly) | ;5 | o5 |90 |22 |22 |92 |22 |22 |22 |22 |22 |22
Group A Serious Crimes 108 | 100 | 131 125 | 110 | 128 [ 102 | 103 | 119
Group B Other Crimes 74 52 41 57 78 62 68 67 66
Traffic Accidents 98 113 88 78 85 92 86 96 94
Other Calls 1582 | 1213 | 1308 | 1378 | 1389 | 1382 | 1472 | 1387 | 1371
CFS Totals 1862 | 1478 | 1568 | 1638 | 1662 | 1664 | 1728 | 1653 | 1650
;Z;’; ofincident(per | 5414 | 2015 | 2016 | 2017 | 2018 | 2019 | 2020 | 2021 | 2022
Group A Serious Crimes 1570 1468 1469 1702 1467 1437 1407 1681
Group B Other Crimes 620 674 579 613 683 661 565 745
Traffic Accidents 708 734 790 720 774 613 228 1030
Other Calls 15,421 | 13,828 | 12,573 | 13,244 | 13,936 | 14,819 | 14,590 | 15,856
CFS Totals 18,319 | 16,704 | 15,411 | 16,279 | 16,860 | 17,530 | 16,790 | 19,312
FIRE RESCUE CALLS FOR SERVICE
. Jan [Feb | Mar | Apr | May |Jun |Jul |Aug | Sep | Oct | Nov | Dec
Typeofincident (Monthly) | 55 |5 |0y |22 [922 |22 [22 |22 |22 |22 |22 |22
Medical & Rescue 133 | 126 98 112 148 | 134 | 137 | 117 91
Cancelled, False Alarms, 41 38 56 34 36 52 57 58 30
Good Intent
Fire, Heat, Hazard, Weather
Related & Other 28 27 18 24 29 28 34 35 15
Totals 202 | 191 | 172 | 170 | 213 | 214 | 228 | 210 | 136
Type of Incident (per year) 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
Non-Medical CFS 948 840 911 900 772 841 783 758
Rescue / EMS Related 1051 1367 1570 1437 1022 1272 1328 1541
Totals 1999 2207 2481 2337 1794 2113 2111 2299
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Item 15.

| POLICE STATISTICS: Sept 2022 Total 2022
Group A Crimes
Murder/NonNeg Manslaughter 0 1
Kidnapping/Abduction 0 1
Forcible Rape/Sodomy/Fondling 3 41
Robbery 0 3
Assault 17 142
Arson 1 1
Extortion/Blackmail 1 3
Burglary/B&E 12 81
Theft 47 416
Motor Vehicle Theft 4 52
Counterfeit/Forgery 4 41
Fraud 12 146
Embezzlement 0 1
Stolen Property 0 8
Vandalism 12 123
Drug Offenses 9 120
Porno/Obscene Material 0 1
Op/Pro/Asst. Gambling 0 0
Weapon Law Violation 1 11
Group B Crimes
Bad Checks 1 1
Disorderly Conduct 6 32
Driving Under Influence 16 125
Drunkeness 10 92
Non-Violent Family Offense 0 2
Liguor Law Violation 0 8
Runaway 1 14
Trespassing 2 18
All Other Offenses 30 253
Group A Total: 119 1151
Group B Total: 66 546
Total Reported Crimes: 185 1697
Traffic Accidents
Fatality 0 0
Personal Injury 14 138
Hit and Run 18 159
Property Damage 62 546
Total reported Accidents 94 843
Calls for Service 1566 14205
Total Arrests 89 635

27

143




Flnchford

Item 15.

Cedar Falls Public Safety
Grid Map
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Item 15.

Cedar Falls Public Safety Experience Survey
(September)
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Item 16.

DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE & BUSINESS OPERATIONS

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA
220 CLAY STREET

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613
319-273-8600

FAX 319-268-5126

MEMORANDUM

Financial Services Division
Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council Members

FROM: Lisa Roeding, Controller/City Treasurer
DATE: October 18, 2022
SUBJECT: FY2022 City Street Finance Report

Attached for your review is the State required FY2022 City Street Financial Report for
the City of Cedar Falls. The report is based on actual FY2022 revenues and
expenditures relative to various aspects of street operations, maintenance, construction,
and debt service. lowa Code Section 312.14 requires all cities to submit the Street
Finance Report (SFR) to the lowa Department of Transportation (DOT) by December 1
of each year. Failure to submit the report may cause delay or suspension of future
State payments of Road Use Tax Funds to the City of Cedar Falls.

If you should have any questions, please contact me. Thank you.

Attachment

CC: Jennifer Rodenbeck, Director Finance & Business Operations
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{SIOWADOT

—
Bureau of Local Systems
Ames, IA 50010

City Street Finance Report

Fiscal Ye

Item 16.

Cedar Falls

10/18/2022 8:53:21 AM

Expenses
General Road Other Debt Capitial
Fund U Special Servi Proi Utilities Grand
Streets > pecia Srvice it (600 & UO) Total
(001) (110) Revenues (200) (300)
Salaries - Roads/Streets $1,032,002 $1,032,002
Benefits - Roads/Streets $388,149 $388,149
Training & Dues $10,316 $10,316
Building & Grounds Maint. $1,464 $1,464
& Repair
Road Beautification $1,933 $1,933
Vehicle & Office Equip $151 $151
Operation and Repair
Other Utilities $2,047 $2,047
Engineering $1,659,516 $411,024 $40,199 $2,110,739
Insurance $26,910 $26,910
Janitorial $7,326 $7,326
Payments to othe agencies $5,715,304 $5,715,304
Printing $92 $92
Street Maintenance $133,951 $133,951
Expense
Technology Expense $137,370 $137,370
Other Professional $341 $28,872 $24,595 $6,595 $60,403
Services
Other Contract Services $1,536 $1,536
Minor Equipment $15,320 $15,320
Purchases

Page 1 of 12

147




{SIOWADOT

—
Bureau of Local Systems
Ames, IA 50010

City Street Finance Report

Item 16.

Fiscal Ye

Cedar Falls
10/18/2022 8:53:21 AM

General "
Fund iy Speoal | sewce |  Popos | s Grand
(001) (110) Revenues (200) (300)

Office Supplies $198 $198
Operating Supplies $381,767 $381,767
Postage & Safety $3,563 $3,563
Other Supplies $2,899 $2,899
Furniture & Fixtures $11,939 $11,939
Heavy Equipment $517,186 $517,186
Right-of-Way $13,835 $154,557 $110,923 $279,315
Bridges & Culverts $28,539 $28,539
Street - New Roadway $1,943,008 $1,943,008
Street - Capacity $311,581 $311,581
Improvement

Street - Preservation $3,524,464 $4,333,730 $7,858,194
Street - Safety/ $165,564 $766,485 $95,371 $1,027,420
Environment

Principal Payment $426,272 $426,272
Interest Payment $86,491 $86,491
Transfer Out $386,720 $60,000 $225,019 $671,739
Traffic Control/Safety $542,308 $542,308
Snow Removal $361,445 $361,445
Depreciation & Building $56,749 $56,749
Utilities

Accounting/Recording $203,380 $203,380

Page 2 of 12
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QIU WADOT

Bureau of Local Systems
Ames, IA 50010

City Street Finance Report

Fiscal Ye

Item 16.

Cedar Falls

10/18/2022 8:53:21 AM

General "
Fund iy Speoal | sewce |  Popos | s Grand
(001) (110) Revenues (200) (300)
Street Cleaning $26,838 $341,047 $367,885
Snow Removal Salaries $67,496 $67,496
Snow Removal Benefits $23,540 $23,540
Total $4,864,455 $12,871,164 $512,763 $5,750,391 $819,154 $24,817,927

Page 3 of 12
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{SIOWADOT

—
Bureau of Local Systems
Ames, IA 50010

City Street Finance Report

Fiscal Ye

Item 16.

Cedar Falls

10/18/2022 8:53:21 AM

Revenue
General Road Other Debt Capitial
Fund U Special Servi Proi Utilities Grand
Streets > pecia Srvice it (600 & UO) Total
(001) (110) Revenues (200) (300)
Levied on Property $0 $0 $512,763 $512,763
TIF Revenues $4,349,763 $4,349,763
Other Taxes (Hotel, LOST) $7,270,647 $7,270,647
Interest $70,112 $70,112
Federal Grants $2,798 $2,798
State Revenues - Road $5,592,328 $5,592,328
Use Taxes
Local Contributions $203,068 $203,068
Charges/fees $819,154 $819,154
Contributions $54,629 $635,843 $270,515 $960,987
Sale of Property & $11,389 $11,389
Merchandise
Transfer In $671,739 $671,739
Total $0 $5,658,346 $12,998,104 $512,763 $476,381 $819,154 $20,464,748

Page 4 of 12
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QIU WADOT

Bureau of Local Systems
Ames, IA 50010

City Street Finance Report

Fiscal Ye

Item 16.

Cedar Falls

10/18/2022 8:53:21 AM

Bonds/Loans
BandlLoan Barance i Yo Principa nterest Barance
As of 7/1 Paid Paid As of 6/30
GO Bond 2020 $3,300,000 $335,000 $66,000 $121,596 $23,956 $2,965,000
GO Bond 2016 $1,400,000 $270,000 $28,000 $188,576 $19,556 $1,130,000
GO Bond 2018 $2,165,000 $265,000 $98,100 $116,100 $42,979 $1,900,000

Page 5 of 12
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Bureau of Local Systems
Ames, IA 50010

City Street Finance Report

Fiscal Ye

Item 16.

Cedar Falls

10/18/2022 8:53:21 AM

Equipment
Description Model Year Usage Type Cost Purchased Status
Sullair 185 DPQ Air Compressor 2008 Purchased $11,595 No Change
Sign Truck Ford 2007 Purchased $34,740 No Change
2-Ton Freightliner Dump Truck 2010 Purchased $121,439 No Change
Warnco Arrowboard 2008 Purchased $15,000 No Change
International Truck 7400 2019 Purchased $150,299 No Change
F350 Ford 1-Ton Utility / Service Body 2001 Purchased $18,593 No Change
B&B Tilt Flatbed Trailer 2005 Purchased $11,600 No Change
Dura Patch Hot Patch 2007 Purchased $57,000 No Change
Vactron VAC394 2007 Purchased $37,490 No Change
Vari-Tech Brine Trailer 2007 Purchased $4,670 No Change
MR Manhole Cutter 2020 Purchased $32,999 No Change
BEHNKE Tilt Trailer 2020 Purchased $6,525 No Change
Solar Arrow Board 2020 Purchased $4,500 No Change
Freightliner Dump Truck w/plow 2020 Purchased $142,433 No Change
Ford Super Duty F350 2021 Purchased $47,730 No Change
John Deere 544J Endloader 2006 Purchased $127,655 No Change
F450 1 Ton Truck 2008 Purchased $47,501 No Change
2 Ton International Dump Truck 2007 Purchased $95,498 No Change
2 Ton International Dump Truck 2007 Purchased $95,498 No Change
Cat M322 Excavator 2006 Purchased $178,977 No Change
Arrow Dorp Hammer Pavement Breaker 1982 Purchased $6,000 No Change

Page 6 of 12
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Bureau of Local Systems
Ames, IA 50010

City Street Finance Report

Item 16.

Fiscal Ye

Cedar Falls

10/18/2022 8:53:21 AM

Description Model Year Usage Type Cost Purchased Status

Cat Skid Steer 25782 2008 Purchased $27,200 No Change
2-Ton International Dump Truck 2010 Purchased $94,948 No Change
2-Ton International Dump Truck 2009 Purchased $108,220 No Change
Minnich Dowel Drill 2010 Purchased $6,850 No Change
SNOGO Blower 2008 Purchased $76,265 No Change
Husqvarna Concrete Saw 2009 Purchased $21,680 No Change
TARCO Leaf Blower 2003 Purchased $22,597 No Change
Wausau Snow Blower 2001 Purchased $63,000 Sold

Snow Pusher 8 ft. 2011 Purchased $3,446 No Change
John Deere 544K Endloader 2011 Purchased $146,400 No Change
John Deere 310 Backhoe 1995 Purchased $51,500 No Change
2-Ton Freightliner Dump Truck 2007 Purchased $52,839 No Change
F350 Ford 1-Ton Utility / Service Body 2006 Purchased $16,162 No Change
1-ton Dump Truck PW03127 2014 Purchased $49,854 No Change
Peterbuilt 365 Dump Truck 2011 Purchased $85,000 No Change
Mitsubishi Forklift 2002 Purchased $19,000 No Change
Ford F150 Pickup 2013 Purchased $30,294 No Change
Ford F550 Areial Lift 2008 Purchased $82,533 No Change
Ford F150 Pickup 2013 Purchased $26,506 No Change
2-ton International Dump Truck 1992 Purchased $42,236 No Change
2-ton International Dump Truck 1992 Purchased $42,236 No Change
John Deere 544E Loader 1989 Purchased $46,500 No Change
Hook Truck - Freightliner Chassis 1997 Purchased $9,100 No Change

Page 7 of 12

153




{SIOWADOT

—
Bureau of Local Systems
Ames, IA 50010

City Street Finance Report

Fiscal Ye

Item 16.

Cedar Falls

10/18/2022 8:53:21 AM

Description Model Year Usage Type Cost Purchased Status
Bobcat T4 Skidsteer S770 2018 Purchased $37,595 No Change
2-Ton International Dump Truck 2020 Purchased $158,248 No Change
End Loader - John Deere 544L (PW03192) 2019 Purchased $152,500 No Change
1-Ton Ford F550 Dump Truck 2020 Purchased $88,513 No Change
Crack Sealer / Compressor (PW003196) 2019 Purchased $72,839 No Change
1-ton Dump Truck 2004 Purchased $23,763 No Change
1-ton Dump Truck 2005 Purchased $23,960 No Change
2-ton Frieghtliner dump truck w/plow/box sander PW03158 2016 Purchased $139,759 No Change
2-ton International Dump Truck 1992 Purchased $42,236 No Change
Ford Street Flusher 1983 Purchased $20,980 No Change
2-ton Sterling Dump Truck 2005 Purchased $45,435 No Change
2-ton Sterling Dump Truck 2003 Purchased $66,075 No Change
2-ton Sterling Dump Truck 2003 Purchased $66,075 No Change
2-ton Freightliner Dump Truck 2002 Purchased $69,920 No Change
1-ton Ford Dump Truck 2000 Purchased $23,265 No Change
1-ton Ford Dump Truck 1999 Purchased $23,265 No Change
Concrete Crack Saw 1996 Purchased $6,999 No Change
Target Pro 66 Concrete Saw 2005 Purchased $16,100 No Change
Elgin Pelican Street Sweeper 2007 Purchased $107,000 No Change
Wacker Asphalt Roller 2007 Purchased $32,000 No Change
2-ton International Dump Truck 1998 Purchased $71,927 No Change
Vari-Tech Brine Trailer 2007 Purchased $4,670 No Change
Freightliner M2106 Elgin Crosswind 2014 Purchased $191,550 No Change

Page 8 of 12
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Bureau of Local Systems
Ames, IA 50010

City Street Finance Report

Fiscal Ye

Item 16.

Cedar Falls

10/18/2022 8:53:21 AM

Description Model Year Usage Type Cost Purchased Status
John Deere 544E Loader 1992 Purchased $69,100 No Change
Pro Patch Hotpatch - Freightliner PW03126 2015 Purchased $126,557 No Change
Freightliner 108 w/plow/box/sander PW03125 2014 Purchased $129,357 No Change
Chevrolet 1/2 ton Pickup 1998 Purchased $10,000 No Change
Ford F350 Truck 2010 Purchased $29,575 No Change
Wanco Arrowboard 2012 Purchased $5,495 No Change
Freightliner 108 w/plow/box/sander PW03130 2014 Purchased $130,107 No Change
Bobcat E351 Mini Excavator 2017 Purchased $52,536 No Change
F350 Ford 1-Ton Dump Truck 2002 Purchased $22,593 No Change
Ford F250 2017 Purchased $30,687 No Change
Ford F550 Dump Truck 2017 Purchased $87,677 No Change
Dura Tank 1000TT 2013 Purchased $23,794 No Change
Ford F250 Pickup 2018 Purchased $36,907 No Change
Vermeer BC1500 Chipper 2010 Purchased $22,200 No Change
John Deere 544H Loader 2002 Purchased $80,401 No Change
Freightliner 2-ton dump truck 2018 Purchased $155,040 No Change
Bobcat 18" Planer/ grinder 2018 Purchased $14,848 No Change
International Truck 7400 2019 Purchased $150,229 No Change
2-ton Freightliner Dumptruck 2012 Purchased $127,824 No Change
Ford LCF; road line painting machine (6002) 2006 Purchased $65,500 No Change
Snow Pusher 10 ft. 2011 Purchased $3,333 No Change
Snow Pusher 10 ft. 2011 Purchased $3,333 No Change
2-ton Freightliner Dump Truck 2004 Purchased $46,525 No Change

Page 9 of 12
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Bureau of Local Systems
Ames, IA 50010

City Street Finance Report

Fiscal Ye

Item 16.

Cedar Falls
10/18/2022 8:53:21 AM

Description Model Year Usage Type Cost Purchased Status
Chevrolet Express 3500 2014 Purchased $26,800 No Change
John Deere 672 Grader 2002 Purchased $131,806 No Change
John Deere 2355 Tractor-Mower 1989 Purchased $18,000 No Change
John Deere 310 Backhoe 1996 Purchased $28,400 No Change
John Deere 570A Grader 1986 Purchased $91,500 No Change
Ford F250 3/4 ton pick up 2018 Purchased $32,694 No Change
Elgin Pelican Street Sweeper #293 2021 Purchased $234,400 New
John Deere 324L End Loader #272 2021 Purchased $101,483 New
Larue D40 Snow Blower 2021 Purchased $159,725 New
Bobcat E60 Mini Excavator 2021 Purchased $53,634 New

Page 10 of 12
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QIU WADOT

Bureau of Local Systems
Ames, IA 50010

City Street Finance Report

Street Projects

Fiscal Ye

Item 16.

Cedar Falls
10/18/2022 8:53:21 AM

Project Description Contract Price Final Price Contractor Name
Reconstructing existing gravel alleys in $208,145 $219,264|Benton's Sand and Gravel
Cedar Falls with new permeable pavers
or concrete surface
Reconstructing W. 12th Street from $1,019,448 $1,031,499|Perterson Contractor, Inc.
College St. to Tremont St. with a new
PCC pavement surface
Reconstructing existing streets in $3,385,340 $3,443,972|Perterson Contractor, Inc.
Cedar Falls with either a new PCC or
asphalt surface
2020 Permeable Alley Project $208,077 $219,489|Benton's Sand and Gravel

Page 11 of 12
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Qlu WADOT

Bureau of Local Systems
Ames, IA 50010

City Street Finance Report

Fiscal Ye

Item 16.

Cedar Falls

10/18/2022 8:53:21 AM

Summary
CRsE Road Other Debt Capitial
Fund : : i Utilities Grand
Streets Use Special Service Projects (600 & U0) Total
(001) (110) Revenues (200) (300)
Begining Balance $0 $9,893,925 $1,883,447 $0 $494,181 $0 $12,271,553
SubTotal Expenses (-) $4,477,735 $12,871,164 $512,763 $5,690,391 $594,135 $24,146,188
Transfers Out (-) $386,720 $60,000 $225,019 $671,739
Subtotal Revenues (+) $0 $5,658,346 $12,326,365 $512,763 $476,381 $819,154 $19,793,009
Transfers In (+) $671,739 $671,739
Ending Balance $0 $10,687,816 $2,010,387 $0 ($4,779,829) $0 $7,918,374

Resolution Number:

Execution Date: Monday, November 7, 2022

Signature: Lisa Roeding

Page 12 of 12
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DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE & BUSINESS OPERATIONS

Item 17.

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA
220 CLAY STREET

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613
319-273-8600

FAX 319-268-5126

INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM

Financial Services Division

TO:  Mayor Green & City Council Members
FROM: Lisa Roeding, Controller/City Treasurer
DATE: October 31, 2022
SUBJECT: FY2022 Annual Comprehensive Financial Report

The FY2022 Annual Comprehensive Financial Report will be reviewed at the Finance
and Business Operations Committee meeting on November 7, 2022. Attached for your
review are the following items:

FY2022 Annual Comprehensive Financial Report — This report includes the
transmittal letter; the Independent Auditor’'s Report; Management’s Discussion and
Analysis; the audited financial statements for the year ending June 30, 2022;
supplementary information; and statistical information about the City of Cedar Falls.

Management Letter — This document addresses any issues that the auditors noted
during their engagement and also provides suggestions for improvement.

FY2022 Information to Comply with Government Auditing Standards and Uniform
Guidance — This report contains the Auditor’s reports on the financial information and
internal control as it relates to the Federal Financial Programs; a summary of the
Auditor’s results; and the findings related to required statutory reporting.

The FY2022 Annual Comprehensive Financial Report will be on the Council Agenda for
the November 7, 2022 Council meeting. City of Cedar Falls staff recommends that the
City Council receive and file the FY2022 Annual Comprehensive Financial Report.
Upon Council approval, these reports will be filed with the State Auditor’s Office and
sent to the appropriate agencies.

If you have any further questions regarding these audit reports or about our annual
audit, please feel free to contact Jennifer Rodenbeck or myself.

cc: Jennifer Rodenbeck, Director of Finance & Business Operations
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E: DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE AND BUSINESS OPERATIONS

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA
220 CLAY STREET

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613
PHONE 319-273-8600

FAX 319-268-5126
www.cedarfalls.com

November 7, 2022

To the Honorable Mayor, Members of the City Council and Citizens of the City of Cedar Falls:

The City of Cedar Falls, lowa (City) is required by the Code of lowa to publish a complete set of audited
financial statements presented in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. Pursuant to
these requirements, | am pleased to submit to you the Annual Comprehensive Financial Report of the
City of Cedar Falls, lowa, for the year ended June 30, 2022. This is the first Annual Comprehensive
Financial Report completed in compliance with the Government Standards Board (GASB) Statements No.

87.

Management assumes full responsibility for the completeness and reliability of the information contained
in the report, based upon a comprehensive framework of internal control that it has established for this
purpose. Because of the cost of internal control should not exceed anticipated benefits, the objective is to
provide reasonable, rather than absolute, assurance that the financial statements are free of any material

misstatements.

Eide Bailly, LLP, a firm of independent public accountants has issued an unmodified (“clean”) opinion on
the City's financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2022. Their opinion is included in the Financial
Section of this report.

Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) immediately follows the independent auditor’s report and
provides a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis of the basic financial statements. This letter of
transmittal is designed to complement MD&A and should be read in conjunction with it.

The City is required to undergo an annual single audit in conformity with the provisions of Title 2 U.S.
Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit
Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Information to comply with the Uniform Guidance
and “Government Auditing Standards” is included in another report under a separate cover.

PROFILE OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS

The City, incorporated in 1854, is located in the northeastern part of the state, has a land area of 28.9
square miles and a population of 40,713. The City is empowered to levy a property tax on both real and

-1 -
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personal property located within its boundaries, and has the power by state statute to extend its corporate
limits by annexation, which occur periodically when deemed appropriate by the City Council.

The City operates under a mayor-council form of government with an appointed city administrator. Policy-
making and legislative authority are vested in the governing council, which consists of seven members.
The City Council is responsible, among other things, for passing ordinances, adopting the budget, setting
goals, and approving mayor-appointed committees. The mayor is responsible for supervising the City
Administrator. The City Administrator is appointed by the Council and serves as the chief administrative
officer. The mayor and council members are elected on a nonpartisan basis. The Council consists of two
council members elected at large and one council member elected from each of the five wards as
established by ordinance, elected for terms of four years. The mayor is elected at large and to a two-year

term.

The City of Cedar Falls provides many municipal services including fire and police protection, streets,
garbage collection, parks, recreation, cultural arts, planning, zoning, general administration, and sewer
and storm water services. For financial reporting purposes, all funds, agencies, boards, commissions,
trusts and authorities involved in the provision of these services are included if the City is financially
accountable.  Financial accountability is determined by several different factors, including fiscal
dependence, ability to impose will upon the entity’s governing body, provision of specific financial burdens
or benefits and separate legal entity status. After careful evaluation of these factors, the City has
included in this financial report the Cedar Falls Electric Utility, Gas Utility, Water Utility, and
Communications Utility, as well as all funds of the City. The Utilities are each reported as discretely

presented component units.

The City Council is required by Chapter 384 of the Code of lowa to adopt an annual budget on or before
March 31 of each year. The annual budget serves as the foundation for the City’s financial planning and
control and is prepared by function. The adopted budget provides appropriations (authority to spend) for
program operations for the fiscal year that begins on July 1 and ends on June 30 of the following year.
Budget amendments must be prepared and adopted in the same manner as the origina! budget.

ECONOMIC CONDITION AND OUTLOOK

The economic condition and outlook of Cedar Falls continues to be strong. The Cedar Falls economy was
insulated from many of the impacts created by the recent recession due to the stability of the University of
Northern lowa and a diverse service business sector.

Grow Cedar Valley was formed in the metro area to organize the human resources and generate needed
development capital to attract new business and industry to the area and to encourage expansion of
businesses already in the area. As a result, many new businesses have located offices and plants in the
metro area. Target Corporation constructed a distribution center with an assessed value of approximately
$45 million in FY02 and in FY08 completed a second refrigeration center. The Cedar Falls Industrial and
Technology Park continues to show tremendous expansion.

Since the devaluation of property in 1986-1988, Cedar Falls has had steady growth in property values.
Assessed values increased in FY23 by $245.7 million. With the implementation of the commercial
rollback by the State of lowa, taxable values increased by approximately $99 million. (See Attachment A)
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The City of Cedar Falls maintains a comparatively low tax rate. Cedar Falls has the fifth lowest tax rate
per capita of the twenty largest cities in the state of lowa for FY22 (See Attachment B). This low rate can
be attributed to the efforts of the City to streamline operations over the past twenty three years. This has
been accomplished by maintaining the approximate same number of employees, however City Council
may need to prioritize services or focus on key services to address the over extension of City staff. Cedar
Falls has one of the lowest numbers of full-time employees per 1,000 residents in FY21. (See Attachment
C). The Waterloo-Cedar Falls Metropolitan area has historically enjoyed a relatively low unemployment
rate. As of June 2022 2.7% of the Waterloo-Cedar Falls Metropolitan workforce was unemployed.

Over the past ten years Cedar Falls' residential housing sales prices have significantly increased. In
2011, the average sales price reported was $197,576. In 2021, the average sales price was $269,165,
which is a thirty six (36) percent increase in the past ten years (See Attachment D). These statistics
indicate that Cedar Falls' local economy is sound and there is a strong market for Cedar Falls homes.

Housing values have surged from the recession and devaluation of the mid-1980's to values that once
again place the homeowners living in Cedar Falls in an advantageous market position. This market
growth is a credit to businesses, the school system, utilities, and quality of City services in Cedar Falls.
Each entity has worked together to strengthen the local economy, create jobs, and improve Cedar Falls'

quality of life.

MAJOR INITIATIVES

Street Projeclts

The City has partnered with the lowa DOT to substantially upgrade some of the major transportation
routes through the City. In 2018, significant improvements to the Highway 58 and Viking Road
intersection corridor began, which will include pedestrian accommodations. The $32 million project was
completed in FY2020 without debt and with the assistance of TIF revenues as well as federal
transportation funding. The most recent of these reconstruction projects include Greenhill Road and
Main Street Intersection project which will reconstruct the intersection to a roundabout to improve the
capacity, efficiency, and safety of the intersection. The intersection was part of the adopted Greenhill
Road Corridor Study. Right of way acquisition began in September 2021 and the project will be funded
by G.O. bond and local option sales tax funds. Cedar Heights Drive Reconstruction began in 2019 with
construction of the roadway to include two roundabouts at Greenhill Road and Huntington Drive. The
reconstruction of Cedar Heights Drive should be complete by fall of 2022. Federal/State funding, Local
option sales tax funding, Road Use Tax funding and G.O. Bond funding will be used to fund this project.
The Cedar Falls downtown streetscape project and downtown brick replacement project are nearing
completion. These projects were funded with downtown tax increment finance funding and Black Hawk
Gaming grant funding. These projects started in 2019 and will wrap up in the fall of 2022. With the
building of the new Cedar Falls high school on 27th Street, reconstruction of this corridor started spring of
2022. This section of roadway will go from a two-lane to a four-lane road to help with the additional traffic
from the new high school. Road Use tax, local option sales tax, and G.O. bond funding along with
funding from Cedar Falls Community Schoo! District will pay for this project.
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Other Projects

The City has increased the levee to the 500-year flood range protection. This project is funded by a sales
tax grant from the state of lowa and was completed in 2020. The City of Cedar Falls is in the final stages
of completing FEMA’s 44 CFR 65.10 compliance for Levee Accreditation. The City started a City Hall
Repurpose and Remodel project in 2020, which will include the rebuild of offices with the departure of
Public Safety Police Operations from the lower level. Phase | is set to be completed October 2022, with
the final phase completed by January 2023. The project will be funded by capital reserves.

Global Pandemic

Challenges and changes brought about by pandemic were not as severe as the City estimated in spring
of 2020. The City did see reduction in hotel/motel tax revenues of 14% in 2021, however the projection
for fiscal year 2022 was higher than expected, a return to pre-pandemic rates. The Cedar Falls
Recreation Center was awarded $328,334 from the lowa Fitness Center Relief Grant to help with the loss
of revenues since March 2020.

In an effort to accelerate and sustain the nation’s economic recovery from the impacts of the COVID-19
pandemic, the Federal Government enacted the American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) signed into law in
March 2021, which provides over $350 billion of relief funds to state and local governments. Under ARPA
the City was allocated $6.5 million over two years. The use of these funds is broadly defined in the bill
from revenue replacement to costs related to COVID-19 response, as well as certain infrastructure
projects. The City has two projects slated to use the ARPA funding award. The first is Main Street
Reconstruction Project which will begin FY2023; this project will use an estimated $1,900,000 of the
awarded ARPA funding on sewer and stormwater repairs. The second project is the Nutrient Reduction
Improvement Project, which will start in FY2024: this project is estimated to use $4,600,000 in ARPA
funds on centralized wastewater treatment.

LONG-TERM FINANCIAL PLANNING

The City Council and administration routinely consider the long-term view regarding financial matters.
Operating budget decisions are based on the long-term impact of appropriations and funding. A three-
year budget financial plan is prepared each year for all funds of the City. The City has a detailed Capital
Improvements Plan (CIP) that considers the impact of the investment in infrastructure, the associated
debt burden, and any changes in operating costs associated with maintaining new assets.

In addition to the financial plan and CIP, the City Council each year has a goal setting session where they
identify goals for the upcoming fiscal year and discuss strategy in dealing with any upcoming financial
challenges. Each department prior to the goal setting session prepares a document outlining their
accomplishments during the past year and the goals for their department in the upcoming year.

RELEVANT FINANCIAL POLICIES

The City Council through their annual goals and financial plan document has adopted a comprehensive
set of budget and fiscal policies relating to financial management.
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Budget — Adopt a balanced budget, which is reflective of the community’s economic climate and needs.
Maintain a stable property tax rate, depositing annually funds in excess of operations expenses in a
capital reserve account for one-time expenses as approved by the City Council. Evaluate each newly
proposed service to determine cost, relative importance and value of each service. Study methods of

saving energy.

Cash Reserves — The City will maintain an unreserved balance at year-end at a level determined to meet
cash flow requirements, emergency needs, and bond rating criteria. The minimum criteria shall be:

e General Fund — The City Council has established that the General Fund balance be

maintained between 15% and 25% and preferably at the 20-25% level.

e Refuse Fund — 20-30%, but no less than $500,000.

e Sewer Fund — 65-75%, but no less than $1,500,000.

e Street Fund — 20-30%, but no less than $1,000,000.

e Storm Water Fund — 10-20%, but no less than $200,000.

e Emergency Fund — not less than $1,500,000.

Economic Development — The City will take active measures to encourage economic development of the
community with the intent of increasing jobs and the tax base.

Debt Administration — Long-term debt will fund the design, inspection, and construction of capital
improvement projects and will not be used for annual operating expenses. The total general obligation
debt will not exceed 5% of the total assessed value of real property as required under the Code of lowa.
The issuance of new debt shall not exceed a replacement debt level. Whenever possible, existing debt
should be refinanced to secure the lowest possible interest costs.

Capital Improvement Budget Policies - The City will make all capital improvements in accordance with an
adopted capital improvements program and will develop a multi-year plan for capital improvements on an
annual basis. The development of the capital improvements program is coordinated with the annual
budget process and will determine the least costly financing method for all new projects. The City will
maintain all assets at a level adequate to protect the City’s capital investment and to minimize future
maintenance and replacement costs. A maintenance and replacement schedule for equipment will be
developed and followed.

AWARDS

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded a
Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the City of Cedar Falls for its annual
comprehensive financial report for the year ended June 30, 2021. The Certificate of Achievement is a
prestigious national award recognizing conformance with the highest standards for preparation of state
and local government financial reports.

In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a government unit must publish an easily readable
and efficiently organized annual comprehensive financial report, whose contents conform to program
standards. The Annual Comprehensive Financial Report must satisfy both accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America and applicable legal requirements.
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A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. The City of Cedar Falls has received a
Certificate of Achievement for the last thirty two consecutive years (fiscal years ended 1990-2021). We
believe our current report continues to conform to the Certificate of Achievement program requirements,
and we are submitting it to GFOA.

ACKNOWLEDGMENTS

The preparation of this report could not be accomplished without the efficient and dedicated service of the
entire staff of the Financial Services Division, particularly Jennifer Rodenbeck, Director of Finance and
Business Operations, Cathy Niebergall, Financial Technician, and Paul Kockler, Accountant. Each
member of the division has my sincere appreciation for the contributions made in the preparation of this
report. | would also like to thank the members of the City Council for their continued interest and support
in planning and conducting the financial operations of the City in a responsible and prudent manner.

Sincerely,

Lisa Roeding, CMFO
Controller/City Treasurer
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ATTACHMENT A
taxvalue23
Taxable Valuations FY13-FY23
City of Cedar Falis
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@Taxable Value BAssessed Value

1,393,511,204
1,622,862,335
1,490,616,188
1,509,722,828
1,569,292,287
1,750,040,895
1,832,652,499
1,950,451,511
1,963,719,839
1,960,696,679
2,060,390,605

The last ten years have provided a
steady growth trend in assessed
valuations. In addition, FY19 was the first

2,618,319,843 year that assessed values exceeded
2,650,433,900 $3 billion.

2,729,240,639

2,769,405,368

2,897,854,208 For FY23, assessed values increased
2,965,854,183 by $245,759,683. Taxable values
3,099,765,282 increased by $99,693,926.

3,195,848,285
3,341,492,657

3,432,518,333
3,678,278,016
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ATTACHMENT B

Property Tax Per Capita (FY22)

20 Largest Cities

1,000.00

900.00

800.00

700.00

600.00

500.00

400.00

300.00

200.00
WDM IC

CB BE CR

DA UR

JO DM WA CL MC FD MR AN CF SC MA AM bu

Property Tax Per Capita (FY22)
20 Largest lowa Cities

West Des Moines ; 68,723
lowa City 892.56 74,828 IC
Council Bluffs 850.84 62,799 CB
Bettendorf 830.94 39,102 BE For over two decades Cedar Falls' local
Cedar Rapids 813.21 137,710f CR government has operated at one of the lowest per
Davenport 795.87 101,724 DA capita property tax rates among the 20 largest cities
Urbandale 745.90 45,580 UR in lowa.
Johnston 687.85 24,064| JO
Des Moines 665.76 214,133 DM
Waterloo 649.03 67,314] WA At a cost of $549.19 per person, the City is
Clinton 644.63 24,469 CL substantially below the average rate of $672.51.
Mason City 630.48 27,338| MC This rate can be attributed to the City's concerted
Fort Dodge 623.95 24,871 FD efforts to streamline operations over the past 20
Marion 613.83 41,535 MR years.
Ankeny 608.07 67,887 AN
Cedar Falls 549.19 40,713 CF If the City of Cedar Falls operated at the state
Sioux City 524.85 85,797 SC average property tax per capita, an addional 5.02
Marshalltown 506.08 27,591 MA million dollars would be devoted to operations. This
Ames 484.22 66,427 AM would be an increase of 22% of taxes levied in
Dubuque 438.58 59,667 DU FY22.

Average 672.51
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Full-Time Employees Per 1,000 Residents
Comparison of 20 Largest Cities

12

S FE L O FE T
FY21 2020 Employees

City Employees | Population | Per 1,000 | | Cedar Falls city government
Cedar Ra_plds 1356.0 137,710 9.85 per 1,000 capita comparing
Mason Clty 240.0 27,338 8.78 the tOp 20 IargeSt cities.
Sioux City 710.0 85,797 8.28
Fort Dodge 205.0 24,871 8.24 Cedar Falls has 2.02
Des Moines 1650.0| 214,133 7.71 employees per 1,000 capita
Waterloo 512.0 67,314 7.61 less than the state average,
Davenport 772.0| 101,724 7.59 which is equivalent to 82
Ames 492.0 66,427 7 41 fewer full-time employees.
lowa City 552.0 74,828 7.38 Empl ¢ reducti h
Clinton 180.0| 24,469 7.36 b;“e‘;‘i’r{]";gr‘ngf‘t:g c')‘:/r(‘:r tha(;’e
Council Bluffs 457.0 62,799 7.28 last 10 years, which has
W. Des Moines 479.0 68,723 6.97 streamlined Cedar Falls’
Marshalltown 158.0 27,591 573 employment.
Bettendorf 222.0 39,102 5.68
Urbandale 245.0 45,580 5.38
Marion 216.0 41,535 5.20
Johnston 121.0 24,064 5.03
Cedar Falls 204.0 40,713 5.01
Ankeny 293.0 67,887 4.32

Average: 7.03

Among the top twenty largest cities in the State of lowa, the City of Cedar Falls
continues to have one of the lowest number of employees per capita. The pressures
of new construction growth, road development, and societal values have placed

greater demands on existing
prioritize services or focus on

-9-

staff. In the near future, the City Council will need to
key services to address the over extension of City staff.
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The average sale price of residential properties in
Cedar Falls has grown by 36% between 2011- 2021
from $197,576 to $269,165

2011 197,576
2012 206,773
2013 219,746
2014 223,093
2015 225,048
2016 217,393
2017 219,263
2018 226,890
2019 235,621
2020 245,349
2021 269,165
Average 225,992

_10_
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EideBailly.

CPAs & BUSINESS ADVISORS

Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Honorable Mayor and
Members of the City Council
City of Cedar Falls, lowa

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinions

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities,
the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining
fund information of the City of Cedar Falls, lowa (City) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2022, and
the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the City’s basic financial
statements as listed in the table of contents.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the
aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund
information of the City, as of June 30, 2022, and the respective changes in financial position, and, where
applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinions

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America (GAAS) and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States (Government Auditing Standards). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of the City,
and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements
relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our audit opinions.

Adoption of New Accounting Standard

As discussed in Notes 1 and 4 to the financial statements, the City has adopted the provisions of
Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 87, Leases, for the year ended June 30,
2022. Accordingly, a restatement has been made to the City’s net position and fund balance as of July 1,
2021, to restate beginning net position. Our opinions are not modified with respect to this matter.

15
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Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; and for the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or

error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions
or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the City’s ability to continue
as a going concern for twelve months beyond the financial statement date, including any currently
known information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinions. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute
assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS and
Government Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that,
individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on
the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards, we:

. Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks.
Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is
expressed.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

. Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the
aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the City’s ability to continue as a going concern
for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related

matters that we identified during the audit.
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Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s
discussion and analysis and the other required supplementary information listed in the table of contents
be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of
management and, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial
reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or
historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary
information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America,
which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and
comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic
financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial
statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the
limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any
assurance.

Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements. The combining nonmajor fund financial
statements and capital asset schedules are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a
required part of the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management
and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to
prepare the basic financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures
applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including
comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records
used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and
other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America. In our opinion, the combining nonmajor fund financial statements and capital asset
schedules are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a

whole.

Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information included in the annual report. The other
information comprises the introductory and statistical sections but does not include the basic financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon. Our opinions on the basic financial statements do not
cover the other information, and we do not express an opinion or any form of assurance thereon.

In connection with our audit of the basic financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and consider whether a material inconsistency exists between the other information and
the basic financial statements, or the other information otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If,
based on the work performed, we conclude that an uncorrected material misstatement of the other
information exists, we are required to describe it in our report.
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Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated October 27,
2022 on our consideration of the City’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, and other
matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the
effectiveness of the City’s internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an
integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering
City of Cedar Falls’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

@Mu%ﬁ

Dubuque, lowa
October 27, 2022
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Our discussion and analysis of the City of Cedar Falls’ financial performance provides an overview of the City's
financial activities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022. Please read it in conjunction with the transmittal letter

found on pages 1 — 10 of this report.

2022 FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

> Revenues of the City’s governmental activities increased 4.20%, or $2,405,923, from fiscal year 2021 to fiscal
year 2022, primarily due to the increase in property taxes. Property taxes increased $2.2 million for all
activities.

> Program expenses of the City's governmental activities and business activities increased by less than 1% in
fiscal year 2022 from fiscal year 2021.

» The City’s net position increased 3.27%, or $13,724,163, over the June 30, 2021 balance. Of this amount, the
net position of the governmental activities increased by $10,258,531 and the net position of the business-type
activities increased by $3,465,632.

USING THIS ANNUAL REPORT
The annual report consists of a series of financial statements and other information as follows:

¢ Management’s Discussion and Analysis introduces the basic financial statements and provides an analytical
overview of the City’s financial activities.

e Government-wide Financial Statements consist of a Statement of Net Position and a Statement of Activities.
These provide information about the activities of the City as a whole and present an overall view of the City's
finances.

e The Fund Financial Statements tell how governmental activities were financed in the short term as well as

what remains for future spending. Fund financial statements report the City’s operations in more detail than
the government-wide statements by providing information about the City's most significant funds.

e Notes to Financial Statements provide additional information essential to a full understanding of the data

provided in the basic financial statements.

e Required Supplementary Information further explains and supports the financial statements with a comparison
of the City’s budget for the year, the City's proportionate share of the net pension liability and related
contributions, as well as presenting the Schedule of Funding Progress for the Retiree Health Plan.

o Other Supplementary Information provides detailed information about the nonmajor Special Revenue and
Capital Projects Funds and the Internal Service Funds.

REPORTING THE CITY’S FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES

Government-wide Financial Statements

One of the most important questions asked about the City’s finances is, “Is the City of Cedar Falls in a better financial
position at the end of the fiscal year, compared to last year?” The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of
Activities report information about the City as a whole and about its activities in a way that helps answer this question.
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These statements include all assets and liabilities using the accrual basis of accounting, which is similar to the
accounting used by most private-sector companies. All of the current year's revenues and expenses are taken into
account regardless of when cash is received or paid.

The Statement of Net Position presents all of the City’s assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, and deferred
inflows of resources, with the difference reported as “net position”. Over time, increases or decreases in the City’s net
position are one indicator of whether its financial health is improving or deteriorating. A person will need to consider
other non-financial factors, however, such as changes in the City's property tax base and the condition of the City's
infrastructure, to assess the overall health of the City.

The Statement of Activities presents information showing how the City's net position changed during the most recent
fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related
cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will not result in cash

flows until future fiscal periods.

The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities report two kinds of activities:

e Governmental activites — Most of the City's basic services are reported here, including the general
administration, streets, fire, police, parks, recreation, library, and housing and block grant assistance. Property
taxes, local option sales taxes, road use taxes, and federal and state grants finance most of these activities.

e Business-type activities — The City of Cedar Falls charges a fee to customers to help it cover all or most of the
cost of certain services it provides. The City’s sewer, refuse, and storm water are reported in this section.

The Government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 31 - 34 of this report.

Fund Financial Statements

The Fund financial statements provide detailed information about the most significant funds, not the City as a whole.
Some funds are required to be established by State law or by bond requirements. The City has two kinds of funds:

e Governmental Funds — Most of the City’s basic services are reported in governmental funds, which focus on
how money flows into and out of these funds and the balances left at year-end that are available for spending.
These funds are reported using an accounting method called the “modified accrual basis” of accounting, which
measures cash and all other financial assets that can readily be converted to cash. The governmental fund
statements provide a detailed short-term view of the City’s general government operations and the basic
services it provides. Governmental fund information helps you determine whether there are more or fewer
financial resources that can be spent in the near future to finance City programs.

The required financial statements for governmental funds include a balance sheet and a statement of
revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances. We describe the relationship between governmental
activities (reported in the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities) and governmental funds in
a reconciliation at the bottom of the fund financial statements.

The City maintains 22 individual governmental funds. Information is presented separately in the governmental
fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund
balance for the General Fund, Hospital Fund, TIF Fund, Street Construction Fund, Street Repair Fund, Debt
Service Fund, Capital Improvements Fund, and Bond Fund, all of which are considered to be major funds.
Data from the other thirteen governmental funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation.
Individual fund data for each of these non-major governmental funds is provided in the form of combining
statements located in the supplementary information section of this report.
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The basic Governmental Fund Financial Statements can be found on pages 35 - 39 of this report.

Proprietary Funds — When the City charges customers for the service it provides, these services are generally
reported in proprietary funds. The City maintains two different types of proprietary funds. Enterprise funds are
used to report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the government-wide financial
statements. The City uses enterprise funds to account for its sewer, refuse and storm water activities.

Internal Service Funds are used to accumulate and allocate costs internally. The City uses internal service
funds for its information systems, vehicle maintenance, and various risk management activities. Because
these services predominantly benefit governmental rather than business-type functions, they have been
included within governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements.

Proprietary funds provide the same information as the government-wide financial statements, only in more
detail. The proprietary fund financial statements provide separate information for the Sewer Fund, Refuse
Fund, and Storm Water Fund, all of which are considered major funds. Internal Service Funds are combined
into a single, aggregated presentation in the proprietary fund financial statements. Individual fund data for
internal service funds is provided in the form of combining statements located in the supplementary

information section of this report.

The basic Proprietary Fund Financial Statements can be found on pages 40 - 45 of this report.
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GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of financial position. The analysis that follows
focuses on the change in the net position for governmental and business-type activities.

Governmental activities Business-type activities Total
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
(not restated) (not restated) (not restated)
Current and

other assets $ 159,740,794 $ 147417225 $ 17,901,057 $ 14,156,404 $ 177,641,851 §$§ 161,573,629
Capital assets 248,905,921 242,571,541 91,910,010 92,555,952 340,815,931 335,127,493
Total assets $ 408,646,715 $ 389988766 $ 109,811,067 $ 106,712,356 $ 518,457,782 $ 496,701,122

Deferred Outflows
of Resources $ 5,240,086 $ 8,261,490 $ 345,587 $ 450,945 § 55685673 $§ 8,712,435

Long-term liabilites $ 16,142,827 $ 35,850,885 $ 11,059,183 $ 13985624 $ 27,202,010 $ 49,836,509
Other liabilities 15,953,597 5,639,540 1,786,406 541,073 17,740,003 6,180,613

Total liabilities $ 32096424 $ 41490425 $ 12845589 $§ 14,526,697 $ 44942013 § 56,017,122

Deferred Inflows of

Resources $ 44,308,217 29,536,202 $ 1,263,443 $ 54614 $ 45571660 $ 29,590,816

&

Net position:

Net investment

in capital assets ~ $ 242,518,284 $ 235,252,432 $ 81,353,542 $ 80,744907 $ 323871,826 $ 315,997,339
Restricted 38,412,903 37,325,937 41,540 29,990 38,454,443 37,355,927
Unrestricted 56,550,973 54,645,260 14,652,540 11,807,093 71,203,513 66,452,353

Total net position $ 337,482,160 $ 327,223,629 $ 06047622 $ 92581990 $ 433529782 § 419,805,619

Net position of governmental activities increased from FY21 by approximately $10 million, or 3.10%. This increase
was due primarily to the City Hall remodel project, Downtown Streetscape, Cedar Heights Drive, and Viking Road
street projects. The increase is also due to the continued strength of the property tax base and the small amount of
general obligation debt outstanding by the City. Net position of business-type activities increased from FY21 by
approximately $3.5 million or 3.74%. This increase was due to the reduction in long-term liabilities. The sewer fund
continues to pay down outstanding debt, including the internal loans. The largest portion of the City’s net position is
the net investment in capital assets (e.g., land, infrastructure, buildings, and equipment). The debt related to the
investment in capital assets is liquidated with sources other than capital assets. Restricted net position represent
resources that are subject to external restrictions, bond covenants, constitutional provisions or enabling legislation on
how they can be used. Unrestricted net position, the part of net position that can be used to finance day-to-day
operations are approximately $71 million at the end of the year. The amounts for FY21 were not restated to reflect the
recording of a lease receivable and deferred inflows under GASB Statement No. 87. However, this information has
been presented in the footnotes to the financial statements.
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For the year ended June 30, 2022, net position changed as foliows:

Item 17.

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
(not restated) (not restated) (not restated)
Revenues
Program Revenues
Charges for
services $ 4,114,166 $ 3,801,053 $ 12,036,036 $ 11,438,963 $ 16,150,202 $ 15,330,016
Operating grants
and contributions 2,746,064 3,012,469 - - 2,746,064 3,012,469
Capital grants and
contributions 2,731,155 3,180,994 91,786 1,534,377 2,822,941 4,715,371
General Revenues
Property taxes 29,063,485 26,903,746 - - 29,063,485 26,903,746
Local Option Sales Tax 7,360,971 6,043,520 - - 7,360,971 6,043,520
Hotel/Motel Tax & Other 1,514,779 911,506 - - 1,514,779 911,506
Use of money and
property 1,065,179 1,314,163 82,703 106,682 1,147,882 1,420,845
intergovernmental 6,948,043 7,284,160 - - 6,948,043 7,284,160
Miscellaneous 1,476,082 1,997,826 - - 1,476,082 1,997,826
Gain/Loss on Sale of assets - 35,225 4,364 (37,679) 4,364 (2,454)
Utility contribution 2,612,293 2,651,632 - - 2,612,293 2,651,632
Total revenues $ 59,632,217 $ 57,226,294 $ 12,214,889 § 13,042,343 $ 71,847,106 $ 70,268,637
Expenses
Public safety $ 11,596,217 $ 14,443,799 $ - $ - % 11,596,217 $ 14,443,799
Public works 18,503,503 15,089,189 - - 18,503,503 15,089,189
Health and social
services 174,754 352,735 - - 174,754 352,735
Culture and
recreation 7,989,443 8,227,093 = s 7,989,443 8,227,093
Community and
economic
development 4,637,338 4,741,335 - - 4,637,338 4,741,335
General government 5,012,842 5,410,951 - - 5,012,842 5,410,951
Debt service 128,515 174,868 - - 128,515 174,868
Sewer - - 5,594,416 5,001,085 5,594,416 5,001,085
Refuse - - 3,451,795 3,235,095 3,451,795 3,235,095
Storm Water - - 1,034,120 1,050,855 1,034,120 1,050,855
Total expenses $ 48,042,612 $ 48,439,970 $ 10,080,331 $ 9,287,035 $ 58,122,943 § 57,727,005
Increase in net position
before transfers $ 11,589,605 $ 8,786,324 $ 2,134,558 $ 3,755,308 $ 13,724,163 $ 12,541,632
Transfers (1,331,074) (1,238,028) 1,331,074 1,238,028 - -
Increase in net position $ 10,258,531 $ 7,548,296 $ 3,465,632 $ 4,993,336 $ 13,724,163 § 12,541,632
Net position, beginning, as 327,223,629 319,675,333 92,581,990 87,588,654 419,805,619 407,263,987
restated
Net position, ending $ 337,482,160 $ 327,223,629 $ 96,047,622 $ 92,581,990 $ 433,529,782 $ 419,805,619
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Property taxes and other taxes, including local option sales tax, and hotel motel taxes increased by approximately $4 million
for the governmental activities. This is due to recovery after the COVID-19 pandemic and increases in the residential
rollback. Revenues increased in business activities due to sewer and storm water charges for services.

The cost of all governmental activities this year was approximately $48 million which was very comparable to last year.
However, as shown in the Statement of Activities on pages 33 and 34, the amount taxpayers ultimately financed for these
activities was only $38 million because some of the cost was paid by those directly benefiting from the programs or by other
governments and organizations which subsidized certain programs with grants and contributions. The City paid the
remaining “public benefit” portion of governmental activities with property tax (some of which could only be used for certain
programs) and with other receipts, such as interest, local option sales tax and miscellaneous receipts.

INDIVIDUAL MAJOR FUND ANALYSIS

Governmental Fund Highlights

As of the end of the current fiscal year, the City’s governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of
$91,741,984. $681,539 is nonspendable for inventory. $37,831,310 is restricted for TIF, debt service, local option sales tax,
employee retirement systems, road use taxes and various grants. $19,804,463 is committed for the City's health trust fund
and parking fund. $45,542,949 is assigned for recreational capital funds, police forfeiture funds, economic development and
capital improvements. This leaves a negative $12,118,277 for unassigned fund balances in the governmental funds.

The Governmental fund balances decreased by $1,573,953, or 1.7%. This decrease was primarily due to increases in major
project expenses.

The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the City of Cedar Falls. At the end of the current fiscal year, unassigned
fund balance of the General Fund was $8,933,608, while the total fund balance totaled $12,416,372. As a measure of the
General Funds liquidity, it may be useful to compare both unreserved fund balances and total fund balances to total fund
expenditures. Unassigned fund balance represents 36.34% of the total General Fund expenditures, while the total fund
balance represents 50.51% of that same amount. The General Fund fund balance did increase in FY22 due to the increase

in property tax revenue and hotel motel tax revenue.

The following fund balances in the other major funds, which comprise the Total Governmental Funds are listed below:

FY22 FY21 Increase

Amount Amount (Decrease)
Hospital Fund $ 19,253,243 $ 18,829,721 $ 423,522
TIF Fund 81,956 64,447 17,509
Street Construction Fund 11,588,990 10,879,596 709,394
Street Repair Fund 17,444,127 17,530,156 (86,029)
Debt Service Fund 401,055 582,696 (181,641)
Capital Improvements Fund 28,917,532 28,417,695 499,837
Bond Fund (21,029,595) (16,212,770) (4,816,825)
Other Governmental Funds 22,668,304 21,131,264 1,637,040

The Hospital Fund had an increase in fund balance due to the repayment of internal financing by the Sewer Fund. The
Street Construction Fund had an increase in fund balance due to increased road use taxes. The Bond Fund had the largest
decrease in fund balance due to Downtown Streetscape, Cedar Heights Drive, Viking Road, and City Hall remodel projects.
The Other Governmental Funds had an increase in fund balance due to the economic development land acquisition,
increases in hotel/motel tax, and reimbursements in the FEMA fund.
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The following schedule presents a summary of the governmental fund revenues for the fiscal year ended June 30,
2022 and June 30, 2021.

Increase Percent of
FY22 Percent FY21 (Decrease) Increase
Revenues Amount of Total Amount from FY21 (Decrease)
Property taxes and
assessments $ 29,056,384 5065 % $ 26,907,831 $ 2,148,553 71.01 %
Other city taxes 8,875,750 15.48 6,955,026 1,920,724 63.48
Licenses and permits 1,012,235 1.77 1,530,582 (518,347) (17.13)
Use of money and property 1,065,179 1.86 1,314,163 (248,984) (8.23)
Intergovernmental 10,090,582 17.60 10,605,383 (514,801) (17.02)
Charges for services 2,732,528 4.77 2,150,458 582,070 19.24
Fines and forfeitures 369,403 0.64 209,676 159,727 5.28
Miscellaneous 1,530,142 2.67 1,994,030 (463,888) (15.33)
Utility contribution in lieu of
taxes 2,612,293 4.56 2,651,632 (39,339) (1.30)

$ 57,344,496 100.00 % $ 54,318,781 $ 3,025,715 100.00 %

The most significant increase in revenues was in property taxes. The increase was due to the increase in residential
roliback and increased TIF revenues. One of the largest decreases was in licenses and permits due to the timing of

building permits.

Governmental Revenues

FY22
Use of Money &
Property Intergovernmental
1.86% 17.60%

Licenses & Permits

1.77% Charges for Services

4.77%
Other City Taxes Fines & Forfeitures
9 0.64%
LR Miscellaneous
267%

Utility Contributions
4.56%

Property Taxes
50.65%
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The following schedule presents a summary of governmental expenditures for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2022
and June 30, 2021.

Percent Increase Percent of
FY22 of FY21 (Decrease) Increase

Expenditures Amount Total Amount from FY21 (Decrease)

Public Safety $ 12,410,233 21.87 % $ 12,055,532 $ 354,701 490 %
Public Works 13,858,681 24 .42 11,492,908 2,365,773 32.65
Health & Social Services 25,776 0.05 216,757 (190,981) (2.64)
Culture & Recreation 7,000,740 12.33 7,092,995 (92,255) (1.27)

Community and Economic

Development 3,104,803 5.47 2,991,681 113,122 1.56
General Government 4,831,771 8.51 4,956,324 (124,553) (1.72)
Debt Service 1,062,100 1.87 882,344 179,756 2.48
Capital Projects 14,462,964 25.48 9,822,160 4,640,804 64.04

$ 56,757,068 100.00 % $ 49,510,701 $ 7,246,367 100.00 %

The most significant increases in expenditures occurred in the Capital Projects and the Public Woks functions. This
was due to several large projects under construction.

Governmental Expenditures

FY22
Health & Saocial
) Senices
Public Works 0.05%
24.42% Culture and
Recreation

12.33%

Community and
Economic
Dewelopment

Public Safety 5.47%

21.87%

General Govemment
8.51%

Debt Senice

0,
Capital Projects L.87%

25.48%
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Proprietary Funds

City of Cedar Falls proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in the government-wide financial
statements, but in more detail.

Net position of the Sewer, Refuse and Storm Water funds at the end of the year amounted to $96,047,622. Net
position in the Governmental Activities Internal Service funds was $14,448,261.

These funds were established for the City operations that are financed and operated in a manner similar to private
business enterprises. The cost of providing the services to the general public is recovered, in whole or in part, through

user charges.

The City’s enterprise operations are comprised of three separate and distinct activities: Sewer, Refuse and Storm
Water. Results of operations for these funds for the years ended June 30, 2022 and June 30, 2021 are as follows:

Sewer Refuse Storm Water
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
Operating Revenues $ 7694631 $ 7,300,595 $ 3,271,061 $ 3,086,774 $ 1,070,344 $ 1,051,594
Operating Expenses 5,211,623 4,412,434 3,429,314 3,235,095 1,012,426 1,025,140
Non-Operating Rev (Exp) (330,905) (520,979) 2,079 (9,111) 41,425 (15,273)
Capital Contributions 17,920 647,193 - - 21,366 887,184
Operating Transfers, net 1,272,408 686,345 113,784 133,604 (55,118) 418,079
Change in Net Position 3,442,431 3,700,720 (42,390) (23,828) 65,591 1,316,444

Proprietary Fund Operating Revenues & Expenses
FY22

7,000,000 +—— e - - -
6,000,000 ' — - Sedt .
5,000,000 +
4,000,000 +-
3,000,000 -
2,000,000 +-
1,000,000 +-
0

Sewer Refuse Storm Water

@ Operating Revenue [ Operating apensei‘

BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS

Over the course of the year, the City Council revised the budget once in May 2022. The amendment was needed due
to several large projects under construction. At the end of the year, the City did not exceed the amended budgeted

amounts in any of its functions.
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CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

Capital Assets
At the end of June 30, 2022, the City had approximately $341 million invested in capital assets including police and fire

equipment, public buildings, park facilities, roads, bike trails, bridges, water treatment facilities, sanitary sewer lines,
and storm water improvements. (See Table following.) This represents a net increase of approximately $5.7 million or

1.7% over last year.

City of Cedar Falls Capital Assets
(net of depreciation)

Governmental activities Business-type activities Total
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021

Land $ 43,116,319 $ 43,116,319 $ 1,612,581 § 1,612,581 $ 44,728,900 $ 44,728,900
Buildings 21,930,531 22,820,752 40,438,019 41,648,387 62,368,550 64,469,139
Improvements

other than

buildings 11,315,224 11,997,058 - - 11,315,224 11,997,058
Machinery and

equipment 7,474,911 7,515,175 4,980,290 5,119,109 12,455,201 12,634,284

Infrastructure 141,688,504 144,984,626 44,069,807 43,102,118 185,758,311 188,086,744

Construction
in progress
Total $ 248,905,921 $ 242,571,541 $ 91,910,010 $ 92,555,952 $ 340,815,931 $ 335,127,493

23,380,432 12,137,611 809,313 1,073,757 24,189,745 13,211,368 -

Major capital asset events during the current fiscal year included the following:
¢ Viking Road
e Downtown Streetscape
e Cedar Heights Drive Reconstruction

e City Hall Remodel
More detailed information about the City’s capital assets is presented in Note 3 to the financial

statements.

Capital Assets Net of Depreciation

Buildings
18.30% Improvements

3.32%

Land
13.12%
Machinery & Equipment

3.65%

Construction In Progress
7.10%

Infrastructure
54.51%
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Item 17.

Debt

At year-end, the City had $16,242,000 in outstanding debt compared to $18,315,000 last year. That is a decrease of
$2,073,000 or 11.3%.

City of Cedar Falls Outstanding Debt
General Obligation Debt and Revenue Debt

Governmental activities Business-type activities Total

2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021

General obligation
bonds/notes $ 5995000 $ 6865000 $ 5855000 $ 6,730,000 $ 11,850,000 $ 13,595,000

State Revolving Loan - - 4,392,000 4,720,000 4,392,000 4,720,000
Total $ 5995000 $ 6,865,000 $ 10,247,000 $ 11,450,000 $ 16,242,000 $ 18,315,000

The City of Cedar Falls received an upgrade to the Aaa rating from Moody’s Investor Services in June 2020 for all
general obligation issuances. This was a major achievement by the City. The Aaa rating was confirmed by Moody’s in
June 2022 as well.

State statutes limit the amount of general obligation debt a government entity may issue to 5% of its total assessed
valuation. As of June 30, 2022, the City’s legal debt margin was $162,699,627.

More detailed information about the City’s long-term debt is presented in Note 3 to the financial statements.

City of Cedar Falls Outstanding Debt
FY22

GO Bonds/Notes
73%

State Rewolving Loan
27%
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Item 17.

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR’S BUDGETS AND RATES

COVID-19 had a major operational impact on city operations for the past two years. COVID relief funds, CARES Act
funding, and American Rescue Act funding have helped with revenue reductions and future infrastructure
improvements. In addition, revenues increased in FY22 back to pre-pandemic amounts. The City will continue to
monitor the continued effects of the pandemic and continue to look for grant funding opportunities.

During the state legislative session in 2014, the legislature reduced the taxable valuation of commercial property and
created a new class of property for multi-residential. This greatly affects the City’s general operating fund. In 2022 the
state legislative session established a phase out of the backfill revenue the City receives.

Even with the State reductions, the City Council did establish a balanced budget in the General Fund for FY23. The
tax levy rate per $1,000 of taxable valuation for FY23 is provided below:

General levy $ 8.10
Trust and Agency levy 2.04
Debt Service levy 47
Transit levy 22
Library levy 27
Liability Insurance levy A2
Emergency Management levy .28
Municipal Band levy .01
Total levy $ 11.51

REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers and creditors with a general overview of
the City’s finances and to show the City’s accountability for the money it receives. The City's discretely presented
component units, Cedar Falls Utilities, have separately issued financial statements. If you have questions about this
report or need additional information, contact the Department of Finance and Business Operations, 220 Clay Street,

Cedar Falls, lowa 50613.
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City of Cedar Falls, lowa
Statement of Net Position

ASSETS
Cash
Certificates of deposit
Receivables, net of allowance for uncollectible amounts:
Property taxes
Lease Receivable
Other city taxes
Accrued interest
Special assessments
Customers
Human & leisure services contributions
Other
Due from component unit
Internai balances
Due from other governments
Inventories
Prepaids and other assets
Restricted assets:
Cash
Certificates of deposit
Capital assets:
Land
Land Rights
Land improvements
Buildings
Machinery and equipment
Infrastructure
Construction in progress
Accumulated depreciation
Total assets

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Pension related deferred outflows
OPEB related deferred outflows
Total deferred outflows of resources

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Grant proceeds received in advance
Accrued liabilities
Due to primary government
Long-term liabilities:
Portion due or payable within one year:
Bonds payable
Compensated absences
Portion due or payable after one year:
Bonds payable
Compensated absences
Net OPEB liability
Net pension liability
Total liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Succeeding year property taxes
TIF related deferred inflows
OPERB related deferred inflows
Pension related deferred inflows
Leases
Total deferred inflows of resources

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted:
Streets
Debt service
Employee retirement system
TIF
Other
Unrestricted
Total net position

See notes to financial statements

June 30, 2022

Item 17.

Primary Government
Governmental Business-type

Activities Aclivities Total
$ 106,174,015 $ 24,878,521 $ 131,052,536
30,062,422 = 30,062,422
1,251,295 - 1,251,295
955,858 - 955,858
109,528 18,913 128,441
143,692 s 143,692
4,403,671 - 4,403,671
1,340,040 1,805,234 3,145,274
1,377,721 - 1,377,721
8,965,000 (8,965,000) -
4,246,856 52,500 4,299,356
710,696 110,889 821,585
43,116,319 1,612,581 44,728,900
21,100,815 - 21,100,815
36,936,789 56,271,588 93,208,377
22,376,777 10,499,694 32,876,471
273,462,096 69,804,681 343,266,777
23,380,432 809,313 24,189,745
(171,467,307) (47,087,847) (218,555,154)
$ 408,646,715 $ 109,811,067 $ 518457.782
3,935,140 345,587 4,280,727
1,304,946 - 1,304,946
$ 5,240,086 $ 345,587 $ 5,585,673
$ 10,878,186 $ 1,612,292 $ 12,490,478
3,329,151 - 3,329,151
1,746,260 174,114 1,920,374
895,000 1,239,000 2,134,000
1,225,319 154,287 1,379,606
5,492,637 9,317,468 14,810,105
1,153,986 175,897 1,329,883
3,410,500 - 3,410,500
3,965,385 172,531 4,137,916
$  32,096424 $ 12,845,588 $ 44942013
$ 29,868,798 $ - $ 29,868,798
170,648 - 170,648
13,050,257 1,263,443 14,313,700
1,218,514 - 1,218,514
$ 44,308,217 $ 1,263,443 $ 45,571,660
$ 242,518,284 $ 81,353,542 $ 323,871,826
28,985,485 - 28,985,485
401,055 - 401,055
6,629,145 - 6,629,145
81,956 - 81,956
2,315,262 41,540 2,356,802
56,550,973 14,652,540 71,203,513
$ 337,482,160 $__ 96,047,622 § 433,529,782
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Component Units

Electric Gas Water Communications
Utility Utility Utility Utility
$ 39,669,613 $ 8,048,734 $ 6,055,992 $ 17,672,218
2,990,000 - - 1,000,000
6,633 83 64 2,245
5,035,757 7,929,541 678,140 2,454,747
10,765,742 1,431,606 930,846 486,166
5,084,370 291,437 130,732 1,507,086
746,091 137,040 67,072 438,785
5,274,958 445,264 294,278 556,755
110,000 40,000 30,000 50,000
1,878,208 25,617 63,466 2177
255,094 - - -
43,531,340 4,280,284 2,754,195 -
21,673,334 512,576 1,379,133 24,856,362
209,567,977 26,237,946 44,117,816 21,076,968
2,562,931 66,259 360,524 89,459
(112,972,505) (15,705,183) (14,645,855) (20,578,825)
$ 236,179,543 § 33,741,204 $ 42,216,403 $§ 49614143
698,680 242,521 153,115 327,434
256,901 56,435 38,075 81,770
$ 955,581 3 298,956 $ 192,180 $ 409,204
$ 4,166,214 $ 2,145,883 $ 448,511 $ 1,375,474
6,068,274 559,916 207,614 536,258
2,700,000 - - -
2,895,000 - - -
10,243,106 - - -
746,754 164,539 113,912 240,480
1,019,414 202,108 150,632 301,553
126,192 44,325 28,238 60,273
$ 27,964,954 $ 3116771 % 948,907 $ 2,514,038
$ - § - - 8 -
10,017,358 135,708 882,310 95,916
29,549 6,511 4,507 9,515
4,699,256 1,650,613 1,051,609 2,244,501
$ 14,746,163 $ 1,792,832 $ 1,938,426 $ 2,349,932
$ 153,582,323 $ 15,417,499 $ 34,029,277 $ 25,446,142
3,880,750 - - -
1,196,739 437,564 292,378 548,455
35,764,195 13,275,424 5,199,605 19,164,780
$ 194,424,007 $ 29,130,557 $ 39,521,260 $ 45,159,377
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Functions/Programs

Primary government:
Governmental activities:
Public safety
Public works
Health and social services
Culture and recreation
Community and economic development
General government
Interest on long-term debt and related fees
Total governmental activities

Business-type activities:
Sewer
Refuse
Storm Water
Total business-type activities

Total primary government

Component units
Electric Utility
Gas Utility
Water Utility
Communications Utility
Total component units

See notes to financial statements

City of Cedar Falls, lowa
Statement of Activities
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

Program Revenues

Item 17.

QOperating Capital

Charges for Grants and Grants and
Expenses Services Contributions Contributions
$ 11,596,217 $ 579,155 $ 84,742 $ -
18,503,503 234,458 - 3,779,014
174,754 - - -
7,989,443 1,761,001 402,545 (1,047,859)
4,637,338 - 2,258,777 -
5,012,842 1,539,552 -- -
128,515 -~ - -
$ 48,042,612 $ 4,114,166 $ 2,746,064 $ 2,731,155
$ 5,594,416 $ 7,694,631 $ - $ 17,920
3,451,795 3,271,061 - -
1,034,120 1,070,344 - 73,866
$ 10,080,331 $ 12,036,036 § - $ 91,786
$ 58,122,943 $ 16,150,202 $ 2,746,064 $ 2,822,941
$ 53,776,708 $ 58,925,035 $ - $ 1,330,761
33,208,070 34,119,566 - 1,815
3,836,035 5,771,981 - 27,275
17,319,538 22,026,777 - 152,827
$ 108,140,351 $ 120,843,359 $ - $ 1,512,678

General revenues:
Property taxes and assessments

Local option sales tax

Hotel/motel taxes

Other city taxes
Use of money and property
intergovernmental, not restricted to specific programs

= Gain/Loss on sale of assets

Miscellaneous
Utility contribution in lieu of taxes

Transfers

Total general revenues and transfers

Change in net position

Net position - beginning, as restated
Net position - ending
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Net (Expense) Revenue and Changes in Net Position

Item 17.

Primary Government

Component Units

Governmental Business-type Electric Gas Water Communications
Activities Activities Total Utility Utility Utility Utility

$ (10,932,320) $ —- $ (10,932,320) % - % - 3 - $ -

(14,490,031) - (14,490,031) - - - -

(174,754) - (174,754) - - - -

(6,873,756) - (6,873,756) - - - -

(2,378,561) - (2,378,561) - -- - -

(3,473,290) - (3,473,290) - -- - -

(128,515) - (128.515) - -- - -

$ (38451,227) $ ~ $ (38451.227) $ - % - $ - % =

$ - $ 2118135 § 2,118,135  § - $ - § - $ -

-- (180,734) (180,734) - - - -

- 110,090 110,090 - - - -

$ -~ $ 2047491 $ 2,047,491 § - % - $ - 8 -

$ (38451,227) $ 2047491 $ (36,403.736) § - § - 3§ - 8 g

$ - % - $ - $ 6,479,088 $ - - $ -

- - -- - 913,311 -- -

- -- - - - 1,963,221 -

- = - - -- - 4,860,066

$ - $ - $ - $ 6,479,088 § 913,311 $ 1963221 % 4,860,066

$ 20063485 § - $ 29,063,485 § - $ - $ - § -

7,360,971 - 7,360,971 - - - -

1,398,274 - 1,398,274 - - -- -

116,505 - 116,505 -- - - -

1,065,179 82,703 1,147,882 77,098 9,768 5,111 15,359

6,948,043 - 6,948,043 - -- - -

- 4,364 4,364 - - - -

1,476,082 - 1,476,082 - -- - -

2,612,293 - 2,612,293 - - - -

(1,331,074) 1,331,074 -- - - -- -

$ 48,709,758 $  1.418141 $ 50,127,899 $ 77,098 § 9,768 $ 5,111 $ 15,359

$ 10,258,531 $ 3465632 % 13,724,163 $ 6,556,186 § 923,079 $ 1,968,332 $ 4,875425

327,223,629 92,581,990 419,805,619 187,867,821 28,207,478 37,552,928 40,283,952

$ 337,482,160 $ 96047622 $ 433529782 $ 194424007 $ 29,130,557 $ 39,521,260 $ 45,159,377
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City of Cedar Falls, lowa
Balance Sheet

Governmental Funds
June 30, 2022

Special Revenue

Item 17.

Street Street
General Hospital TIF Construction Repair
Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund
ASSETS
Cash $ 12,047,332 $ 12,414,599 $ -- 10,935,534 $ 22,289,588
Receivables, net of allowance
for uncollectible amounts:
Property taxes 21,857,864 - 5,994,456 - -
Lease Receivable - 120,307 - -- --
Other city taxes 202,191 - - - 551,476
Accrued interest 21,336 14,124 -- - 16,998
Special assessments 2,836 - -- -- -
Human & leisure services contributions 4,403,671 - -- - -
Other 222,994 540,306 - - 338,250
Due from component unit 1,377,721 - - -- -
Due from other funds - - -- -- -
Advance to other funds - 6,815,000 - - -
Due from other governments 36,136 - - 430,811 -
Inventories 101,762 -- - 545,985 --
Total assets $ 40,273,843 $ 19,904,336 $ 5,994,456 11,912,330 $ 23,196,312
LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES, AND FUND BALANCES
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable $ 616,187  $ - 8 - 247,718 $ 5,682,185
Grant proceeds received in advance - -- - - -
Accrued liabilities 1,023,834 - - 75,622 -
Due to other funds - - - - -
Total liabilities $ 1,640.021 $ - § - 323,340 $ 5,682,185
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Succeeding year property taxes $ 21,758,172 $ - % 5,912,500 -- $ -
Amounts held in community foundation 4,403,671 - - -- -
Amount due at end of lease - 651,093 - - -
Other 55,607 - - -- 70,000
Total deferred inflows of resources $ 26,217.450 $ 651,093 $ 5,912,500 -- $ 70,000
FUND BALANCES
Nonspendable $ 101,762 $ - 3 - 545,985 $ -
Restricted -- - 81,956 11,043,005 17,444,127
Committed - 19,253,243 - -- -
Assigned 3,381,002 - - - -
Unassigned 8,933,608 - -- - -
Total fund balances $ 12,416,372 $ 19,253,243 $ 81,956 11,588,990 $ 17444127
Total liabilities, deferred inflows of
resources, and fund balances $ 40,273,843 $ 19,904,336 3 5,094,456 11,912,330 $ 23,196,312

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net position are different because:
Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and, therefore, are not reported in the funds.
Other long-term assets are not available to pay for current-period expenditures and, therefore, are reported as deferred inflows of resources.
Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of fleet management, management information

systems and risk management activities to individual funds. The assets and liabilities of the internal service funds
are included in governmental activities in the statement of net position.

Accrued interest payable is not due and payable in the current period and, therefore, is not

reported in the funds.

Accrued compensated absences, other postemployment

benefits and net pension liability are not due and payable in the current period and,

therefore, are not reported in the funds.
Bonds payable are not due and payable in the current period and, therefore, are not reported in the funds.

Pension related deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources, are not due and payable in the current year and,
therefore, are not reported in the funds,
Deferred outflows of resources
Deferred inflows of resources
Net position of governmental activities

See notes to financial statements
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Capital Projects

Item 17.

Debt Other Total
Service Capital Bond Governmental Governmental
Fund Improvements Fund Funds Funds
397,359 $ 8,997,307 $ - $ 25637625 § 92,719,344
1,065,318 - - 1,144,784 30,062,422
- 1,130,988 - - 1,251,295
- - - 202,191 955,858
- 24,438 - 20,791 97,687
- 90,580 - 50,276 143,692
- -~ - -- 4,403,671
- 14,599 75,320 - 1,191,469
- - - - 1,377,721
- 18,654,534 - 245,711 18,900,245
- 2,150,000 - - 8,965,000
- - 3,415,000 364,909 4,246,856
- -~ - 33,792 681,539
1.462.677 $ 31.062.446 $ 3,490,320 $ 27,700,079 $ 164,996,799
- % 955,126 $ 2,375,600 $ 275,958 $ 10,152,774
- - 74,781 3,254,370 3,329,151
- - - 22,750 1,122,206
- - 18,654,534 245,711 18,900,245
- 8 955126 $ 21104915 $ 3798789 § 33,504,376
1,061,622 $ - % - $ 1,136,504 § 29,868,798
- - - - 4,403,671
- 1,099,208 - - 1,750,301
- 90,580 3,415,000 96,482 3,727,669
1,061,622 $ 1,189,788 $§ 3,415,000 5 1,232,986 $ 39,750,439
- § - $ - § 33792 $ 681,539
401,055 - - 8,861,167 37,831,310
- - - 551,220 19,804,463
- 28,917,532 - 13,244,415 45,542,949
- - (21,029,595) (22,290) (12,118,277)
401,055 $ 28917532 $ (21,029,595) _$ 22,668,304 $ 91,741,984
1,462,677 $ 31,062.446 $ 3,490,320 $ 27,700,079
246,428,980
8,663,127
14,448,261
(13,896)
(9.774,696)
(6,387,637)
5,119,532
(12,743,495)
$ 337,482,160
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Revenues:
Property taxes and assessments
Other city taxes
Licenses and permits
Use of money and property
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Fines and forfeitures
Miscellaneous
Utility contribution in lieu of taxes

Total revenues

Expenditures:

Current:
Public safety
Public works
Health and social services
Culture and recreation
Community and economic development
General government

Debt service

Capital projects

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
(under) expenditures

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers:
Transfers in
Transfers out

Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balances

Fund balances, beginning, as restated
Increase (decrease) in reserve for inventories

Fund balances, ending

See notes to financial statements

City of Cedar Falls, lowa

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances
Governmental Funds

For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

Item 17.

Special Revenue

Street

General Hospital TIF Construction

Fund Fund Fund Fund
$ 20,041,556 - $ 6,628,886 $ =
813,109 - - -
1,012,235 -- -- -
104,178 436,298 == -
1,902,284 - 105,361 5,408,595
2,717,953 - = -
134,946 - -- --
66,460 - -- 66,018
1,162,988 -- - 5
$ 27,955,709 436,298 6,734,247 $ 5,474,613
$ 10,777,802 - $ - $ -
1,425,537 - -- 3,135,690
13,000 12,776 - -
6,371,946 -- - --
1,160,566 -~ -- --
4,831,771 -- -- --
$ 24,580,622 12,776 $ - 3 3,135,690
$ 3,375,087 423522 $ 6,734,247 $ 2,338,923
$ 862,377 - $ - 8 633,116
(3,893,253) - (6,716,738) (2,361,588)
$  (3,030,876) -~ (6,716,738) (1,728,472)
$ 344,211 423,522 17,509 610,451
12,093,132 18,829,721 64,447 10,879,596
(20,971) - -- 98,943
$ 12,416,372 19,253,243 § 81,956 $ 11,588,990
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Capital Projects

Item 17.

Street Debt Other Total
Repair Service Capital Bond Governmental Governmental
Fund Fund Improvements Fund Funds Funds
- $ 659,560 $ 1,409 $ - $ 1,724,973 $ 29,056,384
7,360,971 2,533 -- - 699,137 8,875,750
-- - - - -- 1,012,235
74,923 - 254,295 - 195,485 1,065,179
-- 17,366 - 306,183 2,350,793 10,090,582
- -- - - 14,575 2,732,528
-- -- - - 234,457 369,403
544,300 -- 14,666 698,257 140,441 1,530,142
- -- 1,419,305 - 30,000 2,612,293
7,980,194 $ 679459 $ 1,689,675 $ 1004440 $ 5,389,861 $ 57,344,496
- $ - $ - § - $ 1632431 $§ 12,410,233
9,016,086 -- -- - 281,368 13,858,681
- - -- - -- 25,776
-- -- -- - 628,794 7,000,740
-- -- - - 1,944,237 3,104,803
-- - - -- -- 4,831,771
- 1,062,100 - - -- 1,062,100
- -- 2,381,968 10,490,614 1,590,382 14,462,964
9016,086 $ 1,062,100 $ 2,381,968 $ 10,490,614 $ 6,077,212 $ 56,757,068
(1,035,892) $ (382,641) $ (692,293) $ (9,486,174) $ (687,351) $ 587,428
949,863 $ 201,000 $ 1,463,150 $ 4,729,349 $ 2514328 $ 11,353,183
-- -- (271,020) (60,000) (281,658) (13,584,257)
949,863 201000 $ 1,192,130 $ 4,669,349 2232670 $  (2,231,074)
(86,029) (181,641) $ 499,837 $ (4,816,825) $ 1,545,319 $  (1,643,646)
17,530,156 582,696 28,417,695 (16,212,770) 21,131,264 93,315,937
s _ -- - (8,279) 69,693
17,444,127 $ 401055 $ 28,917,532 $ (21,029595) $ 22,668,304 $ 91,741,984
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Item 17.

City of Cedar Falls, lowa

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balances -
Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds $ (1,643,646)
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are
different because:
Government funds report capital outlays as expenditures while
governmental activities report depreciation expense to allocate those
expenditures over the life of the assets. Capital outlay expenditures
exceeded depreciation expense in the current year, as follows:
Net acquisition of capital assets 16,566,503
Depreciation expense (10,193,126)
6,373,377
Because some revenues will not be collected for several months after the
City's year end, they are not considered available revenues and are
reported as deferred inflows of resources in the governmental funds, as follows:
Property tax 7,096
Other 2,213,547
2,220,643
Proceeds from issuing long-term liabilities provide current financial
resources to governmental funds, but issuing debt increases long-term
liabilities in the statement of net position. Repayment of long-term
liabilities is an expenditure in the governmental funds, but the repayment
reduces long-term liabilities in the statement of net position. Current year
repayments exceeded issues, as follows:
Premium on general obligation bonds 61,472
Repaid 870,000
Accrued interest 2,113
933,585
Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the
use of current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as
expenditures in governmental funds, as follows:
Compensated absences 285,495
Other postemployment benefits (129,317)
Pension expense 2,673,281
Change in inventory 69,694
2,899,153

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of

fleet management, management information systems and risk

management activities to individual funds. The net revenue of certain

activities of internal service funds is reported with governmental activities. (524,581)

$ 10,258,531

Change in net position of governmental activities

See notes to financial statements
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City of Cedar Falls, lowa
Statement of Net Position
Proprietary Funds
June 30, 2022

ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash
Receivables, net of allowance
for uncollectible amounts:
Accrued interest
Other
Due from other governments
Inventories
Total current assets

Noncurrent assets:
Capital assets:

Land
Buildings
Machinery and equipment
Infrastructure
Construction in progress
Accumulated depreciation
Total noncurrent assets
Total assets
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Pension related deferred outflows

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Bonds payable - due within one year
Compensated absences - due within one year
Total current liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities:
Bonds payable- after one year
Advance from other funds
Compensated absences - after one year
Net pension liability
Total noncurrent liabilities
Total liabilities
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Pension related deferred inflows

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted for post closure costs
Unrestricted
Total net position

See notes to financial statements

Business-type Activities -
Enterprise Fund

Item 17.

Sewer Fund Refuse Fund

$ 16,284,717 $ 5,503,093
11,828 4,695
1,322,198 441,819
87,845 23,044

$ 17,706,588 $ 5,972,651
$ 779,878 $ 204,845
43,387,182 12,884,406
6,271,811 4,227,883
46,058,120 -
708,936 --
(31,383,151) (6,146,337)
$ 65,822,776 $ 11,170,797
$ 83,529,364 $ 17,143,448
$ 151,846 $ 156,365
$ 1,420,083 $ 158,570
89,205 70,570
1,149,000 -
87,227 59,410

$ 2,745,515 $ 288,550
$ 8,740,757 $ =
8,965,000 --
46,382 129,515
101,420 18,973

$ 17,853,559 $ 148,488
$ 20,599,074 $ 437,038
$ 557,951 $ 596,829
$ 55,933,019 $ 11,170,797
- 41,540

6,591,166 5,053,609

$ 62,524,185 $ 16,265,946
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Item 17.

Governmental

Business-type Activities - Activities -
Enterprise Fund Internal
Storm Water Fund Total Service Funds

$ 3,090,711 $ 24,878,521 $ 13,454,671

2,390 18,913 11,841
41,217 1,805,234 148,571
52,500 52,500 -

- 110,889 29,157

$ 3,186,818 $ 26,866,057 $ 13,644,240

$ 627,858 $ 1,612,581 $ .
- 56,271,588 90,302
- 10,499,694 7,804,780
23,746,561 69,804,681 --
100,377 809,313 -
(9,558,359) (47,087,847) (5,418,141)
$ 14,916,437 $ 91,910,010 $ 2,476,941
$ 18,103,255 $ 118,776,067 $ 16,121,181
$ 37,376 $ 345,587 $ 120,554
$ 33,639 $ 1,612,292 $ 725,412
14,339 174,114 610,158
90,000 1,239,000 -
7,650 154,287 37,744
$ 145,628 $ 3,179,693 $ 1,373,314
$ 576,711 $ 9,317,468 $ =
- 8,965,000 -
- 175,897 16,971
52,138 172,531 (74,221)
$ 628,849 $ 18,630,896 $ (57,250)
$ 774,477 $ 21,810,589 $ 1,316,064
$ 108,663 $ 1,263,443 $ 477,410

$ 14,249,726 $ 81,353,542 $ 2,476,941
-- 41,540 -

3,007,765 14,652,540 11,971,320

$ 17,257,491 $ 96,047,622 $ 14,448,261
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City of Cedar Falls, lowa

Item 17.

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Position
Proprietary Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

Operating revenues:
Charges for services
Other

Total operating revenues

Operating expenses:
Personal services
Contractual services
Supplies and equipment
Depreciation

Total operating expenses
Operating income(loss)

Nonoperating revenues (expenses):
Interest revenue
Interest expense
Intergovernmental
Gain (loss) on disposal of equipment

Nonoperating revenues (expenses), net

Income(loss) before contributions and transfers

Capital contributions
Transfers in
Transfers out

Contributions and transfers, net

Change in net position

Net position, beginning

Net position, ending

See notes to financial statements
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Business-type Activities -
Enterprise Funds

Sewer Fund Refuse Fund

$ 7,692,526 2,940,829

2,105 330,232

$ 7.694,631 3,271,061

$ 1,156,248 1,270,983

1,058,435 1,371,587

1,083,726 263,437

1,913,214 523,307

$ 5,211,623 3,429,314
$ 2.483,008 (158,253)

$ 51,888 20,196
(382,793) --
-- (18,117)

$ (330,905) 2,079
$ 2,152,103 (156,174)
$ 17,920 -

2,256,992 283,440
(984,584) (169,656)

$ 1,290,328 113,784
$ 3,442,431 (42,390)

59,081,754 16,308,336

$ 62,524,185 16,265,946
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Business-type Activities -
Enterprise Funds

Governmental

Activities-
Internal

Item 17.

Storm Water Fund Total Service Funds
1,070,284 11,703,639 $ 7,325,032
60 332,397 148,003
1,070,344 12.036,036 $ 7,473,035
207,665 2,634,896 $ 1,334,782
121,783 2,551,805 5,919,727
29,508 1,376,671 1,260,040
653,470 3,089,991 432,895
1,012,426 9,653,363 $ 8,947,444
57,918 2,382,673 $ (1,474,409)
10,619 82,703 $ 49,410
(21,694) (404,487) -
52,500 52,500 -
- (18,117) 418
41,425 (287,401) $ 49,828
99,343 2,095,272 $ (1,424,581)
21,366 39,286 $ --
134,489 2,674,921 900,000
(189,607) (1,343,847) --
(33,752) 1,370,360 $ 900,000
65,591 3,465,632 $ (524,581)
17,191,900 92,581,990 14,972,842
17,257,491 96,047,622 $ 14,448,261
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City of Cedar Falls, lowa

Statement of Cash Flows
Proprietary Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

Business-type

Activities -
Enterprise Funds
Sewer
Fund
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from customers and users $ 7,554,174
Receipts from interfund services --
Payments to suppliers (876,367)
(1,273,435)

Payments to employees
Net cash provided by operating activities $ 5,404,372

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Transfers from other funds $ 2,256,992
Transfers to other funds (984,584)
Net cash provided by (used for) noncapital financing activities 3 1,272,408
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Net acquisition of property and equipment $ (2,100,975)
Capital contributions 17,920
Principal paid on debt maturities (1,118,000)
Payments on advance from other funds (855,000)
Interest paid (433,200)
Net cash (used for) capital and related financing activities $ (4,489,255)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest received on investments $ 48,400
Net increase (decrease) in cash $ 2,235,925
CASH BALANCES, Beginning 14,048,792
CASH BALANCES, Ending $ 16,284,717
Reconciliation of operating income to net cash provided by
operating activities:
Operating income (loss) $ 2,483,008
Adjustments to reconcile operating income
to net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation 1,913,214
(Increase) decrease in:
Customer and other receivables (40,997)
Inventories 5,061
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable, accrued and other liabilities 467,145
(Increase) decrease in deferred outflows of resources 44,178
Increase (decrease) in deferred inflows of resources 532,763
Net cash provided by operating activities $ 5,404,372

See notes to financial statements
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Business-type Activities -

Governmental

Item 17.

Enterprise Funds Activities -

Refuse Storm Water Internal
Fund Fund Total Service Funds
$ 2,909,758 $ 1,071,094 $ 11,535,026 $ -
- - - 7,325,738
(1,193,372) (160,387) (2,230,126) (6,982,450)
(1,427,971) (281,717) (2,983,123) (1,509,019)
$ 288,415 $ 628,990 $ 6,321,777 $ (1,165,731)
$ 283,440 $ 134,489 $ 2,674,921 $ 900,000
(169,656) (189,607) (1,343,847) -
$ 113,784 $ (55,118) $ 1,331,074 $ 900,000
$ (239,447) $ (121,742) $ (2,462,164) $ (393,477)
- 21,366 39,286 -
- (85,000) (1,203,000) -~
- - (855,000) -
- (31,500) (464,700) -
$ (239,447) $ (216,876) $ (4,945,578) $ (393,477)
$ 19,090 $ 9,735 $ 77,225 $ 48,075
$ 181,842 $ 366,731 $ 2,784,498 $ (611,133)
5,321,251 2,723,980 22,094,023 14,065,804
$ 5,503,093 $ 3,090,711 $ 24,878,521 $ 13,454,671
$ (158,253) $ 57,918 $ 2,382,673 $ (1,474,409)
523,307 653,470 3,089,991 432,895
(24,244) 810 (64,431) (46,867)
12,193 - 17,254 27,288
(676,610) (208,432) (417,897) (625,086)
36,450 24,730 105,358 58,465
575,572 100,494 1,208,829 461,983
$ 288,415 $ 628,990 $ 6,321,777 $ (1,165,731)
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Note 1.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

A,

Item 17.

Reporting Entity

The City of Cedar Falls is a municipal corporation governed by an elected mayor and seven-member
council. As required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America,
these financial statements present the City and its component units, entities for which the City is
considered to be financially accountable. The discretely presented component units are reported in a
separate column in the combined financial statements to emphasize that they are legally separate
from the City. The discretely presented electric, gas, water, and communications utilities each have a

December 31 year end.

Discretely Presented Component Units. The electric, gas, water, and communications utilities serve
all the citizens of the City and are governed by a five-member board appointed by the mayor of the
City of Cedar Falls. The rates for user charges and bond issuance authorizations are approved by
the City Council, and the legal liability for the general obligation portion of the Utilities’ debt remains
with the City.

Complete financial statements for the Utilities may be obtained at the administrative offices.

Cedar Falls Utilities
Utility Parkway
Cedar Falls, lowa 50613

Jointly Governed Organizations. The City also participates in several jointly governed organizations
for which the City is not financially accountable or that the nature and significance of the relationship
with the City are such that exclusion does not cause the City's financial statements to be misleading
or incomplete. City officials are members of the following boards and commissions: Black Hawk
County Consolidated Public Safety Communications Center, Black Hawk County Solid Waste
Management Commission, Black Hawk County Criminal Justice Information Systems and
Metropolitan Transit Authority.

Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net position and the statement of
activities) report information on all of the activities of the primary government and its component units.
For the most part, the effect of interfund activity has been removed from these statements.
Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are
reported separately from business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and
charges for support. Likewise, the primary government is reported separately from certain legally
separate component units for which the primary government is financially accountable.

The statement of net position presents the assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, and
deferred inflows of resources, with the difference reported as net position. Net position are reported

in three categories.
Net investment in capital assets consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and

reduced by outstanding balances for bonds, notes, and other debt that are attributed to the
acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets.

Restricted net position result when constraints placed on net asset use are either externally
imposed or imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.
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Unrestricted net position consist of net position that do not meet the definition of

preceding categories. Unrestricted net position often have constraints on resources that are
imposed by management, but can be removed or modified.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function
or segment are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable
with a specific function or segment. Program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants
who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function
or segment and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital
requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not properly included among
program revenues are reported instead as general revenues.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds and proprietary funds. Major
individual governmental funds and major individual proprietary funds are reported as separate
columns in the fund financial statements. All remaining governmental funds are aggregated and
reported as other governmental funds.

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement
focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund financial statements.
Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred,
regardless of the timing of the related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the
year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all
eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon
as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are
collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period.
For this purpose, the government considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60
days of the end of the current fiscal period, or if the payments are from the City’s component unit.
Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting.
However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to compensated absences and
claims and judgments, are recorded only when payment is due.

Property taxes, franchise taxes, licenses, interest, fines and forfeitures, and special assessments are
susceptible to accrual. Sales taxes collected and held by the state at year-end on behalf of the City
are also recognized as revenue. Other receipts and taxes become measurable and available when
cash is received by the City and are recognized as revenue at that time.

Entitlements and shared revenues are recorded at the time of receipt or earlier if the susceptible to
accrual criteria are met. Expenditure-driven grants are recognized as revenue when the qualifying
expenditures have been incurred, all other grant requirements have been met, and the criteria for

accrual has been met.

The City reports the following major governmental funds:

The general fund is the City's primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources of the
general government, except those required to be accounted for in another fund.
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The hospital fund accounts for the lease income derived from Sartori Memorial Hospital.

The TIF fund accounts for property taxes received through tax increment financing.

The street construction fund accounts for the road use tax revenues received to the City by the
State of lowa for the operation and maintenance of the City's streets.

The street repair fund accounts for local option sales tax received from the state to be used to
repair streets.

The debt service fund accounts for the servicing of general long-term debt not being financed by
proprietary funds.

The capital improvements fund accounts for the acquisition of capital assets or construction of
major capital projects not being financed by proprietary funds.

The bond fund accounts for all bond proceeds not related to proprietary funds and all the related
capital projects associated with the bond sales.

The City reports the following major proprietary funds:
The sewer fund accounts for the operations and maintenance of the City’s sanitary sewer system.
The refuse fund accounts for the operations and maintenance of the City’s garbage collection.

The storm water fund accounts for the operations and maintenance of the City’s storm water
system.

Additionally, the City reports the following fund type:

Internal service funds account for operations that provide services to other departments or
agencies of the City, or to other governments, on a cost-reimbursement basis. These include
data processing, vehicle maintenance, health insurance, health insurance severance, payroll, and
risk management activities.

As a general rule the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide
financial statements. Exceptions to this general rule are payments between the government’s refuse
and sewer functions and various other functions of the government. Elimination of the charges would
distort the direct costs and program revenues reported for the various functions concerned.

Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants for goods,
services, or privileges provided, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3) capital grants and
contributions. Internally dedicated resources are reported as general revenues rather than as
program revenues. Likewise, general revenues include all taxes.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods
in connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues
of the refuse fund, sewer fund, and the government's internal service funds are charges to customers
for services. Operating expenses for enterprise funds and internal service funds include the cost of
services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets.  All revenues and expenses
not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the government’s policy to
use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed.

212

-49 -




D.

Item 17.

Assets, Deferred Outflows of Resources, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources, and Net
Position or Equity

1.

Deposits and Investments

The City's cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits, and
short-term investments with original maturities of three months or less from the date of

acquisition.

State statutes authorize the City and the Utility to invest public funds in obligations of the United
States government, its agencies and instrumentalities; certificates of deposit or other evidences
of deposit at federally insured depository institutions approved by the City Council; prime eligible
bankers acceptances; certain high-rated commercial paper; perfected repurchase agreements;
certain registered open-end management investment companies; certain joint investment trusts;
and warrants or improvement certificates of a drainage district. Investments of the City and the
Utility are reported at fair value. Due to legal and budgetary reasons, the General Fund is
assigned a portion of the investment earnings associated with the other funds. These funds are
Street Construction, Debt Service, and the Cemetery Perpetual Care Funds.

Receivables and Payables

Activity between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at
the end of the fiscal year are referred to as either “due to/from other funds” (i.e., the current
portion of interfund loans) or “advances to/from other funds” (i.e., the non-current portion of

interfund loans).

All trade and property tax receivables are shown net of an allowance for uncollectibles.

The County Treasurer bills and collects taxes for the City. Taxes for the year ended June 30,
2022, were certified with the County during the preceding fiscal year and were due in two equal
installments by September 30, 2021 and March 31, 2022. Property tax receivable is recognized
on the levy or lien date, which is the date the tax asking is certified by the City to the County
Board of Supervisors. Any County collections on the 2021-2022 tax levy remitted to the City
within sixty days subsequent to June 30, 2022, are recorded as property tax revenues. Taxes not
collected and remitted to the City within sixty days subsequent to June 30, 2022, are delinquent
and have been recorded as receivables and unavailable revenues.

By statute, the City is required to certify its budget in March of each year for the subsequent fiscal
year. However, by statute, the tax asking and budget certification for the following fiscal year
becomes effective on the first day of that year. Although the succeeding year property tax
receivable has been recorded, the related revenue is reported as a deferred inflow and will not be
recognized as revenue until the year for which it is levied.

Leases

A lessor should recognize a lease receivable and a deferred inflow of resources at the
commencement of the lease term, with certain exceptions for leases of assets held as
investments, certain regulated leases, short-term leases, and leases that transfer ownership of
the underlying asset. A lessor should not derecognize the asset underlying the lease. The lease
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receivable should be measured at the present value of lease payments expected to be

during the lease term. The deferred inflow of resources should be measured at the value of the
lease receivable plus any payments received at or before the commencement of the lease term

that relate to future periods.

Inventories and Prepaid Items

Inventories in the governmental fund types are valued at cost using the first-in/first-out method.
The costs of governmental fund type inventories are recognized as expenditures when
purchased. Inventories in the proprietary fund types are valued at the lower of first-in/first-out
cost or market. The inventories for the component unit are valued at the weighted average cost.
The cost of proprietary fund type and component unit inventories are recognized as expenses

when consumed.

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are
recorded as prepaid items in both government-wide and fund financial statements.

Restricted Assets

Certain assets of the component units are restricted because of applicable bond provisions.

Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets (e.g., roads,
bridges, sidewalks, and similar items), are reported in the applicable governmental or business-
type activities columns in the government-wide statement of net position. Capital assets are
defined by the government as equipment with initial, individual cost of $5,000 or greater or a
purchase of land, land improvements, building, or infrastructure with a value of $5,000 or greater
and an estimated useful life of greater than one year. Such assets are recorded at historical cost
or estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded at
acquisition value. Acquisition value is the price that would have been paid to acquire a capital
asset with equivalent service potential.

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or
materially extend asset lives are not capitalized.

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed.
Interest incurred during the construction phase of capital assets of business-type activities is
included as part of the capitalized value of the assets constructed.

Capital assets are depreciated using the straight-line method over the following estimated useful
lives:

Computer Equipment 5 years Streets 30 years
Equipment 10-30 years Buildings 40-50 years
Office Equipment 10-30 years Land Improvements 20-40 years
Vehicles 10-20 years Storm Water 40 years
Parking Lots 15 years Bridges 45 years
Furniture 20 years Lift Stations 50 years
Large Vehicles 20-40 years Sewer 50 years
Traffic Signals 20 years Historic Buildings 100 years
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9.

10.

Item 17.

Deferred Outflows of Resources

Deferred Outflows of Resources represent a consumption of net assets that applies to a future
period(s) and will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until then.
Deferred outflows of resources consist of unrecognized items not yet charged to pension and
OPEB expense and contributions from the employer after the measurement date but before the

end of the employer’s reporting period.

Compensated Absences

City employees accumulate vacation, sick leave, and comp-time hours for subsequent use or for
payment upon termination, death, or retirement. Earned vacation pay and a maximum of one-half
of all unused sick leave may be paid upon termination of employment. The compensated
absences liability attributable to the governmental activities will be paid primarily by the General

Fund.

All severance is accrued when incurred in the government-wide and proprietary fund financial
statements. A liability for these amounts is reported in governmental fund financial statements
only for employees that have resigned or retired. The compensated absence liability has been
computed based on rates of pay in effect on June 30, 2022.

Long-term Obligations

In the government-wide financial statements and proprietary fund financial statements, long-term
debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental
activities, business-type activities, or proprietary fund type statement of net position. Bond
premiums and discounts are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the straight-
line method. Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount.

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premium and
discounts, as well as bond issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of debt
issued is reported as other financing sources. Premiums on debt issuances are reported as other
financing sources while discounts on debt issuances are reported as other financing uses.
Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as
debt service expenditures.

Pensions

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary
net position of the lowa Public Employees’ Retirement System and the Municipal Fire and Police
Retirement System (Systems’) and additions to/deductions from the Systems’ fiduciary net
position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by the Systems’. For this
purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when
due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value.
The net pension liability attributable to the governmental activities will be paid primarily by the

General Fund.
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11. Total OPEB Liability

For purposes of measuring the total OPEB liability, deferred outflows of resources related to
OPEB and OPEB expense, information has been determined based on the City’s actuary report.
For this purpose, benefit payments are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the
benefit terms. The total OPEB liability attributable to the governmental activities will be paid

primarily by the General Fund.

12. Deferred Inflows of Resources

Deferred inflows of resources represent an acquisition of net assets that applies to a future
period(s) and will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. Although
certain revenues are measurable, they are not available. Available means collected within the
current year or expected to be collected soon enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the
current year. Deferred inflows of resources in the governmental fund financial statements
represent the amount of assets that have been recognized, but the related revenue has not been
recognized since the assets are not collected within the current year or expected to be collected
soon enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the current year. Deferred inflows of
resources consist of property tax receivable and other receivables not collected within sixty days

after year end.

Deferred inflows of resources in the Statement of Net Position consist of succeeding year
property tax and tax increment financing receivable that will not be recognized as revenue until
the year for which they are levied, deferred amounts related to leases, the unamortized portion of
the net difference between projected and actual earnings on pension plan investments and other
unrecognized items not yet charged to pension expense.

13. Fund Balance Policies

The following classifications describe the relative strength of the spending constraints:

e Nonspendable fund balance — amounts that are not in spendable form (such as
inventory) or are required to be maintained intact.

e Restricted fund balance — amounts constrained to specific purposes by their providers
(such as grantors, bondholders, and higher levels of government), through constitutional
provisions, or by enabling legislation.

e Committed fund balance — amounts constrained to specific purposes by the City inself,
using its highest level of decision-making authority (i.e., City Council by adoption of an
ordinance prior to the end of the fiscal year). To be reported as committed, amounts
cannot be used for any other purpose unless the City takes the same highest level action
to remove or change the constraint.

e Assigned fund balance — amounts the City intends to use for a specific purpose. Intent
can be expressed by the City Council or by an official or body to which the City Council
delegates the authority. The City Council has by resolution authorized the Finance
Manager to assign the fund balance.

e Unassigned fund balance — amounts not included in other spendable classifications
reported. The City would typically use Restricted fund balances first, followed by
Committed resources, and then Assigned resources, as appropriate opportunities arise,
but reserves the right to selectively spend Unassigned resources first to defer the use of
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these other classified funds. The General Fund is the only fund that reports a
unassigned fund balance amount.

As of June 30, 2022, fund balances are composed of the following:

Fund Balance
Classification

Nonspendable

Restricted

Committed

Assigned

The City Council has adopted a minimum cash reserve policy. Those amounts are as follows:

Purpose
Inventory
Inventory
Inventory
TIF Debt

Street Construction

Street Repair

Debt Service

Community Block Grant
Housing Assistance

Employee Retirement Systems
Visitors & Tourism

Cemetery Perpetual Care

Health Services
Parking

Cultural Services
Recreational Services
Capital Projects
Capital Projects

Fund

General
Street Construction
Non-major Governmental Funds

TIF

Street Construction

Street Repair

Debt Service

Non-major Governmental Funds
Non-major Governmental Funds
Non-major Governmental Funds
Non-major Governmental Funds
Non-major Governmental Funds

Hospital
Non-major Governmental Funds

General

General

Capital Improvements
Non-major Governmental Funds

Item 17.

Amount

101,762
545,985
33,792

681,539

81,956
11,043,005
17,444,127

401,055
67,421
730,167
6,629,145
956,681
477,753

37,831,310

19,253,243
551,220

19,804,463

144,315
3,236,687
28,917,532
13,244,415

45,542,949

General Fund: 15-25% of next year’s expenditures and preferably at the 20-25% level
Refuse Fund: 20-30%, but no less than $500,000.
Sewer Fund: 65-75%, but no less than $1,500,000.
Street Fund: 20-30%, but no less than $1,000,000.
Storm Water Fund: 10-20%, but no less than $200,000.
Emergency Fund: $1,500,000 minimum.

14. Fund Balance Flow Assumptions

Sometimes the government will fund outlays for a particular purpose from both restricted and
unrestricted resources (the total of committed, assigned, and unassigned fund balance). In order
to calculate the amounts to report as restricted, committed, assigned, and unassigned fund
balance in the governmental fund financial statements a flow assumption must be made about
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the order in which the resources are considered to be applied. It is the government'slpomrcy o
consider restricted fund balance to have been depleted before using any of the components of
unrestricted fund balance. Further, when the components of unrestricted fund balance can be
used for the same purpose, committed fund balance is depleted first, followed by assigned fund
balance. Unassigned fund balance is applied last.

E. implementation of GASB Statement No. 87
As of July 1, 2021, the City adopted GASB Statement No. 87, Leases. The objective of the
Statement is to better meet the information needs of financial statement users by improving
accounting and financial reporting for leases by governments. The impact to the City resulted in the
reporting of lease receivable and deferred inflows of resources related to leases. The effect of the
implementation of this standard on beginning net position is disclosed in Note 4 E.

Note 2. Stewardship, Compliance, and Accountability
A. Budgetary information

The City prepares and adopts an annual budget on a function basis for the City as a whole, rather
than at the fund level, as prescribed by lowa statutes. The state of lowa mandates that annual
budgets for the fiscal year beginning July 1 be certified to the County Auditor no later than March 31
preceding the beginning of the fiscal year. The review and adoption of the budget for the City is in
accordance with state laws and City budget procedures as stated in City Code, recodified November
1971, and amended by ordinance adoption thereafter. Budget proposals for all operating department
requests are conducted by the Department of Finance and Business Operations who prepares, for
the Mayor's consideration, a preliminary budget by January 1 of each year for the coming fiscal year.
The budget proposal presented to the City Council by the Mayor, City Administrator, and Director of
Finance and Business Operations is a complete financial plan for the upcoming fiscal year. The
proposal is submitted on or before the first Monday of February. The City Council holds various
budget meetings with the Mayor, City Administrator and department heads as well as holding public
hearings prior to adopting the budget. The Council adopts the budget by resolution and certifies it to
the County Auditor by the 31t of March preceding the beginning of the fiscal year. This budget
becomes the appropriation for operations of the City.

The adopted budget presents expenditures in nine functions- Public Safety, Public Works, Health and
Social Services, Culture and Recreation, Community and Economic Development, General
Government, Debt Service, Capital Projects, and Business-type Activities. The legal level of control
(the level on which expenditures may not legally exceed appropriations) is the function level.
Appropriations as adopted lapse at the end of the fiscal year.

Amendments to the City budget are considered annually as funding sources are available.
Management is not authorized to amend the budget or to make budgetary transfers between
functions without the approval of the City Council. An additional levy of property taxes is not allowed
by state law. The City budget for the current year may be amended for any of the following purposes:

e To permit the appropriation and expenditure of unexpended, unencumbered fund
balances on hand at the end of the preceding fiscal year.

e To permit the appropriation and expenditure of amounts anticipated being available from
sources other than property taxation.

e To permit transfers between funds as prescribed by state law.
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e To permit transfers between functions.

The Council adopts the amended budget by resolution and certifies it to the County Auditor by May
31 of the budget year. The amended budget becomes the appropriation for operations of the City.
The City Council adopted one budget amendment resolution during the year ended June 30, 2022.

Due to the emphasis placed on monitoring budgets, as a result of limited resources to provide City
services, major classifications such as personal services, capital outlays, contractual services, and
commodities are monitored throughout the year by the Department of Finance and Business

Operations.

Monthly reports are prepared by department and activity. Any major deviations must be approved by
the Department of Finance and Business Operations and the Mayor. While the legal level of control
is the program level of expenditure, departments are responsible for not expending more than the
amount of the appropriation for each activity within their area of responsibility, unless approved by the
Department of Finance and Business Operations and the Mayor.

The City budgets all receipts, disbursements, and interfund and intrafund transfers on the cash basis
plus recorded accounts payable. The budget amounts included in this report are the final cash basis
budget for the year for all funds excluding the fiduciary funds, which are not budgeted for by the City.
Budgeted interfund transfers and intrafund transfers have been eliminated in the following statement
of program disbursements - budget and actual.

individual fund budgets are, in all cases where appropriations are required, the same as the
appropriation amounts. In the case of the General Fund and most of the special revenue funds,

unexpended budgeted amounts lapse at the end of the budget year.

Deficit Fund Balances

The Bond Fund, a major fund, had a deficit fund balance as of June 30, 2022 in the amount of
$21,029,595. The Sidewalk Assessment Fund, a non-major capital projects fund, had a deficit fund
balance of $22,290 as of June 30, 2022. These balances are expected to be recovered through
future bond proceeds, TIF reimbursements, and assessments.

Note 3. Detailed Notes On All Funds

A.

Deposits and Investments

The City's deposits in banks and credit unions at June 30, 2022 were entirely covered by federal
depository insurance, collateralized with securities or letters of credit held by the City or the City's
agent in the City’'s name or by the State Sinking Fund in accordance with Chapter 12C of the Code of
lowa. This chapter provides for additional assessments against the depositories to insure there will

be no loss of public funds.

The City is authorized by statute to invest public funds in obligations of the United States government,
its agencies and instrumentalities; certificates of deposit or other evidences of deposit at federally
insured depository institutions approved by the City Council; prime eligible bankers acceptances;
certain high rated commercial paper; perfected repurchase agreements; certain registered open-end
management investment companies; certain joint investment trusts; and warrants or improvement
certificates of a drainage district.
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The City has no investments meeting the disclosure requirements of Governmental Accounting
Standards Board Statement No. 72.

Cash balances as of June 30, 2022, consist of the following:
Cash — unrestricted $ 131,052,536

—_—

A reconciliation of cash as shown on the combined balance sheet for the primary government follows:

Carrying amount of deposits $ 131,052,536
Cash — Governmental Activities $ 106,174,015
Cash — Business-type Activities 24,878,521

Total $ 131,052,536

Interest Rate Risk: The City's investment policy limits the investments of operating funds (funds
expected to be expended in the current budget year or within fifteen months of receipt) in instruments
that mature within 397 days. Funds not identified as operating funds may be invested in instruments
with maturities longer than 397 days, but the maturities shall be consistent with the needs and use of

the City.

Credit Risk: The City’s investment policy limits investments in commercial paper and other corporate
debt to the top two highest classifications. The City did not invest in any commercial paper or other
corporate debt during the year.

Concentration of credit risk: The City’s investment policy does not allow for a prime bankers’
acceptance or commercial paper and other corporate debt balances to be greater than ten percent of
its total deposits and investments. The policy also limits the amount that can be invested in a single
issue to five percent of its total deposits and investments. The City held no such investments during

the year.

Custodial credit risk — deposits: In the case of deposits, this is the risk that in the event of a bank
failure, the government’s deposits may not be returned to it. The City’s deposits are entirely covered
by federal depository insurance or by the State Sinking Fund in accordance with Chapter 12C of the
Code of lowa. This chapter provides for additional assessments against the depositories to insure
there will be no loss of public funds.

Custodial credit risk — investments: For an investment, this is the risk that, in the event of the failure
of the counterparty, the government will not be able to recover the value of its investments or
collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party. The City did not hold any

investments during the year.

The component units’ deposits were entirely covered by Federal depository insurance, collateralized
with securities or letters of credit held by the entity or its agent in the entity's name, or by a multiple
financial institution collateral pool in accordance with Chapter 12C of the Code of lowa. This chapter
provides for additional assessments against the depositories to insure there will be no loss of public

funds.
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Cash balances as of December 31, 2021, consist of the following:

Electric Gas Water Communications

Utility Utility Utility Utility
Cash — unrestricted $ 39,669,613 $ 8,048,734 $ 6,055,992 $ 17,672,218
Cash —restricted 5,274,958 445,264 294,278 556,755

$ 44,944,571 § 8493998 $ 6,350,270 $ 18,228,973

A reconciliation of cash and investments as shown on the statement of net position for the component

units follows:
Electric Gas Water Communications
Carrying amount of deposits $ 44944571 $ 8,493,998 $§ 6,350,270 $ 18,228,973
Carrying amount of certificates 3,100,000 40,000 30,000 1,050,000
Total $ 48,044571 $ 8533998 § 6,380,270 $ 19,278,973
Cash $ 39,669,613 $ 8,048,734 $ 6,055,992 $ 17,672,218
Cash - Restricted 5,274,958 445,264 294,278 556,755
Investments:
Certificates of deposit 2,990,000 - - 1,000,000
Certificates of deposit -
restricted 110,000 40,000 30,000 50,000
Total $ 48044571 $ 8,533,998 $ 6,380,270 $ 19,278,973
Receivable

On June 30, 2022, the City has recorded a $4,403,671 receivable for library, recreation, and cultural
contributions held by the Cedar Falls Community Foundation. The funds will be used to support
library services, recreation services, and the cultural center, therefore is reported as an asset to the

General Fund.
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Capital Assets

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2022 was as follows:

Primary Government

Governmental activities:
Capital assets, not being
depreciated:
Land
Construction in progress
Total capital assets, not being
depreciated

Capital assets, being depreciated:
Buildings
Land Improvements
Machinery and equipment
Infrastructure
Total capital assets, being
depreciated

Less accumulated depreciation for:

Buildings

Land Improvements

Machinery and equipment
infrastructure

Total accumulated depreciation

Total capital assets, being
depreciated, net

Governmental activities capital
assets, net

Item 17.

Beginning Ending

Balance Increases Decreases Balance
43,116,319 $ - - 43,116,319
12,137,611 14,752,595 3,509,774 23,380,432
55,253,930 $ 14,752,595 3,509,774 66,496,751
36,936,789 $ -- - 36,936,789
21,077,715 23,100 - 21,100,815
21,936,957 1,136,228 696,408 22,376,777
268,834,004 4,628,092 -- 273,462,096
348,785,465 $ 5,787,420 696,408 353,876,477
14,116,037 $ 890,221 - 15,006,258
9,080,657 704,934 - 9,785,591
14,421,782 1,106,652 626,568 14,901,866
123,849,378 7,924,214 -- 131,773,592
161,467,854 $ 10,626,021 626,568 171,467,307
187,317,611 $ (4,838,601) 69,840 182,409,170
242571541 $ 9,913,994 3,579,614 248,905,921
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Business-type activities:
Capital assets, not being
depreciated:
Land
Construction in progress
Total capital assets, not being
depreciated

Capital assets, being depreciated:
Buildings
Machinery and equipment
Infrastructure
Total capital assets, being
depreciated

Less accumulated depreciation for:

Buildings

Machinery and equipment
Infrastructure

Total accumulated depreciation

Total capital assets, being
depreciated, net

Business-type activities capital
assets, net

Item 17.

Beginning Ending
Balance Increases Decreases Balance
$ 1,612,581 - - % 1,612,581
1,073,757 2,289,786 2,554,230 809,313
$ 2,686,338 2,289,786 2554230 $ 2,421,894
$ 56,337,385 - 65,797 $ 56,271,588
10,284,904 249,790 35,000 10,499,694
67,317,517 2,487,164 - 69,804,681
$ 133,939,806 2,736,954 100,797 $ 136,575,963
$ 14,688,998 1,187,886 43315 $ 15,833,569
5,165,795 382,630 29,021 5,519,404
24,215,399 1,519,475 - 25,734,874
$ 44,070,192 3,089,991 72,336 $ 47,087,847
$ 89,869,614 (353,037) 28,461 $ 89,488,116
$ 92,555,952 1,936,749 2,582,691 $ 91,910,010

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary government as follows:

Public safety

Public works

Health and social services
Culture and recreation

Community and economic development

General government

Capital assets held by government's internal service funds are charged to

the various functions based on their usage of the assets

Total depreciation expense - governmental activities

Business-type activities
Sewer
Refuse
Storm Water

Total depreciation expense - business-type activities
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350,145
8,141,753
148,978
1,220,351
158,641
173,258

432,895

10,626,021

1,913,214
523,307
653,470

3,089,991
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Construction Commitments
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The City has active construction projects as of June 30, 2022. At year-end the City’s commitments

with contractors are as follows:

Resilience Plan

2021 Reconstruction

2022 Reconstruction

2021 Street Patching

Main Street Reconstruction
Union Road Reconstruction
West Viking Road Reconstruction
Streetscape Maintenance
Downtown Levee Certification
Dam Safety Improvements
Cedar Heights

Union Rd. Trail

Greenhill Rd. & Main

W. Viking Road Ind. Park
Intersection Improvements
Olive St. Box Culvert

W. 27t St. Reconstruction
Cyber Lane

2021 Sidewalk Repair
College Hill Vision Plans
CDBG Sewer Lining

Cedar Heights Drive Reconstruction
Lake Street Trail

City Hall Remodel

2021 Permeable Alley

2022 Bridge Inspections
2022 Alley Reconstruction
Center Street Streetscape
CDBG Sidewalk
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Project Expended Remaining

Authorization to Date Commitment
$ 85,500 $ 81,225 $ 4,275
4,077,321 4,030,921 46,400
3,373,917 967,014 2,406,903
161,198 144,234 16,964
1,959,241 1,316,237 643,004
516,803 423,986 92,817
253,100 211,275 41,825
2,832,997 2,257,802 575,195
73,500 72,211 1,289
284,420 284,327 93
243,500 60,476 183,024
655,149 540,038 115,111
3,725,829 1,191,907 2,533,922
8,440,052 1,778,070 6,661,982
376,800 92,614 284,186
197,500 197,495 5
8,319,851 706,127 7,613,724
351,274 314,524 36,750
160,388 113,630 46,758
165,000 125,750 39,250
286,395 267,125 19,270
7,491,157 5,295,337 2,195,820
340,500 46,347 294,153
4,143,956 2,317,914 1,826,042
102,916 100,107 2,809
31,000 28,5639 2,461
508,133 16,625 491,508
1,540,598 0 1,540,598
194,156 186,616 7,540
$ 50892151 $ 23,168,473 $ 27,723,678

224




Discretely Presented Component Units

Activity for the Electric Utility for the year ended December 31, 2021, was as follows:

Item 17.

Beginning Ending
Balance Increases Decreases Balance
Capital assets, not being
depreciated:
Land $ 1,878,208 -- - $ 1,878,208
Construction in progress 3,968,161 8,048,525 9,453,755 2,562,931
Total capital assets, not
being depreciated $ 5,846,369 8,048525 $ 9,453,755 § 4,441,139
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Buildings $ 42,162,262 1,690,153 $ 321,075 $ 43,531,340
Machinery and equipment 21,054,934 837,656 219,256 21,673,334
Land Rights 255,094 - - 255,094
Infrastructure 203,712,916 6,925,946 1,070,885 209,567,977
Total capital assets, being
depreciated $ 267,185,206 9,453,755 $ 1,611,216 $ 275,027,745
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings $ 14,832,624 1,238472 $ 414843 $ 15,656,253
Machinery and equipment 11,042,470 1,614,342 219,256 12,437,556
Land Rights 17,006 3,401 - 20,407
Infrastructure 80,114,818 5,903,971 1,160,500 84,858,289
$ 106,006,918 8,760,186 $ 1,794,599 §$ 112,972,505
Total capital assets, being
depreciated, net $ 161,178,288 693,569 $ (183,383)*$ 162,055,240
Electric Utility capital assets, net ~§ 167,024,657 8,742,094 $ 9,270,372 $ 166,496,379

*Cedar Falls Utilities uses FERC utility accounting which allows for depreciation calculated using the

composite straight-line method.
deletions to exceed the cost removed.
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Under this method it is common for accumulated depreciation
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Activity for the Gas Utility for the year ended December 31, 2021 was as follows:

Item 17.

Beginning Ending
Balance Increases Decreases Balance
Capital assets, not being
depreciated:
Land 25617 § ~- - $ 25,617
Construction in progress 135,746 1,135,564 1,205,051 66,259
Total capital assets, not
being depreciated 161,363 $ 1,135,564 1,205,051 $ 91,876
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Buildings 4,291,890 $ 47,420 590,026 $ 4,280,284
Machinery and equipment 512,408 19,835 19,667 512,576
Infrastructure 25,241,005 1,137,797 140,856 26,237,946
Total capital assets, being
depreciated 30,045,303 $ 1,205,052 219,549 §$ 31,030,806
Less accumulated depreciation
Buildings 846,757 $ 103,870 59,026 % 891,601
Machinery and equipment 305,332 52,344 19,667 338,009
Infrastructure 13,920,842 710,494 155,763 14,475,573
15,072,931 $ 866,708 234,456 $ 15,705,183
Total capital assets, being
depreciated, net 14,972,372 $ 338,344 (14,907) * $ 15,325,623
Gas Utility capital assets, net 15,133,735 $ 1,473,908 1,190,144 $ 15,417,499

*Cedar Falls Utilities uses FERC utility accounting which allows for depreciation calculated using the

composite straight-line method.
deletions to exceed the cost removed.
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Activity for the Water Utility for the year ended December 31, 2021 was as follows:

Item 17.

Beginning Ending
Balance Increases Decreases Balance
Capital assets, not being
depreciated:
Land 63,466 $ - $ - $ 63,466
Construction in progress 14,360 1,203,735 857,571 360,524
Total capital assets, not
being depreciated 77826 $ 1,203,735 $ 857,571 § 423,990
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Buildings 2,744,137 $ 42787 $ 32,729 $ 2,754,195
Machinery and equipment 1,372,468 47,267 40,602 1,379,133
Infrastructure 43,410,716 767,517 60,417 44,117,816
Total capital assets, being
depreciated 47527321 $ 857,571 $ 133,748 $ 48,251,144
Less accumulated depreciation
Buildings 647,788 $ 61,895 § 32,728 $ 676,955
Machinery and equipment 644,067 39,264 40,602 642,729
Infrastructure 12,543,670 842,183 59,682 13,326,171
Total accumulated depreciation 13,835,525 $ 943342 $ 133,012 § 14,645,855
Total capital assets, being
depreciated, net 33,601,796 $ (85,771) $ 736 * $ 33,605,289
Water Utility capital assets, net 33,769,622 $ 1,117,964 $ 858307 $ 34,029,279

*Cedar Falls Utilities uses FERC utility accounting which allows for depreciation calculated using the

composite straight-line method.
deletions to exceed the cost removed.
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Activity for the Communications Utility for the year ended December 31, 2021 was as follows:

Beginning Ending
Balance Increases Decreases Balance
Capital assets, not being
depreciated:
Land $ 2,177 $ - § - $ 2,177
Construction in progress 976,119 4,271,398 5,158,058 89,459
Total capital assets, not
being depreciated $ 978296 $ 4,271,398 $ 5,158,058 $ 91,636
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Machinery and equipment $ 22825078 §$ 4,662,563 $ 2,631,279 $ 24,856,362
Infrastructure 20,594,870 495,494 13,396 21,076,968
Total capital assets, being
depreciated $ 43419948 §$ 5,158,057 § 2,644,675 $ 45,933,330
Less accumulated depreciation
Machinery and equipment $ 14,203,980 §$ 2,855,135 $ 2,631,245 $ 14,427,870
Infrastructure 5,388,383 775,952 13,380 6,150,955

Total accumulated depreciation  $ 19,592,363 $ 3631,087 $ 2,644625 $ 20,578,825

Total capital assets, being
depreciated, net $ 23,827,585 § 1,526,970 $ 50 * $ 25,354,505

Communications Ultility capital
assets, net $ 24805881 $ 5798368 $ 5158108 $ 25,446,141

*Cedar Falls Utilities uses FERC utility accounting which allows for depreciation calculated using the
composite straight-line method.  Under this method it is common for accumulated depreciation

deletions to exceed the cost removed.

Leases
Lessor:
Sartori Memorial Hospital

On January 1, 1997, the operations of Sartori Memorial Hospital (Hospital) were sold to MercyOne
Health Systems, Inc. As part of this sale, the City entered into a lease agreement with Sartori
Memorial Hospital, Inc. (SMH), whereas the City will lease to SMH the land and buildings owned by
the City and used in the Hospital's operations. The initial term of the lease was for a period of 25
years, with each additional term being for a period of five years. MercyOne has already exercised its
right for the first extension, however, is not expected to renew for the additional two terms.

During the fiscal year, the City recognized $29,826 in lease revenue and $2,970 in interest income
related to these agreements. At July 1, 2021, the City recorded $149,132 in a lease receivable and
deferred inflow of resources for this arrangement. The City used an interest rate of 2.17% based on
the average rate of interest received on the Hospital Fund investments.

MercyOne Health Systems, Inc. also pays to the City an annual amount of $140,000 for five years,
which represents the liability arising from accrued vacation of Hospital personnel as of December 31,
1996. The present value of this liability as of June 30, 2022, is recorded as a receivable and deferred
inflow of resources in the Hospital Fund in the amount of $540,306.
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Cellular Towers
The City licenses (leases) 2 parcels of land for cellular tower antenna sites. One of the licenses is for

a non-cancelable period of 25 years ending on February 15, 2026 with five (5) renewal periods of five
(5) years. The City believes the licensee will exercise the renewal options with reasonable certainty.
The agreement allows for annual increases in lease payments of 4%. The second license is in the
middle of its fourth renewal period ending February 28, 2025, and the licensee has one additional
renewal period of five years remaining which the City is reasonably certain will be exercised. The
agreement allows for annual increases in lease payments at the greater of 3% or the percentage
increase in the CPI over the CPI for the month 12 months prior to the adjustment date. During the
fiscal year, the City recognized $57,625 in lease revenue and $25,845 in interest revenue related to
these agreements. At July 1, 2021, the City recorded $1,156,833 in lease receivables and deferred
inflows of resources for these arrangements. The City used an interest rate of 2.5% based on
comparable interest rates for investments in the current market.

Balance
at July 1, 2021 Balance at
Leases receivable as restated Additions Deletions June 30, 2022
Lease agreements $ 1,305,965 $ - 3§ 54670 $ 1,251,295
Total leases receivable $ 1,305,965 $ - $ 54670 $ 1,251,295

Remaining amounts to be received associated with these leases are as follows:

Fiscal Year
Ended June 30 Lease Revenue

2023 $ 54,394
2024 57,537
2025 60,811
2026 63,969
2027 36,047

2028-2032 155,941

2033-2037 113,748

2038-2042 177,223

2043-2047 259,615

2048-2052 272,010
Total $ 1,251,295
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Non-Current Liabilities

Item 17.

Following is a summary of the City’s changes in long-term liabilities for the year-ended June 30, 2022,
and the total liability of the City as of that date as reported on the government-wide statement of net

position:
Amounts
Beginning Ending Due Within
Balance Additions Reductions Balance One Year
Governmental Activities:
Capital Loan Notes:
Series 2016 $ 1,400,000 $ - 270,000 $ 1,130,000 $ 275,000
Series 2018 2,165,000 -- 265,000 1,900,000 280,000
Series 2020 3,300,000 - 335,000 2,965,000 340,000
Total notes $ 6,865,000 §$ - 870,000 $ 5,995000 § 895,000
Add: Unamortized
premium 454,109 - 61,472 392,637 -
Total long-term debt $ 7,319,109 $ - 931,472 $ 6,387,637 § 895,000
Compensated absences 2,665,701 5,812 292,208 2,379,305 1,225,319
Total non-current
liabilities $ 9,984,810 $ 5,812 1223680 $ 8766942 $ 2,120,319
Amounts
Beginning Ending Due Within
Balance Additions Reductions Balance One Year
Business-Type Activities:
Capital Loan Notes:
Series 2016 $ 4,405,000 $ - 590,000 $ 3,815,000 $ 600,000
Series 2018-Strm Wtr 695,000 - 85,000 610,000 90,000
Series 2018-Sewer 1,630,000 -- 200,000 1,430,000 210,000
Total notes $ 6,730,000 $ - 875,000 $ 5,855,000 $ 900,000
State Revolving Loan 4,720,000 - 328,000 4,392,000 339,000
Add: Unamortized
premium 361,045 - 51,577 309,468 --
Total long-term debt $ 11,811,045 § - 1,254,577 $ 10,556,468 § 1,239,000
Compensated absences 380,771 - 50,587 330,184 154,287
Total non-current
liabilities $ 12,191,816 $ - 1,305,164 $ 10,886,652 $ 1,393,287
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General Obligation Bonds/Notes

Item 17.

Three issues of unmatured general obligation bonds/notes totaling $12,552,105, net unamortized
premium of $702,105 are outstanding as of June 30, 2022. These notes bear interest at rates of
2.00% to 5.00%: mature in varying annual amounts through June 30, 2030; and were originally

issued for $19,025,000.

Details of general obligation bonds/notes payable at June 30, 2022 are as follows:

Governmental Activities:
General Obligation
Capital Loan Notes
General Obligation
Capital Loan Notes
General Obligation
Capital Loan Notes

Total Governmental Activities

Business Activities:
General Obligation

Capital Loan Notes
General Obligation

Capital Loan Notes-Sewer
General Obligation

Capital Loan Notes-Strm. Wtr

Total Business Activities

Final Amount
Date of Interest Due Annual Originally Outstanding
Issue Rates Date Payments Issued 30-Jun-22

7/19/2016 200% 6/1/2026 245,000-440,000 $2,865,000  $1,130,000
7/19/2018 4.00-5.00% 6/1/2028  200,000-350,000 2,860,000 1,900,000
7/21/2020 2.00% 6/1/2030  130,000-405,000 3,430,000 2,965,000

$5,995,000
7/19/2016 2.00% 6/1/2028 125,000-670,000  $6,790,000  $3,815,000
7/19/2018 4.00-5.00% 6/1/2028  150,000-260,000 2,160,000 1,430,000
7/19/2018 4.00-5.00% 6/1/2028  65,000-110,000 920,000 610,000

$5,855,000
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Annual debt service requirements to maturing for general obligation bonds/notes are as follo

Year Ending Govenmental Activities Business-type Activities

June 30, Principal Interest Principal Interest
2023 $ 895,000 $ 166,750 $ 900,000 $ 167,450
2024 925,000 140,450 935,000 140,450
2025 950,000 113,100 965,000 112,150
2026 980,000 84,800 995,000 82,800
2027 715,000 58,700 1,020,000 55,900
2028-2030 1,530,000 61,600 1,040,000 28,200
Total $ 59095000 $ 625400 $ 5,855,000 $ 586,950

State Revolving Loan

In July 2011, the City entered into a loan and disbursement agreement with the lowa Finance
Authority for the issuance of sewer revenue capital loan notes under the State Revolving Fund
Program. These notes financed the major renovation project at the City's water treatment facility
related to disinfection compliance. The debt is owned by the lowa Finance Authority and; therefore,
constitutes direct borrowing. In the event of a default, the issuer shall have the right to take any
action authorized under the regulations, the revenue note or the agreement and to take whatever
action at law or equity may appear necessary or desirable to collect the amounts then due and
thereafter to become due under the agreement or to enforce the performance and observance of any
duty, covenant, obligation or agreement of the participant under the agreement. As of June 30, 2022,
$4,392,000 is outstanding. These notes bear interest at a rate of 1.75% with a final maturity in fiscal
year 2035. Annual debt service requirements to maturity for this loan are as follows:

Year Ending Business-type Activities
June 30, Principal Interest
2023 $ 339,000 $ 87,840
2024 350,000 81,060
2025 361,000 74,060
2026 373,000 66,840
2027 385,000 59,380
2028-2032 2,118,000 176,380
2033-2035 466,000 9,320
Total $ 4,392,000 $ 554,881

The notes are paid by the Sewer Fund. In fiscal year ended June 30, 2022, the Sewer Fund had net
revenue of $4,448,110 and the amount of principal and interest due was $451,900.
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Debt Limitation

As of June 30, 2022, the outstanding general obligation debt of the City did not exceed its legal debt
margin computed as follows:

Estimated actual valuation of taxable property within the City $ 3,490,992,530
Debt limit - 5% of total actual valuation $ 174,549,627
Debt applicable to debt limit:
General obligation bonds/Capital loan notes 11,850,000
Legal debt margin $ 162,699,627

All tax-exempt debt issued by the City is subject to IRS arbitrage rebate unless the City meets the $5
million small issuers exemption in a given year. As of June 30, 2022, the City had no arbitrage

liability.

Non-Current Liabilities — Electric Utility

Non-Current liability activity for the year ended December 31, 2021 was as follows:

Amounts
Beginning Ending Due Within
Balance Additions Reductions Balance One Year
Capital Loan Notes:

Series 2015 $ 14,520,000 § - $ 2.760,000 $ 11,760,000 $ 2,895,000
Unamortized premium 1,719,115 - 326,774 1,392,341 -
Unamortized discount (17,576) -- (3,341) (14,235) -
Current installments

of long-term debt (2,760,000) -- 135,000 (2,895,000) -

Long-term debt $ 13,461,539 $ - $ 3,218,433 $ 10,243,106 $ 2,895,000
Customer advances

for construction 358,500 69,700 147,700 280,500 -
Landfill closure 2,852,269 92,956 71,307 2,873,918 -~
Other liabilities 1,429,236 107,116 213,892 1,322,460 --
Net pension liability 6,084,396 1,021,259 6,979,463 126,192 --
Accrued severance 749,279 35,074 37,599 746,754
OPEB 1,012,843 112,681 106,110 1,019,414 -

Noncurrent liabilities 12,486,523 1,438,786 7,556,071 6,369,238 -

Total $ 25,948,062 $ 1,438,786 $ 10,774,504 $ 16,612,344 $ 2,895,000
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Capital Loan Notes — Electric Utility

The 2015 revenue capital loan notes require annual principal payments, due December 1, and
semiannual interest payments, due June 1 and December 1. Interest rates are in a range between
2 50% and 5.00%. The capital loan notes are secured by the future net revenues of the Utility.

Component Unit -
Capital Loan Notes

Year Principal Interest
2022 $ 2,895,000 % 455,625
2023 3,045,000 310,875
2024 3,195,000 158,625
2025 1,290,000 78,750
2026 1,335,000 40,050
$ 11,760,000 $ 1,043,925

Non-Current Liabilities — Gas Utility

Non-Current liability activity for the year ended December 31, 2021 was as follows:

Beginning Ending
Balance Additions Reductions Balance
Customer advances for

construction $ 144774 $ 24420 $ 50,560 $ 118,634
Other liabilities 221,620 -- 110,810 110,810
Net pension liability 2,090,749 405,107 2,451,531 44,325
Accrued severance 162,344 57,895 55,700 164,539
OPEB 200,660 24,657 23,209 202,108

Total non-current liabilites $ 2,820,147 § 512,079 $ 2,691,810 § 640,416
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Non-Current Liabilities — Water Utility

Non-Current liability activity for the year ended December 31, 2021 was as follows:

Beginning Ending

Balance Additions Reductions Balance
Accounts payable - longterm  $ - $ - - 8 -
Net pension liability 1,439,658 222,874 1,634,294 28,238
Accrued severance 112,392 35,239 33,719 113,912
OPEB 149,630 17,076 16,074 150,632

Total non-current liabilities $ 1,701,680 $ 275,189 $ 1,684,087 $ 292,782

Non-Current Liabilities - Communications Utility

Non-Current liability activity for the year ended December 31, 2021 was as follows:

Beginning Ending
Balance Additions Reductions Balance
Customer advances for $ - $ - $ - 9 -
construction
Net pension liability 2,926,363 475,691 3,341,781 60,273
Accrued severance 224,784 38,769 23,073 240,480
OPEB 299,436 35,327 33,210 301,553

Total non-current liabilites $ 3,450,583 §$ 549,787 $ 3,398,064 $ 602,306

Pension Plans

The primary government participates in two public pension systems, lowa Public Employees
Retirement System (IPERS) and Municipal Fire and Police Retirement System of lowa (MFPRSI).
The aggregate amount of recognized pension expense (income) for the period associated with the
net pension liability for all plans is ($477,988) for the primary government. Other aggregate amounts
related to pension are separately displayed in the financial systems. The City’s total pension liability
is a liability as of June 30, 2022, however, when allocated to individual funds, the liability may be
displayed as positive or negative.
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IPERS

Plan Description. IPERS membership is mandatory for employees of the City, except for those
covered by another retirement system. Employees of the City are provided with pensions through a
cost-sharing multiple employer defined benefit pension plan administered by lowa Public Employees’
Retirement System (IPERS). IPERS issues a stand-alone financial report which is available to the
public by mail at PO Box 9117, Des Moines, lowa 50306-9117 or at www.ipers.org.

IPERS benefits are established under lowa Code chapter 97B and the administrative rules
thereunder. Chapter 97B and the administrative rules are the official plan documents. The following
brief description is provided for general informational purposes only. Refer to the plan documents for
more information.

Pension Benefits — A regular member may retire at normal retirement age and receive monthly
benefits without an early-retirement reduction. Normal retirement age is age 65, anytime after
reaching age 62 with 20 or more years of covered employment, or when the member’s years of
service plus the member's age at the last birthday equals or exceeds 88, whichever comes first.
(These qualifications must be met on the member’s first month of entitlement to benefits.) Members
cannot begin receiving retirement benefits before age 55. The formula used to calculate a Regular
member’s monthly IPERS benefit includes:

A multiplier (based on years of service).

e The member's highest five-year average salary. (For members with service before June 30,
2012, the highest three-year average salary as of that date will be used if it is greater than the
highest five-year average salary.)

Protection occupation members may retire at normal retirement age which is generally at age 55.
The formula used to calculate a protection occupation members’ monthly IPERS benefit includes:

e 60% of average salary after completion of 22 years of service, plus an additional 1.5% of average
salary for years of service greater than 22 but not more than 30 years of service.

e The member's highest three-year average salary.

If a member retires before normal retirement age, the member’s monthly retirement benefit will be
permanently reduced by an early-retirement reduction. The early-retirement reduction is calculated
differently for service earned before and after July 1, 2012. For service earned before July 1, 2012,
the reduction is 0.25 percent for each month that the member receives benefits before the member's
earliest normal retirement age. For service earned starting July 1, 2012, the reduction is 0.50 percent
for each month that the member receives benefits before age 65.

Generally, once a member selects a benefit option, a monthly benefit is calculated and remains the
same for the rest of the member’s lifetime. However, to combat the effects of inflation, retirees who
began receiving benefits prior to July 1990 receive a guaranteed dividend with their regular
November benefit payments.

Disability and Death Benefits — A vested member who is awarded federal Social Security disability or
Railroad Retirement disability benefits is eligible to claim IPERS benefits regardless of age. Disability
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benefits are not reduced for early retirement. If a member dies before retirement, the n

beneficiary will receive a lifetime annuity or a lump-sum payment equal to the present actuarial value
of the member's accrued benefit or calculated with a set formula, whichever is greater. When a
member dies after retirement, death benefits depend on the benefit option the member selected at

retirement.

Contributions — The Contribution rates are established by IPERS following the annual actuarial
valuation, which applies IPERS’ Contribution Rate Funding Policy and Actuarial Amortization Method.
Statue limits the amount rates can increase or decrease each year to 1 percentage point. IPERS
Contribution Rate Funding Policy requires that the actuarial contribution rate be determined using the
“entry age normal” actuarial cost method and the actuarial assumptions and methods approved by
the IPERS Investment Board. The actuarial contribution rate covers normal cost plus the unfunded
actuarial liability payment based on a 30-year amortization period. The payment to amortize the
unfunded actuarial liability is determined as a level percentage of payroll, based on the Actuarial
Amortization Method adopted by the Investment Board.

In fiscal year 2022, pursuant to the required rate, Regular members contributed 6.29 percent of pay
and the City contributed 9.44 percent for a total rate of 15.73 percent. Protective occupation
members contributed 6.21 percent of pay and the City contributed 9.31 percent for a total rate of

15.52 percent.
The City’s total contributions to IPERS for the year ended June 30, 2022 were $1,072,135.

Net Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows
of Resources Related to Pensions — At June 30, 2022, the City reported a liability of $191,670 for its
proportionate share of the net pension liability. The net pension liability was measured as of June 30,
2021, and the total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an
actuarial valuation as of that date. The City’s proportion of the net pension liability was based on the
City’s share of contributions to the pension plan relative to the contributions of all IPERS participating
employers. At June 30, 2021, the City's collective proportion was -.0555200 percent which was a
decrease of 0.187404 percent from its proportion measured as of June 30, 2020.
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For the year ended June 30, 2022, the City recognized pension expense (income) of ($589,124). At
June 30, 2022, the City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources

related to pensions from the following sources:

Deferred Outflows
of Resources

Deferred Inflows
of Resources

Differences between expected and

actual experience

Changes of assumptions

Net difference between projected and actual
earnings on pension plan investments

Changes in proportion and differences between
City contributions and proportionate share

of contributions

City contributions subsequent to the

measurement date

$1,072,135 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from the City

$ 145,834 § 146,426

125,369 -

-- 6,944,530

452,350 9,422

1,072,135 --

Total $ 1,795,688 $ 7,100,378

contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net

pension liability in the year ended June 30, 2023. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of

resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension

expense as follows:

Year
Ended
June 30, Total
2023 $ (1,572,923)
2024 (1,574,027)
2025 (1,455,918)
2026 (1,804,280)
2027 30,323
$ (6,376,825)

There were no non-employer contributing entities at IPERS.
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determined using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the
measurement:

Rate of Inflation 2.60 percent per annum
(effective June 30, 2017)

Rates of salary increase 3.25 to 16.25 percent, average, including inflation. Rates
(effective June 30, 2017) vary by membership group.

Long-term investment rate of return 7.00 percent, compounded annually, net of investment
(effective June 30, 2017) expense, including inflation

Wage growth 3.25 percent per annum based on 2.60% inflation
(effective June 30, 2017) and 0.65% real wage inflation.

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2021 valuation were based on the results of actuarial
experience study dated March 24, 2017 and a demographic assumption study dated June 28, 2018.

Mortality rates used in the 2021 valuation were based on the RP-2014 Employee and Healthy
Annuitant Tables, with MP-2017 generational adjustments.

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-
block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates (expected returns, net of
pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These
ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected
future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation.
The target allocation and best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class
are summarized in the following table:

Long-Term Expected

Asset Class Asset Allocation Real Rate of Return
Domestic equity 22.0% 443 %
International equity 17.5 6.01
Global smart beta equity 6.0 5.10
Core plus fixed income 26.0 0.29
Public credit 4.0 2.08
Cash 1.0 (0.25)
Private equity 13.0 9.51
Private real assets 7.5 463
Private credit 3.0 2.87

Total 100.0 %

Discount Rate — The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.0 percent. The
projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that employee contributions will
be made at the contractually required rate and that contributions from the City will be made at
contractually required rates, actuarially determined. Based on those assumptions, the pension plan’s
fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of
current active and inactive employees. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension
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plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine kro—
pension liability.

Sensitivity of the City’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount
Rate — The following presents the City's proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated
using the discount rate of 7.0 percent, as well as what the City’s proportionate share of the net
pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower
(6.0 percent) or 1-percentage-point higher (8.0 percent) than the current rate.

1% Discount 1%
Decrease Rate Increase
(6.0%) (7.0%) (8.0%)
City's proportionate share of
the net pension liability: $ 6,783,843 $ 191,670 $ (5,332,990)

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position — Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net
position is available in the separately issued IPERS financial report which is available on IPERS’

website at www.ipers.org.

Payables to the Pension Plan — At June 30, 2022, the City reported no payables to the defined benefit
pension plan for legally required employer contributions and legally required employee contributions
which had been withheld from employee wages but not yet remitted to IPERS.

MFPRSI

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position — MFPRSI membership is mandatory for fire fighters and police
officers covered by the provisions of Chapter 411 of the Code of lowa. Employees of the City are
provided with pensions through a cost-sharing multiple employer defined benefit pension plan
administered by MFPRSI. MFPRSI issues a stand-alone financial report which is available to the
public by mail at 7155 Lake Drive, Suite #201, West Des Moines, lowa 50266 or at www.mfprsi.org.

MFPRSI benefits are established under Chapter 411 of the Code of lowa and the administrative rules
thereunder. Chapter 411 of the Code of lowa and the administrative rules are the official plan
documents. The following brief description is provided for general informational purposes only. Refer
to the plan documents for more information.

Pension Benefits - Members with 4 or more years of service are entitled to pension benefits beginning
at age 55. Full service retirement benefits are granted to members with 22 years of service, while
partial benefits are available to those members with 4 to 22 years of service based on the ratio of
years completed to years required (i.e., 22 years). Members with less than 4 years of service are
entitled to a refund of their contribution only, with interest, for the period of employment.

-77 -
240




Item 17.

Benefits are calculated based upon the member’s highest 3 years of compensation. The ave

these 3 years becomes the member’s average final compensation. The base benefit is 66 percent of
the member’s average final compensation. Additional benefits are available to members who perform
more than 22 years of service (2 percent for each additional year of service, up to a maximum of 8
years). Survivor benefits are available to the beneficiary of a retired member according to the
provisions of the benefit option chosen plus an additional benefit for each child. Survivor benefits are
subject to a minimum benefit for those members who chose the basic benefit with a 50 percent
surviving spouse benefit.

Active members, at least 55 years of age, with 22 or more years of service have the option to
participate in the Deferred Retirement Option Program (DROP). The DROP is an arrangement
whereby a member who is otherwise eligible to retire and commence benefits opts to continue to
work. A member can elect a 3, 4, or 5 year DROP period. By electing to participate in DROP the
member is signing a contract indicating the member will retire at the end of the selected DROP
period. During the DROP period the member’s retirement benefit is frozen and a DROP benefit is
credited to a DROP account established for the member. Assuming the member completes the
DROP period, the DROP benefit is equal to 52% of the member’s retirement benefit at the member’s
earliest date eligible and 100% if the member delays enrollment for 24 months. At the member's
actual date of retirement, the member’s DROP account will be distributed to the member in the form
of a lump sum or roliover to an eligible plan.

Disability and Death Benefits - Disability coverage is broken down into two types, accidental and
ordinary. Accidental disability is defined as permanent disability incurred in the line of duty, with
benefits equivalent to the greater of 60 percent of the member’s average final compensation or the
member’s service retirement benefit calculation amount. Ordinary disability occurs outside the call of
duty and pays benefits equivalent to the greater of 50 percent of the member’s average final
compensation, for those with 5 or more years of service, or the member's service retirement benefit
calculation amount, and 25 percent of average final compensation for those with less than 5 years of

service.

Death benefits are similar to disability benefits. Benefits for accidental death are 50 percent of the
average final compensation of the member plus an additional amount for each child, or the provisions
for ordinary death. Ordinary death benefits consist of a pension equal to 40 percent of the average
final compensation of the member plus an additional amount for each child, or a lump-sum
distribution to the designated beneficiary equal to 50 percent of the previous year's earnable
compensation of the member or equal to the amount of the member’s total contributions plus interest.

Benefits are increased (escalated) annually in accordance with Chapter 411.6 of the Code of lowa
which states a standard formula for the increases.

The surviving spouse or dependents of an active member who dies due to a traumatic personal injury
incurred in the line of duty receives a $100,000 lump-sum payment.

Contributions - Member contribution rates are set by state statute. In accordance with Chapter 411 of
the Code of lowa as modified by act of the 1994 General Assembly, to establish compliance with the
Federal Older Workers Benefit Protections Act, the contribution rate was 9.40% of earnable
compensation for the year ended June 30, 2022.
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Employer contribution rates are based upon an actuarially determined normal contribution ra
set by state statute. The required actuarially determined contributions are calculated on the basis of
the entry age normal method as adopted by the Board of Trustees as permitted under Chapter 411 of
the Code of lowa. The normal contribution rate is provided by state statute to be the actuarial
liabilities of the plan less current plan assets, with such total divided by 1 percent of the actuarially
determined present value of prospective future compensation of all members, further reduced by
member contributions and state appropriations. Under the Code of lowa the employer's contribution
rate cannot be less than 17.00% of earnable compensation. The contribution rate was 26.18% for the

year ended June 30, 2022.

The City’s contributions to MFPRSI for the year ended June 30, 2022, was $1,546,941.

If approved by the state legislature, state appropriation may further reduce the employer’s
contribution rate, but not below the minimum statutory contribution rate of 17.00% of earnable
compensation. The State of lowa therefore is considered to be a nonemployer contributing entity in
accordance with the provisions of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 67 —
Financial Reporting for Pension Plans, (GASB 67).

There were no state appropriations to MFPRSI during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022.

Net Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows
of Resources Related to Pensions - At June 30, 2022, the City reported a liability of $3,946,246 for its
proportionate share of the net pension liability. The net pension liability was measured as of June 30,
2021, and the total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an
actuarial valuation as of that date. The City's proportion of the net pension liability was based on the
City's share of contributions to the pension plan relative to the contributions of all MFPRSI
participating employers. At June 30, 2021, the City’s proportion was 1.757213% which was a
decrease of .102716% from its proportion measured as of June 30, 2020.
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For the year ended June 30, 2022, the City recognized pension expense of $111,136. At June

30,

2022, the City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to

pensions from the following sources:

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows
of Resources of Resources
Differences between expected and
actual experience $ 457,755 $ 44,411
Changes of assumptions 148,625 -
Net difference between projected and actual
earnings on pension plan investments -- 6,593,695
Changes in proportion and differences between
City contributions and proportionate share
of contributions 331,718 575,216
City contributions subsequent to the
measurement date 1,546,941 -
Total 3 2,485,039 § 7,213,322

$1,546,941 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from City
contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net
pension liability in the year ended June 30, 2023. Amounts reported as deferred outflows of
resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension

expense as follows:

Year
Ended
June 30, Total

2023 $ (1,175,865)
2024 (1,295,093)
2025 (1,627,917)
2026 (2,154,369)
2027 (21,980)

$ (6,275,224)
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Actuarial Assumptions The total pension liability in the June 30, 2021, actuarial valuation was
determined using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the
measurement:

Rate of Inflation 3.0 percent
Salary increases 3.75 to 15.11 percent, including including inflation
Investment rate of return 7.50 percent, net of pension plan investment expense,

including inflation

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2021 valuation were based on the results of an
actuarial experience study for the 10-year period ending June 30, 2020. There were no significant
changes of benefit terms.

Mortality rates as of June 30, 2021, were based on RP 2014 Blue Collar Healthy Annuitant table with
males set-forward zero years, females set-forward two years and disabled set-forward three years
(male only rates), with generational projection of future mortality improvement with 50% of Scale BB
beginning in 2017.

The investment policy and decisions are governed by the Board of Trustees. The long-term expected
rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building block method in which
best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension plan
investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are
combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighing the expected future real rates
of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. Best estimates
of geometric real rates of return for each major asset class included in the pension plan’s target asset
allocation as of December 31, 2018 (see the discussion of the pension plan’s investment policy) are
summarized in the following table:

Long-Term Expected

Asset Class Real Rate of Return
Large Cap 749 %
Small Cap 8.10 %
international Large Cap 7.20 %
Emerging Markets 7.90 %
Global Infrastructure 7.50 %
Private Non-Core Real Estate 11.50 %
Private Credit 6.40 %
Private Equity 10.80 %
Core Plus Fixed Income 4.00 %
Private Core Real Estate 7.20 %
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Discount Rate - The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.5 percent. The
projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions will be made
at 9.40% of covered payroll and the City contributions will be made at rates equal to the difference
between actuarially determined rates and the member rate. Based on those assumptions, the
pension plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit
payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan
investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension

liability.

Sensitivity of City's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate -
The following presents the City's proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated using the
discount rate of 7.50 percent, as well as what the City’s proportionate share of the net pension liability
would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percent lower (6.50 percent) or 1-percent
higher (8.5 percent) than the current rate.

1% Discount 1%
Decrease Rate Increase
(6.5%) (7.5%) (8.5%)
City's proportionate share of
the net pension liability: $ 11,677,769 $ 3,946,246 $ (2,470,471)

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Detailed information about the pension plan's fiduciary net
position is available in the separately issued MFPRSI financial report which is available on MFPRSI’s

website at www.mfprsi.org.

Payables to the Pension Plan — At June 30, 2022, the City reported no payables to the defined benefit
pension plan for legally required employer contributions and legally required employee contributions
which had been withheld from employee wages but not yet remitted to MFPRSL.

Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEB)

Plan Description — The City administers a single-employer benefit plan which provides medical,
prescription drug and life benefits for all full-time active employees, retired and their eligible
dependants. Group insurance benefits are established under lowa Code Chapter 509A.13. No
assets are accumulated in a trust that meets the criteria in paragraph 4 of GASB Statement No. 75.
The Plan does not issue a stand-alone financial report.

OPEB Benefits — Individuals who are employed by the City and are eligible to participate in the group
health plan are eligible to continue healthcare benfits upon retirement. Retirees under age 65 pay the
same premium for the medical, prescription drug and life benefits as active employees, which results
in an implicit rate subsidy and an OPEB liability.

Retired participants must be age 55 or older at retirement. At June 30, 2022, the following employees
were covered by the benefit terms:

Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefit payments 17
Active employees 196
Total 213
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Total OPEB Liability — The City’s total OPEB liability of $3,410,500 as of June 30, 2

measured as of June 30, 2022, and was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date.

Actuarial Assumptions — The total OPEB liability in the June 30, 2022 actuarial valuation was
determined using the following actuarial assumptions and the entry age normal actuarial cost method,
applied to all periods included in the measurement.

Rate of Inflation 3.00% percent per annum
(effective June 30, 2022)

Rates of salary increase 3.50% per annum, including
(effective June 30, 2022) inflation.

Discount rate 3.69% compounded annually,
(effective June 30, 2022) including inflation.

Healthcare cost trend rate 7.58% initial rate decreasing by .35%
(effective June 30, 2022) annually to an ultimate rate of 4.44%.

Discount Rate — The discount rate used to measure the total OPEB liability was 3.69% which reflects
the index rate for 20-year Fidelity government obligation with a AA bonds index as of the

measurement date.

Mortality rates are from the PUB 2010 annuitant distinct mortality table with MP2021 general
projection of future mortality improvement.

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2022 valuation were based on the results of an
actuarial experience study with dates corresponding to those listed above.

Changes in the Total OPEB Liability

Total OPEB
Liability
Total OPEB liability beginning of year $ 3,560,585
Changes for year:

Service cost 231,331
Interest 123,697
Difference between Expected & Actual Experience 102,348
Change in Assumptions (190,724)
Benefit payments (416,737)
Net changes (150,085)
Total OPEB liability end of year $ 3,410,500
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Sensitivity of the City’s Total OPEB Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate — The following presents
the total OPEB liability of the City, as well as what the City’s total OPEB liability would be if it were
calculated using a discount rate that is 1% lower (2.69%) or 1% higher (4.69%) than the current

discount rate.

1% Discount 1%
Decrease Rate Increase
(2.69) (3.69%) (4.69%)
Total OPEB liability $ 3,653,862 $ 3,410,500 $ 3,187,403

Sensitivity of the City's Total OPEB Liability to Changes in the Healthcare Cost Trend Rates — The
following presents the total OPEB liability of the City, as well as what the City’s total OPEB liability
would be if it were calculated using healthcare cost trend rates that are 1% lower (6.58%) or 1%

higher (8.58%) than the current healthcare cost trend rates.

Healthcare
1% Cost Trend 1%
Decrease Rate Increase
(6.58%) (7.58%) (8.58%)
Total OPEB liability $ 3,114,221 $ 3,410,500 $ 3,758,948

OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources Related to OPEB — For the year ended June 30,
2022, the City recognized OPEB expense of $546,054. At June 30, 2022, the City reported deferred
outflows of resources related to OPEB from the following resources:

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows
of Resources of Resources
Differences between expected and
actual experience $ 768,939 $ --
Changes in assumptions 536,007 170,648
Total 1,304,946 170,648
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The amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources r¢

OPEB will be recognized as OPEB expense as follows:

Year
Ended
June 30, Total

2023 $ 191,026
2024 191,026
2025 191,026
2026 191,026
2027 191,026
Thereafter 179,168

$ 1,134,298

Interfund Balances

Individual interfund receivable and payable balances by fund type as of June 30, 2022, were stated in
the fund financial statements as follows:

Due to/from other funds: Total
Interfund Interfund
Fund Receivables Payables
Nonmajor Governmental Funds $ 245,711 $ 245,711
Capital Improvements Fund 18,654,534 --
Bond Fund - 18,654,534
Total $ 18,900,245 $ 18,900,245

The balances are due to the elimination of reporting negative cash.

Advances from/to other funds: Total
Advance to Advance from
Fund Other Funds Other Funds
Hospital Fund $ 6,815,000 $ -
Capital Improvements Fund 2,150,000 -
Sewer Fund - 8,965,000
Total $ 8,965,000 $ 8,965,000

The amount payable from the Sewer Fund to the Hospital Fund and the Capital Improvements Fund
relates to internal financing for the large disinfection project at the City’s water treatment facility and
other City Sewer projects.
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l. Interfund Transactions

Item 17.

The following transfers represent individual fund interfund transfers as stated in the Fund Financial

Statements.
Transfer To Transfer From Amount

General Fund Street Construction Fund $ 210,707
Capital Improvements Fund 271,020
Non-major Governmental Funds 36,658
Sewer Fund 142,626
Refuse Fund 169,656
Storm Water Fund 31,710
$ 862,377
Street Construction Fund Sewer Fund $ 475,219
Storm Water Fund 157,897
$ 633,116
Street Repair Fund Street Construction Fund $ 386,720
TIF Fund 278,124
Bond Fund 60,000
Sewer Fund 225,019
$ 949,863
Debt Service Fund General Fund $ 201,000
Capital Improvements Fund General Fund $ 1,381,673
TIF Fund 71,477
Non-major Governmental Funds 10,000
$ 1,463,150
Bond Fund TIF Fund $ 4,729,349
Non-major Governmental Funds General Fund $ 1,410,580
TIF Fund 1,103,748
$ 2,514,328
Sewer Fund TIF Fund $ 534,040
Street Construction Fund 1,487,952
Non-major Governmental Funds 235,000
$ 2,256,992
Refuse Fund Street Construction $ 141,720
Sewer Fund 141,720
$ 283,440
Stormwater Fund Street Construction Fund $ 134,489
Internal Service Funds General Fund $ 900,000
Total $ 14,928,104
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Note 4.

Item 17.

Transfers are used to (1) move revenues from the fund that statute or budget requires to collect them
io the fund that statute or budget requires to expend them, (2) move debt service payments from
proprietary or special revenue funds to the debt service fund as debt service payments come due
and, (3)to move receipts from user fee generated funds to the general fund for certain administrative

and custodial costs in the general fund.

Other Notes

A.

Due To/From Component Unit

Amounts due from the component unit to the general fund at June 30, 2022, were as follows:

Due from
Component Unit:
Electric utility $ 1,202,140
Gas utility 175,581
Total $ 1,377,721

This amount differs from the amount reported as due to primary government since the Electric Utility,
Gas Utility, and Communications Utility component units have a calendar year end of December 31,

2021.

Risk Management

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of
assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters for which the government
has established various funds to account for and finance its uninsured risks of loss.

The City has established a Health Insurance Reserve Fund for insuring benefits provided to City
employees and covered dependents, which is included in the internal service fund type. Health
benefits were self-insured up to a specific stop loss amount of $85,000 and an aggregate stop loss of
approximately $4,687,372 for 2022. Coverage from a private insurance company is maintained for
losses in excess of the stop loss amounts. All claims handling procedures are performed by a third-
party claims administrator. Incurred but not reported claims have been accrued as a liability based
upon the claims administrator's estimate.

All funds of the City participate in the program and make payments to the Health Insurance Reserve
Fund based on actuarial estimates of the amounts needed to pay prior-year and current-year claims.
The City has also established reserve funds for insuring workers' compensation, liability, and long-
term disability claims which are included in the general fund type. Liability benefits were self-insured
up to a specific stop loss amount of $100,000 and an aggregate stop loss amount of $260,000. Long-
term disability benefits are self funded for the first six months, and the maximum benefit per individual
is $18,000. Workers' compensation benefits were self-insured up to an aggregate stop loss amount
of $350,000 with no specific stop loss amount. Coverage from private insurers is maintained for
losses in excess of the stop loss amounts. An independent claims administrator performs all claims
handling procedures. Settled claims for the above funds have not exceeded commercial coverage in

any of the last three fiscal years.
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Liabilities of the fund are reported when it is probable that a loss has occurred and the amot

loss can be reasonably estimated. Liabilities include an amount for claims that have been incurred
but not reported (IBNRs). The result of the process to estimate the claims liability is not an exact
amount as it depends on many complex factors, such as inflation, changes in legal doctrines, and
damage awards. Accordingly, claims are reevaluated periodically to consider the effects of inflation,
recent claim settlement trends (including frequency and amount of pay-outs), and other economic and
social factors. The estimate of the claims liability also includes amounts for incremental claim
adjustment expenses related to specific claims and other claim adjustment expenses regardless of

whether allocated to specific claims.

Changes in reported liabilities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022, are summarized as

follows:
Risk Management Fund

Health Workers' Long-Term
Insurance Compensation Liability Disability
Reserve Fund Reserve Reserve Reserve Total

Claim liabilities
June 30, 2020 $ 323,000 $ 283584 $ - $ - $ 606,584
Claims and changes

in estimates during
fiscal year 2021 4,691,852 54,863 - - 4,746,715
Claim payments (4,606,852) (167,736) -- - (4,774,588)

Claim liabilities

June 30, 2021 $ 408,000 $ 170,711 $ - $ - $ 578,711
Claims and changes

in estimates during

fiscal year 2022 4,040,185 108,307 -- -- 4,148,492
Claim payments (4,079,185) (92,920) -- -- (4,172,105)

Claim liabilities
June 30, 2022 $ 369,000 $ 186,098 $ - % - $ 555,098

Commitments and Contingencies

Legal counsel has reported that as of June 30, 2022, there were claims and losses that are on file
against the City. The City has the authority to levy additional taxes outside the regular limit to fund
any uninsured judgment against the City. However, itis estimated that all of these claims and losses
will be covered by insurance when exceeding stop loss limits, and the amounts prior to reaching
these limits would not materially affect future financial statements of the City.

Urban Renewal Development Agreements

The City has entered into various development agreements for urban renewal projects. The
agreements require the City to rebate portions of the incremental property tax paid by the developer
in exchange for infrastructure improvements, rehabilitation and development of commercial projects

by the developer.
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The agreements are not general obligations of the City and, due to their nature, are not recofueuas=a
liability in the City’s financial statements. However, the agreements are subject to the constitutional
debt limitation of the City.

Certain agreements include an annual appropriation clause and, accordingly, only the amount
payable in the succeeding year on the agreements is subject to the constitutional debt limitation. The
entire outstanding principal balance of agreements not including an annual appropriation clause is
subject to the constitutional debt limitation.

Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 77 defines tax abatements as a reduction
in tax revenues that results from an agreement between one or more governments and an individual
or entity in which (a) one or more governments promise to forgo tax revenues to which they are
otherwise entitied and (b) the individual or entity promises to take a specific action after the
agreement has been entered into that contributes to economic development or otherwise benefits the
governments or the citizens of those governments.

City Tax Abatements

The City provides tax abatements, as defined by Governmental Accounting Standards Board, for
urban renewal and economic development projects, with tax increment financing as provided for in
Chapters 15A and 403 of the Code of lowa. For these types of projects, the City enters into
agreements with developers which require the City, after developers meet the terms of the
agreements, to rebate a portion of the property tax paid by the developers, to pay the developers an
economic development grant or to pay the developers a predetermined dollar amount. No other
commitments were made by the City as part of these agreements.

For the year ended June 30, 2022, the City rebated $967,076 of property tax under the urban renewal
and economic development projects.

Restatement
The following pronouncement was implemented effective July 1, 2021:

GASB Statement No. 87, Leases. This standard establishes a single model for lease accounting
based on the foundational principle that leases are financings of the right to use an underlying asset.
The Statement requires recognition of certain lease assets and liabilities for leases that previously
were classified as operating leases and recognized as inflows of resources or outflows of resources
based on the payment provisions of the contract. Beginning net position for Government Activities
and the fund balance for the Hospital Fund and the Capital Improvements Fund were restated to
retroactively adopt the provisions of GASB Statement No. 87 as follows:

Capital
Governmental Hospital Improvements
Activities Fund Fund

Net position at June 30, 2021, as previously reported $327,223,629 $18,829,721 $28,417,695
Add lease receivable under GASB Statement No. 87

at July 1, 2021 1,305,965 149,132 1,156,833
Less deferred inflows of resources under GASB
Statement No. 87 at July 1, 2021 (1,305,965) (149,132) (1,156,833)
Net position at Juy 1, 2021, as restated $327,223,629 $18,829,721 $28,417,695
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Subsequent Events

On July 18, 2022 the City sold general obligation capital loan notes in the amount of $3,860,000. The
notes were sold at an interest rate of 2.8% and will mature in 2035. The proceeds will be used to
fund various projects including street improvements, river improvements, and equipment.

New Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Standards

The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) has issued the following statements not yet
implemented by the City. The Statements, which may impact the City are as follows:

Statement No. 91, Conduit Debt Obligations, will be effective for fiscal year June 30, 2023. The primary
objectives of this statement are to provide a single method of reporting conduit debt obligations by issuers
and eliminate diversity in practice associated with (1) commitments extended by issuers, (2) arrangements
associated with conduit debt obligations, and (3) related note disclosures.

Statement No. 94, Public-Private and Public-Public Partnerships and Availability Payment Arrangements,
will be effective for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023. The primary objective of this statement is to
improve financial reporting by addressing issues related to public-private and public-public partnership
arrangements (PPPs).

Statement No. 96, Subscription —Based Information Technology Agreements, will be effective for the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2023. This statement provides guidance on the accounting and financial reporting for
subscription-based information technology arrangements (SBITAs) for government end users

(governments).

GASB Statement No. 99, Omnibus 2022, issued April 2022, the requirements are effective for the City at
issuance of the Statement, and with fiscal years ending after June 30, 2023 and June 30, 2024,
respectively. The objectives of this Statement are to enhance comparability in accounting and financial
reporting and to improve the consistency of authoritative literature by addressing (1) practice issues that
have been identified during implementation and application of certain GASB Statements and (2)
accounting and financial reporting for financial guarantees.

GASB Statement No. 100, Accounting Changes and Error Corrections — an amendment of GASB
Statement No. 62, issued June 2022 will be effective for the City beginning with its fiscal year ending after
June 30, 2024. The objective of this Statement is to enhance accounting and financial reporting
requirements for accounting changes and error corrections to provide more understandable, reliable,
relevant, consistent, and comparable information for making decisions or assessing accountability.

GASB Statement No. 101, Compensated Absences, issued June 2022 will be effective for the City
beginning with its fiscal year ending after June 30, 2025. The objective of this Statement is to better meet
the information needs of financial statement users by updating the recognition and measurement guidance
for compensated absences.

The City’s management has not yet determined the effect these statements will have on the City’s financial
statements.
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Revenues:

City of Cedar Falls, lowa

Budgetary Comparison Schedule - Function Budget

For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

Property taxes and assessments

Other City taxes
Licenses and permits

Use of money and property

Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Miscellaneous

Total revenues

Expenditures:

Current:

Public safety
Public works

Health and social services
Culture and recreation
Community and economic development

General government
Debt service
Capital projects
Business-type

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) expenditures

Other financing sources (uses):

Issuance of debt
Transfers in
Transfers out

Total other financing sources (uses)

Excess (deficiency) of revenue and other financing sources
over (under) expenditures and other financing uses

Fund balances, beginning

Fund balances, ending

See notes to the required supplementary information.
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Budgeted Amounts

Original Final
$ 29,076,272 $ 29,076,272
5,709,508 6,430,758
1,036,000 1,036,000
1,442,800 1,442,800
14,460,070 15,411,760
14,166,550 14,407,400
767,540 1,619,250
$ 66,658,740 $ 69,424,240
$ 13,199,520 $ 13,234,520
21,398,500 22,471,000
45,000 45,000
7,985,710 8,258,840
3,127,200 3,912,340
5,469,310 5,515,940
1,062,100 1,062,100
24,751,410 28,212,410
11,377,760 11,718,190
$ 88,416,510 94,430,340
$ (21,757,770) $ (25,006,100)
$ 2133000 $ 2,733,000
13,336,350 13,336,350
(13,336,350) (13,336,350)
$ 2133000 $ 2,733,000
$ (19,624,770) $ (22,273,100)
87,695,662 87,695,662
$ 68,070,802 $ 65,422,562
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Variance with

Item 17.

Final Budget -

Actual Positive
Amounts (Negative)
$ 29,103,855 $ 27,583
8,615,811 2,185,053
1,012,414 (23,586)
1,073,595 (369,205)
15,929,225 517,465
14,267,681 (139,719)
2,350,447 731,197
$ 72,353,028 $ 2,928,788
$ 12,890,191 $ 344,329
16,455,069 6,015,931
25,776 19,224
7,063,896 1,194,944
3,319,082 593,258
4,933,496 582,444
1,062,100 -
14,100,931 14,111,479
9,749,934 1,968,256
$ 69,600,475 $ 24,829,865
$ 2,752,553 $ 27,758,653
$ - $ (2,733,000)
15,976,914 2,640,564
(15,976,914) (2,640,564)
$ - $ (2,733,000)
$ 2,752,553 $ 25,025,653
103,020,762 15,325,100
$ 105,773,315 $ 40,350,753
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City of Cedar Falls, lowa

Notes to Required Supplementary Information — Budgetary Reporting
For the Year ended June 30, 2022

Note A - Budgetary Reporting

The budgetary comparison is presented as Required Supplementary Information in
accordance with Government Accounting Statement No. 41 for governments with significant
budgetary perspective differences resulting from not being able to present budgetary
comparisons for the General Fund and each major Special Revenue Fund.

In accordance with the Code of lowa, the City Council annually adopts a budget on the cash
basis plus recorded accounts payable following required public notice and hearing for all
funds. The annual budget may be amended during the year utilizing similar statutorily
prescribed procedures. Encumbrances are not recognized on the cash basis budget and

appropriations lapse at year end.

Formal and legal budgetary control is based upon 9 maijor classes of disbursements known
as functions, not by fund or fund type. These 9 functions are: public safety, public works,
health and social services, culture and recreation, community and economic development,
general government, debt service, capital projects, and business-type activities. Function
disbursements required to be budgeted include disbursements for the General Fund, Special
Revenue Funds, Debt Service Fund, Capital Project Funds, and Enterprise Funds. Although
the budget document presents function disbursements by fund, the legal level of control is at
the aggregated function level, not by fund. During the year, one budget amendment
increased budgeted disbursements by $6,013,830. This budget amendment is reflected in

the final budget amounts.
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City of Cedar Falls, lowa

Budgetary Comparison Schedule -
Program Budget
Notes to RSl

Item 17.

Note B - Explanation of Differences between Budgetary Sources and Uses of
funds and GAAP Revenues and Expenditures for the GAAP General

Fund and Major Special Revenue Funds

Sources

Actual amounts (budgetary basis) "total revenues" from the budgetary
comparison schedule - function budget

Adjustments:
The City budgets for all receipts on the cash basis, rather than

the modified accrual or accrual basis

Total revenues for the function budget on a GAAP basis of
accounting

Reclassifications:
The City reports sources of funds in the function budget as
revenues in other major and nonmajor funds for GAAP reporting:
Debt Service Fund
Capital Improvements Fund
Bond capital projects Fund
Nonmajor governmental GAAP funds
Business-type enterprise funds

Total revenues for general fund and major special revenue funds

Total revenues as reported on the statement of revenues,
expenditures, and changes in fund balances - governmental funds:
General Fund
Hospital Fund
TIF Fund
Street Construction Fund
Street Repair Fund

Total revenues for general fund and major special revenue funds
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Function
Budget

$ 72,353,028

(2,972,496)

$ 69,380,532

(679,459)
(1,689,675)
(1,004,440)
(5,389,861)

(12,036,036)

$ 48,581,061

$ 27,955,709
436,298
6,734,247
5,474,613
7,980,194

$ 48,581,061
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Function

Budget
Uses
Actual amounts (budgetary basis) "total expenditures” from the budgetary
comparison schedule - function budget $ 69,600,475

Adjustments

The City budgets for expenditures on the cash basis, rather than on the

modified accrual or accrual basis on all items except payments to suppliers

The City does not budget for depreciation (3,190,044)

Total uses for the function budget on a GAAP basis of accounting $ 66,410,431

Reclassifications:
The City reports uses of funds in the function budget as expenditures in

other major and nonmajor funds for GAAP reporting:
Debt Service Fund (1,062,100)
Capital Improvements Fund (2,381,968)
Bond capital projects Fund (10,490,614)
Nonmajor governmental GAAP funds (6,077,212)

Business-type enterprise funds (9,653,363)
Total expenditures for general fund and major special revenue funds $ 36,745,174
Total expenditures as reported on the statement of revenues, expenditures,
and changes in fund balances - governmental funds:
General Fund $ 24,580,622
Hospital Fund 12,776
TIF Fund --
Street Construction Fund 3,135,690
Street Repair Fund 9,016,086
Total expenditures for general fund and major special revenue funds $ 36,745,174
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City of Cedar Falls, lowa
Schedule of the City's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability

lowa Public Employees' Retirement System
June 30, 2022

2022* 2021 2020

City's proportion of the net pension (0.0555200) % 0.1318840 % 0.1280748 %

liability
City's proportionate share of the net $ 191,670 $ 9,264,499 $ 7,416,373

pension liability
City's covered payroll $ 11,095,706 $ 10,465,436 $ 9,750,115
City's proportionate share of the net

pension liability as a percentage

of its covered payroll 1.73 % 88.52 % 76.06 %
Plan fiduciary net position as a

percentage of the total pension

100.81 % 82.90 % 85.45 %

liability

In accordance with GASB Statement No. 68, the amounts presented for each
fiscal year were determined as of June 30 of the preceding fiscal year.

See accompanying independent auditor's report.

Note: GASB Statement No. 68 requires ten years of information to be presented in this table. However,
until a full 10-year trend is compiled, the City will present information for those years for which information

is available.

*The Plan has three groups, regular, sheriff, and protective. In total, the Plan reported a net pension asset
at June 30, 2021. However, the City only participates in the regular group, which reported a net pension
liability at June 30, 2021.
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$

$

_ 2019

0.1259677 %

7,971,544

9,473,601

84.14 %

83.62 %

__2018

0.1246758 %

$ 8,304,985

$ 9,302,153

89.28 %

82.21 %

$

$

2017

0.1279990 %

8,055,379

9,203,649

87.52 %

81.82 %
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__2016

0.1337248 %

$ 6,606,653

$ 9,218,654

71.67 %

85.19 %

2015

0.1421628 %

$ 5,638,043

$ 9,346,040

60.33 %

87.61 %

Item 17.
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City of Cedar Falls, lowa
Schedule of City Contributions

lowa Public Employees’ Retirement System
Last 10 Fiscal Years

2022 2021 2020 2019

Statutorily required contribution $ 1,072,135 $ 1,047,351 § 088,265 $ 920,276

Contributions in relation to the

statutorily required contribution 1,072,135 1,047,351 988,265 (920,276)
Contribution deficiency (excess)  $ -- $ - $ - $ --
City's covered payroll $ 11,357,362 $ 11,095,706 $ 10,465436 $ 9,750,115

Contributions as a percentage of
covered payroll 9.44% 9.44% 9.44% 9.44%

See accompanying independent auditor's report.
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2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
$ 846190 $ 831,947 $ 821,928 $ 821,440 § 834,065 § 823374
(846,190) (831,047) (821,928) (821,440)  (834,065) (823,374)

s - 3 - $ - § - § - § -
$ 0473601 $ 9,302,153 $ 9,203,649 §$ 9,218,654 §$ 9,346,040 §$ 9,490,561
8.93% 8.94% 8.93% 8.91% 8.92% 8.68%
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City of Cedar Falls, lowa
Notes to Required Supplementary Information — Pension Liability

Year ended June 30, 2022

lowa Public Employees’ Retirement System:

Changes of benefit terms:
There were no significant changes of benefit terms.

Changes of assumptions:
The 2018 valuation implemented the following refinements as a result of a demographic assumption study

dated June 28, 2018:
e Changed mortality assumptions to the RP-2014 mortality tables with mortality improvements

modeled using Scale MP-2017.
Adjusted retirement rates.

Lowered disability rates.
Adjusted the probability of a vested Regular member electing to receive a deferred benefit.

Adjusted the merit component of the salary increase assumption.

The 2017 valuation implemented the following refinements as a result of an experience study dated March
24, 2017:

e Decreased the inflation assumption from 3.00% to 2.60%.
Decreased the assumed rate of interest on member accounts from 3.75% to 3.50% per year.
Decreased the discount rate from 7.50% to 7.00%.
Decreased the wage growth assumption from 4.00% to 3.25%.
Decreased the payroll growth assumption from 4.00% to 3.25%.

e @& @ @

The 2014 valuation implemented the following refinements as a result of a quadrennial experience study:

o Decreased the inflation assumption from 3.25 percent to 3.00 percent.

e Decreased the assumed rate of interest on member accounts from 4.00 percent to 3.75 percent per
year.

o Adjusted male mortality rates for retirees in the Regular membership group.
Reduced retirement rates for sheriffs and deputies between the ages of 55 and 64.
Moved from an open 30 year amortization period to a closed 30 year amortization period for the
UAL beginning June 30, 2014. Each year thereafter, changes in the UAL from plan experience will
be amortized on a separate closed 20 year period.
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City of Cedar Falls, lowa
Schedule of the City's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability

Municipal Fire and Police Retirement System of lowa
June 30, 2022

2022 2021 2020
City's proportion of the net pension 1.757213 % 1.859929 % 1.864869 %
liability
City's proportionate share of the net $ 3,946,246 $ 14,834,799 $ 12,232,171

pension liability

City's covered payroll $ 5,708,659 $ 5,907,701 $ 5,646,572
City's proportionate share of the net

pension liability as a percentage

of its covered payroll 69.13 % 251.05 % 216.63 %

Plan fiduciary net position as a
percentage of the total pension
liability 93.62 % 76.47 % 79.94 %

In accordance with GASB Statement No. 68, the amounts presented for each
fiscal year were determined as of June 30 of the preceding fiscal year.

See accompanying independent auditor's report.

Note: GASB Statement No. 68 requires ten years of information to be presented in this table. However,
until a full 10-year trend is compiled, the City will present information for those years for which information is

available.
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2019 2018 2017 2016 2015

1.778180 % 1.671545 % 1.727939 % 1.727077 % 1.782771 %
$ 10,587,346 $ 9,803,195 $ 10,804,128 $ 8,114,055 $ 6,462,513

$ 5,168,468 $ 4,734,184 $ 4,682,488 $ 4,529,187 $ 4,552,662
204.84 % 207.07 % 230.73 % 179.15 % 141.95 %

81.07 % 80.6 % 78.2 % 83.04 % 86.27 %
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City of Cedar Falls, lowa
Schedule of City Contributions

Municipal Fire and Police Retirement System of lowa
Last 10 Fiscal Years

2022 2021 2020 2019

Statutorily required contribution ~ $ 1,546,941 $ 1445236 $ 1,442,048 $ 1,469,237

Contributions in relation to the

statutorily required contribution 1,546,941 1,445,236 1,442,048 (1,469,237)
Contribution deficiency (excess) $ - $ - $ - $ ~
City's covered payroll $ 5008,861 $ 5708659 $ 5,907,701 $ 5,646,572

Contributions as a percentage of
covered payroll 26.18% 25.32% 24.41% 26.02%

See accompanying independent auditor's report.
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2018

2017

2016

2015

2014

2013

Item 17.

$ 1,327,264 $ 1,227,100

(1,327,264)

(1,227,100)

$ 1,300,356 $ 1,377,326 $ 1,371,261

(1,300,356)

(1,377,326)

(1,371,261)

$ 1,144,556

(1,144,556)

$ s

$

$

$

$

$

$ 5168469 $ 4,734,184 $ 4,682,488 $ 4,529,187 $ 4,552,662 $ 4,381,915

25.68%

25.92%

27.77%
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30.12%

26.12%
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City of Cedar Falls, lowa
Notes to Required Supplementary Information — Pension Liability

Year ended June 30, 2022

Municipal Fire and Police Retirement System of lowa:

Changes of benefit terms:

There were no significant changes of benefit terms.

Changes of assumptions:

The 2018 valuation changed postretirement mortality rates to the RP-2014 Blue Collar Healthy
Annuitant table with males set-forward zero years, females set-forward two years and disabled
set-forward three years (male only rates), with generational projection of future mortality
improvement with 50% of scale BB.

The 2017 valuation added five years projection of future mortality improvement with Scale BB.

The 2016 valuation changed postretirement mortality rates to the RP-2000 Biue Collar Combined
Healthy Mortality Table with males set-back two years, females set-forward one year and
disabled individuals set-forward one year (male only rates), with no projection of future mortality

improvement.

The 2015 valuation phased in the 1994 Group Annuity Mortality Table for postretirement
mortality. This resulted in a weighting of 1/12 of the 1971 Group Annuity Mortality Table and
11/12 of the 1994 Group Annuity Mortality Table.

The 2014 valuation phased in the 1994 Group Annuity Mortality Table for postretirement
mortality. This resulted in a weighting of 2/12 of the 1971 Group Annuity Mortality Table and

10/12 of the 1994 Group Annuity Mortality Table.
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City of Cedar Falls, lowa

Schedule of Changes in the City's

Total OPEB Liability, Related Ratios and Notes

June 30, 2022

Item 17.

2022 2021 2020

Service Cost $ 231,331 $ 208,856 $ 129,747
Interest cost 123,697 79,347 108,917
Difference between expected and

actual experiences 102,348 - 275,367
Changes in assumptions (190,724) -- 358,691
Benefit payments (416,737) (218,250) (133,483).
Net change in total OPEB liability $ (150,085) $ 69,953 3 739,239
Total OPEB liability beginning of year 3,560,585 3,490,632 2,751,393
Total OPEB liability end of year $ 3,410,500 $ 3,560,585 $ 3,490,632
Covered-employee payroll 15,191,208 14,878,294 14,375,163
Total OPEB liability as a percentage

of covered-employee payroll 22.45% 23.93% 24.28%

Notes to Schedules of Changes in the GAAP City's Total OPEB Liability and Related Ratios

No assets are accumulated in a trust that meets the criteria in paragraph 4 of GASB Statement 75.

Changes in benefit terms:

There were no significant changes in benefit terms.

Changes in assumptions;

The mortality table was changed to the PUB-2010 general table.
The mortality improvement scale was updated to the MP-2021.
The Getzen trend model was implemented.

Changes in assumptions and other inputs reflect the effects of changes in the discount rate each

period. The following are the discount rates used in each period.

Year ended June 30, 2022 3.69%
Year ended June 30, 2021 2.21%
Year ended June 30, 2020 2.21%
Year ended June 30, 2019 3.87%
Year ended June 30, 2018 3.87%

Note: GASB Statement No. 75 requires ten years of information to be presented in this table. However, until a
full 10-year trend is compiled, the City will present information for those years for which information is available.
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2019 2018

$ 125,359 $ 55,384
105,512 61,468

- 924,312

= 537,008

(161,077) (141,086)

$ 69,794 $ 1,437,086
2,681,599 1,244,513

$ 2,751,393 $ 2,681,599
13,870,992 13,401,925
19.84% 20.01%
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City of Cedar Falls, lowa

Combining Balance Sheet
Nonmajor Governmental Funds

June 30, 2022
(Page 1 of 2)

Item 17.

Community Housing
Development Assistance
Fund Fund
ASSETS
Cash $ -- $ 511,060
Receivables, net of allowance
for uncollectible amounts:
Property taxes -- --
Other city taxes -- -
Accrued interest -- -
Special assessment -- -
Due from other funds - 221,503
Due from other governments 364,909 -
Inventories - -
Total assets $ 364,909 $ 732,563
LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES, AND FUND BALANCES
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable $ 27,861 $ 318
Grant Proceeds Received in Advance - -
Accrued liabilities - 2,078
Due to other funds 221,503 -
Total liabilities $ 249,364 $ 2,396
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Succeeding year property taxes $ = $ e
Other 48,124 -
Total deferred inflows of resources $ 48,124 $ -
FUND BALANCES
Nonspendable $ -- $ --
Restricted 67,421 730,167
Committed - -
Assigned -- --
Unassigned - --
Total fund balances $ 67,421 $ 730,167
Total liabilities, deferred inflows of
resources, and fund balances $ 364,909 $ 732,563
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Special Revenue

Parking Police Fire Visitor &
Fund Retirement Retirement Tourism
$ 564,222 $ 3,396,878 3,223,941 808,041
s 833,406 311,378 -
- -- - 202,191
525 1,695 1,666 540
6,621 - - 27,171
$ 571,368 4,231,979 3,536,985 1,037,943
$ 8,413 1,884 1,431 38,533
5,114 -- -- 15,558
$ 13,627 1,884 1,431 54,091
$ - 828,489 308,015 -
$ - 828,489 308,015 -
$ 6,621 - - 27,171
- 3,401,606 3,227,539 956,681
551,220 - - --
$ 557,841 3,401,606 3,227,539 083,852
$ 571,368 4,231,979 3,536,985 1,037,943
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City of Cedar Falls, lowa

Combining Balance Sheet
Nonmajor Governmental Funds
June 30, 2022
(Page 2 of 2)

Special Revenue

Item 17.

ASSETS
Cash
Receivables, net of allowance
for uncollectible amounts:

Property taxes

Other city taxes

Accrued interest

Special assessment
Due from other funds
Due from other governments
Inventories

Total assets

Greenwood
Perpetual

Care

Fairview
Perpetual
Care

Hillside
Perpetual
Care

$

254,467

$

169,598

$ 53,688

$

254,467

$

169,598

$ 53,688

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES, AND FUND BALANCES

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Grant Proceeds Received in Advance
Accrued liabilities
Due to other funds
Total liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Succeeding year property taxes

Other
Total deferred inflows of resources

FUND BALANCES

Nonspendable

Restricted

Committed

Assigned

Unassigned
Total fund balances
Total liabilities, deferred inflows of
resources, and fund balances

$

$

$ -

254,467

169,598

$

254,467

$

169,598

$ 53,688

$

254,467

$

169,598

$ 53,688
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Capital Projects

Item 17.

(continueay

Washington Economic
Park FEMA Sidewalk Coronovirus Development
Renovation Fund Assessment Relief Capital Total
$ 33,602 $ 4,564,498 $ - $ 3254370 $ 8,803,260 25,637,625
- - - - -- 1,144,784
- - - == - 202,191
29 3,980 - 5,874 6,482 20,791
- - 50,276 - - 50,276
- -- -- -- 24,208 245,711
-- -- - - - 364,909
- - -- -- - 33,792
$ 33,631 $ 4568478 ¢ 50,276 $ 3,260,244 $ 8,833,950 27,700,079
$ - $ 1,050 $ - $ - $ 196,468 275,958
- - -- 3,254,370 - 3,254,370
- -- -- - - 22,750
-- - 24,208 - -- 245,711
$ - 9 1,050 $ 24208 $ 3254370 _$ 196,468 3,798,789
$ - % - % - $ - $ - 1,136,504
-- - 48,358 - - 96,482
$ - 3 - $ 48358 § - % - 1,232,986
$ - § - % - § - $ - 33,792
-- - - - - 8,861,167
- -- - - - 551,220
33,631 4,567,428 - 5,874 8,637,482 13,244,415
- - (22,290) -- - (22,290)
$ 33,631 $ 4,567,428 $ (22,290) % 5874 $ 8,637,482 22,668,304
$ 33,631 $ 4,568,478 $ 50276 $ 3,260,244 _$ 8,833,950 27,700,079
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City of Cedar Falls, lowa
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances

Nonmajor Governmental Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

(Page 1 of 2)

Revenues:
Property taxes and assessments
Other city taxes
Use of money and property
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Fines and forfeitures
Miscellaneous
Utility contribution in lieu to taxes

Total revenues

Expenditures:
Current:
Public safety
Public works
Culture and recreation
Community and economic development

Capital projects
Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
(under) expenditures

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in
Transfers out

Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balances

Fund balances, beginning
Increase (decrease) in reserve for inventories

Fund balances, ending

Item 17.

Community Housing

Development Assistance Parking
Fund Fund Fund
$ - 3 - -
-- 6,425 2,139
840,708 1,455,714 -
-- - 234,457
3,000 5,283 -
$ 843,708 $ 1,467,422 236,596
$ - 3 - -
- - 281,368
588,686 1,355,551 -
$ 588,686 $ 1,355,551 281,368
$ 255,022 $ 111,871 (44,772)
$ -~ $ - -
(235,000) -- (28,410)
$ (235,000) $ -~ (28,410)
$ 20,022 $ 111,871 (73,182)
47,399 618,296 632,313
= - (1,290)

$ 67,421 $ 730,167 557,841
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Special Revenue

Item 17.

Police Fire Visitor &
Retirement Retirement Tourism
$ 1,010,702 $ 692,150 -

- - 699,137

42,922 38,777 3,298

- - 51,852

$ 1,053,624 $ 730,927 754,287
$ 916,056 $ 716,375 -
- - 628,794

$ 916,056 $ 716,375 628,794
$ 137,568 $ 14,552 125,493
$ - $ - 110,579
- - (18,248)

$ - $ - 92,331
$ 137,568 $ 14,552 217,824
3,264,038 3,212,987 773,017
— e (6,989)

$ 3,401,606 $ 3,227,539 983,852

-113-

(continued)

276




City of Cedar Falls, lowa

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances
Nonmajor Governmental Funds

For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

(Page 2 of 2)

Revenues:
Property taxes and assessments
Other city taxes
Use of money and property
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Fines and forfeitures
Miscellaneous
Utility contribution in lieu of taxes

Total revenues

Expenditures:
Current:
Public safety
Public works
Culture and recreation
Community and economic development

Capital projects
Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
(under) expenditures

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in
Transfers out

Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balances

Fund balances, beginning
increase (decrease) in reserve for inventories

Fund balances, ending

Special Revenue

Item 17.

Greenwood Fairview Hiliside
Perpetual Perpetual Perpetual
Care Care Care
$ ~ 3 - -

4775 6,435 3,365
$ 4775 $ 6,435 3,365
$ - $ - -
$ - $ - ~
$ 4775 $ 6,435 3,365
$ -~ § ~ -
$ - $ - -
$ 4775 $ 6,435 3,365

249,692 163,163 50,323
$ 254,467 $ 169,598 53,688
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Capital Projects

Item 17.

(continued)

Washington Economic
Park FEMA Sidewalk Coronovirus Development

Renovation Fund Assessment Relief Capital Total
$ - - $ 22121 % - % - $ 1,724,973
- -- - - - 699,137
126 17,818 -- 5,874 78,106 195,485
-- 54,371 -- - - 2,350,793
-- -- -- -- - 14,575
-~ -- -- -- - 234,457
-- 54,750 25,556 -- -~ 140,441
-- -- -= -- 30,000 30,000
$ 126 126,939 47,677 $ 5,874 $ 108,106 $ 5,389,861
$ -- - - $ - % - $ 1,632,431
-- -- - -- - 281,368
-- -- - - - 628,794
-- -- - -- - 1,944,237
-- 26,721 51,085 -- 1,512,576 1,590,382
$ -- 26,721 51,085 $ - $ 1,512,576 $ 6,077,212
$ 126 100,218 (3,408) % 5,874 $ (1,404,470) _$ (687,351)
$ - == - $ - $ 2,403,749 $ 2,514,328
-- -- - - - (281,658)
$ = = - _$ - $ 2403749 § 2,232,670
$ 126 100,218 (3,408) $ 5,874 $ 999,279 $ 1,545,319
33,505 4,467,210 (18,882) - 7,638,203 21,131,264
-- -- - -- - (8,279)
$ 33,631 4,567,428 (22,290) $ 5,874 $ 8,637,482 $ 22,668,304
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City of Cedar Falls, lowa

Combining Statement of Net Position

Internal Service Funds
June 30, 2022

ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash
Receivables, net of allowance
for uncollectible amounts:
Accrued interest
Other
Inventories
Total current assets

Noncurrent assets:
Capital assets:
Buildings
Machinery and equipment
Accumulated depreciation
Total noncurrent assets
Total assets

Health
Insurance

Health Insurance
Severance

Item 17.

Payroll

2,988,779

2,427
120,553

$

341,137

2,751,636

2,919

3,111,759

2,754,555

A

$
$

3,111,759

AR

341,137

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Pension related deferred outflows

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Compensated absences due
within one year
Total current liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities:
Compensated absences after
one year
Net pension liability
Total noncurrent liabilities
Total liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Pension related deferred inflows

NET POSITION
Investment in capital assets
Unrestricted
Total net position

$

166,831
369,000

341,137

535,831

341,137

P

535,831

AR

341,137

LR

2,575,928

2,750,720

2,575,928

2,750,720

-116-

279




Item 17.

Risk Data Vehicle
Management Processing Maintenance Total
$ 2,806,742 $ 1,368,558 $ 3,197,819 $ 13,454,671
2,439 1,226 2,830 11,841
26,140 - 1,878 148,571
- 1,577 27,580 29,157
$ 2,835,321 $ 1,371,361 $ 3,230,107 $ 13,644,240
$ - % - $ 90,302 $ 90,302
-- 1,405,465 6,399,315 7,804,780
-- (1,214,954) (4,203,187) (5,418,141)
$ -  $ 190,511 $ 2,286,430 $ 2,476,941
$ 2,835,321 $ 1,561,872 $ 5,516,537 $ 16,121,181
$ - $ 62,894 $ 57,660 $ 120,554
$ 28,423  $ 36,681 $ 148,505 $ 725,412
186,098 27,950 27,110 610,158
-- 22,743 15,001 37,744
$ 214,521 $ 87,374 $ 190,616 $ 1,373,314
$ - $ 16,971 $ -- $ 16,971
-- (38,423) (35,798) (74,221)
$ - $ (21,452) $ (35,798) $ (57,250)
$ 214,521 $ 65,922 $ 154,818 $ 1,316,064
$ - $ 248,993 $ 228,417 $ 477,410
$ - $ 190,511 $ 2,286,430 $ 2,476,941
2,620,800 1,119,340 2,904,632 11,971,320
$ 2,620,800 $ 1,309,851 $ 5,190,962 $ 14,448,261
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City of Cedar Falls, lowa

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses,

Operating revenues:
Charges for services
Other

Total operating revenues

Operating expenses:
Personal services
Contractual services
Supplies and equipment
Depreciation

Total operating expenses
Operating income (loss)

Nonoperating revenues (expenses):
Use of money and property
Gain on disposal of capital assets
Loss on disposal of equipment

Nonoperating revenues (expenses)

Income (loss) before transfers

Transfers in
Transfers out

Transfers, net
Change in net position
Net position, beginning

Net position, ending

and Changes in Fund Net Position

Internal Service Funds

For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

Item 17.

Health Health Insurance

Insurance Severance Payroll
$ 3,010,239 $ -- 431,969
$ 3,010,239 $ -- 431,969
$ - $ -- 359,818

4,243,113 -- -
$ 4,243,113 $ -- 359,818
$ (1,232,874) $ -- 72,151
$ 9,468 $ -- 12,262
$ 9,468 $ -- 12,262
$ (1,223,406) $ -- 84,413
$ 900,000 $ = -
$ 900,000 $ st =
$ (323,406) $ - 84,413

2,899,334 - 2,666,307
$ 2,575,928 $ -= 2,750,720
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Item 17.

Risk Data Vehicle
Management Processing Maintenance Total
597,294 $ 1,186,660 2,098,870 $ 7,325,032
64,457 13,897 69,649 148,003
661,751 $ 1,200,557 2,168,519 $ 7.473,035
- $ 493,795 481,169 § 1,334,782
1,076,304 398,112 202,198 5,919,727
- 200,549 1,059,491 1,260,040
o 112,318 320,577 432,895
1,076,304 $ 1,204,774 2,063,435 $ 8,947,444
(414,553) $ (4,217) 105,084 $ (1,474,409)
10,281  § 5,269 12,130 $ 49,410
-- - 45,884 45,884
- - (45,466) (45,466)
10,281 $ 5,269 12,548 $ 49,828
(404,272) $ 1,052 117,632 $ (1,424,581)
- $ s - $ 900,000
- 9 s - $ 900,000
(404,272) $ 1,052 117,632 $ (524,581)
3,025,072 1,308,799 5,073,330 14,972,842
2,620,800 $ 1,309,851 5,190,962 $ 14,448,261
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Item 17.

City of Cedar Falis, lowa

Combining Statement of Cash Flows
Internal Service Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

Health Health Insurance
Insurance Severance

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Receipts from interfund services $ 2,966,044 $ 44,901
Payments to suppliers (4,183,583) -
Payments to employees -- (65,331)
Net cash provided by (used for) operating activities $ (1,217,539) $ (20,430)
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Transfers from other funds $ 900,000 $ -
Net cash provided by (used for) financing activities $ 900,000 $ ==
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING
ACTIVITIES
Net acquisition of property and equipment $ - $ -
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest received on investments $ 9,759 § --
Net increase (decrease) in cash $ (307,780) $ (20,430)
CASH BALANCES, Beginning 3,296,559 361,567
CASH BALANCES, Ending $ 2988779 § 341,137
Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash provided
by (used for) operating activities:
$ (1,232,874) $ -

Operating income (loss)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net cash
provided by (used for) operating activities:
Depreciation
(Increase) decrease in:
Other receivables
Inventories
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable, accrued and
other liabilities
(Increase) decrease in deferred outflows of resources
Increase (decrease) in deferred inflows of resources --
Net cash provided by (used for) operating activities $ (1,217,539) $ (20,430)

(44,196) -

59,531 (20,430)

283
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Item 17.

Risk Data Vehicle
Payroll Management Processing Maintenance Total
$ 431,969 $ 597,294 $ 1,186,660 $ 2,098,870 $ 7,325,738
- (996,238) (598,865) (1,203,764) (6,982,450)
(355,983) -- (548,015) (5639,690) (1,509,019)
$ 75,986 $ (398,944) § 39,780 $ 355,416 $ (1,165,731)
$ - $ - 9 -  $ - $ 900,000
$ - $ - $ - $ - $ 900,000
$ - % - % (36,118) $ (357,359) § (393,477)
$ 11,633 $ 10,075 $ 5,024 $ 11,584 $ 48,075
$ 87,619 $ (388,869) $ 8,686 $ 9,641 $ (611,133)
2,664,017 3,195,611 1,359,872 3,188,178 14,065,804
$ 2,751,636 $ 2,806,742 $ 1,368,558 $ 3,197,819 $ 13,454,671
$ 72,151 $ (414,553) % 4,217) % 105,084 $ (1,474,409)
-- -- 112,318 320,577 432,895
- (3,917) -- 1,246 (46,867)
-- -- 820 26,468 27,288
3,835 19,526 (334,773) (352,775) (625,086)
- - 23,377 35,088 58,465
- - 242,255 219,728 461,983
$ 75,986 $ (398,944) $ 39,780 $ 355,416 $ (1,165,731)
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City of Cedar Falls, lowa

Capital Assets Used in the Operation of Governmental Funds

Comparative Schedules by Source*
June 30, 2022 and 2021

Item 17.

2022 2021
Governmental fund capital assets:
Land $ 43,116,319 $ 43,116,319
Land improvements 21,100,815 21,077,715
Buildings 36,846,487 36,846,487
Machinery and equipment 14,571,997 13,927,274
Infrastructure 273,462,096 268,834,004
Construction in progress 23,380,432 12,137,611
Total governmental funds capital assets $ 412,478,146 $ 395,939,410
Investments in governmental funds capital assets by source:
General fund $ 23,574,227 $ 23,481,862
Special revenue funds 89,571,846 85,701,611
Capital projects funds 254,090,362 241,581,300
Internal service 238,913 238,913
Donations 45,002,798 44,935,724
Total governmental funds capital assets $ 412,478,146 $ 395,939,410

This schedule presents only the capital asset balances related to governmental funds.
Accordingly, the capital assets reported in internal service funds are excluded from the
above amounts. Generally, the capital assets of internal service funds are included as

governmental activities in the statement of net position.
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City of Cedar Falls, lowa
Capital Assets Used in the Operation of Governmental Funds

Schedule by Function and Activity *

June 30, 2022

Item 17.

Function and Activity Land Imprla\?gr(:\ents Buildings

Public Safety $ 12,500 $ ~- $ 10,521,665
Public Works 751,051 2,824,987 1,582,334
Health & Social Services 151,494 89,596 5,873,537
Culture and Recreation 2,923,734 12,055,727 14,598,975
Community and Economic Development 39,223,639 6,130,505 11,500
General Government 53,901 - 4,258,476

$ 43,116,319 $ 21,100,815 $ 36,846,487

*  This schedule presents only the capital asset balances related to governmental funds.
Accordingly, the capital assets reported in internal service funds are excluded from the
above amounts. Generally, the capital assets of internal service funds are included as

governmental activities in the statement of net position.
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Item 17.

Machinery Construction
and in
Equipment Infrastructure Progress Total
$ 2,566,525 $ - $ - $ 13,100,690
6,436,676 266,638,407 19,023,693 297,257,148
-- -- -- 6,114,627
3,920,869 6,823,689 1,446,989 41,769,983
108,477 - 561,200 46,035,321
1,539,450 - 2,348,550 8,200,377
$ 14,571,997 $ 273,462,096 $ 23,380,432 $ 412,478,146
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City of Cedar Falls, lowa
Capital Assets Used in the Operation of Governmental Funds
Schedule of Changes by Function and Activity *
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022

Item 17.

Governmental Governmental
Funds Capital Funds Capital
Assets Assets

July 1, 2021 Additions Deletions June 30, 2022

Public Safety $ 13,092,422 $ 8,268 $ -- $ 13,100,690

Public Works 283,518,320 17,263,934 3,525,106 297,257,148

Health & Social Services 6,114,627 - - 6,114,627

Culture and Recreation 41,233,810 552,527 16,354 41,769,983
Community and

Economic Development 46,035,321 -- - 46,035,321

General Government 5,944,910 2,255,467 - 8,200,377

$ 395,939,410 $ 20,080,196 $ 3,541,460

$ 412,478,146

*  This schedule presents only the capital asset balances related to governmental funds.
Accordingly, the capital assets reported in internal service funds are excluded from the
above amounts. Generally, the capital assets of internal service funds are included as

governmental activities in the statement of net position.
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Item 17.

City of Cedar Falls, lowa

Statistical Section

This part of the City's annual comprehensive financial report presents detailed information
as a context for understanding what the information in the financial statements, note disclosures,
and required supplementary information says about the city's overall financial health.

Contents Page

Financial Trends
These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how the city's

financial performance and well-being have changed over time. 127

Revenue Capacity
These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the city's most significant

local revenue source, the property tax. 137

Debt Capacity
These schedules present information to help the reader assess the affordability of the city's

current levels of outstanding debt and the city's ability to issue additional debt in the future 146

Demographic and Economic Information
These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader understand
the environment within which the city's financial activities take place. 158

Operating Information
These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader understand

how the information in the city's financial report relates to the services the city provides

and the activities it performs. 163

Sources: Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived from the
comprehensive annual financial reports for the relevant year.
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City of Cedar Falls, lowa
Net Position by Component
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Item 17.

(Accrual basis of accounting)

Governmental activities
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted
Unrestricted

Total governmental activities net position

Business-type activities
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted
Unrestricted

Total business-type activities net position

Primary government
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted
Unrestricted

Total primary government net position

Fiscal Year

2013

2014 2015 2016

$ 155,314,591
24,150,307
54,888,657

$ 162,409,906 $ 165,448,958 §$ 177,078,562
25,300,988
57,227,282

30,021,985
67,625,175

28,349,177
66,476,930

$ 234,353,555

$ 244,938,176 $ 260,275,065 $ 274,725,722

$ 79,677,940
9,500
(5,621,533)

(4,218,827)

$ 77,467,033 $ 79,444,948 § 80,717,535

9,500 9,500 9,500
(6,100,653) (4,631,127)

$ 74,065,907

$ 73,257,706 $ 73,353,795 $ 76,095,908

$ 234,992,531
24,159,807
49,267,124

$ 239,876,939 $ 244,893,906 $ 257,796,097
25,310,488
53,008,455

30,031,485
62,994,048

28,358,677
60,376,277

$ 308,419,462

$ 318,195,882 $ 333,628,860 $ 350,821,630
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Fiscal Year

Item 17.

2017

2018

2019

2020

2021

2022

$ 185,440,156
33,221,194
66,287,368

$ 206,505,683
32,833,649
62,952,964

$ 222,380,958
33,108,311
57,239,608

$ 233,264,428
34,985,196
51,425,709

$ 235,252,432
37,325,937
54,645,260

$ 242,518,284
38,412,903
56,550,973

$ 284,948,718

$ 302,292,296

$ 312,728,877

$ 319,675,333

$ 327,223,629

$ 337,482,160

$ 79,810,012
9,500
(2,265,218)

$ 83,110,200
9,500
(1,699,735)

$ 79,631,920
29,990
6,090,521

$ 80,028,959
29,990
7,529,705

$ 80,744,907
29,990
11,807,093

$ 81,353,542
41,540
14,652,540

$ 77,554,294

$ 81,419,965

$ 85,652,431

$ 87,588,654

$ 92,581,990

$ 96,047,622

$ 265,250,168
33,230,694
64,022,150

$ 289,615,883
32,843,149
61,253,229

$ 301,912,878
33,138,301
63,330,129

$ 313,293,387
35,015,186
58,955,414

$ 315,997,339
37,355,927
66,452,353

$ 323,871,826
38,454,443
71,203,513

$ 362,503,012

$ 383,712,261

$ 398,381,308

$ 407,263,987

$ 419,805,619

$ 433,529,782
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City of Cedar Falls, lowa
Changes in Net Position

Last Ten Fiscal Years

(Accrual basis of accounting)

(Page 1 of 2)

Item 17.

Fiscal Year
2013 2014 2015 2016
Expenses
Governmental activities:
Public safety 3 9491677 $ 9293710 § 9285835 § 9,720,423
Public works 11,909,568 12,086,420 12,301,197 11,782,921
Health and social services 320,864 166,764 279,734 276,202
Culture and recreation 7,262,110 7,135,841 7,560,018 7,679,626
Community and economic development 8,357,058 5,134,158 5,661,653 5,747,990
General government 4,890,409 4,684,649 4,319,945 3,855,419
Debt service 228,173 183,339 166,377 157,356
Total governmental activities expenses 42,459,859 38,684,881 39,574,759 39,219,937
Business-type activities:
Sewer 3,617,688 3,971,854 4,702,339 4,822,038
Refuse 2,770,264 2,960,082 2,744,057 2,829,990
Storm Water 728,713 835,029 1,000,434 925,595
Total business-type activities expenses 7,116,665 7,766,965 8,446,830 8,577,623
Total primary government expenses $ 49576524 $ 46451846 $ 48021589 § 47,797,560
Program Revenues
Governmental activities:
Charges for services:
Public Safety $ 673,860 § 661,382 $ 640,025 $ 620,779
Public Works 204,592 179,494 174,750 179,815
Culture and Recreation 2,400,747 2,518,347 2,226,514 2,501,785
General Government 1,632,567 1,773,501 1,647,812 2,009,261
Operating grants and contributions 2,098,639 1,818,312 1,502,835 1,911,261
Capital grants and contributions 6,479,932 3,576,733 1,628,293 3,055,296
Total governmentatl activities program revenues 13,490,337 10,527,769 7,720,229 10,278,197
Business-type activities:
Charges for services:
Sewer 4,574,181 4,837,116 5,067,148 5,279,521
Refuse 2,996,396 3,139,016 2,855,267 2,910,356
Storm Water 890,893 831,083 830,501 937,310
Capital grants and contributions: sewer and storm water 577,411 689,285 731,471 1,034,068
Total business-type activities program revenues 9,038,881 9,496,500 0,484,387 10,161,255
Total primary government program revenues $ 22529218 § 20024269 $ 17,204616 $ 20,439,452
Net (Expense)/Revenues
Governmental activities (28,969,522) (28,157,112) (31,854,530) (28,941,740)
Business-type activities 1,922,216 1,729,535 1,037,557 1,583,632
Total primary government net expense $ (27,047,306) $ (26/427,577) $ (30.816,973) $ (27,358,108)
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Item 17.

Fiscal Year
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

$ 10,499,099 §$ 11516205 § 12,234,454 $ 14,356,978 § 14,443,799 $ 11,596,217

12,901,482 11,932,088 16,064,779 14,178,454 15,089,189 18,503,503
308,406 273,186 173,198 357,404 352,735 174,754
7,751,004 8,726,607 7,852,080 8,149,827 8,227,093 7,989,443
7,625,932 4,033,621 4,443,144 4,226,474 4,741,335 4,637,338
3,924,362 4,049,880 4,333,051 4,664,011 5,410,951 5,012,842
178,344 135,621 180,268 192,876 174,868 128,515
43,189,629 40,667,208 45,280,974 46,126,024 48,439,970 48,042,612
4,613,456 4,653,292 4,816,390 5,162,985 5,001,085 5,594,416
2,876,394 2,972,968 3,052,989 3,134,596 3,235,095 3,451,795
866,931 946,045 983,487 1,037,946 1,050,855 1,034,120
8,356,781 8,572,305 8,852,866 9,335,527 9,287,035 10,080,331

$ 51546310 $ 49239513 § 54,133,840 $ 554615561 § 57,727,005 $ 58,122,943

$ 607,903 $ 640,663 $ 655542 § 577,351 § 516,198 § 579,155

168,952 171,855 165,923 161,405 105,769 234,458
2,197,303 1,919,584 1,929,337 1,296,689 1,176,045 1,761,001
1,750,177 1,893,538 1,680,208 1,509,577 2,093,041 1,539,552
2,136,947 2,714,799 1,607,195 1,919,605 3,012,469 2,746,064
1,652,967 7,928,276 5,683,625 2,968,418 3,180,994 2,731,155
8,514,249 15,268,715 11,621,830 8,433,045 10,084,516 9,591,385
5,628,724 6,272,882 6,625,335 6,903,473 7,300,595 7,694,631
2,899,428 3,031,163 2,930,917 2,915,458 3,086,774 3,271,061

883,849 1,037,731 947,035 1,093,448 1,051,594 1,070,344

897,429 1,173,269 259,676 390,852 1,534,377 91,786

10,310,430 11,615,045 10,762,963 11,303,231 12,973,340 12,127,822

$ 18,824,679 §$ 26,783,760 $ 22384793 $ 19,736,276 $ 23,057,856 $ 21,719,207

(34,675280)  (25308493)  (33,659,144) (37,692,979 (38,355454)  (38/451,227)
1,953,649 2,942,740 1,810,097 1,967,704 3,686,305 2,047 491
$ 32721631 § (22.455.753) § (31.749.047) $ (35.725.275) § (34,669,149) $ (36,403,736)

(continued)
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City of Cedar Falls, lowa
Changes in Net Position
Last Ten Fiscal Years
(Accrual basis of accounting)
(Page 2 of 2)

General Revenues and Other Changes in Net Position
Governmental activities:
General revenues:
Property taxes and assessments
Other city taxes
Use of money and property
Intergovernmental
Miscellaneous
Gain on sale of assets
Utility contribution in lieu of taxes
Transfers
Total governmental activities

Business-type activities:
General revenues:
Use of money and property
Gain on Sale
Intergovernmental
Transfers
Total business-type activities

Total primary government

Change in Net Position
Governmental activities

Business-type activities
Total primary government

Item 17.

Fiscal Year

2013 2014 2015 2016
$ 24695940 § 21,248529 § 25,096,699 24,991,769
5,544,604 6,036,891 5,935,675 5,820,244
1,268,202 1,120,041 1,187,617 1,252,423
4,405,345 4,545,694 25,400,155 6,503,056
1,375,437 1,389,109 844,766 1,616,773
- - -- 3,864
1,637,000 1,725,000 3,402,949 4,175,000
(1,843,432) 2,676,469 (356,735) (970,732)
37,083,096 38,741,733 61,511,126 43,392,397
38,886 44,547 50,802 69,673
- 94,186 88,596 118,076
1,843,432 (2,676,469) 356,735 970,732
1,882,318 (2,537,736) 496,133 1,158,481
$ 138965414 $ 36,203997 § 62,007,259 44 550,878
$ 8,113,574 $ 10,584,621 $ 29,656,596 14,450,657
3,804,534 (808,201) 1,533,690 2,742,113
$ 11,918,108 § 0,776,420 $ 31,190,286 17,192,770
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Item 17.

(continued)

Fiscal Year

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
25,646,096 $ 24,249,414 § 24620658 $ 24,367,797 $ 26,903,746 $ 29,063,485
5,931,730 5,709,246 6,115,363 6,106,725 6,955,026 8,875,749
1,302,082 1,743,242 2,491,989 2,386,435 1,314,163 1,065,174
6,386,056 6,208,882 6,493,435 6,650,002 7,284,160 6,948,043
1,538,658 2,802,838 3,021,477 1,658,073 1,997,826 1,476,082
2,615 878 - -- 35,225 0
3,402,500 3,430,000 3,296,714 3,058,657 2,651,632 2,612,293

688,539 (546,193) (1,943,911) 411,746 (1,238,028) (1,331,075)
44,898,276 43,598,307 44,095,725 44,639,435 45,903,750 48,709,751
111,583 208,958 383,387 380,265 106,682 82,702
= - (4,929) - (37,679) 4,364
81,693 167,780 - - -- -
(688,539) 546,193 1,943,911 (411,746) 1,238,028 1,331,073
(495,263) 922,931 2,322,369 (31,481) 1,307,031 1,418,139
44403,013 $ 44,521,238 § 46418,094 $ 44,607,954 $ 47,210,781 § 50,127,890
10,222,996 $ 18,199,814 $ 10,436,581 $ 6946456 §$ 7,548,296 $ 10,258,523
1,458,386 3,865,671 4,232,466 1,936,223 4,993,336 3,465,632
11,681,382 $ 22,065485 § 14,669,047 $ 8882679 § 12,541,632 § 13,724,155
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City of Cedar Falis, lowa

Fund Balances, Governmental Funds,

Last Ten Fiscal Years

(modified accrual basis of accounting)

General Fund
Nonspendable
Assigned
Unassigned

Total general fund

All Other Governmental Funds
Nonspendable
Restricted
Committed
Assigned
Unassigned

Total all other governmental funds

Item 17.

Fiscal Year
2013 2014 2015 2016
$ 241,612 $ 195,196 $ 183,922 $ 164,808
1,817,084 2,205,244 2,277,562 2,589,832
6,978,807 7,333,349 7,603,109 8,401,303
$ 9,037,503 $ 9,733,789 $ 10,064,593 $ 11,155,943
$ 306,613 $ 257,741 $ 562,516 $ 678,404
25,435,109 26,920,959 28,101,815 29,490,897
16,551,115 17,029,200 17,408,842 17,820,657
14,559,803 19,036,386 42,072,607 37,461,720
(1,193,291) (5,580,797) (5,289,619) (2,044,819)
$ 55,659,349 $ 57,663,489 $ 82,856,161 $ 83,406,859
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Item 17.

Fiscal Year

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
$ 119,165 $ 100,909 $ 93,692 $ 122,878 $ 122,733 $ 101,762
2,909,366 2,904,712 3,124,973 3,002,643 2,803,774 3,381,002
8,672,595 9,105,204 9,359,241 9,467,412 9,166,625 8,933,608
$ 11,701,126 $ 12,110,825 $ 12,577,906 $ 12,592,933 $ 12,093,132 $ 12,416,372
$ 441,642 $ 338,774 $ 275,261 $ 452,032 $ 489,111 $ 579,777
34,254,079 32,228,803 32,919,628 34,676,365 36,954,610 37,831,310
18,129,245 18,514,062 19,013,400 19,318,484 19,454,123 19,804,463
33,011,377 35,726,036 31,223,347 34,220,780 40,556,613 42,161,947
- (6,525,598) (9,215,142) (15,179,224) (16,231,652) (21,051,885)
$ 85,836,343 $ 80,282,077 $ 74,216,494 $ 73,488,437 $ 81,222,805 $ 79,325,612
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City of Cedar Falls, lowa
Changes in Fund Balances, Governmental Funds,
Last Ten Fiscal Years
(modified accrual basis of accounting)

Item 17.

Fiscal Year
2013 2014 2015 2016
Revenues:
Property taxes and assessments $ 24,696,783 $ 21,244,190 $ 25,099,620 $ 24,996,361
Other city taxes 5,519,022 5,995,505 6,156,049 5,574,659
Licenses and permits 1,076,186 1,197,723 967,488 1,413,196
Use of money and property 1,268,202 1,120,040 1,187,617 1,252,423
Intergovernmental 12,599,954 8,688,760 27,494,197 9,556,156
Charges for services 3,386,415 3,542,072 3,329,061 3,613,510
Fines and forfeitures 449,165 392,928 292,551 284,934
Miscellaneous 1,358,192 1,400,551 1,154,586 1,598,216
Utility contribution in lieu of taxes 1,637,000 1,725,000 3,402,949 4,175,000
Total revenues $ 51,990,919 §$ 45,306,769 $ 69,084,118 $ 52,464,455
Expenditures:
Current:
Public safety $ 8999942 $ 9,188,529 $ 9,736,872 $ 09,888,523
Public works 10,089,252 9,325,749 10,078,273 9,762,190
Health and social services 172,284 18,184 150,853 127,222
Culture and recreation 6,449,626 6,130,462 6,949,450 6,868,429
Community and economic
development 2,646,490 2,351,253 2,529,858 2,486,183
General government 4,684,063 4,592,138 3,376,609 3,700,513
Debt service
Principal 2,685,000 2,775,000 1,040,000 1,070,000
Interest 271,009 216,208 156,875 148,071
Capital projects 9,544,629 10,593,247 9,106,571 15,604,458
Total expenditures $ 45542295 § 45190,770 $ 43,125,361 $ 49,655,589
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures $ 6448624 $ 115999 $ 25,958,757 $ 2,808,866
Other financing sources (uses):
$ 13297694 $ 12,547,589 $ 10,234,634 $ 11,283,281

Transfers in
Transfers out (14,976,869) (9,867,874) (10,863,417)

Issuance of debt
Premium on long-term debt
Total other financing sources

(12,571,873)

(uses) $ (1679,175) $ 2679715 $  (628,783) §$ (1,288592)

Net change in fund balances $ 4769449 $ 2795714 $ 25329974 $ 1,520,274
Debt service as a percentage of

8.0% 8.9% 3.5% 3.9%

noncapital expenditures
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Fiscal Year

Item 17.

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
$ 25647323 § 24193934 $ 24602616 $ 24332248 § 26,907,831 § 29,056,384
6,177,313 5,709,246 6,115,363 6,106,725 6,955,026 8,875,750
1,164,442 1,302,864 1,089,244 932,121 1,530,582 1,012,235
1,302,082 1,743,242 2,491,989 2,386,435 1,314,163 1,065,179
8,383,167 13,890,953 13,389,635 10,625,228 10,605,383 10,090,582
3,286,820 3,008,403 3,043,384 2,296,459 2,150,458 2,732,528
273,073 314,373 297,455 316,928 209,676 369,403
1,533,555 2,813,716 3,025,774 3,356,248 1,994,030 1,530,142
3,402,500 3,430,000 3,296,714 3,058,657 2,651,632 2,612,293
$ 51170275 § 56,406,731 $ 57,352,174 §$ 53,411,049 § 54318781 § 57344496
$ 0916019 § 10903573 §$ 11815792 $ 12410312 § 12055532 § 12410233
8,526,896 8,454,750 12,705,220 13,995,394 11,492,908 13,858,681
159,428 124,208 24,220 208,424 216,757 25,776
6,735,547 7,340,139 7,070,254 7,030,973 7,092,995 7,000,740
2,462,130 2,428,537 2,641,619 2,542,366 2,991,681 3,104,803
3,720,389 3,914,637 4,053,737 4,566,065 4,956,324 4,831,771
1,585,000 1,420,000 820,000 1,580,000 650,000 870,000
175,387 138,445 208,823 227,753 232,344 192,100
18,103,067 26,142,521 24,723,513 11,684,006 9,822,160 14,462,964
$ 51383863 § 60,866,810 § 64,063,178 $ 54245293 §$ 49510701 § 56,757.068
$ (213588) $ (4460079) $ (6711.004) § (834.244) § 4808080 $ 587,428
$ 12004034 § 12436705 $ 6216554 $ 9944010 § 10463001 § 11,353,183
(12,415,212)  (13,060,066) (8.187,149)  (10,028,753)  (11,723,406)  (13,584,257)
2,865,000 = 2,860,000 - 3,430,000 -
100,938 . 293,827 - 219,957 -
§ 3455660 § (623,361) $ 1183232 §  (84743) $ 2389552 § (2231.074)
$ 3242072 $ (5083440) $ (5527.772) $ (918987) $ 7,197,632 §$ (1.643,646)
5.0% 4.9% 2.7% 5.0% 2.6% 2.6%
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City of Cedar Falls, lowa

Assessed and Taxable Value of Property
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Item 17.

(Unaudited)
For Fiscal Real and Personal Property
Year Regular Agricultural Land

Levy Ending Taxable Assessed Taxable Assessed
Year June 30, Value Value Value Value
2012 2013 $ 1,393,511,204 $ 2,608,407,333 5,671,067 $ 9,912,510
2013 2014 1,622,862,335 2,640,558,870 5,918,449 9,875,030
2014 2015 1,490,616,188 2,715,410,009 6,002,443 13,830,630
2015 2016 1,509,722,828 2,756,113,698 5,886,712 13,291,670
2016 2017 1,569,292,287 2,885,206,578 5,807,960 12,647,630
2017 2018 1,750,040,895 2,953,263,263 5,934,726 12,590,920
2018 2019 1,832,652,499 3,088,676,312 6,010,597 11,088,970
2019 2020 1,950,451,511 3,185,180,555 5,961,927 10,667,730
2020 2021 1,963,719,839 3,334,174,827 5,962,806 7,317,830
2021 2022 1,960,696,679 3,424,905,333 6,397,252 7,613,000

Source: Black Hawk County Auditor's Office.

Note: Property in the city is reassessed every other year. Tax rates are per $1,000 of assessed

value.
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Total Taxable

Item 17.

Value as a Total
Total Percentage of Direct
Taxable Assessed Assessed Tax

Value Value Value Rate
1,399,182,271 2,618,319,843 53.44 % 12.20300
1,628,780,784 2,650,433,900 61.45 12.02123
1,496,618,631 2,729,240,639 54.84 11.81029
1,515,609,540 2,769,405,368 54.73 11.52796
1,575,100,247 2,897,854,208 54.35 11.21967
1,755,975,621 2,965,854,183 59.21 11.13476
1,838,663,096 3,099,765,282 59.32 11.22169
1,956,413,438 3,195,848,285 61.22 10.95250
1,969,682,645 3,341,492,657 58.95 11.43408
3,432,518,333 57.31 11.38273

1,967,093,931
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City of Cedar Falls, lowa
Property Tax Rates

Direct and Overlapping Governments

Last Ten Fiscal Years

City of Cedar Falls

(Unaudited)

Overlapping Rates

Item

17.

Black Hawk County

Fiscal Operating Debt Total City Operating Debt C-I(-)cl)Jtr?tly

Year Millage Service Millage Millage Service Millage

2013 $ 11.68479 $ 0.51821 $ 12.20300 $ 559849 $ 064144 § 6.23993
2014 11.45923 0.56200 12.02123 5.39234 0.62882 6.02116
2015 11.21478 0.59551 11.81029 5.52447 0.59472 6.11919
2016 10.93601 0.59195 11.52796 5.43985 1.30832 6.74817
2017 10.64440 0.57527 11.21967 5.48507 0.9607 6.44577
2018 10.57557 0.55919 11.13476 5.60805 0.80702 6.41507
2019 10.95686 0.26483 11.22169 5.96158 0.73145 6.69303
2020 10.52103 0.43147 10.95250 5.72918 0.57445 6.30363
2021 11.11885 0.31523 11.43408 5.94328 0.39297 6.33625
2022 11.08087 0.30186 11.38273 5.76053 0.41338 6.17391

Source: Department of Management website

Note: The city's general fund maximum property tax rate may only be $8.10 per $1,000 of

valuation. The remaining portion of the operating rate and the rate for debt service are

set based on each year's requirements.
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$

Overlapping Rates

Item 17.

Schools
Total
Operating Debt School

Millage Service Millage Other Total

13.37802 $ - 13.37802 $ 1.33770 $ 33.15865
12.82531 -- 12.82531 1.36950 32.23720
12.78447 - 12.78447 1.35851 32.07246
12.44447 -- 12.44447 1.34988 32.07048
12.76973 - 12.76973 1.33315 31.76832
13.08480 1.18791 14.27271 1.33495 33.15749
12.78534 1.16160 13.94694 1.36344 33.22510
12.72483 1.12129 13.84612 1.43491 32.53716
12.81068 1.08246 13.89314 1.47747 33.14094
12.91864 1.03435 13.95299 1.49875 33.00838
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City of Cedar Falls, lowa
Principal Property Taxpayers
Current Year and Nine Years Ago

Item 17.

2013
Assessed Percentage
Valuation for of Total

Fiscal Year Assessed
Taxpayer 2012 - 2013 Rank Valuation
Target Corporation $ 85,871,200 1 3.28 %
RBR Holdings Il LLC - - --
Goldenstar Apartments, LLP - - --
WB CF Assoc LTD Partners 12,738,950 5 0.49
Midland Tarkenton, LLC -- -- -
Tailwind Cedar Falls, LLC -- - -
Vereit Real Estate LP - - -
Walmart Re Business Trust 13,574,740 4 0.52
Prime RE 2, LLC - - -
Martin Realty Company, LLC - -- --
Gold Falls Villa Apart LLC 8,964,160 8 0.34
College Square Mall Assoc. LLC 30,224,620 2 1.15
R and N Investments 13,908,090 0.53
Standard Distribution Co. 8,326,800 0.32
Cedar Properties 0 -- 0.00
Harvest Mallard Point Retirement 8,164,470 10 0.31
Twenty Seventh Street Assoc, LLC 11,533,470 6 0.44
Cedar Falls Investments, LLC 9,243,740 7 0.35

$ 202,550,240 7.73 %

Source: Black Hawk County
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2022

Item 17.

Assessed Percentage
Valuation for of Total
Fiscal Year Assessed
2021 - 2022 Rank Valuation
78,151,240 1 2.28 %
18,383,560 2 0.54
17,922,860 3 0.52
17,313,610 4 0.50
15,659,380 5 0.46
15,355,740 6 0.45
14,657,490 7 0.43
14,046,930 8 0.41
13,748,500 9 0.40
12,973,030 10 0.38
218,212,340 6.37 %
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City of Cedar Falls, lowa

Property Tax Levies and Collections

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Item 17.

(Unaudited)
For Fiscal Percentage

Year Current of Current Delinquent
Levy Ending Total Tax Taxes Tax
Year June 30, Tax Levy Collection Collected Collections
2012 2013 $ 17,287,168 $ 17,091,764 98.87 % $ 3,967
2013 2014 19,694,615 19,537,939 99.20 16,281
2014 2015 17,900,282 17,785,682 99.36 14,266
2015 2016 17,701,404 17,595,907 99.40 18,813
2016 2017 17,905,235 17,845,396 99.67 16,461
2017 2018 19,754,527 19,692,802 99.69 31,669
2018 2019 20,871,551 20,801,947 99.67 18,133
2019 2020 21,678,667 21,252,580 98.03 5,148
2020 2021 22,778,011 23,178,399 101.76 8,525
2021 2022 22,471,020 22,567,169 100.43 385

Source: Black Hawk County Auditor's Office.

Note: For fiscal year ending June 30, 2020 property tax collections were deferred into

future years due to the COVID-19 pandemic.
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Item 17.

Total Tax Delinquent
Collections as Outstanding Taxes as a
a Percentage Delinquent Percentage
Total Tax of Total & Deferred of Total
Collections Tax Levy Taxes Tax Levy
$ 17,095,731 98.89 % $ 25,924 0.15 %
19,554,220 99.29 14,435 0.07
17,799,948 99.44 18,813 0.11
17,614,720 99.51 16,461 0.09
17,861,857 99.76 31,669 0.18
19,724,471 99.85 18,133 0.09
20,820,080 99.75 21,886 0.10
21,257,728 98.06 426,609 1.97
23,186,924 101.80 189,911 0.83
22,567,554 100.43 10,134 0.05

-144-

307




City of Cedar Falls, lowa

Item 17.

1/1/2021 VALUATIONS (Taxes Payable July 1, 2022 to June 30, 2023)

100% Actual Value

Residential $ 2,803,566,538
Commercial 529,254,483
Industrial 33,533,725
Multi-Residential 98,472,234
Railroad 2,303,363
Utilities 1,931,517
Gross Valuation $ 3,469,061,860
Less military exemption (2,656,231)
Net Valuation $ 3,466,405,629

TIF increment (used to compute
debt services levies and

constitutional debt limit) $ 204,625,917
Taxes separately

Ag. Land $ 6,860,680

Ag. Buildings $ 385,790

Utilities - Gas & Electric $ 56,915,222

" TIF Increment is reduced by $55,560 of military exemption

&P AP

Taxable Value
(with Rollback)

1,510,770,762
461,067,249
27,238,463
59,965,819
2,073,026
1,931,517

2,063,046,836
(2,656,231)

2,060,390,605

204,625,917

6,108,830
343,512
4,230,086

2021 GROSS TAXABLE VALUATION BY CLASS OF PROPERTY’

Taxable Valuation

Residential $ 1,510,770,762
Commercial, Industrial & Utility 490,237,229
Multi-Residential 59,965,819
Gas & Electric Utilities 4,230,086
Railroad 2,073,026

Total Gross Taxable Valuation $ 2,067,276,922

'Excludes Taxable TIF Increment, Ag. Land and Ag. Buildings
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73.08%
23.71%
2.90%
0.20%
0.10%

100.00%

1
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City of Cedar Falls, lowa

Ratios of Outstanding Debt by Type

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Governmental Activities

Business-Type Activities

Tax Increment

Item 17.

General Financing General Total

Fiscal Obligation Bonds/Notes Obligation Revenue Primary

Year Bonds/Notes  General Obligation Bonds/Notes Debt Government
2013 $ 8,024,356 $ 597,880 $ 2,942,333 210,640 $ 11,775,209
2014 5,819,312 - 2,311,436 6,744,000 14,874,748
2015 4,790,677 - 1,650,539 6,482,000 12,923,216
2016 3,732,042 - 979,548 6,211,000 10,922,590
2017 5,114,251 - 7,381,807 5,932,000 18,428,058
2018 3,694,466 -- 6,314,350 5,644,000 15,652,816
2019 5,990,868 - 8,884,201 5,346,000 20,221,069
2020 4,380,624 - 7,997,623 5,038,000 17,416,247
2021 7,319,109 .- 7,091,045 4,720,000 19,130,154
2022 6,387,637 - 6,164,468 4,392,000 16,944,105

Note: Details regarding the city's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial

statements.

Amounts presented are net of discounts, premiums, and adjustments.

' Population and personal income data can be found on page 156.
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Percentage

of Personal Per
Income’ Capita’
077 %  $ 300
0.92 379
0.79 329
0.68 278
1.13 469
0.95 399
1.19 515
0.96 444
1.35 470
1.15 416
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General

Fiscal Obligation
Year Debt’
2013 $ 11,564,569
2014 8,130,748
2015 6,441,216
2016 4,711,590
2017 12,496,058
2018 10,008,816
2019 14,875,069
2020 12,378,247
2021 14,410,154
2022 12,552,105

City of Cedar Falls, lowa
Ratios of General Bonded Debt Outstanding
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Item 17.

Less: Amount Taxable

Available in Debt Value of

Service Fund® Total Property
318,846 $ 11,245,723 $ 1,399,182,271
416,912 7,713,836 1,628,780,784
431,704 6,009,512 1,496,618,631
466,400 4,245,190 1,515,609,540
496,385 11,999,673 1,575,100,247
538,318 9,470,498 1,755,975,621
530,935 14,344,134 1,838,663,096
647,822 11,730,425 1,956,413,438
582,697 13,827,457 1,969,682,645
401,055 12,151,050 1,967,093,931

Note: Details regarding the city's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the
financial statements.

' Includes only general obligation debt supported by property tax dollars.
2 This is the amount restricted for debt service payments.
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Percentage

Item 17.

Percentage Assessed Assessed
Taxable Value Value of Value Per

of Property Property of Property Capita
080% $ 2,618,319,843 0.43 % 286.44
0.47 2,650,433,900 0.29 196.48
0.40 2,729,240,639 0.22 153.07
0.28 2,769,405,368 0.15 108.13
0.76 2,897,854,208 0.41 305.65
0.54 2,965,854,183 0.32 241.23
0.78 3,099,765,282 0.46 365.36
0.60 3,195,848,285 0.37 298.79
0.70 3,341,492,657 0.41 339.63
0.62 3,432,518,333 0.35 298.46
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City of Cedar Falls, lowa
Direct and Overlapping Debt
As of June 30, 2022

Item 17.

Net General Amount
Obligation Percentage Applicable
Debt Applicable to
Jurisdiction Outstanding to City ! Government
Direct, City of Cedar Falls, lowa $ 6,387,637 100.00 % $ 6,387,637
Overlapping:
Black Hawk County $ 16,690,000 35.50 $ 5,924,950
Cedar Falls Public School District 95,245,000 92.59 88,187,346
Area VIl Hawkeye Community College 6,780,000 20.12 1,364,136
$ 118,715,000 $ 95,476,432

Total Overlapping

Total

Source: Black Hawk County Auditor

$ 125,102,637

$ 101,864,069

Note: Overlapping governments are those that coincide, at least in part, with the geographic
boundaries of the city. This schedule estimates the portion of the outstanding debt of those
overlapping governments that is borne by the residents and businesses of Cedar Falls. This
process recognizes that, when considering the city's ability to issue and repay long-term debt,
the entire debt burden borne by the residents and businesses should be taken into account.
However, this does not imply that every taxpayer is a resident, and therefore responsible for
repaying the debt, of each overlapping government.

' The percentage of overlapping debt applicable is estimated using net taxable property values.
Applicable percentages were estimated by determining the portion of the County's net value that is
within the government's boundaries and dividing it by the county's total value.
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City of Cedar Falls, lowa

Legal Debt Margin Information
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Item

17.

2013 2014 2015 2016

Debt Limit $ 132,967,511 $ 134,876,517 $ 139,586,122 $ 142,421,126
Total net debt

applicable to limit 13,205,000 9,640,000 7,770,000 5,920,000
Legal debt margin  $ 119,762,511 $ 125,236,517 $ 131,816,122 $ 136,501,126
Total net debt

applicable to

the limit as a

percentage of

of debt limit 9.93% 7.15% 5.57% 4.16%

Note: Under lowa code, the city's outstanding general obligation debt should not exceed
5 percent of total assessed property value.
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Item 17.

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
$ 149224259 $ 151,911,983 § 158,343,489 $ 163,389,318 $ 170,858,420
13,270,000 9,740,000 14,085,000 11,670,000 13,595,000
$ 1350954259 $ 142,171,983 $ 144,258,489 $ 151,719,318 $ 157,263,420
8.89% 6.41% 8.90% 7.14% 7.96%

Legal Debt Margin Calculation for Fiscal Year 2022

Estimated actual valuation

Debt limit - 5% of total actual valuation

Debt applicable to debt limit:
General obligation bonds

Legal debt margin
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$ 3,490,992,530

$ 174,549,627

11,850,000

$ 162,699,627
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City of Cedar Falls, lowa

Revenue Bond Coverage

Sewer Authority
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Net Revenue

Item 17.

Less: Available Debt Service Requirements )
Fiscal Gross Operating for Debt
Year Revenues Expenses L Service Principal Interest
2013 $ 4,596,372 $ 2,254,091 $ 2,342,281 -- $ 6,319
2014 4,859,057 2,364,332 2,494,725 254,104 83,016
2015 5,092,146 2,415,557 2,676,589 262,000 219,180
2016 5,314,436 2,532,407 2,782,029 271,000 210,665
2017 5,684,591 2,350,527 3,334,064 279,000 201,858
2018 6,388,963 2,449,219 3,939,744 288,000 192,790
2019 6,834,297 2,449,833 4,384,464 298,000 183,430
2020 7,109,700 2,709,620 4,400,080 308,000 173,745
2021 7,367,392 2,543,615 4,823,777 318,000 163,735
2022 7,746,519 3,298,409 4,448,110 328,000 123,900

Note: Details regarding the city's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial

statements.

' Net of depreciation, interest, and debt service transfers.

2 |ncludes principal and interest of revenue bonds only.
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Debt Service

Requirements2

Total Coverage
$ 6,319  370.67
337,120 7.40
481,180 5.56
481,665 5.78
480,858 6.93
480,790 8.19
481,430 9.11
481,745 9.13
481,735 10.01
451,900 9.84
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Fiscal
Year

2012 -13
2013 - 14
2014 - 15
2015- 16
2016 - 17
2017 -18
2018 - 19
2019 - 20
2020 - 21
2021 - 22

City of Cedar Falls, lowa
Sales History and Total Sewer Charges
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Water

Sales (CCF)

Sewer
Charges

Item 17.

1,826,789
1,759,171
1,615,619
1,611,698
1,586,115
1,689,591
1,480,978
1,505,465
1,655,287
1,612,269

Source: Cedar Falls Utilities
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5,238,056
5,501,090
5,714,250
5,916,770
6,405,359
6,917,743
7,412,276
7,712,692
7,916,423
8,618,176
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Item 17.

City of Cedar Falls, lowa
Water Meter by Rate Class
Last Ten Fiscal Years

QSe(;arl Residential Commercial Industrial  Government Other Total

2013 12,328 1,002 32 211 3 13,576
2014 12,313 1,024 33 213 3 13,586
2015 12,154 1,403 33 173 3 13,766
2016 12,238 1,423 31 206 3 13,901
2017 12,453 1,454 35 209 3 14,154
2018 12,702 1,460 36 211 3 14,412
2019 12,983 1,528 36 194 3 14,744
2020 13,042 1,525 36 193 3 14,799
2021 13,277 1,536 36 191 3 15,043
2022 13,508 1,551 36 199 3 15,297

Source: Cedar Falls Utilities
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City of Cedar Falls, lowa
Largest Sewer Customers
Fiscal Year 2022

Item 17.

Water Percent of Percent of
Sales Total Water Sewer Total Sewer
Customer (CCF) Sales Charges Charges

University of Northern lowa 1 54,620 3.39 % $ 264,318 3.07 %
Western Home Communities 2 20,980 1.30 155,966 1.81
Country Terrace MHP LLC-700 W Ridgeway 3 16,010 0.99 122,166 1.42
Target Corporation 4 16,437 1.02 93,219 1.08
Gold Falls Villa Apts. 5 7,766 0.48 72,825 0.85
Clark Enterprises, LLC 6 4,249 0.26 54,999 0.64
CF Schools 7 9,720 0.60 51,400 0.60
Metokote Corporation 8 11,671 0.72 49,979 0.58
Newaldaya Lifescapes 9 7,523 0.47 44,181 0.51
Park @ Nine23 Apts Il 10 5,393 0.33 44,027 0.51
Happy Hippo Car Wash, LLC 11 10,038 0.62 42,609 049
Sartori Memorial Hospital, Inc, 12 9,643 0.60 39,020 0.45
Total 2022 CCF 1,612,269
Total 2022 Sewer Billings $8,618,176

Source: Cedar Falls Utilities, Finance Dept. special IS report
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City of Cedar Falls, lowa

Demographic and Economic Statistics

Last Ten Calendar Years

Item 17.

Per Capita
Personal Personal Median School Unemployment
Year  Population Income income' Age Enrollment Rate
2013 39,260 $ 1,538,795,700 $ 39,195 26.8 5,121 L)
2014 39,260 1,622,969,140 41,339 26.8 5,151 3.1
2015 39,260 1,639,850,940 41,769 26.5 5,151 4.8
2016 39,260 1,617,197,920 41,192 26.5 5,300 4.9
2017 39,260 1,628,426,280 41,478 271 5,486 4.0
2018 39,260 1,648,213,320 41,982 26.9 5,479 2.0
2019 39,260 1,705,925,520 43,452 26.6 5,320 2.3
2020 39,260 1,808,433,380 46,063 26.9 5,451 1.9
2021 40,713 1,419,133,041 34,857 27.2 5,542 3.3
2022 40,713 1,471,774,950 36,150 27.3 5,649 3.5

Sources: Population provided by the US Census Bureau. School enroliment is supplied by the
Cedar Falls Board of Education. Unemployment data provided by the lowa Workforce.

Note: Population and median age information are based on surveys conducted during the

last quarter of the calendar year. Personal income information is a total for the year.

Unemployment rate information is an adjusted yearly average. School enroliment is based on

the census at the start of the school year.

' Per Capita Income is based on Metropolitan Waterloo/Cedar Falls and based on figures from
Bureau of Economic Analysis.

Beginning in 2015 the Unemployment rate is based on the Metropolitan Waterloo/Cedar Falls area.
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City of Cedar Falls, lowa
Principal Employers
Current Year and Nine Years Ago

Item 17.

2013
Percentage
Number of of Total City
Employees Employees1 Rank Employment
John Deere Product Engineer Center 6,739 1 27.85%
MercyOne Medical 3,027 2 12.51%
Hy-Vee Food Stores * 1,155 4 4.77%
University of Northern lowa 2,586 3 10.69%
Omega Cabinetry, Ltd. 2
Target Distribution 572 8 2.36%
Cedar Falls Community School District 750 7 3.10%
The Western Home - -- -
Area Education Agency 267 1,150 5 4.75%
Martin Brothers Distributing Co., Inc -- -- -
Viking Pump Inc, Unit of Index Corp. 466 10 1.93%
City of Cedar Falls/Municipal Utilities 540 9 2.23%
Wal-Mart Super Center 750 6 3.10%
17,735 73.27%

Total

Source: Cedar Valley Alliance website

" Number of employees includes all full-time, part-time and seasonal employees.

2 Number of employees includes multiple locations in both Cedar Falls and Waterioo.
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2022

Percentage
Number of of Total City
Employees’ Rank Employment
5,000 1 12.28%
2,893 2 7.11%
1,719 3 4.22%
1,584 4 3.89%
994 5 2.44%
840 6 2.06%
826 7 2.03%
668 8 1.64%
650 9 1.60%
600 10 1.47%
15,774 40.18%
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Item 17.

City of Cedar Falis, lowa
Full-Time Equivalent City Government Employees by Function/Department
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Full-Time Equivalent Employees as of June 30
2013 2014 2015 2016

Public Safety
50.77 49.03 46.75 47.19

Police
Fire 35.20 35.83 34.86 34.86
Inspection Services 9.30 8.23 7.50 7.50
Public Works
Streets 22.06 22.32 24.10 24.10
Parking 3.81 2.14 1.97 1.97
Engineering 11.52 10.52 10.45 10.45
Culture and Recreation
Municipal Operations & Programs Admin. 2.25 2.25 1.75 1.75
Cultural Services 8.52 8.37 8.85 8.85
Cemetery 4.60 4.45 4.45 4.45
Golf 5.00 493 4.93 4.93
Parks 21.45 17.66 17.41 17.41
Recreation 35.26 35.59 34.59 34.59
Library 19.84 20.76 20.96 20.96
Senior Services 0.78 0.15 0.15 0.15
Visitor & Tourism 3.20 3.18 3.28 3.28
Community & Economic Development
Community Development Admin. 1.50 1.50 1.25 1.25
Economic Development 2.02 2.09 0.00 0.00
Planning & Community Services 3.68 3.67 6.08 6.08
Block Grant 1.79 1.40 1.13 1.13
Housing Vouchers 1.93 1.49 1.13 1.12
General Government
Mayor's Office 1.50 1.10 1.10 1.10
Administration 1.50 1.00 1.00 1.00
Finance & Business Operations Admin 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Financial Services 5.95 5.58 6.58 6.58
Legal Services 3.00 2.00 2.00 2.00
Human Resources 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Public Records 4.10 3.95 3.73 3.73
Cable TV 4.50 5.00 5.00 5.00
Print Shop 1.00 1.00 0.00 0.00
Public Buildings 15.84 14.61 1.73 1.73
Internal Service
Information Systems 4.00 4.00 4.00 4.00
Vehicle Maintenance 6.10 7.68 7.68 7.68
Sewer 18.38 17.98 18.27 18.27
Refuse 21.35 19.41 18.79 18.79
Storm Water 4.30 4.30 4.30 4.30
Total 335.98 323.17 305.77 306.20

Source: City's Financial Plans
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Full-Time Equivalent Employees as of June 30

Item 17.

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
47.19 4822 5572 6143 6173  56.01
33.06 3041 2851 2551 2583  29.10
7.50 7.50 8.84  10.05 9.41 9.86
24.10 2410 2410 2465 2437 2292
1.97 2.00 2.05 3.55 4.44 4.45
10.45 12,73 14.07  13.08 1476  14.90
1.65 1.65 1.65 1.65 0.00 0.00
7.61 7.36 6.70 7.43 8.08 7.35
4.45 4.45 6.45 5.45 5.50 5.83
4.93 0.75 0.38 0.00 0.00 0.00
17.41 16.61 17.11 16.98  17.71 16.98
34.59 33.06  33.96 3423 3496  34.96
21.74 21.48 2293 2397 2546  24.69
0.15 0.15 0.15 1.40 1.40 1.40
3.28 3.28 3.91 4.91 4.91 4.91
1.25 1.17 1.17 1.16 1.05 1.05
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
6.08 5.98 5.93 4.55 5.65 5.65
1.13 0.43 0.45 0.15 0.15 0.15
1.12 1.54 1.47 1.08 2.59 2.59
1.10 1.08 1.08 1.08 1.08 1.10
1.00 1.02 1.02 3.02 3.02 3.05
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.73 1.73
6.31 6.32 7.42 7.06 6.71 4.71
2.00 2.10 2.10 2.10 2.10 1.12
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 3.00
3.73 3.71 3.86 3.83 4.24 3.84
5.50 5.30 5.55 5.43 4.10 3.78
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
1.73 1.73 1.73 1.50 1.50 1.50
4.73 4.73 5.73 5.73 5.83 5.83
6.68 7.35 7.38 7.38 7.23 7.23
17.72 17.82  17.82 1737 1727  17.27
17.79 17.74  17.74  16.41 1665  18.10
4.30 4.30 3.30 3.60 3.30 3.30

30225 296.97 31028 31574 32276 318.36
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City of Cedar Falls, lowa
Operating Indicators by Function
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Item 17.

Fiscal Year
2013 2014 2015
Public Safety
Police
Physical arrests 1,178 1,057 1,029
Traffic violations 5,554 5,095 5,405
Parking violations 20,889 14,780 13,493
Cars Booted ? = - 184
Fire
Number of calls answered 2,190 2,113 2,037
Inspections conducted 2,843 2,318 1,214
Sewer
Sewage System
Daily average treatment in gallons 4,100,000 4,930,000 4,520,000
Maximum daily capacity of treatment plant in gallons 21,600,000 21,600,000 21,600,000
Water System
Daily average consumption in gallons 3,400,000 4,090,000 3,380,000
Maximum daily capacity of plant in gallons 23,400,000 23,400,000 23,400,000
Refuse'
Solid Waste
35 Gallon Containers 4,600 4,905 4,347
64 Gallon Containers 6,899 7,165 6,305
96 Gallon Containers 2,307 2,398 1,638
Yard Waste
6,916 7,155 7,239

96 Gallon Containers

Sources: Various city departments

! Statistics begin in FY04
2 Statistics begin in FY15
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Fiscal Year

Item 17.

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
912 839 1,003 911 345 792 761
4,172 3,645 4,066 1,784 2,624 2,343 1,452
13,364 12,350 11,206 11,076 10,948 10,939 13,0565
252 243 187 196 174 33 221
2,257 2,200 2,343 1,387 2,079 2,218 2,305
2,681 1,492 427 1,925 1,167 955 2,900
5,790,000 6,729,000 6,729,000 7,408,000 5,695,000 4,482,000 4,397,000
21,600,000 21,600,000 21,600,000 21,600,000 21,600,000 21,600,000 21,600,000
3,276,000 3,267,000 3,417,000 3,178,000 3,121,000 3,141,000 3,499,000
23,400,000 23,400,000 23,400,000 23,400,000 23,400,000 23,400,000 23,400,000
4,659 4,963 5,199 5,437 5,648 4,383 4,015
6,610 6,850 7,182 7,443 7,690 6,512 6,374
1,777 1,950 2,047 2,143 2,263 1,931 1,972
7,419 7,555 7,752 7,869 7,977 8,091 8,112
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City of Cedar Falls, lowa
Capital Asset Statistics by Function
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Item 17.

Fiscal Year
2013 2014 2015 2016
Public safety
Public Safety Building -- -- - -
Patrol Units 10 10 10 10
Fire apparatus 8 8 8 8
Public works
Streets
Miles 217 217 217 218
Street lights 3,104 3,109 3,116 3,178
Health and social services
Hospital 1 1 1 1
Number of patient beds 101 101 101 101
Cultural and Recreation
Hearst Center for the Arts 1 1 1 1
Library 1 1 1 1
Cemeteries 3 3 3 3
Acreage 56.9 56.9 56.9 56.9
Golf 2 2 2 2
Parks 34 35 35 35
Acreage 1,132 1,148 1,148 1,148
Recreation
Recreation Center 1 1 1 1
Swimming pools 3 3 3 3
Softball fields 9 9 9 9
Baseball fields 2 2 2 2
Pickleball courts - -- - --
Tennis courts 6 6 6 6
Sewer
Sewage System
Miles of sanitary sewer 185.94 187.4 187.57 188.5
Miles of storm sewers 176.18 177.6 181.41 182.9
Number of treatment plants 1 1 1 1
Number of service connectors 12,544 12,826 12,826 13,099
Water Systems
Miles of water mains 201.50 201.70 203.92 206.12
Number of service connectors 11,996 12,071 12,208 12,322
Number of city owned fire hydrants 2,011 2,038 2,044 2,088

Sources: Various city departments
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Fiscal Year

Item 17.

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
-- - 1 1 1 1
10 11 11 11 12 12
8 8 9 9 9 9

219 222 222 222 224 224

3,185 3,282 3,346 3,346 3,458 3,463
1 1 1 1 1 1

101 101 101 101 101 101
1 1 1 1 1 1
1 1 1 1 1 1
3 3 3 3 3 3

56.9 56.9 56.9 56.9 56.9 56.9
2 2 2 2 2 2
35 35 35 35 35 35

1,148 1,148 1,148 1,148 1,148 1,148
1 1 1 1 1 1
3 3 3 3 3 3
9 9 9 9 9 9
2 2 2 2 2 2
- 8 8 8 8 8
6 6 6 6 6 6

190.28 192.46 193.07 194.15 195.56 195.62
185.64 188.1 188.52 189.04 190.4 190.46
1 1 1 1 1 1
13,142 13,142 13,184 13,233 13,393 13,394
207.61 210.06 211.47 211.51 212.80 212.80
12,425 12,682 12,452 12,590 12,884 12,954
2,151 2,172 2,274 2,270 2,270 2,297
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Item 17.

EideBailly

CPAs & BUSINESS ADVISORS

October 27, 2022

To the Honorable Mayor and
Members of the City Council
City of Cedar Falls, lowa

We have audited the financial statements of the City of Cedar Falls, lowa (City) as of and for the year ended June
30, 2022, and have issued our report thereon dated October 27, 2022, Professional standards require that we
advise you of the following matters relating to our audit.

Our Responsibility in Relation to the Financial Statement Audit under Generally Accepted Auditing Standards
and Government Auditing Standards and our Compliance Audit under the Uniform Guidance

As communicated in our letter dated June 3, 2022, our responsibility, as described by professional standards, is
to form and express an opinion about whether the financial statements that have been prepared by
management with your oversight are presented fairly, in all material respects, in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America and to express an opinion on whether the City
complied with the types of compliance requirements described in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could
have a direct and material effect on the City’s major federal program. Our audit of the financial statements and
major program compliance does not relieve you or management of its respective responsibilities.

Our responsibility, as prescribed by professional standards, is to plan and perform our audit to obtain
reasonable, rather than absolute, assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit of financial statements includes consideration of internal control over financial reporting
as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly,
as part of our audit, we considered the internal control of the City solely for the purpose of determining our
audit procedures and not to provide any assurance concerning such internal control.

Our responsibility, as prescribed by professional standards as it relates to the audit of the City’s major federal
program compliance, is to express an opinion on the compliance for the City’s major federal program based on
our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. An audit of major program compliance
includes consideration of internal control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred
to above as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances and to test and
report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, as a part of our
major program compliance audit, we considered internal control over compliance for these purposes and not to
provide any assurance on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control over compliance.

We are also responsible for communicating significant matters related to the audit that are, in our professional
judgment, relevant to your responsibilities in overseeing the financial reporting process. However, we are not
required to design procedures for the purpose of identifying other matters to communicate to you.
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We have provided our comments regarding internal controls during our audit in our Independent Auditor’s
Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of
Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards dated October 27, 2022.
We have also provided our comments regarding compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred
to above and internal controls over compliance during our audit in our Independent Auditor’s Report on
Compliance with the Major Federal Program; Report on Internal Control Over Compliance; and Report on the
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards Required by the Uniform Guidance dated October 27, 2022.

Planned Scope and Timing of the Audit
We conducted our audit consistent with the planned scope and timing we previously communicated to you.
Compliance with All Ethics Requirements Regarding Independence

The engagement team, others in our firm, as appropriate, our firm, and other firms utilized in the engagement,
if applicable, have complied with all relevant ethical requirements regarding independence.

Significant Risks Considered

As stated in our auditor’s report, professional standards require us to design our audit to provide reasonable
assurance that the financial statements are free of material misstatement whether caused by fraud or error. In
designing our audit procedures, professional standards require us to evaluate the financial statements and
assess the risk that a material misstatement could occur. Areas that are potentially more susceptible to
misstatements, and thereby require special audit considerations, are designated as “significant risks”. We have
considered the following as significant risks.

Management Override of Controls — Professional standards require auditors to address the possibility of
management overriding controls. Accordingly, we considered as a significant risk that management may
have the ability to override controls that the organization has implemented.

Revenue Recognition — We considered revenue recognition as a significant risk due to potential reporting
complexities.

Qualitative Aspects of the Entity’s Significant Accounting Practices
Significant Accounting Policies

Management has the responsibility to select and use appropriate accounting policies. A summary of the
significant accounting policies adopted by the City is included in Note 1 to the financial statements. As
described in Note 1, the City changed accounting policies related to accounting for leases to adopt the
provisions of GASB Statement No. 87, Leases. Accordingly, the accounting change has been retrospectively
applied to the financial statements beginning July 1, 2021. No matters have come to our attention that would
require us, under professional standards, to inform you about (1) the methods used to account for significant
unusual transactions and (2) the effect of significant accounting policies in controversial or emerging areas for
which there is a lack of authoritative guidance or consensus.
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Significant Accounting Estimates

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are based
on management’s current judgments. Those judgments are normally based on knowledge and experience about
past and current events and assumptions about future events. Certain accounting estimates are particularly
sensitive because of their significance to the financial statements and because of the possibility that future
events affecting them may differ markedly from management’s current judgments.

The most sensitive accounting estimates affecting the financial statements are the incurred but not reported
health and workers’ compensation liabilities, other postemployment benefits liability, and net pension liability.

Management’s estimates of the incurred but not reported health and workers' compensation liabilities are
based on third-party administrator's calculations and estimates. We evaluated the key factors and assumptions
used to develop the incurred but not reported liabilities in determining that they are reasonable in relation to
the financial statements taken as a whole.

Management’s estimate of the other postemployment benefits liability, OPEB related deferred outflows of
resources and deferred inflows of resources, and OPEB expense are based on a calculation of actuarially
determined contributions for health insurance benefits. We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to
develop the other postemployment benefits balances in determining that they are reasonable in relation to the
financial statements taken as a whole.

Management’s estimate of the net pension liability, pension related deferred outflows of resources and
deferred inflows of resources, and pension expense are based on plan level actuarial reports, allocated to the
City using annual employer contributions. We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop the
pension related balances in determining that they are reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as
awhole.

Financial Statement Disclosures

Certain financial statement disclosures involve significant judgment and are particularly sensitive because of
their significance to financial statement users. The most sensitive disclosures affecting the City’s financial
statements relate to the net pension liability and the other postemployment benefits liability.

Significant Difficulties Encountered during the Audit
We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management relating to the performance of the audit.
Uncorrected and Corrected Misstatements

For purposes of this communication, professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely
misstatements identified during the audit, other than those that we believe are trivial, and communicate them
to the appropriate level of management. Further, professional standards require us to also communicate the
effect of uncorrected misstatements related to prior periods on the relevant classes of transactions, account
balances or disclosures, and the financial statements as a whole. There were no uncorrected misstatements
noted in performing the audit.
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The following misstatement that we identified as a result of our audit procedures was brought to the attention

of, and corrected by, management:
Equity Increase (Decrease)

Fund Governmental
Statements Activities
Health Insurance Internal Service Fund
To increase other receivables S 115,952 S 115,952

Disagreements with Management

For purposes of this letter, professional standards define a disagreement with management as a matter,
whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, concerning a financial accounting, reporting, or auditing matter,
which could be significant to the City’s financial statements or the auditor’s report. No such disagreements arose
during the course of the audit.

Circumstances that Affect the Form and Content of the Auditor’s Report

For purposes of this letter, professional standards require that we communicate any circumstances that affect
the form and content of our auditor’s report. As described in Note 4 to the financial statements, due to the
adoption of GASB Statement No. 87, Leases, the City restated net position and fund balance as of July 1, 2021.
We have included an emphasis of matter in our report regarding this restatement.

Representations Requested from Management

We have requested certain written representations from management that are included in the management
representation letter dated October 27, 2022.

Management'’s Consultations with Other Accountants

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting
matters. Management informed us that, and to our knowledge, there were no consultations with other
accountants regarding auditing and accounting matters.

Other Significant Matters, Findings, or Issues

In the normal course of our professional association with the City, we generally discuss a variety of matters,
including the application of accounting principles and auditing standards, business conditions affecting the
entity, and business plans and strategies that may affect the risks of material misstatement. None of the matters
discussed resulted in a condition to our retention as the City’s auditors.

Other Information Included in Annual Reports

Pursuant to professional standards, our responsibility as auditors for other information, whether financial or
nonfinancial, included in the City’s Annual Comprehensive Financial Report, does not extend beyond the
financial information identified in the audit report, and we are not required to perform any procedures to
corroborate such other information. However, in accordance with such standards, our responsibility is to read
the other information and consider whether a material inconsistency exists between the other information
and the basic financial statements, or the other information otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If,
based on the work performed, we conclude that an uncorrected material misstatement of the other
information exists, we are required to describe it in our report.
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Our responsibility also includes communicating to you any information which we believe is a material
misstatement of fact. Nothing came to our attention that caused us to believe that such information, or its
manner of presentation, is materially inconsistent with the information, or manner of its presentation,
appearing in the financial statements.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Mayor, City Council, and management of the
City of Cedar Falls, lowa, and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified
parties.

Sincerely,

é“'/éﬁu/@ Le7P

Dubuque, lowa
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Information to Comply with Government Auditing Standards

and Uniform Guidance
June 30, 2022

City of Cedar Falls, lowa

EideBaillu
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EideBailly.

CPAs & BUSINESS ADVISORS

Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on
Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in
Accordance with Government Auditing Standards

To the Honorable Mayor and
Members of the City Council
City of Cedar Falls, lowa

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental
activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major
fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Cedar Falls, lowa, (City) as of and for
the year ended June 30, 2022, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively
comprise the City’s basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated October 27,
2022.

Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the City’s internal
control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control.
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material
misstatement of the City’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a
timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control
that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged
with governance.
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Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that have not been identified.

Report on Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City’s financial statements are free from
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and
material effect on the financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be
reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Comments involving statutory and other legal matters about the City’s operations for the year ended
June 30, 2022, are based exclusively on knowledge obtained from procedures performed during our
audit of the financial statements of the City and are reported in Part IV of the accompanying schedule of
findings and questioned costs. Since our audit was based on tests and samples, not all transactions that
might have had an impact on the comments were necessarily audited. The comments involving
statutory and other legal matters are not intended to constitute legal interpretations of those statutes.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
City’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the City’s internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

éb,fﬁ«/@ L7

Dubuque, lowa
October 27, 2022
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Independent Auditor’s Report on Compliance for the Major Federal Program; Report on Internal
Control over Compliance; and Report on the Schedule of Expenditures of
Federal Awards Required by the Uniform Guidance

To the Honorable Mayor and
Members of the City Council
City of Cedar Falls, lowa

Report on Compliance for the Major Federal Program
Opinion on the Major Federal Program

We have audited the City of Cedar Falls, lowa’s, (City) compliance with the types of compliance
requirements identified as subject to audit in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct
and material effect on the City’s major federal program for the year ended June 30, 2022. The City’s
major federal program is identified in the summary of auditor’s results section of the accompanying
schedule of findings and questioned costs.

In our opinion, the City complied, in all material respects, with the compliance requirements referred to
above that could have a direct and material effect on its major federal program for the year ended June
30, 2022.

Basis for Opinion on the Major Federal Program

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America (GAAS); the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States (Government Auditing
Standards); and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform
Guidance). Our responsibilities under those standards and the Uniform Guidance are further described
in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section of our report.

We are required to be independent of the City and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in
accordance with relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on compliance for the
major federal program. Our audit does not provide a legal determination of the City’s compliance with
the compliance requirements referred to above.

Responsibilities of Management for Compliance

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above and for the design,
implementation, and maintenance of effective internal control over compliance with the requirements
of laws, statutes, regulations, rules and provisions of contracts or grant agreements applicable to the
City’s federal programs.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompliance with the
compliance requirements referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or error, and express an
opinion on the City’s compliance based on our audit. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance
but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with GAAS, Government Auditing Standards, and the Uniform Guidance will always detect material
noncompliance when it exists. The risk of not detecting material noncompliance resulting from fraud is
higher than for that resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Noncompliance with the compliance
requirements referred to above is considered material, if there is a substantial likelihood that,
individually or in the aggregate, it would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user of the
report on compliance about the City’s compliance with the requirements of the major federal program
as a whole.

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, Government Auditing Standards, and the Uniform
Guidance, we:

e Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

e Identify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error, and
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include
examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the City’s compliance with the compliance
requirements referred to above and performing such other procedures as we considered
necessary in the circumstances.

e Obtain an understanding of the City’s internal control over compliance relevant to the audit in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances and to test and
report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control over
compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in
internal control over compliance that we identified during the audit.

Report on Internal Control over Compliance

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their
assighed functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over
compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such
that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A
significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies,
in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is
less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit
attention by those charged with governance.
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Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section above and was not designed to identify all
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant
deficiencies in internal control over compliance. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not
identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material
weaknesses, as defined above. However, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal
control over compliance may exist that were not identified.

Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal
control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of
the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

Report on Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards Required by the Uniform Guidance

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities,
the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining
fund information of the City as of and for the year ended June 30, 2022, and the related notes to the
financial statements, which collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements. We issued our
report thereon dated October 27, 2022, which contained unmodified opinions on those financial
statements. Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements
that collectively comprise the basic financial statements. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of
federal awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by the Uniform Guidance and
is not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of
management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records
used to prepare the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing
and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to
prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other
additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. In our opinion, the schedule of expenditures of federal awards is fairly stated in all material
respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

gifo/&dgur”

Dubuque, lowa
October 27, 2022
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City of Cedar Falls, lowa
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

Year Ended June 30, 2022
Federal Financial Pass-through
Assistance Entity Amounts Passed-
Federal Grantor/Pass-Through Listing/Federal Identifying Through to
Grantor/Program or Cluster Title CFDA Number Number Expenditures Subrecipients
U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development
CDBG - Entitlement Grants Cluster
Community Development Block Grants/Entitlement
Grants 14.218 S 512,856 $ 28,500
COVID-19 - Community Development Block
Grants/Entitlement Grants 14.218 113,870 79,241
Total CDBG - Entitlement Grants Cluster 626,726 107,741
Passed through lowa Economic Development Authority
COVID-19 - Community Development Block
Grants/State’s Program and Non-Entitlement
Grants in Hawaii 14.228 20-CVE-009 128,986 75,395
Passed through City of Waterloo, lowa
Home Investment Partnerships Program 14.239 MO01DC190206 63,010 -
Housing Voucher Cluster
Section 8 Housing Choice Vouchers 14.871 1,414,283 -
COVID-19 - Section 8 Housing Choice Vouchers 14.871 41,431 -
Total Housing Voucher Cluster 1,455,714 -
Total U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development 2,274,436 183,136
U.S. Department of Justice
Joint Law Enforcement Operations 16.111 2,431 -
Joint Law Enforcement Operations 16.111 8,009 -
Passed through City of Waterloo, lowa
Joint Law Enforcement Operations 16.111 IA0070300 4,238 -
14,678 -
Bulletproof Vest Partnership Program 16.607 10,330 -
Total U.S. Department of Justice 25,008 B
See Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 342
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City of Cedar Falls, lowa
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

Year Ended June 30, 2022
Federal Financial Pass-through
Assistance Entity Amounts Passed-
Federal Grantor/Pass-Through Listing/Federal Identifying Through to
Grantor/Program or Cluster Title CFDA Number Number Expenditures Subrecipients
U.S. Department of Transportation
Passed through lowa Department of Transportation
Highway Planning and Construction Cluster
Highway Planning and Construction 20.205 STP-57-2
(28)--2¢-07 $ 306 S -
Highway Planning and Construction 20.205 TAP-U-1185
(654)-81-07 292,776 -
Total Highway Planning and Construction Cluster 293,122 -
Passed through lowa Department of Public Safety
Governor's Traffic Safety Bureau
Highway Safety Cluster
State and Community Highway Safety 20.600 21-405d 1,832 -
Total U.S. Department of Transportation 294,954 -
U.S. Treasury
Passed through lowa Department of Revenue
COVID-19 - Coronavirus Relief Fund 21,019 Fitness Center
Relief 328,334 -
Total Federal Financial Assistance $ 2,922,732 $ 183,136
See Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 343
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City of Cedar Falls, lowa
Notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
Year Ended June 30, 2022

Note 1- Basis of Presentation

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards (the schedule) includes the federal award activity
of the City of Cedar Falls, lowa, (the City) under programs of the federal government for the year ended June 30,
2022. The information is presented in accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal
Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal
Awards (Uniform Guidance). Because the schedule presents only a selected portion of the operations of the City,
it is not intended to and does not present the financial position, changes in net position, or cash flows of the
City.

Note 2- Significant Accounting Policies
Expenditures reported in the schedule are reported on the modified accrual basis of accounting. Such
expenditures are recognized following the cost principles contained in the Uniform Guidance, wherein certain

types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to reimbursement. Federal financial assistance
provided to a subrecipient is treated as an expenditure when it is paid to the subrecipient.

Note 3- Indirect Cost Rate

The City has not elected to use the 10% de minimis cost rate.
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City of Cedar Falls, lowa
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs

Year Ended June 30, 2022
Part I: Summary of the Auditor's Results:
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Type of auditor's report issued Unmodified
Internal control over financial reporting:
Material weaknesses identified No

Significant deficiencies identified not considered
to be material weaknesses

None Reported

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? No
FEDERAL AWARDS
Internal control over major program:

Material weaknesses identified No

Significant deficiencies identified not considered
to be material weaknesses

None Reported

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for major programs: Unmodified
Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported in
accordance with Uniform Guidance 2 CFR 200.516: No

Identification of major programs:

Federal Financial

Assistance
Listing/Federal
Name of Federal Program CFDA Number
Section 8 Housing Choice Vouchers 14.871
Dollar threshold used to distinguish between type A
and type B programs: $750,000
Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? Yes
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City of Cedar Falls, lowa
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Year Ended June 30, 2022

Part Il: Financial Statement Findings:

There were no findings to report.

Part Ill: Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs:

There were no findings and questioned costs to report.

Part IV: Other Findings Related to Required Statutory Reporting:

2022-]1A-A

2022-1A-B

2022-1A-C

2022-1A-D

2022-1A-E

2022-1A-F

2022-1A-G

2022-1A-H

2022-1A-1

2022-1A-)

2022-1A-K

Certified Budget - Disbursements during the year ended June 30, 2022, did not exceed the
amount budgeted.

Questionable Expenditures - We noted no expenditures that we believe may fail to meet the
requirements of public purpose as defined in an Attorney General’s opinion dated April 25, 1979.

Travel Expense - No expenditures of City money for travel expenses of spouses of City officials or
employees were noted.

Business Transactions — No business transactions between the City and City officials or employees
were noted.

Restricted Donor Activity — No transactions were noted between the City, City officials, City
employees and restricted donors in compliance with Chapter 68B of the Code of lowa.

Bond Coverage - Surety bond coverage of City officials and employees is in accordance with
statutory provisions. The amount of coverage should be reviewed annually to ensure that the
coverage is adequate for current operations.

Council Minutes - No transactions were found that we believe should have been approved in the
Council minutes but were not.

Deposits and Investments - No instances of non-compliance with the deposit and investment
provisions of Chapters 12B and 12C of the Code of lowa and the City’s investment policy were
noted.

Revenue Loan — No instances of non-compliance with the sewer state revolving loan revenue debt
provisions were noted.

Annual Urban Renewal Report — The annual urban renewal report was properly approved and
certified to the lowa Department of Management on or before December 1.

Tax Increment Financing — The Special Revenue Tax Increment Financing Fund properly disbursed
payments for TIF loans and rebates. Also, the City properly completed the Tax Increment Debt
Certificate forms to request TIF property taxes.
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ADMINISTRATION

City of Cedar Falls

220 Clay Street

Cedar Falls, lowa 50613
Phone: 319-273-8600

Fax: 319-273-8610
% www.cedarfalls.com MEMORANDUM

TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council

FROM:  Shane Graham, Economic Development Coordinator
DATE: October 28, 2022
SUBJECT: FY23 Report by Community Main Street

As you may recall, starting in FY09 we signed formal agreements with those outside
agencies that receive funding from the City of Cedar Falls. As part of those agreements,
these agencies were required to submit reports and documentation on how those funds
were used.

Attached is the bi-annual report for FY23 filed by Community Main Street. The first %2
payment for their SSMID funding and the first %2 payment for their economic
development grant are therefore listed on the council bills to be processed.

If you have any questions, please feel free to let me know.

XC: Jennifer Rodenbeck, Director of Finance and Business Operations
Stacy Braun-Wagner, Finance Clerk
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PROMOTE THE HISTORIC IMAGE AND CHARACTER OF THE DOWNTOWN , Svrrrr
IMPROVING THE QUALITY OF LIFE IN CEDAR FALLS.

MAIN STREET october 28, 2022

2022-2023
BOARD OF
DIRECTORS:

JENNY LEEPER, PRES
KATE DUNNING

ANN EASTMAN
WYNETTE FROEHNER
LEXIE HEATH

BRENT JOHNSON
CORY KENT

AUDREY KITTRELL
DAN LYNCH

EMILEE NEDOBA
HELEN PEARCE
STEPHANIE SHEETZ
MARK SHOWALTER
BRAD STROUSE

Mayor Green and Council Members
City of Cedar Falls

220 Clay Street

Cedar Falls, IA 50613

RE: SSMID, Economic Betterment Funding and Facade Funds

Attached please find the Bi-annual Report from Community Main Street delineating the current
status and recent progress of the organization’s pursuit of “economic vitality in the context of
historic preservation.”

In this report you will find a summary of the activities outlined in the grant contract(s).
These activities are in the areas of:

¢ Design and historic preservation

e Business development and retention

e Promotion and marketing

e Member development, training and communication

e Summary of investments

e FY2023 program of work

The following required attachments are also included:
e Board Roster
e Financial Statements
e Support documents

We are grateful for the support that the City of Cedar Falls has provided over the years and the
collaborative effort by many groups and individuals in creating a Downtown District with appreciated
real estate values, a reputation as a great destination and as a source of community pride. We will
continue to do our part to help move the Cedar Falls Downtown District forward in a positive light.
With submission of this report, we respectfully request the disbursement of funds to Community
Main Street of collected SSMID monies and of the previously awarded Economic Betterment Grant
as well as Facade grant funds for the continuation of this pivotal community program. We would be
pleased to provide any additional information that you may require to process the release of funds.

Kind Regards,
Kim Bear

Executive Director
Community Main Street

MAIN STREET

S IOWA  #e

AMERICA

DIRECTOR@COMMUNITYMAINSTREET.ORG - 319.277.0213
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Status Report

1987-MS-001-Cedar Falls

Downtown Resource Center

Award Year: 1987 Status: Approved

Contract Number: 1987-MS-001

Status Report 08

Number:
Submitted By: Kim Bear
Submitted Date:  (07/29/2022

Status Report

Quarterly Economic Impact

Type:
Title 2022 2nd Qtr
Report Period 04/01/2022 06/30/2022

From Date To Date

Primary Contact and Organization

Primary Contact

AnA User Id

KIM.BEAR@IOWAID

Organization Information

Organization

Community Main Street, Inc.

Name:*
First Name* Kim Bear
First Name Middle Name Last Name Organization _ " . .
_ . ' Type:* Non-Profit Organization
Title: Executive Director
. . . . DUNS:
Email:* director@communitymainstreet.org
B Unique
Address: 310 East 4th Street Entity
Identifier
(UEI)
3815 Union Road i
_ ‘(’)vrg;q:z?tlon communitymainstreet.org
City* CEDAR FALLS Ilowa _ 50613 _ ebsite:
City State/Province Postal Code/Zip Address: Community Main Street
Phone:* 319-277-0213
Phone Ext. 310 E 4th St
Program
Area of Downtown Resource Center
Interest* Cedar Falls lowa 50613
City State/Province Postal Code/Zip
Fax:
Phone: 319-277-0213
Ext.
Fax:

Investments in the Main Street District
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Investments in the Main Street District 1

Project Type* Rehab Existing Building
Building/Business Name The Cob Mercantile

Address 212 Main Street Cedar Falls, IA 50613
Private Amount Invested $150.00

Source of Funds Private

Public Amount Invested $0.00
Public Investment Source

Grant Amount Invested $0.00

Source of Grant Funds

Invested

Total Amount Invested $150.00

Comments add doorway between tenants

Investments in the Main Street District 2

Project Type* Rehab Existing Building
Building/Business Name The Other Place

Address 209 Main Street Cedar Falls, IA 50613
Private Amount Invested $187,000.00

Source of Funds Private

Public Amount Invested $0.00
Public Investment Source

Grant Amount Invested $0.00

Source of Grant Funds

Invested

Total Amount Invested $187,000.00

Comments new restaurant/bar/kitchen & 2 baths in bldg

Investments in the Main Street District 3

Project Type* Rehab Existing Building
Building/Business Name J Squared Properties

Address 412 Main Street Cedar Falls, 1A 50613
Private Amount Invested $15,500.00

Source of Funds Private

Public Amount Invested $0.00
Public Investment Source

Grant Amount Invested $0.00
Source of Grant Funds

Invested

Total Amount Invested $15,500.00
Comments

Investments in the Main Street District 4

Project Type* Rehab Existing Building
Building/Business Name Mu2

Address 200 E 1st Street Cedar Falls, IA 50613
Private Amount Invested $2,500.00

Source of Funds Private

Public Amount Invested $0.00
Public Investment Source

Grant Amount Invested $0.00
Source of Grant Funds

Invested

Total Amount Invested $2,500.00

Comments Add wall divide existing tenant space into 2 units

Item 18.
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Investments in the Main Street District 5

Project Type* Rehab Existing Building
Building/Business Name River Place Condo Il

Address 250 State Street Cedar Falls, 1A 50613
Private Amount Invested $72,500.00

Source of Funds Private

Public Amount Invested $0.00
Public Investment Source

Grant Amount Invested $0.00

Source of Grant Funds

Invested

Total Amount Invested $72,500.00
Comments repair water damage

Investments in the Main Street District 6

Project Type* Rehab Existing Building
Building/Business Name Farmers State Bank

Address 515 Main Street A Cedar Falls, IA 50613
Private Amount Invested $55,000.00

Source of Funds Private

Public Amount Invested $0.00
Public Investment Source

Grant Amount Invested $0.00

Source of Grant Funds

Invested

Total Amount Invested $55,000.00

Comments Build new walls for 2 new offices & new vestibule

Investments in the Main Street District 7

Project Type* Rehab Existing Building

Building/Business Name Talk to Me Technologies

Address 517 Washington Street Cedar Falls, IA 50613
Private Amount Invested $5,500.00

Source of Funds Private

Public Amount Invested $0.00
Public Investment Source

Grant Amount Invested $0.00

Source of Grant Funds

Invested

Total Amount Invested $5,500.00

Comments replace front door & install window

Investments in the Main Street District 8

Project Type* Rehab Existing Building

Building/Business Name Splendore Medical Spa

Address 515 Main Street Ste C Cedar Falls, IA 50613
Private Amount Invested $65,000.00

Source of Funds Private

Public Amount Invested $0.00
Public Investment Source

Grant Amount Invested $0.00
Source of Grant Funds

Invested

Total Amount Invested $65,000.00

Comments Demo tile, install cabinets, sinks, & barn door

Item 18.
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Buildings Sold in the Main Street District

Building/Business
Name

The Brass Tap

Address Current Use Future Use Amount of Sale
421 Main Street Cedar Falls, 1A Food Food
50613 Establishment Establishment $1,100,000.00

Business Changes in the Main Street District

Item 18.

Business Name

The Funky Zebras

Lotus & Lou

The Skin Spa And
Shop LLC

The Cob Mercantile
The Other Place

Square One Vintage

Moxie Roots

Address Business Business Type #of FT  #of PT
Status Jobs Jobs

100 East 2nd Street Ste 104 Cedar .

Falls, IA 50613 New Retail 2

317 Main Street Cedar Falls, IA 50613 Closed Retail 1

201 W 1st Street Cedar Falls, IA 50613 New Service 4

212 Main Street Cedar Falls, IA 50613 New Retail 1 8
209 Main Street Cedar Falls, IA 50613 New Food . 15 40

Establishment

100 E 2nd Street Ste 105 Cedar Falls, .

IA 50613 New Retail 2

412 Main Street Cedar Falls, IA 50613 New Service 1

New Housing in the Main Street District

Address

# of Units

Monthly Rent or Purchase Price Purchase/Rent?

Main Street Events & Activities

Main Street Events & Activities 1

Event/Activity Name*
Description

Date
Event/Activity Type
Achievement

Historical Tax Credit Presentation

Steve Wilke-Shapiro from Des Moines lowa was invited to come to Cedar Falls to give a
presentation on Historical Tax Credit Fundamentals on 4/27/2022 at the Cedar Falls
Community Center. He typically offers this presentation to neighborhood organizations in
newly established historic districts, economic development groups, historic preservation
commissions, and conferences. The presentation covers the State and Federal historic
tax credit programs (depending on the audience) from big-picture process to critical
details. Throughout the presentation he illustrates points with practical examples and
covers that Historic tax credits are valuable as a tool for both encouraging preservation of
significant buildings and stimulating investment in distressed communities.

4/27/2022
Educational

8 people in Attendance at the presentation held on 4/27/2022 at the Cedar Falls
Community Center

Main Street Events & Activities 2

Event/Activity Name*
Description

Volunteer Appreciation

Our Volunteers are Smashing. And our downtown is a Smashing Success because of
you. All volunteers for Community Main Street were invited to attend in party in
celebration giving thanks to their hours of work and involvement here with CMS.
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Date
Event/Activity Type
Achievement

4/26/2022
Special Event

Smashing Theme with decorations, and flowers.
31 people attended the party held at our CMS Office the evening of April 26, 2022. Food,
drinks, and desserts were provided, including a mashed potato bar from Whiskey Road.

Main Street Events & Activities 3

Event/Activity Name*

Description

Date
Event/Activity Type
Achievement

Show & Shine - Car Show

Mark your calendars and join us for the 5th Annual Downtown Show & Shine where we fill
the Cedar Falls Downtown District with classic and beautiful metal from the old days to
today, including those being restored. Bring your car or motorcycle, and put it on display
for the community to check out. Shine up your beauty and bring it to the show. If you just
love to look at the awesome cars, admission is Free, and we look forward to seeing
everyone.

05/01/2022
Fundraising

Pre-registration as well as same day was available and included one parking spot on
Main Street for the duration of the show as well as a dash plaque for the 150 car spots.
Pre-registration was $15, same day was $20. 80 cars showed up on the day of the event,
20 did not show up that were pre-sold tickets, most likely due to weather. Trophies were
awarded for Best in Show by way of judge's vote. Fundraising efforts went to the
downtown beautification, including summer flower baskets.

Main Street Events & Activities 4

Event/Activity Name*
Description

Date
Event/Activity Type
Achievement

Annual Meeting

Our Annual Meeting is put on by the CMS Office and our Organization Development
Committee. It held at George's Local, during the lunch hour from 1130 am - 1pm. Each
individual paid $15 which included a delicious buffet, drinks, and desserts. Our president
and executive director gave a presentation on what has happened in the last year,
including MSI Awards, welcoming 14 new businesses, thanking retiring board members,
introducing 2 new employees at CMS. Our regular board meeting was held as well as the
annual meeting. Where we voted on nominees and elected our executive board for the
2023 Fiscal Year.

5/10/2022
Image

37 people attended
$15 each ticket to cover expense of the meal

Main Street Events & Activities 5

Event/Activity Name*

Description

Date
Event/Activity Type
Achievement

Spring Shop Hop / Grow Your Garden

Spring is in the air, which mean flowers will soon be blooming where ever you can look
and we cannot wait! So we want to help you get your garden started. We are going to be
kicking off our Spring Shop Hop on Earth Day. You will be able to collect a packet of
seeds as you check out the participating businesses throughout the Downtown District.

4/22 & 4/23/2022
Retail

A two day shop hop was held on 4/22 and 4/23 at 23 participating downtown locations.
The theme was "Grow Your Garden".

Main Street Events & Activities 6

Event/Activity Name*
Description

Date
Event/Activity Type
Achievement

Earth Day - Spring Clean Up

April is Earth Month, and we are eager to do our part in keeping our Downtown District
clean and green. On Friday, April 22, we are inviting you, your neighbors, your
coworkers, your friends, and your family to take part in helping us "spring clean" our
Downtown District in celebration of Earth Day. In addition to helping our downtown shine,
you can feel good knowing you are helping to make a difference in our community.
Whether you donate an hour of your time, we encourage you to sign up and make a
difference.

4/29/2022
Special Event
The design committee, CMS Staff, and local business people, their friends and family

Item 18.
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showed up to do their part in clean up the downtown. The first date on Earth Day was
postponed due to rain, and so it was rescheduled for 4/29/22. Sidewalks were swept on
Main Street. Garbage, debris, and sticks were cleaned up and down main street in front
of business' retail establishments, bars, and restaurants.

Main Street Events & Activities 7

Event/Activity Name*
Description

Date
Event/Activity Type
Achievement

Girls Night Out / Fiesta & Friends

Join us for our Fiesta and Friends event. This is the first Thursday in May, Girl's Night
Out event, but is also Cinco De Mayo this year, so grab their friends - we are going to
Fiesta. The event kicked off with a scavenger hunt, where each participating business
had 3 different scavenger hunt items to do at their location. A card was used to track
which businesses had been visited & was marked when the activities required for the
scavenger hunt had been completed. The cards gave participants 22 chances to win. The
downtown district was colorfully decorated with handmade flowers on the light poles and
in front of each participating business.

5/5/2022
Retail

22 businesses participated, with each having 3 different scavenger hunt items at their
location. A punch card was used to track the businesses visited, and were marked when
the activities required for the scavenger hunt had been completed. 23 winners of gift
cards for downtown businesses. Each business had different festive things to offer/add to
the event and made it special like a party or celebration. Each business also shared the
facebook event, and promoted it on social media.

Main Street Events & Activities 8

Event/Activity Name*

Description

Date
Event/Activity Type
Achievement

Movies Under the Moon

Movies Under the Moon features an array of free, family-friendly films under the stars on
select Friday nights during the summer months of June, July, and August at Overman
Park in Cedar Falls. The public is encouraged to arrive early and bring blankets and lawn
chairs. Musicians from the Cedar Valley Acoustic Guitar Association will take the stage at
7 pm, with the featured film beginning at dusk, or around 9 pm. Trolls World Tour was
played for the first Movies Under The Moon to kickoff the Summer.

06/03/2022
Special Event

This movie had been rained out in previous years, so we were excited to have fantastic
weather & a great turnout for our first movie featured this summer.

Main Street Events & Activities 9

Event/Activity Name*

Description

Date
Event/Activity Type
Achievement

Movies Under the Moon

Movies Under the Moon features an array of free, family-friendly films under the stars on
select Friday nights during the summer months of June, July, and August at Overman
Park in Cedar Falls. The public is encouraged to arrive early and bring blankets and lawn
chairs. Musicians from the Cedar Valley Acoustic Guitar Association will take the stage at
7 pm, with the featured film beginning at dusk, or around 9 pm. The Greatest Showman
was the second Movies Under the Moon showing for the season.

06/17/2022
Special Event

Another beautiful night for our second movie of the summer. The park was packed for this
one, a crowd favorite for all ages. The crowd was very enthusiastic, as they sang along
and danced with the music, and clapped & cheered at the movies end.

Main Street Events & Activities 10

Event/Activity Name*

Description

Date
Event/Activity Type
Achievement

Summer Sidewalk Sales

Come shop the Downtown District for our Annual day for Sidewalk Sales and stock up on
your favorite stores discounted items.

6/26/2022
Retail

Summer Sidewalk Sales took place on Sunday June 26th to coordinate with the craft and
vendors from 10 AM to 4 PM during Sturgis Falls Festival. 15 business locations
participated.

Main Street Events & Activities 11

Event/Activity Name*
Description

Sturgis Falls Parade
Community Main Street took part in the annual Sturgis Falls Parade held on Saturday

Item 18.
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Date
Event/Activity Type
Achievement

June 25, 2022. CMS entered a Holiday Hoopla themed float with a large wooden and
metal handcrafted ferris wheel with the bucket seats saying "how will santa arrive" There
were 23 walkers in the parade.

06/25/22
Special Event
CMS received the Cedar Falls Utilities Award for the 2022 parade entry

Main Street Events & Activities 12

Event/Activity Name*
Description

Date
Event/Activity Type
Achievement

Bi-Annual Event Postcard

We work with all the entities and event planners of the Downtown District to produce a
postcard to send to all the Cedar Falls homes as well as the surrounding communities
falling within a certain demographic.

5/25/2022
Marketing of Program

This postcard also comes with a QR code to scan to get entered into a drawing for
Downtown District gift certificates and entries can also opt in to the newsletter list. This is
the most requested/commented piece of information that we do through out office.

Volunteer Hours Invested in Main Street

Item 18.

Volunteer Hours
Yes

Commentary

Total Volunteer Hours
947.0

Design
Commentary/Updates

Economic
Vitality/Business
Improvement
Commentary/Updates

The Design committee has been busy this last quarter helping and participating in several
events.

CMS hosted a Historic Tax Credit presentation which was given by Steve Wilke-Shapiro
fro